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No dealer, broker, salesman, or other person has been authorized by the Corporation or the Underwriter to give any 
information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, 
such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by either the Corporation 
or the Undenwiter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor 
is there authorized to be any sale of the 2006 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such 
person to make such offer, solicitation, or safe. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with 
purchasers or registered owners of the 2006 Bonds. 

The information set forth in this Official Statement has been provided by the Corporation and other official sources, all 
of which are believed to be reliable. The information and expressions of opinion in this Official Statement are subject 
to change without notice, and neither the delivery ofthis Official Statement nor any sale made hereunderwill, under any 
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Corporation or that the other 
information or opinions are correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Official Statement. Such information 
and expressions of opinion are made for the purpose of providing information to prospective investors and are not to be 
used for any other purpose or relied on by any other party. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriter has 
reviewed the information in this Official Statement inaccordance with, andaspart of, its responsibility to investorsunder 
the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not 
guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING OF THE 2006 BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER ALLOT 
OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAINTHEMARKETPRICE OF THE 2006 BONDS 
OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN 
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AND, IF DISCONTINUED, 
THEN RECOMMENCED AT ANY TIME. 

UPON ISSUANCE, THE 2006 BONDS WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
AS AMENDED, AND WILL NOT BE LISTED ON ANY STOCK OR OTHER SECURITIES EXCHANGE. 
NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHER FEDERAL, STATE, OR 
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY OR AGENCY HAS PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED 
THE ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR APPROVED THE 2006 BONDS FOR SALE. ANY 
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THE INDENTURE WILL NOT BE 
QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED. 

This Official Statement is submitted by the Corporation in connection with the sale of the 2006 Bonds referred to herein 
and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Relnting to 

$85,000,000 ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2006A 

consisting of: 

$30,000,000 
Senior Series 2006A-1 

(Reset Auction Mode Securities - RAMST37 
Due June 1,2040 

Priee: 100% 

$55,000,000 
Senior Series 2006A-2 

Fixed Rate Bonds 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement is being distributed by the Alaska Student Loan Corporation (the "Corporation") to 
furnish infomationregarding~30,000,0& aggregate amount o f ~ d u c a t i o n ~ o &  ~ e v e n u e ~ o n d s ,  ~ e n i o r ~ e h e s  
2006A-1 (the "2006A-1 Bonds") and $55,000,000 aggregate principal amount ofEducation Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 
Series 2006.4-2 (the "2006A-2 Bonds," and, togetherwith the 2006A-1 Bonds, the "2006 Bonds"). The 2006A-I Bonds 
will be initially issued as Reset Auction Mode Securities ("MMSU)'and the 2006.4-2 Bonds will be issued as fixed rate 
bonds ("Fixed Rate Bonds"). 

The 2006 Bonds will be issued and secured under the Indenture, dated as of June 1,2002, as heretofore and 
hereafter amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Master Indenture") by and between the Corporation and 
U.S. Bank National Association, Seattle Washington, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), and a Fiith Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as ofMay 1,2006, by and between theCorporation and the Trustee (the "Fiflh Supplemental Indenture" 
and, together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"). The Trustee is also the initial Paying Agent andRegistrar for 
the 2006 Bonds. The 2006 Bonds, together with all bonds issued under the Master Indenture, are referred to herein as 
the "Bonds." The 2006 Bonds are the fifth series of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture. 

n' RAMS is a rcgirand wdcmrk. 



The Corporation has Outstanding the following Bonds issued under the Master Indenture: 

Class of Initial Principal 
Bonds - Amount 
Class I S58,250,000 

Class I $45,500,000 

Class I $47,600,000 

Class I S22,015,000 

Class I S16,500,000 

Class I $30,500,000 

Class I $47,500,000 

Class 111 S15,000,000 

(collectively, the "Prior Bonds"). 

Currently Outstanding 
Principal Amount 

S58,250,000 

S45,500,000 

S47,600,000 

S22,015,000 

S16,500,000 

S30,500,000 

S21,100,000 

S15,000,000 

Title - 
Senior 2005 Series A 

Senior Series 2004A-1 

Senior Series 2004.4-2 

Senior Series 2004.4-3 

Senior Series 2003 A-1 

Senior Series 2003.4-2 

Senior Series 2002.4 

Subordinate Series 2002B 

Date of 
Issue - 

July 28, 2005 

May 19,2004 

May 19,2004 

May 19,2004 

June 5,2003 

June 5,2003 

June 4,2002 

June 4,2002 

All capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 
assigned to such terms in the Indenture. Certain defined tenns are contained in APPENDIX I1 -- "THE MASTER 
INDENTURE." The su~n~naries of and extracts from the Indenture and other documents included in this Official 
Statement do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive and are qualified in their entirety by reference to each such 
document. 

In 1987, the Corporation was created under laws of the State of Alaska (the "State"). The statute creating the 
Corporation is codified at Alaska Statutes 14.42.100 through 14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). The Act authorizes 
the Corporation, anlong other things, to acquire, purchase and make commitments to purchase loans made to students 
or certain family members of students and to loan money to students or certain family members of students for the 
purpose of assisting students in obtaining a postsecondary education, and to issue revenue bonds and notes to obtain 
funds to purchase or make such loans. 

Inorder to finance its acquisitionofeducation loans, tlieCorporationisauthorized to borrow money and to issue 
bonds payable from sources authorized by the Act, including the revenues derived from such loans. Loans for the 
financing of postsecondary education that are eligible for purchase by the Corporation include both Alternative Loans 
and FFELP Loans and are hereinafter referred to as "Education Loans." The Corporation's program for the financing 
of loans for postsecondary education, including the acquisition of Education Loans, is herein referred to as the "Loan 
Program." 

All Education Loans acquired with proceeds of the Bonds will secure the Bonds. As owner of the FFELP 
Loans, the Corporation is also entitled to receive benefits with respect to any loss resulting fiomdefault, death, disability 
or bankruptcy of a FFELP Loan borroucr. Such benefits, loan and other~mounts constitute revenues pledged 
undur the Indenture and arc d~scussed her?in under the heading "THE ALASKADVANTAGEB LOAN PROGRAM." 

The Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education (the "Commission") is an "eligible lender" under Title 
IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (the "Higher Education Act"). Pursuant to a Custodian 
DepositoryIServicing Agreement, the Commission has agreed to apply all benefits received under theHigher Education 
Act, with respect to the FFELP Loans financed under the Indenture, for the benefit of the Corporation and the Trustee. 



Class and Bond Characteristics 

The Masterlndenture provides that Bonds issued thereunder, including the 2006 Bonds, be designated a priority 
Class, withclass I being the highest priority and the lower priorities designated by increasingromannumerals. The2006 
Bonds are designated Class I Bonds. The Corporation reserves the right to issue additional Bonds under the Master 
Indenture with Class designations the same as or different from the designations given to the 2006 Bonds as well as 
additional Class I Bonds. The 2006 Bonds are the fifth series of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture. 

At any time a current principal or interest payment is required to be made, it is to be made first with respect to 
Bonds of the highest priority Class, and then in descending order of priority. In addition, the ability to control or pursue 
remedies is given "By Class in Descending Priority" as described in APPENDIX I1 to this Official Statement. 

EXERCISE OF RE\lEDlES BY A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS UPON A DEFAULT, INCLUDING 
PARTICULARLY ACCEI.ERATION OF A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS OF BONDS, OR EXERCISE O F  
REMEDIES BY A CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGENCY FOLLOWING A DEFAULTUNDERA RELATED -~ -~ - - - -  

AGREEMENT (SEE "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - CERTAIN PAYMENT PRIORITIES") COULD 
ADVERSELY AFFECT THE ABILITY O F  LOWER PRlORlTY CLASSES O F  BONDS TO RECEIVE 
PAYMENT OF DEBTSERVICE WHEN DUE. A PAYMENT DEFAULT WITH RESPECTTOA CLASS O F  
BONDS OTHER THAN THE HIGHEST PRlORlTY CLASS THEN OUTSTANDING IS NOT AN EVENT O F  
DEFAULT UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

General 

The 2006 Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery and, subject to the redemption provisions set forth 
below, will mature on the respective dates set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. The 2006A-1 Bonds 
will be issued initially as RAMS. The 2006A-I Bonds will be issued in authorized denominations of Sl00,OOO or any 
integral multiple thereofwithin amaturity whileoutstanding as RAMS. See "RESET AUCTION MODE SECURITIES 
(2006A-1 Bonds)" herein. The 2006A-2 Bonds will be issued as Fixed Rate Bonds in authorized denominations of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof within a maturity. See "FIXED RATE BONDS (2006A-2 BONDS)" herein. 
The 2006 Bonds will be issued in filly registered form, without coupons, and when issued will be registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York. DTC will act as 
Securities Depository for the 2006 Bonds. Individual purchases of the 2006 Bonds will be made in Book-Entry Form 
only in the principal amount of authorized denominations. Purchasers of the 2006 Bonds will not receive certificates 
representing their interests in the 2006 Bonds purchased. See "Appendix VII - THE DEPOSITORY TRUST 
COMPANY." 

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Corporation, secured by and payable solely from payments, 
proceeds, charges and other income derived by or for the account of the Corporation constituting Pledged Receipts as 
described in APPENDIX I1 -"THE MASTER INDENTURE!' Such income includes, without limitation, payments of 
interest on Education Loans and other investments (including federal interest subsidy payments), principal payments on 
Education Loans (whether regularly scheduled, prepayments or proceeds of insurance payments for defaulted FFELP 
Loans) and Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") from the Secretary of the United States Department of Education (the 
"Secretary"), if any. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS." 

THE 2006 BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS O F  THE CORPORATION AND ARE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES, ASSETS AND FUNDS PLEDGED THEREFORUNDERTHE 
INDENTURE. IN ADDITION,THE 2006 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OR OTHER 
LIABILITY O F  THE STATE O F  ALASKA OR O F  ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, EXCEPT 
THE CORPORATION, OR A PLEDGE O F  THE FAITH AND CREDIT O F  THE CORPORATION, THE 
STATE O F  ALASKA O R  ANY POLITICAL SUBDlVlSlON THEREOF. ISSUANCE O F  THE 2006 BONDS 
DOES NOT DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, OR CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE THE STATEOR A POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION O F  THE STATE TO APPLY MONEY FROM, OR LEVY OR PLEDGE, ANY FORM O F  
TAXATION TO THE PAYMENT OF THE 2006 BONDS. THE CORPORATION HAS NO TAXING POWER. 

The descriptions of the 2006 Bonds and of the documents authorizing and securing the 2006 Bonds contained 
herein do not purport to be definitive or comprehensive. All references berein to such documents are qualified in their 



entirety by reference to such documents. Copies of such documents, in reasonable quantity, may be obtained upon 
written request during the offering period of the 2006 Bonds from RBC Dain Rauscher Inc., doing business under the 
trade name RBC Capital Markets, 2398 E. Camelback Road, Suite 700, Phoenix, Arizona 85016, and upon written 
request thereafter from the Corporation at 3030 Vintage Boulevard, Juneau, Alaska 99801 (physical address) or P.O. 
Box 110505, Juneau, Alaska 9981 1-0505 (mailing address), or the Trustee at 1420 Fiflh Avenue, 7th Floor, Seattle, 
Washington 98 101. 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

General 

The2006Bonds are special, limitedobligationsoftheCorporationsecured by and payablesolely from theTrust 
Estate established under the Indenture pursuant to which the 2006 Bonds are issued. The Trust Estate consists of: (i) 
any Education Loan held in or credited to the Education Loan Fund under the Indenture; (ii) all amounts received under, 
or pursuant to, or with respect to any Pledged Loan; (iii) all amounts received under or pursuant to the promissory note 
or other documentation evidencing a Pledged Loan, and (iv) amounts held in the Revenue Fund and the Capital Reserve 
Fund. No other assets of the Corporation are pledged to the payment of the 2006 Bonds. 

Collatcralization 

Upon the issuance ofthe 2006 Bonds, it is anticipated that the principal amount of the Education Loans and the 
wluc of ihc other asses pledged under the lndenturc ill1 be equal to approxin~atcly 127% of the aggregate principal 
mount  of 311 Class I Bunds (including the 2006 Bonds) and approximat~Ay 12 1.5% ofthe aggregate principal xnount 
of all Bonds Outstanding under the Master Indenture. The Indenture does not require that any level of collateralization 
be maintained but does, however, require that certain tests be met prior to the removal of assets from the Indenture. 

Withdrawal of Excess Coverage 

At any time, but no more frequently than once every month, the Corporation may deliver to the Trustee a 
Certificate executed by its Authorized Representative, (i) evidencing the fact that there is then Excess Coverage, as 
defined in APPENDIX 11 to this Official Statement, on deposit under the Indenture and specifying the amount thereof, 
and (ii) that no Event ofDefault exists under the Indenture. Promptly upon the Trustee's receipt of that Certificate, and 
a Rating Confirmation, the Trustee will release such Excess Coverage to the Corporation for any of its lawful purposes. 

Capital Reserve Fund 

As part of the Trust Estate, the 2006 Bonds are secured (subject to priority as described in this Official 
Statement) by the Capital Reserve Fund established under the Master Indenture. At the time of issuance of the 2006 
Bonds, the Capital Reserve Fund is expected to have on deposit therein an amount equal to approximately $6,829,300, 
including S1,700,000 from proceeds of the 2006 Bonds. The Suppletnental Indenture provides a minimum Capital 
Reserve Requirement of an amount at least equal to 2% of the principal amount of Bonds Outstanding but in no event 
less than $500,000. Amounts on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund (other than amounts in excess of the Capital 
Reserve Requirement, which are to be transferred to the Revenue Fund) are to be used to pay the principal ofor interest 
on the Bonds, by Class indescending order ofpriority, to the extent other moneys held and availableunder the Indenture 
are insufficient and to reimburse each Credit Enhancement Agency to the extent provided in the related agreement. 
Under the Indenture, all or any portion of the Capital Reserve Requirement may be satisfied by the deposit with the 
Trustee of a surety bond. 

The Act provides that if the assets in any capital reserve fund created pursuant to the Act are less than the 
amount currently required in a Corporation resolution or indenture to be on deposit, the Chairperson of the Corporation 
shall,annually, by January 15, certify to the Governor and the State Legislature the amount necessary to restore theassets 
of the fund to the required amount. However, because the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement is less than maximum 
annual debt service on the Bonds, even if the State Legislature makes all appropriations contemplated by the Act, such 
appropriations may be insufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds as the same become due and payable. 



In the opinion of Bond Counsel, such provision does not give rise to a legal obligation of the State; however, 
the Govemor is legally authorized, but not legally obligated, to request such appropriation, and the Legislature is legally 
authorized, but not legally obligated, to appropriate the amount requested. The Corporation has covenanted in the 
Indenture to do and perform or cause to he done and performed each and every act and thing with respect to the Capital 
Reserve Fund to be done or performed by or on behalf of the Corporation or the Trustee under the t e n s  and provisions 
of the Indenture and of the Act. The Corporation is not required to contribute assets to maintain the Capital Reserve 
Fund at its required level. 

Certain Payment Priorities 

The Indenture provides that Bonds issued thereunder, including the 2006 Bonds, be designated a priority Class, 
with Class I being the highest priority. The 2006 Bonds are designated Class I Bonds and are on parity with Class 1 
Bonds previously issued under the indenture. See "INTRODUCTION." 

The Corporation reserves the right to issue additional Classes of Bonds in the future and to issue additional 
Bonds within Class I in the fuhlre. 

At any time a current principal or interest payment is required to be made, it will be made first with respect to 
Bonds ofthe highest priority Class, and then in descending order of priority. In addition, the ability to control or pursue 
remedies is given to the registered owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds of the liighest Class as described in APPENDIX I1 to this Official Statement. 

EXERCISE O F  REMEDIES BY A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS UPON A DEFAULT, INCLUDING 
PARTICULARLY ACCELERATION O F  A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS O F  BONDS, OR EXERCISE O F  
REMEDIES BY A CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGENCY FOLLOWING A DEFAULT UNDER A RELATED 
AGREEMENT (SEE "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - CERTAIN PAYMENT PRIORITIES") COULD 
ADVERSELY AFFECT THE ABILITY O F  LOWER PRIORITY CLASSES O F  BONDS TO RECEIVE 
PAYMENT O F  DEBT SERVICE WHEN DUE. A PAYMENT DEFAULT WITH RESPECTTO A CLASS O F  
BONDS OTHERTHAN THE HIGHEST PRIORITY CLASS THEN OUTSTANDING, IS NOT AN EVENT O F  
DEFAULT UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

Additional Bonds 

The Corporation may issue additional Series of Bonds under the Master Indenture from time to time, payable 
on a parity with or subordinate to any Class I Bonds, and senior to, on a parity with or subordinate to Bonds other than 
Class I Bonds. The issuance of Additional Bonds is subject to, among othcr things, receipt of a Rating Confirmation 
prior to issuance. 

THE 2006 BONDS 

General 

The 2006 Bonds are issued as fully registered bonds. The 2006A-1 Bonds will be initially issued as RAMS in 
authorized denominations of $100,000 or integral multiples thereofwithin a maturity while Outstanding as RAMS. See 
"RESET AUCTION MODE SECURITIES (2006A-1 Bonds)" herein. The 2006A-2 Bonds (theFixed Rate Bonds) will 
be issued in authorized denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof within a maturity. See "FIXED RATE 
BONDS (2006A-2 Bonds)" herein. The 2006 Bonds, when issued, shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as 
nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), which shall act as securities depository 
for the 2006 Bonds. Interest on the 2006 Bonds is payable on the dates described herein under the heading "THE 2006 
BONDS - Interest Payments." While the 2006 Bonds are held in the Book-Entry System, principal of and interest on 
the 2006 Bonds will be paid by wire transfer of same day funds or in such other manner as permitted by the Letter of 
Representations to the account of Cede & Co. on the Payment Date at the address indicated for Cede & Co. in the bond 
register kept by the Trustee. 



Interest Payments 

Interest on the RAMS is to be computed as described in "RESET AUCTION MODE SECURITIES (2006A-1 
Bonds) - Interest Payments." Interest on the Fixed Rate Bonds is to be computed as described in "FIXED RATE 
BONDS (2006A-2 Bonds). 

Redemption and Acceleration Provisions 

Optional Redemption. The 2006A-I Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Corporation from 
any source of funds in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal to the respective principal amounts of 
the 2006A-1 Bonds being redeemed, plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date. 

The Fixed Rate Bonds maturing prior to June I, 2017 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities. The Fixed Rate Bonds maturing on or after June 1,2017 are subject to redemption at the option of the 
Corporation on or after June 1, 2016 in whole or in part on any date, in increments of S5,000, with maturities to be 
selected by the Corporation at a price of 100% ofthe principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption. 

Procedure forandNotice ofRedernplion. When theTrusteereceives notice from theCorporationofitselection 
or direction to redeem Bonds, the Trustee is to give notice, in the name of the Corporation, to the registered owners of 
such Bonds of the redemption of such Bonds. Such notice is to specify the Series, Class and maturities of the Bonds to 
be redeemed, the Reden~ption Date and, if less than all the Bonds of any Series, Class and maturity are to be redeemed, 
the respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such notice is to further state that on such date 
there will become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the Redemption 
Price of the specified portions of the principal thereof in the case of a Bond to be redeemed in part only, together with 
interest accrued to the Redemption Date, and that from and after such date interest thereon will cease to accrue and be 
payable. Such notice is to be given by first-class mail, not less than 30 days nor more than 45 days before the 
Redemption Date. Failure to mail any such notice will not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of 
Bonds with respect to which no such failure occurred. Such notice is to be given to DTC so long as it is the registered 
owner of the Bonds. 

Payment ofRedeernedBoiids. Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption will becomedue and payable 
on the RedemptionDale sodesignated at theRedemption Price, plus interest accruedand unpaid to the Redemption Date. 
So long as the Bonds are book-entry only, the Trustee is to pay the Redemption Price to DTC, which is to follow its 
procedures for payment to Beneficial Holders. See "APPENDIX VII -THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY." 
If thecorporation or DTC discontinues the book-entry system and certificated bonds are issued to the registered owners, 
the Bonds must be presented and surrendered at the ofice ofthe Trustee on the Redemption Date. If less than the entire 
principal amount of a Bond is called for redemption, the Corporation is to execute, the Trustee is to authenticate, and 
the Paying Agent is to deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the 
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered at the option of the registered owner thereof, 
Bonds of like Class, Series and maturity in any Authorized Denominations. If, on the Redemption Date, moneys for the 
redemption of all the Bonds or portions thereof of any like Series, Class and maturity to be redeemed, together with 
interest to the Redemption Date, is wired to DTC (while the Bonds are book-entry only) or held by the Paying Agent so 
as to be available therefor on said date and ifnotice of redemption has been mailed as aforesaid, then, from and after the 
Redemption Date, interest on the Bonds or portions thereof of such Class, Series and maturities so called for redemption 
will cease to accrue and become payable. If said moneys are not available on the Redemption Date, such Bonds or 
portions thereof will continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been 
called for redemption. 

Acceleration. If an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) shall occur, the principal of all the 2006 
Bonds may be, and under certain circumstances shall be, declared due and payable in the manner and with the effect 
provided in the Indenture. 



RESET AUCTION MODE SECURITIES 
(2006A-1 Bonds) 

General 

The description of the 2006A-1 Bonds contained in this Official Statement generally includes details with 
respect to the 2006A-I Bonds while they areoutstanding asRAMS. This Official Statenlentdoes not attempt todescribe 
details which would be applicable to the 2006A-1 Bonds if they were converted to a Fixed Rate or Adjustable Rate. In 
such events, the 2006A-1 Bonds Outstanding as RAMS, which would be so converted, would be subject to mandatory 
tender prior to conversion. See "RATE CONVERSION - Mandatory Tender Upon Conversion." 

The 2006A-I Bonds will be issued initially as RAMS, shall be dated the date of initial deliverythereofand shall 
 natureo on thcd3tcsas set fonhon thccovcr ofthis Otiic~ill Stlltcment. Cenaincapitalizedtemsuscdliercin with respect 
to the 2006A-I Bonds 0utrt:mding 3s KAMS arc defined in Appendix IV to t h ~ s  Official Statement. 

Interest 

Interest Paynients. Interest on the RAMS shall accrue for each Interest Period at the Auction Bond lnterest 
Rate for such Interest Period and shall be payable in arrears, on each succeeding Interest Payment Date. An "Interest 
Period" means (a) so long as interest is payable on June 1 and December 1 with respect to the 2006A-I Bonds 
Outstanding as RAMS, and unless otherwise changed as described under the caption "-Changes in lnterest Periods or 
Auction Date - Changes in Interest Period or Periods" below, the period commencing on the date of the delivery of the 
RAMS and ending on and including June 21,2006, and each successive 35-day period thereafter, commencing on a 
Thursday, and (b) if, and for so long as, Interest Payment Dates are specified to occur at the end ofeach Auction Period, 
as described below under "-Changes in Interest Periods or Auction Date - Changes in Interest Period or Periods," each 
period commencingonan Interest Payment Date and ending on but excluding thenext succeeding Interest PaymentDate. 
Unless otherwise changed as described in "Changes in Auction Periods or Auction Date -- Changes bi Auction Period 
or Periods" in Appendix IV to this Official Statement, an "Interest Payment Date" for the 2006A-1 Bonds, while the 
2006A-1 Bonds are Outstanding as RAMS, means June 1 and December I and at maturity or earlier redemption, 
commencing December I, 2006, or if any such date is not a Business Day, the next succceding Business Day (but only 
for interest accrued through the preceding May 3 1 or November 30, as the case may be). 

While the RAMS are Outstanding in book-entry fonn, the amount of interest distributable to Holders of RAMS 
in respect of each $100,000 in principal amount thereof for the 2006A-1 Bonds, for any lnterest Period or part thereof 
shall be calculated by applying the Auction Bond lnterest Rate for each Interest Period or part thereof to the principal 
amount of $100,000, respectively, multiplying such product by the actual number of days in each such lnterest Period 
or part thereof, divided by 360, and, if necessary, truncating the resultant f i y e  to the nearest cent. Interest on the 
RAMS shall be computed on the basis ofa 360-day year for the number of days actually elapsed. In the event an Interest 
Payment Date occurs in an lnterest Period on a day other than the first day ofsuch Interest Period, the Auction Agent, 
after confirmingthecalculationrequired above, shall calculatethe portion ofthe interest amount payableforsuchhterest 
Period on such Interest Payn~ent Date and the portion payable on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date. The 
Auction Agent shall make the calculation described above not later than the close of business on each Auction Date. 

lnterest payments on the RAMS are to be made by the Trustee to the registered owners of the RAMS, as of the 
Record Date preceding each Interest Payment Date. The RAMS are to be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., 
as nominee of DTC. See "Appendix VII - THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY" for a description of how DTC 
and other Depositories, as registered owners, are expected to disburse such payments to the beneficial owners. 

Ai~ctio~~Boi~dIiiterestRate. The rate ofinterest on the RAMS for each lnterest Period subsequent to the Initial 
Interest Period, to but not including the Conversion Date, shall beequal to the annual rate of interest (the"AuctionRateM) 
that results from implementation of the Auction Procedures described in Appendix IV hereto, provided that if, on any 
Auction Date, an Auction is not held for any reason (other than as described below under "Disruption in Auction 
Procedures"), then the rate of interest for the next succeeding lnterest Period shall equal the applicable Maximum 
Auction Rate on such Auction Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing: (a) if the ownership of the RAMS is no longer 
maintained in book-cntry tbnn, the rate of interest on the RAh1S for 3ny Inwrest Period commcncing dicr thc dclivcry 
ofccnific~tcs representing RAMS as described above sl i~ll  cqual the applicable . ~ ~ x i m u m A u c t ~ o n  Rate on the Business 



Day immediately preceding the first day of such Interest Period; (b) if a Payment Default occurs, Auctions will be 
suspended and the Auction Bond Interest Rate (as defined below) for the Interest Period commencing on or after such 
Payment Default and for each Interest Period thereafter to and including the Interest Period, if any, during which, or 
commencing less than two Business Days after, such Payment Default is cured will equal the Overdue Rate; or (c) if a 
proposed conversion to a Fixed Rate or Adjustable Rate shall have failed, as described under the caption "Rate 
Conversion -Inadequate Funds for Tenders; Failed Conversion" below, and the next succeeding Auction Date shall be 
two or fewer Business Days after, or on, any such failed Conversion Date, then an Auction shall not be held on such 
Auction Date and the rate ofinterest on theRAMS subject to thefailedconversion for thenext succeeding Interest Period 
shall be equal to the applicable Maximum Auction Rate calculated as of the first Business Day of such Interest Period. 

The rate per annum at which interest is payable on the RAMS for any Interest Period is herein referred to as 
the "Auction Bond Interest Rate." Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Auction Bond Interest Rate 
cannot exceed the Maximum Auction Rate. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if any RAMS or portion thereof have been selected for 
redemotiondurine the next succeedine Interest Period. such RAMS or oortion thereofwill notbe included in the Auction - ... 
preceding such Redemption Date, and will continue to bear interest until the Redemption Date at the rate established for 
the Interest Period prior to said Auction. 

Disrrrptiorr in Aiicfioa Procedwes. If, as of the commencement of an Interest Period, an Auction is scheduled 
to occur for such Interest Period on a Business Day (a "Scheduled Auction Date"), but such Auction does not occur 
because itwasnot foreseeable that the Scheduled Auction Date wouldnot be a Business Day, or ifthe Scheduled Auction 
Date was a Business Day but, as a result of an event generally affecting the securities markets in the United States, 
auctions for securities such as the RAMS were generally not conducted duringsuch Business Day and in fact an Auction 
for the RAMS was not conducted on such Business Day, the following will apply: 

(a) An Auction shall be deemed to have occurred on the Schedulcd Auction Date as if such day were a 
Business Day; 

(b) The Auction Rate for such deemed Auction to be in effect for the succeeding Interest Period (i) shall 
be equal to the Auction Rate for the preceding Interest Period if such preceding Interest Period was 35 days or less; and 
(ii) otherwise shall be the rate of interest determined by the Market Agent on equivalently rated auction securities with 
a comparable length of Interest Period; and 

(c) The succeeding Interest Period shall begin on the calendarday following the Scheduled Auction Date. 

Auction Participants 

Existing Holders ofid Pofcntial Holders. Participants in each Auction will include (i) "Existing Holders," 
which shall mean (A) for the purpose ofdealing with the Auction Agent in connection with an Auction, any Person who 
is a Broker-Dealer listed in the Existing Holder registry at the close of business on the Business Day preceding each 
Auction and (B) for the purpose of dealing with a Broker-Dealer in connection with an Auction, a Person who is a 
beneficial owner of RAMS; and (ii) "Potential Holders," which shall mean any person (including any Existing Holder 
that is (a) a Broker-Dealer when dealing with the Auction Agent and (b) a potential beneficial owner when dealing with 
a Broker-Dealer) who may be interested in acquiring RAMS (or in thecase ofan Existing Holder, an additional principal 
amount of RAMS). 

By purchasing RAMS, whether in an Auction or otherwise, each prospective purchaser of RAMS or its 
Broker-Dealer must agree and will be deemed to have agreed: (i) to participatc in Auctions on the terms set forth in 
Appendix IV hereto, (ii) as long as the beneficial ownership of the RAMS is maintained in book-entry form by a 
Depository, to sell, transfer or othenvise dispose of RAMS only pursuant to a Bid or a Sell Order (each as defined in 
Appendix IV) in an Auction, or to or through a Broker-Dealer, provided that in the case of all transfers other than those 
pursuant to an Auction, the Existing Holder ofRAMS so transferred, its agent member or its Broker-Dealer advises the 
Auction Agent of such transfer, and (iii) to have its beneficial ownership of RAMS maintained at all times in book-entry 
form by the designated Depositoly for the account of its Participant, which in turn will maintain records of such 



beneficial ownership, and to authorize such Participant to disclose to the Auction Agent such information with respect 
to such beneficial ownership as the Auction Agent may request. 

Auction Agent. The Wilmington Trust Company is appointed as the initial Auction Agent for the RAMS. The 
Trustee is directed to enter into the initial Auction Agency Agreement with The Wilmington Trust Company. Any 
substitute Auction Agent shall be (i) a bank or trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of 
America or any state or territory thereof having its principal place of business in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of 
New York, and having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least S15,000,000 or (ii) a member 
oftheNational Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., having a capitalization ofat least $15,000,000 and, in either case, 
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it under the Indenture and under the Auction Agency 
Agreement. The Auction Agent may resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations created by the Indenture by 
giving at least 90 days \witten notice to the Corporation, the Trustee and the Market Agent (25 days written notice if the 
Auction Agent has not been paid its fee after notice ofsuch fact to the Corporation and the Trustee). The Auction Agent 
may be removedat any time by the Trustee ifthe Auction Agent is an entity other than the Trustee, acting at the direction 
of either (i) the Corporation or (ii) the holders of 66-213% of the aggregate principal amount of the RAMS by an 
instrument signed by the Trustee and filed with the Auction Agent, the Corporation and the Market Agent upon at least 
30 days notice; provided that, if required by the Market Agent, an agreement in substantially the fonn of the Auction 
Agency Agreement shall be entered into with a successor Auction Agent. If the Auction Agent and the Trustee are the 
same entity, the Auction Agent may be removed as described above, with the Corporation acting in lieu of the Trustee. 

If the Auction Agent shall resign or be removed or dissolved, or if the property or affairs of the Auction Agent 
shall be taken under the control ofany state or federal court or administrative body because ofbankruptcy or insolvency, 
or for any other reason, the Corporation shall use its best efforts to appoint a successor as Auction Agent, and the Trustee 
shall thereupon enter into an Auction Agency Agreement with such successor. 

The Auction Agent is acting as agent for the Trustee and the Corporation in connection with Auctions. In the 
absence of bad faith or negligence on its part, the Auction Agent shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or 
omitted or for any error ofjudgment madeby it in the perform&e of its duties under the Auction Agency Agreement 
and shall not be liable for any error ofjudgment made in good faith unless the Auction Agent shall have been negligent 
in ascertaining (or failing to ascertain) the pertinent facts. 

Broker-Dealer. Existing Holders and Potential Holders may participate in Auctions only by submitting orders 
(in the manner described below) through a "Broker-Dealer." A Broker-Dealer must be either a broker or dealer (each 
as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), commercial bank or other entity permitted by law to 
perform the functions required of a Broker-Dealer set forth below which (i) is a "Participant" (i.e., a member of, or 
participant in, the Depository) or an affiliate of a Participant, (ii) has a capital surplus of at least $15,000,000, (iii) has 
been selected by the Corporation with the approval of the Market Agent, and (iv) has entered into a Broker-Dealer 
Agreement with the Auction Agent that remains effective, in which the Broker-Dealer agrees to participate in Auctions 
as described in the Auction Procedures, as from time to time amended or supplemented. 

A Broker-Dealer may submit orders in auctions for its own account. Any Broker-Dealer submitting an order 
for its own account in any auction will have an advantage over other bidders in that it would have knowledge of other 
orders placed through it in that auction (but it would not have knowledge oforders placed through other Broker-Dealers, 
if any). As a result of the Broker-Dealer bidding, the auction clearing rate may be higher or lower than the rate that 
would have cleared if the Broker-Dealer had not bid. A Broker-Dealer may also bid in order to prevent what would 
otherwise be (i) a failed auction; or (ii) an auction clearing at a rate that the Broker-Dealer deems in its discretion, to be 
too high givenprevailingmarketconditions. A Broker-Dealer may also encourage additional or revised investorbidding 
in order to prevent an "all-hold" auction or an auction clearing at a rate which the Broker-Dealer deems, in its discretion, 
to be too low given prevailing market conditions. 

The initial Broker-Dealer for the 2006A-1 Bonds is RBC Capital Markets. 

MarketAgent. The "Market Agent" for the2006A-1 Bonds will initially be RBC Capital Markets. The Market 
Agent will be acting pursuant to the terms of a Market Agent Agreement with the Trustee, and is responsible under the 
terms of the Market Agent Agreement for determination of the Kenny Index, the Quarterly Average T-Bill Rate and the 
Quarterly Average CP Rate and for the determination of any changes to be made in the Applicable Percentage used in 



determining the Maximum Auction Rate, the All-Hold Rate and the Overdue Rate. See " - Adjustment in Percentages 
for RAMS" below. Under the Market Agent Agreement, and in connection with the RAMS, the Market Agent shall, by 
reason of its execution and delivery of the Market Agent Agreement and the performance of its obligations thereunder, 
act solely as agent of the T ~ s t e e  and shall not thereby assume any obligation or establish any relationship of agency or 
trust for or with any of the beneficial owners. 

Auctions 

Auctions to establish the Auction Bond Interest Rate are to be held on each Auction Date, except as described 
above under "-Interest-Auction Bond Interest Rate," by application of the Auction Procedures described in Appendix 
IV. "Auction Date" shall mean initially June 21, 2006 (or if such date is not a Business Day, then the inlmediately 
preceding Business Day), with respect to the 2006A-I Bonds, and thereafter, the Business Day immediately preceding 
the first day of each Interest Period, other than: (if each Interest Period commencing after the ownership of the RAMS 
is no longer maintained in book-entry form; (ii) each Interest Period commencing after the occurrence and during the 
continuance ofa Payment Default; or (iii) any Interest Period commencing less than the Applicable Number ofBusiness 
Days after the cure or waiver of a Payment Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Auction Date for one or more 
Interest Periods [nay be changed as described below under "Changes in Interest Periods or Auction Date - Changes in 
Interest Period or Periods." See "Interest -Auction Bond Interest Rate" above. 

The Auction Agent shall determine the Maximum Auction Rate and the All-Hold Rate for the RAMS on each 
Auction Date. Upon receipt of notice from the Trustee of a failed Conversion Date as described below under "Rate 
Conversion - Inadequate Funds for Tenders; Failed Conversion," and ifthe next succeeding Auction Date shall be less 
than the Applicable Number of Business Days after (or on) the failed Conversion Date, the Auction Agent shall not hold 
an Auction on such Auction Date but shall calculate the Maximum Auction Rate as of the first Business Day of the next 
succeeding Interest Period and give notice thereof as provided and to the parties specified in the Auction Agency 
Agreement. If the ownership of the RAMS is no longer maintained in book-entry form, the Market Agent shall calculate 
the hl3ximumAuc1ion Rdte on the Uusincss Dxy im~ncdidtely preced~ngthc first day ofench Interest feriod commencing 
afcr dcltvery ofccnificxcs reprcscnung the RAMS Ifn Payment Default shd1 have o~currcd, the .\larkct Agcnt rhdl 
calculate the Overdue Rate on the first day of (a) each Interest Period commencing after the occurrence and during the 
continuance of such Payment Default and (b) any Intercst Period commencing less than the Applicable Number of 
Business Days after the cure of any Payment Default. The determination by the Market Agent or the Auction Agent, as 
the case may be, of the Maximum Auction Rate shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding upon the 
owners and all other parties. Ifcalculated or determined by the Auction Agent, the Auction Agent shall promptly advise 
the Trustee of the Maximum Auction Rate. 

As long as the ownership of the RAMS is maintained in book-entry form, an Existing Holder may sell, transfer 
or otherwise dispose of RAMS only pursuant to a Bid or Sell Order (as defined in Appendix IV) placed in an Auction 
or through a Broker-Dealer, provided that, in the case of all transfers other than pursuant to Auctions or mandatory 
tenders, such Existing Holder, its Broker-Dealer or its Participant advises the Auction Agent of such transfer. Prior to 
a Conversion Date, Auctions shall be conducted on each Auction Date, in the manner described in Appendix IV. A 
description of the Settlement Procedures to be used with respect to Auctions for the RAMS is contained in Appendix 
v. 

Adjustment in Percentages for RAMS 

The Market Agent shall adjust the percentageused in determining the All-Hold Rate, the Applicable Percentage 
used in determining the Maximum Auction Rate and the Applicable Percentage of the Kenny Index used in determining 
the Overdue Rate, if any such adjustment is necessary, in the judgment of the Market Agent, to reflect any Change of 
Preference Law such that RAMS paying the Maximum Auction Rate, RAMS paying the All-Hold Rate and RAMS 
paying the Overdue Rate shall have equal market values before and afler such Change of Preference Law. Prior to any 
such adjustment, the Corporation shall have filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation reflecting such adjustment. 
In making any such adjustment, the Market Agent shall take the following factors, as in existence both before and after 
such Change of Preference Law, into account: (i) short-term taxable and tax-exempt market rates and indices of such 
short-term rates; (ii) the market supply and demand for short-term tax-exempt securities; (iii) yield curves for short-term 
and long-term tax-exempt securities or obligations having a credit rating that is comparable to the RAMS; (iv) general 



economic conditions; and (v) economic and financial factors present in the securities industry that may affect or that may 
he relevant to the RAMS. 

The Market Agent shall effectuate an adjustment in the percentage used in determining the All-Hold Rate, the 
Applicable Percentage used in determining the Maximum Auction Rate and the Applicable Percentage of the Kenny 
Index used to determine the Overdue Rate by delivering written notice to the Corporation, the T ~ s t e e  and the Auction 
Agent at least 10 days prior to the Auction Date on which the Market Agent desires to effect such change. 

Changes in Interest Periods or  Auction Date 

C l ~ a ~ ~ g e s  61 1111eresr Period or Periods. While any of the 2006A-1 Bonds are Outstanding as RAMS, the 
Corporationmay change, upon meeting certain conditions, the length of one ormore Interest Periods. In connection with 
any such change or otherwise, but for the same stated purpose, the Market Agent may change Interest Payment Dates; 
any such change shall be considered a "change in the length of one or more Interest Periods" for purposes of the 
Indenture. Any change in the length of the Interest Period requires the consent of the Corporation and must be made for 
tliepurposeofconfoming to current market practice with respect to similar securities. Any suchchanged Interest Period 
shall not be less than 7 days nor more than 366 days. 

The change in the length ofone or more of the Interest Periods shalt not be allowed unless Sufficient Clearing 
Bids (as defined in Appendix IV hereto) existed at both the Auction before the date on which the notice of the proposed 
change was given and the Auction immediately preceding the proposed change. Such change shall take effect only if 
certain requirements are met as described in the Indenture. 

C11a11ges in the AucrionDare. While any of the 2006A-I Bonds are Outstanding as RAMS, in orderto conform 
with then-current market practice with respect to similar securities or to accommodate economic and financial factors 
that may affect or he relevant to the day of the week constituting an Auction Date and the interest rate borne on the 
RAMS, and, with the written consent of an Authorized Officer of the Corporation, the Market Agent may specify an 
earlier Auction Date (but in no event more than five Business Days earlier) than the Auction Date that would othenvise 
be detcnnined in accordance with the definition of "Auction Date" with respect to one or more specified future Interest 
Periods. 

If a change in an Auction Date is undertaken in conjunction with a change in an Interest Period and the 
conditions for the establishment of such change in Interest Period are not met, the Auction Date may be, and the next 
succeeding Interest Period may be adjusted to end on, an earlier Business Day (but not more than five Business Days 
earlier) than the date on which such Auction Date was scheduled to occur and such Interest Period was scheduled to end 
to accommodate the change in the Auction Date. 

The Market Agent shall provide notice of any determination to specify an earlier Auction Date for one or more 
Interest Periods by means of a xwitten notice delivered at least 10 days prior to the proposed changed Auction Date to 
the TNStee, the Auction Agent, the Corporation, and the Rating Agencies. 

In connection with any change in the Auction terms described above, the Auction Agent shall provide such 
further notice to such parties as is specified in the applicable Auction Agency Agreement. 

Amendment to Auction Provisions 

Pursuant to thehdenture and in accordance with the provisionsset forthin AppendixIV hereto, the Corporation 
may amend the auction provisions relating to the 2006A-1 Bonds Outstanding as RAMS, including effectuating 
amendments without the consent ofthe Holders ofthe affected RAMS; provided that notice of such amendment is given 
and two auctions with respect to the affected 2006A-1 Bonds are held after the time such notice was given in which all 
Sell Orders (as defined in the Indenture) have been accepted. 

Lack of Liquidity Facility for Auction Rate Bonds 

The 2006A-I Bonds, while Outstanding as RAMS, will not he supported by a liquidity facility. If an Existing 
Holder were to submit a Sell Order or a Hold Order subject to an interest rate that is determined to be greater than the 



Maximum AuctionRate forsuch AuctionDate,and Sufficient Clearing Bidsare not obtained on such Auction Date, such 
Existing Holder will not have its 2006A-1 Bonds purchased througli the Auction Procedures on such Auction Date. In 
such event, no assurance can be given that a Broker-Dealer will be able to locate a purchaser prior to the next Auction 
Date or that Sufficient Clearing Bids will be obtained on any succeeding Auction Date. 

RATE CONVERSION 

General 

The Corporation may, upon 30 days mitten notice, on the first day of any Interest Period, convert all or a 
portion of its 2006A-1 Bonds Outstanding as RAMS to bear interest at an Adjustable Rate other than the Auction Rate 
or at a Fixed Rate (a "Conversion"). Upon the effective date of a Conversion, 2006.4-1 Bonds to be converted 
("Converted Bonds") will no longer be Outstanding as RAMS and will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase at 
a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, thereon to the date of purchase (the 
"Conversion Date"). The terms of the 2006A-I Bonds following such Conversion Date shall be set forth in the official 
statement, remarketing memorandum or similar document used by the Corporation at the time of such conversion and 
remarketing of the 2006A-1 Bonds. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, the Corporation must deliver to the Trustee a Supplemental 
Indenture to provide for such prospective terms for the Converted Bonds, or the manner of determining the same, as the 
Corporation may deem advisable, provided that, among other things, (1) the then Existing Holders of Converted Bonds 
shall be given written notice that the effective date of any such provisions shall he the mandatory tender date; and (2) 
any failure to tender is nevertheless deemed to be a tender for mandatory purchase and the Converted Bonds which are 
not tendered shall be deemed "Undelivered Bonds." 

Mandatory Tender Upon Conversion 

Any 2006A-1 Bonds to he converted to bear interest at a Fixed Rate or Adjustable Rate shall be subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase on the Conversion Date, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued 
interest thereon, if any, to the date of purchase. The Trustee is required to give notice of such ~nandatory tender to the 
Holders ofsuch Converted Bonds subjcct to purchase at their addresses shown on the book  of registry. Such notice shall 
be sent by first class mail to the Holders. 

Converted Bonds to he purchased on any Conversion Date shall be required to be delivered to the designated 
office of the Trustee, or its designated agent for such purposes, at or before 12:OO noon (local time) on such date. If the 
owner of any Converted Bond which is subject to purchase as described lierein fails to deliver such Converted Bond to 
the Trustee, or its designated agent for such purposes, for purchase on the purchase date, and if the Trustee, or its 
designated agent for such purposes, is in receipt ofthe purchase price therefor, such Converted Bond shall nevertheless 
be deemed tendered and purchased on the Conversion Date and shall be an Undelivered Bond as described below under 
the caption "- Undelivered Bonds," and registration of the ownership of such Converted Bond shall be transferred to the 
purchaser thereof as described under the caption "- Undelivered Bonds." 

Undelivered Bonds 

Any Converted Bonds which are required to be tendered on a Conversion Date and which are not delivered on 
the Conversion Date, and for the payment of which there has been irrevocably deposited in trust in a segregated 
subaccount for the benefit of such owner an amount of money sufficient to pay the purchase price and any accrued 
interest owing on the purchase date with respect to such Converted Bonds, shall be deemed to have been purchased, and 
shall be Undelivered Bonds. In the event of a failure by an owner of Converted Bonds to tender such Converted Bonds 
on or prior to the required date, such owner of such Undelivered Bonds shall not be entitled to any payment other than 
the purchase price and any unpaid interest due on the purchase date, and Undelivered Bonds in the hands of such 
non-delivering Bondowner shall no longer accrue interest or be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, except for the 
payment ofthe purchase price andany unpaid interest due on the purchasedate; provided, however, that the indebtedness 
represented by such Converted Bonds shall not be extinguished, and the Tmstee shall transfer, authenticate and deliver 
such Converted Bonds as provided in the Indenture. 



Inadequate Funds for Tenders; Failed Conversion 

If the funds available for purchase ofconverted Bonds are inadequate for the purchase of all 2006.4-1 Bonds 
tendered on any Conversion Date, or if a proposed conversion of the 2006A-1 Bonds otherwise fails as a result of a 
failure to meet the conditions specified in the Indenture, the Trustee shall: (a) return all tendered 2006A-I Bonds to the 
Holders thereof, (b) return all moneys received for the purchase of such 2006A-1 Bonds to the persons providing such 
money; and (c) notify the Corporation, the Auction Agent, the Remarketing Agent and the Paying Agent of the return 
of such 2006A-1 Bonds and money and the failure to make payment for tendered Bonds. After any such failed 
conversion, the 2006A-1 Bonds subject to the failed conversion shall remain outstanding as RAMS. In the case of a 
failedconversion of2006A-1 Bonds, Auctions subject to the failed conversion shall be conducted beginning on the first 
Auction Date occurring more than hvo Business Days after the failed Conversion Date and interest thereon shall be 
determined and paid according to the Indenture. 

No Tender Purchases On Redemption Date 

The 2006A-1 Bonds (or portions thereof) called for redemption shall not be subject to tender and purchase on 
the reden~ption date thereof. 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION INQUIRY 

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") has requested information from a number of broker- 
dealers regarding certain of their practices in connection with auction rate securities. RBC Capital Markets, the initial 
Broker-Dealer has advised the Corporation that (i) as a participant in the auction rate securities market, it has received 
a letter from the SEC requesting that it voluntarily conduct an investigation regarding certain of its practices and 
procedures in connection with those marketsand (ii) it has cooperated with the SEC's inquiry, has provided the requested 
information to the SEC, and has had discussions with the SEC with respect to this inquiry. No assurance can be given 
as to whether this process will affect the market for the 2006A-I Bonds or the Auctions for the 2006A-1 Bonds. The 
Corporation has not conducted any independent review of this matter or of the investigations undertaken by the initial 
Broker-Dealer. 

FIXED RATE BONDS 
(2006A-2 Bonds) 

General 

The Fixed Rate Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery and will mature on June 1 in the years and 
amounts shown on the cover of this Ofticial Statement. The Fixed Rate Bonds will be issued in fully registered fonn, 
without coupons, and when issued will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. DTC will act as 
securities depository forthe Fixed Rate Bonds. Individual purchases of the Fixed Rate Bonds will be made in book-entry 
form only in the principal amount of $5,000 within a maturity or any denomination that is an integral multiple ofS5,000 
in excess thereof. Purchasers oftheFixedRate Bonds willnot receiveeertificatesrepresentingtheir interests in theFixed 
Rate Bonds purchased. See "Appendix VII -THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY." 

Redemption of the Fixed Rate Bonds 

The Fixed Rate Bonds maturing prior to June 1, 2017 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities. The Fixed Rate Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2017 are subject to redemption at the option of the 
Corporation on or after June I, 2016 in whole or in part on any date, in increments of $5,000, with maturities to be 
selected by the Corporation at a price of 100% of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption. 

Interest 

The Fixed Rate Bonds will bear interest from their date of delivery at the rates per annum shown on the cover 
page hereof, payable semiannually on June 1 and December I of each year, commencing December 1,2006. Interest 
on the Fixed Rate Bonds will be computed on tlie basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months. Except 



in the case of overdue interest, the Record Date for interest due on the Fixed Rate Bonds will be the fifteenth day of the 
month preceding each Interest Payment Date. 

PLAN O F  FINANCE 

The 2006 Bonds 

The 2006 Bonds are being issued to (i) finance Education Loans for eligible borrowers to fund aportion oftheir 
postsecondary education costs, (ii) make a Capital Reserve Fund deposit, and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the 2006 
Bonds. 

Assumptions Considered in Structuring the 2006 Bonds 

In structuring the 2006 Bonds, the Corporation made certain assumptions regarding the Education Loan 
portfolio to be held under the Indenture, moneys to be deposited under the Indenture, and use ofthe proceeds ofthe 2006 
Bonds. The Corporation believes these assumptions to be reasonable based upon its experience but cannot guarantee 
the accuracy thereof 

The Corporation expects, but does not guarantee, that the pool of Education Loans financed with a portion of 
the proceeds of the 2006 Bonds will consist of the following categories of loans in the following proportions: 37% 
FFELP Loans and 63% Alternative Loans. A summary ofcertain characteristics of the Education Loans held in the Trust 
Estate as of December 3 1, 2005, is provided below. 

[REMAINDER O F  THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



Characteristics of Education Loans 

The characteristics of the Education Loans described in the following charts, pertain only to those Education 
Loans pledged as security for the Bonds as of December 3 I, 2005. The characteristics of Education Loans held under 
the lndenturc will change over time. No assurance can be given that such changes will not be significant or that they will 
not be adverse. 

Loan Tvpe 
Alaska Education Loans 
Teacher Education Loans 
Family Education Loans 
Federal Family Education Loans 
TOTAL 

Loan Status 
School 
Grace 
Deferment 
Forbearance 
Repayment 
TOTAL 

Variable Rate* 
TOTAL 

% of Total 
73% 

% of Total 
44% 
5 
6 
2 

% of Total 
24% 

R a m  change annually. The cumnt range is 3.50% to 6.10%. 

Loan Delinquencies and Defaults 

The Alternative Loans are deemed to be in default when payments become one hundred eighty (180) days past 
due. The FFELP Loans arc deemed to be in default when payments become two hundred seventy (270) days past due. 
Approxin~ately I .48% of the Education Loans held under the Indenture were over 180 days past due as of Deceniber 3 1, 
2005. 

The following table sununarizes the delinquency rates for the Education Loans that were in repayment (but not 
more than 180 days past due). 

Aeine Cateeory December 31.2005 
Current 84.5% 

31-60 days 11.2 
61-90 days 2.6 

91-120 days 1.1 
121-150 days 0.8 
151-180 days 0.7 

Total 100.0% - 



Loan Program Expenses 

It has been assumed that theannual Loan Programexpensesofthe Corporation, which include thecorporation's 
administrative expenses, the cost of servicing the Pledged Loans, and the fees and expenses ofthe Trustee, that will be 
paid from Pledged Reccipts ahead of Debt Service on Bonds Outstanding will he approximately one and one-quarter 
percent (I .25%) of the avcragc principal amount of Pledged Loans outstanding during the previous fiscal year. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The Corporation estimates that the proceeds from the sale of the 2006 Bonds will be applied approximately as 
follows: 

Sources: 

Principal Amount of 2006 Bonds 
Net Premium on 2006 Bonds 

Total Sources 

Uses: 

Deposit to Education Loan Fund S84,758,660.00 
Deposit to Capital Reserve Fund l,700,000.00 
Estimated Cost of Issuance (including Undenvriters' fee) 700,000.00 

Total Uses $87.158.660.00 

CERTAIN INVESTMENT CONSlDERATIONS 

The Corporation believes, based on its analyses of multiple cash flow projections, using various assumptions 
and scenarios, that (i) Pledged Receipts to be received pursuant to the lndenture and the balances in the various Accounts 
should be sufficient to pay principal of and intercst on the Bonds (including the 2006 Bonds) when due and to pay when 
due all fees and expenses related to the Bonds and the Education Loans until the final niaturity of the Bonds, as more 
fully described below; and (ii) the liquidity of the amounts in the Accounts should be sufficient under the circumstances 
as projected to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds (including the 2006 Bonds) when due and also pay when due 
a11 expcnsss related to the Bonds and the Education Loans. A variety of f~ictors, including the factors dlscusscd below, 
could mntcrially and advcrscly al'kct thc suflic~cncy ufthc Pledgcd Rcceipts lo meet dcbt service pnpen t s  on the Bonds. 

Factors Affecting Sufficiency and Timing of Receipt of Pledged Receipts 

TheCorporation expects that the Pledged Receipts to be reccivedpursuant to the Indenture should be sufficient 
to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds (including the 2006 Bonds) when due and also to pay the annual cost of 
all Trustee fees, auction agent fees, if any, insurance fees, credit enhancement fees, if any, servicing costs and other 
expenses rclated thereto and to the Education Loans until the final maturity or earlier redemption of such Bonds. This 
expectation is based upon an analysis of cash flow projections using assumptions, which the Corporation believes are 
reasonable, regarding the timing ofthe financingofsuch Education Loans to be held pursuant to the Indenture, the future 
composition of and yield on the Education Loan portfolio, the rate of return on moneys to he invested in various 
Accounts under the Indenture, and the occurrence of future events and conditions. These assumptions are derived from 
the Corporation's experience in the administration of its Loan Program. There can be no assurance, however, that the 
Education Loans will be acquired as anticipated, that interest and principal payments from the Education Loans will be 
received as anticipated, that the reinvestment rates assumed on the amounts in various Accounts will be realized, or that 
SAP and other payments will be received in the amounts and at the times anticipated. In addition, there can be no 
assurance that certain costs related to maintaining the Education Loan portfolio, including servicing costs, will not 
increase. Furthermore, other future events over which the Corporation has no control may adversely affect the 
Corporation's actual receipt of Pledged Receipts pursuant to the Indenture. 



Receipt of principal of and interest on Education Loans may be accelerated due to various factors, including, 
without limitation: (i) default claims or claims due to the disability, death or bankruptcy of the borrowers greater than 
those assumed; (ii) actual principal amortization periods which are shorter than those assumed based upon the current 
analysis of the Corporation's loan portfolio; (iii) theconunencelnent ofprincipal repayment by borrowersonearlierdates 
than areassumed basedupon thecurrent analysis oftheCorporation's loan portfolio; (iv)economic conditions that induce 
borrowers to refinance or repay their loans prior to maturity; and (v) changes in federal or state law which may affect 
the timing of the receipt of funds by the Corporation. The Corporation or other lenders m y  make consolidation loans 
to borrowers for the purpose of retiring certain borrowers' existing loans under various federal or state higher education 
loan programs. To the extent that Education Loans are repaid with consolidation loans, the Corporation would realize 
repayment of such Education Loans earlier than projected. 

Delay in the receipt of principal of and interest on Education Loans may adversely affect payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. Principal of and interest on Education Loans may be delayed due to 
numerous factors, including, without limitation: (i) borrowers entering deferment periods due to a return to school or 
other eligible purposes; (ii) forbearance being granted to borrowers; (iii) Education Loans becoming delinquent for 
periods longer than assumed; (iv) actual loan principal amortization periods which are longer than those assumed based 
upon the current analysis of the Corporation's loan portfolio; and (v) the commencement of principal repayment by 
borrowers at dates later than those assumed based upon the current analysis of the loan portfolio. 

If actual receipt of Pledged Receipts under the Indenture or actual expenditures by the Corporation under its 
loan origination and acquisition programs vary greatly from those projected, the Corporation may be unable to pay the 
principal ofand interest on the 2006 Bonds and amounts owing on other obligations when due. In the event that Pledged 
Receipts to be received under the Indenture are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds andamounts 
owing on certain other obligations when due, the Indenture authorizes, and under certain circumstances requires, the 
Trustee to declare an Event of Default, accelerate the payment of the Bonds, and sell the Education Loans. In such 
circumstances, it is possible, however, that the Trustee would not be able to sell the Education Loans and other assets 
held under the Indenture at prices sufficient to pay the Bonds. The Indenture provides that Bonds issued thereunder, 
including the 2006 Bonds, be designated a priority Class, with Class I being the highest priority. At any time a current 
principal or interest payment is required to be made, it will be made first with respect to Bonds of the highest priority 
Class, and then in descending order of priority. In addition, the ability to control or pursue remedies is given "By Class 
in Descending Priority" as described in APPENDIX 11 to this Official Statement. Exercise of remedies by a higher 
priority Class upon a default, including particularly acceleration of a higher priority Class of Bonds, or exercise of 
remedies by a Credit Enhancement Agency following a default under a related agreement (see "SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS - Certain Payment Priorities") could adversely affect the ability of lower priority Classes of Bonds to receive 
payment of debt service when due. 

FFELP Loan Program 

In FY 2002-03, the Corporation began offering FFELP Loans under its Loan Program. As of December 31, 
2005, there were S53,149,830 of FFELP Loans held in the Trust Estate. See "THE ALASKADVANTAGEB LOAN 
PROGRAM -The Federal LoanProgram." The Commission anticipates that approximately 37% of the proceeds of fhe 
2006Bonds will be used to finance FFELP Loans, althougli there can be no assurance whatdemand there will be for such 
loans. 

Northwest Education Loan Association ("NELA")' currently serves as the "eligible guarantor" of the FFELP 
Loans. In the event the financial status of NELA and its ability to honor guarantee claims were to deteriorate over time, 
such event could result in a delay or a failure to make guarantee payments to holders of FFELP Loans, including the 
Corporation. The percentage offederal reimbursenient to a guarantor is based upon the amount offederal reimbursement 
payments made to such guarantor as a percentage of the principal amount of the guarantor's guaranteed loans in 
repayment at the end of the preceding federal fiscal year. Higher than expected default claims against a guarantor of 
guaranteed loans could reduce the amount of federal reimbursement to such yarantor, which in rum could cause such 
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guarantor to reduce its reserve fund below desired levels in order to pay guarantee claims. Guarantor operations and 
activities are subject to statutory and regulatory change. See "INSURANCE AND GUARANTEES -Federal Insurance 
and -Guarantees." 

Alternative Loans a r e G  guaranteed by NELA or any other guarantor 

Cllanges to Federal Family Education Loan Program 

The Higher Education Act and the Federal Family Education Loan Program (the "FFEL Program") have been 
subject to numerous amendments and changes over the years which have changed the terms of and eligibility 
requirelnents for the FFELP Loans. These changes have included, among other things, changes in the calculation of 
interest rates and SAP on federal education loans, changes in the requirements to offer alternate payment plans to 
borrowers, additional loan forgiveness provisions, and additional restrictions on guaranty agencies' use of funds. As a 
result of changes to the FFEL Program, the net revenues received by holders of FFELP Loans have in some cases been 
reduced and may be further reduced in the future. 

On February 8,2006, President Bush signed into law the Higher Education Reconciliation Act of 2005 (the 
"2005 HEA Amendments"), which made significant changes to the Higher Education Act. Many of the changes made 
by the 2005 HEA Amendments will not be effective until July 1, 2006 or later and could affect the Corporation's 
programs and the availability and flow of funds. See "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN 
PROGRAM!' 

Federal Budgetary Legislation 

The availability of various federal payments in connection with the FFEL Program is subject to federal 
budgetary appropriation. In recent years, federal budgetary legislation has been enacted which has provided, subject to 
certain conditions, for the mandatory curtaillnent of certain federal budget expenditures, including expenditures in 
connection with the FFEL Program and the recovery of certain advances previously made by the federal government to 
state guarantee agencies in order to achieve certain deficit reduction guidelines. No representation is made as to the 
effect, if any, of future federal budgetaryappropriation or legislation uponexpenditures by the Department ofEducation, 
or the effect, if any, of any future lcgislation or regulations upon the Corporation's Loan Program or other factors that 
could potentially affect ti~nely payment of the 2006 Bonds. 

Noncompliance with the Higher Education Act 

Noncompliance with the Higher Education Act, with respect to FFELP Loans, by lenders, any guarantor, any 
servicer or the Corporation may adversely affect payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. The 
Higher Education Act and the applicable regulations thereunder require the lenders making FFELP Loans, guarantors 
guaranteeing such loans and lenders or servicers servicing such loans to follow certain due diligence procedures in an 
effort to ensure that FFELP Loans are properly made and disbursed to, and timely repaid by, the borrowers. Such due 
diligence procedures include certain loan application procedures, certain loan origination procedures and, when a FFELP 
Loan is in default, certain loan collection procedures. The procedures to make, guarantee and service FFELP Loans are 
set forth in the Code of Federal Regulations and other documents of the Department of Education, and no attempt has 
been made in this Otiicial Statement to describe those procedures in their entirety. Failure to follow such procedures 
may result in the Secretary's refusal to make reinsurance payments to a guarantor on such loans or may result in the 
guarantor's refusal to honor its guarantee on such loans to holders of guaranteed loans, including the Corporation. Such 
action by the Secretary could adversely affect a guarantor's ability to honor guarantee claims, and loss of guarantee 
payments to the Corporation by an eligible guarantor could adversely affect the ability of the Corporation to make 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Military Events May Result in Delayed Payments From Borrowers Called to Active Military Service; Other 
Relief 

On December 19,2003, President Bush signed into the law the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act which was 
enacted in an effort to update and modernize the Soldiers' and Sailor's Civil Relief Act of 1940 and provides relief to 
borrowers who enter active military service and to borrowers in reserve status who are called to active duty after the 



origination of their education loans. Military action of the United States may increase the number of citizens who are 
in active military service, including pcrsons in reserve status who has been called or will be called to active duty. The 
Servicemembers Civil Relief Act also limits the ability of a lender in the FFEL Program to take legal action against a 
borrower during the borrower's period of active duty and, in some cases, during an additional three month period 
thereafter. As a result, there may be delays in payment and increased losses on the Education Loans held in under the 
Indenture. The Corporation does not know how many students have been or may be affected by the application of the 
Servicemembers Civil Relief Act and the recent guidelines of the Department. If a substantial number of borrowers 
under the Education Loans held under the Indenture become eligible for the relief provided under the Servicemembers 
Civil Relief Act, there could be an adverse effect on the total collections on the Education Loans and the ability of the 
Corporation to make payments on the Bonds. 

TheHigher Education Relief Opportunities for Students Act of2003 ("HEROES Act of2003") was signed into 
law on Auys t  18,2003 and authorizesthe Secretary to waive ormodify any statutoryor regulatoryprovisionsapplicable 
to student financial aid programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act as the Secretary deems necessary to ensure 
that education loan borrowers who: (i) are serving on active military duty during a war or other military operation or 
national emergency; (ii) are serving on National Guard duty during a war or other military operation or national 
emergency; (iii) reside or are employed in an area that is declared by any federal, state or local official to be a disaster 
area in connection with a national emergency; or (iv) suffered direct economic hardship as a direct result of war or other 
military operation or national emergency, as determined by the Secretary, to ensure that such recipients of student 
financial assistance are not placed in a worse financial position in relation to that assistance, to ensure that administrative 
requirements in relation to that assistance are minimized, to ensure that calculations used to determine need for such 
assistance accurately reflect the financial condition of such individuals, to provide for amended calculations of 
overpayment, and to ensure that institutions of higher education, eligible lenders, guaranty agencies and other entities 
participating in such student financial aid programs that are located in, or whose operations are directly affected by areas 
that are declared to be disaster areas by any federal, state or local official in connection with a national emergency may 
be temporarily relieved from requirements that are rendered infeasible or unreasonable. The number andaggregate 
principal balance of education loans that may be affected by the application of the HEROES Act of 2003 is not known 
at t h ~ s  time. Accordingly, payments received by the Corporation on Education Loans made to a borrower who qualifies 
for such relief may be subject to certain limitations. If a substantial number of borrowers under the Education Loans 
become eligible for the relief provided under the HEROES Act of 2003, there could be an adverse effect on the total 
collections on the Education Loans and the ability of the Corporation to pay interest on the 2006 Bonds if there are 
insufficient funds in thc Capital Reserve Fund. In addition, the 2005 HEA Amendments included a three-year military 
deferment for qualifying military duties. 

In addition to the above federal legislation, Section 14.43.120 ofthe Act provides, subjectto certain conditions, 
for a deferment of principal and interest payments on Education Loans for borrowers who are serving an initial period 
ofup to three years on active duty as a member of the anned forces oftheUnited States. For Alternative Loans, payment 
ofthe interest is only deferred if funds have been so appropriated by the State legislature. The Act also provides, subject 
to appropriation, for forgiveness of both principal and interest on aportion of an Education Loan if, after being enrolled 
in the course of study for \vliich the Education Loan was granted, the borrower is a student who is unable to complete 
the school term as a result of serving on active duty. The portion of the Education Loan eligible for forgiveness is equal 
to the amount borrowed by the student for the school term in which the horrowe~'~ studies are terniinated. The number 
of borrowers who may he affected by these requirements is uncertain. If a substantial number of Education Loans held 
under the Indenture become eligible for such relief, there could be an adverse effect on the total collections on the 
Education Loans and the ability of the Corporation to make payments on the 2006 Bonds. 

General Economic Conditions 

A do\mturn in the economy resulting in substantial layoffs either regionally or nationwide may result in an 
increase in delays by borrowers in paying Education Loans, thus causing increased default claims to be paid by 
guarantors on FFELP Loans and increased losses on Alternative Loans. It is impossible to predict the status of the 
economy or unemployment levels or at what point a downturn in the economy would significantly reduce revenues to 
the Corporation or the guarantors'ability to pay default claims. 



Uncertainty as to Available Remedies 

The remedies available to owners of the 2006 Bonds upon an Event of Default under the Indenture or other 
documents described herein are in many respects dependent upon regulatory and judicial actions which often are subject 
to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, includingspecifically Title 
1 I of the United States Code, the remedies specified by the indenture and such other documents may not be readily 
available or may be limited. The various legal opinions to bedeliveredconcurrently with the issuance of the 2006 Bonds 
will be qualified, as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally. 

THE ALASKA COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY 
EDUCATION1 ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

Commission - General Information 

State law established the Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education (the "Commission") in 1974. The 
Commission's primary purposes are to enable residents of the State to evaluate their postsecondary educational needs 
and availableresources, toenable State residents to~nakeinfomeddecisionsregarding thedisposition ofthoseresowces, 
and to assure State residents of the opportunity to satisfy those postsecondary needs and goals. The Commission has no 
bond issuing authority. 

The Commission consists of fourteen members representing public and private postsecondary education 
institutions in the State, advisory groups, and members of the Legislature. The Commission appoints an Executive 
Director. The Executive Director then appoints persons to staff positions authorized by the Commission. , 

The Coninlission has offices in Juneau and Anchongc, Alaska. Thc principal office for the Commission is 
located at 3030 Vintaae Boulevard. Juncau. Alaska 99801-7109. The mailine address of the Comm~ssion is 1'0. Box - ~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~~- 

110505, Juneau, ~ l a s i a  9981 1-0505 and the telephone number is (907) 465-6740. The Attorney General of the State 
serves as counsel to the Commission. 

Stafling of the Commission 

The Coninmission includes four divisions which are managed by a six-member professional team. These 
individuals direct the affairs of the staff and report to the ~xecut ive~irec tor .  The fow divisions are Finance, Loan 
Operations and Outreach, Information Support Services, and the Executive Office. Ms. Sheila King supervises the 
Finance Divis~on, which 1s rcsponslblc forthc Corporation's ass21 management, financing acti\,~t~es, payment processing 
and accounting. Shs is assisted by Ms. Elimbeth \lcD~nough. 'l'he Loan Operations and Outruch D~vis~on is directed 
by Ms. Stcphan~e Butlcr T h ~ s  D~v~sion is responsible for citizen outreach and program marketing initiatives, strategic 
analysis, loan origination, customer service, deferment and forgiveness processing, skip tracing, due diligence activity 
on delinquent loans, records, and other specialized student aid programs. The Information Support Services Division 
isdirected by Mr. Kenneth Dodson. All development and support functions related to the management ofthe automated 
loan servicing system software, hardware, mainframe and internet connectivity reside within this Division. The fourth 
division is the Executive Office, which in addition to the Executive Director, is managed by the two other members of 
the professional team, Administrative Officer Frank Love, and the Internal Auditor (the Internal Auditor position is 
currently vacant). This division is responsible for overall agency management and specifically for internal audit, human 
resource management, procurement, institutional authorization, and procedural compliance with all relevant State and 
federal statutes, regulation and subregulatory policies. 

As of December 31, 2005, the Commission had one hundred and four staff positions. These positions are 
assigned as follows: nine to the Executive Office, twelve to Finance, sixty-eight to Loan Operations and Outreach, and 
fifteen to Infonuation Support Scrvices. 



Executive and Senior Staff of the Commission 

Ms. Diane Barrans. Executive Director o j l l ~ e  Commission. Ms. Barrans assumed the duties of Executive 
Director of the Commission and Executive Officer of the Corporation on July 10, 1995. Ms. Barrans joined the staff 
in January 1983 and held several positions with the agency, most recently serving as Program Coordinator from 1989 
to 1993 and Director of Student Financial Aid Programs in 1994195. Originally appointed in 1996, in 2003 Ms. Barrans 
was re-appointed by Governor Frank Murkowski to serve on the Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education. 
Ms. Barrans currently serves as immediate Past-Chair of the Westem Interstate Commission for the 2004-2006 term. 
Ms. Banans also jointly serves with the President of the University of Alaska as the State Higher Education Executive 
Officers for the State. Ms. Barrans currently serves as President of the State Higher Education Officers Organization. 
Ms. Barrans received a bachelor of arts degree from Barnard College of Columbia University in 1982. 

Ms. Sl~eilaKing, CPA, C/~ie/FirtancialOflcer. Ms. Kingjoined the Commission inMay 1998. Prior tojoining 
the Commission, Ms. King was the Accountant IVlController for the Alaska Industrial Development and Export 
Authority from May 1994 to April 1998 and worked as a Supervising Senior Auditor for KPMG LLP (furnierly h o w n  
as KPMG Peat Manvick LLP) from February 1990 to May 1994. From 1983 to 1990, Ms. King worked in the 
accounting field in a variety of capacities. Ms. King received a bachelor of science degree in business administration 
from University of Texas at Dallas in 1989. 

Ms. Elizabeth McDonough, Senior Accountant. Ms. McDonough originally joined the Commission in I988 
and served in the finance unit in a variety of capacities through 1993. From 1988 to 1991 she worked as an Accountant, 
from 1991 to 1992 she was the Finance Manager, and from 1992 to 1993she was the Principal Analyst in charge of 
system projects. Ms. McDonough again joined the Commission in 1994 and since that time has been the Senior 
Accountant in the Finance Division. Ms. McDonough received a bachelor of science degree in business administration 
with an accounting emphasis from California State University, Long Beach in 1983. 

Ms. StephanieButler. Directoro/Loa~~ Operationsa~~dOutreacl~. Ms. Butlerjoined the Comn~ission in Au y s t  
1997 as Institutional Authorization Program Coordinator. She was promoted to Director of Institutional Relations in 
June 1998. In October 2001 she accepted her current position. Prior to coming to the Commission, she worked for the 
University of Alaska Anchorage as Administrative Manager from November 1992 to 1997 and InformatiodSupport 
Services Manager from 1990 to 1992. Ms. Butler is a Certified Internal Auditor through the International Institute fur 
lntcmal Auditing and a Certified Government Professional. Ms. Butler received a master of science in business 
administratiodmanagement from Boston University in 1987 and a bachelor of arts in English from Barry University in 
Miami, Florida, in 1983. 

Mr. Kennetl~ Dodson, Director o/ I~(orn~ation Support Services. Mr. Dodson joined the Commission in 
September 1994 as DirectorofInformation Support Services. Prior to coming to the Commission hewasemployed from 
1988 until 1994 by UNIPAC Service Corporation in Denver, Colorado, first as a Programmer in 1988 advancing to 
Information Services Supervisor in 1990. In September of 1991 Mr. Dodson assumed the role as Information Services 
Supervisor of Regulation and Compliance Support where his team successfully implemented the changes required by 
the 1992 Reauthorization Act as well as the Rebate Eligible Loans provisions. Mr. Dodson served on the steering 
conunittee forthe Rocky Mountain Chapter ofthe Project Management Workbench Users Group and was on the planning 
committee for the Guaranteed Student Loan Users Group. The Commission services the Corporation's loan portfolio 
using the Higher Education Loan Management System("HELMSV). Mr. Dodson is past President anda current member 
of the HELMS User Group. (The HELMS User Group is comprised of software provider representatives and student 
loan servicers currently using HELMS.) Mr. Dodson received a certificate in Computer Information Systems from 
Tucumcari Area Vocational School in Tucurncari, New Mexico, in 1988. 

Mr. Frank Love, Administrative OJflcer. Mr. Love joined the Commission in July 1997. Prior to joining the 
Commission, Mr. Love's professional life was substantially spent as a 32-year career member ofthe United States Coast 
Guard. For the latter eighteen years of his service, Mr. Love served in various capacities as a human resources manager, 
engaged in personnel management, employee relations, career development, and staff training initiatives. Mr. Love has 
received certificates in Human Relations from the Defense Equal Opportunity Management Institute and Chief Petty 
Officer Training from the US.  Coast Guard Training Center in addition to receiving ongoing training in Human 
Resources issues. 



Corporation - General Information 

In 1987, State law created the Corporation. The statute creating the Corporation is codified at Alaska Statutes 
14.42. I00 through 14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). Pursuant to the Act, the Corporation is a "public corporation and 
government instrumentality within the Department of Education and Early Development but having a legal existence 
independent of and separate from the state." Its primary purpose is to finance education loans. A combination of 
revenues generated from the issuance of bonds and loan repayments fund the Loan Program. 

The Corporation is governed by a board of directors (the "Board"). The supervision of the administration of 
the Corporation is delegated to the Executive Officer of the Corporation (the "Executive Officer"), who is also the 
Executive Director of the Commission. 

The principal office of the Corporation is locatedat 3030 VintageBoulevard, Juneau, Alaska 99801-7109. The 
mailing address forall generalcorrespondence ofthe Corporation isP.0. Box 1 10505, Juneau, Alaska9981 1-0505. The 
telephone number for the Corporation is (907) 465-6740. The Attorney General of the State serves as counsel to the 
Corporation. 

Thecorporation has previously issued the followingbonds: (i) S673,770,000principal amountofStudent Loan 
Revenue Bonds under a trust indenture dated as of May 1,1988, as amended and supplemented, of which $226,550,000 
amount is currently outstanding, (ii) $75,140,000 principal amount ofcapital Project RevenueBondsunderan indenture 
dated as of February 1,2004, of which $66,3 10,000 is currently outstanding, and (iii) $88,305,000 principal amount of 
State Project Revenue Bonds under an indenture dated as of March 1, 2005, of which $88,305,000 is currently 
outstanding. These bonds are not issued under the Indenture and have no right, title orclaim to the Trust Estate securing 
the 2006 Bonds or Prior Bonds. 

Corporation Membership 

The Board consists of hvo members of the Commission, the Commissioner ofRevenue, the Commissioner of 
Administration, and the Conmissioner of Commerce, Community and Economic Development. The lnemhers of the 
Board who represent the Cotnniission servc on the Board at the pleasure of the Governor, subject to their incumbency 
on the Commission. 
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The table below identifies the cumnt members of the Corporation's Board (and, where applicable, their first 
delegates to the Board). 

Name and Location Principal Occupation 

Randy Simmons, Chair 
Anchorage, Alaska 

Spike Jorgensen 
Tok, Alaska 

William A. Corbus 
Juneau, Alaska 

Tom Boutin, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Scott Nordstrand 
Juneau, Alaska 

Kevin Brooks, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

WilliamNoll 
Juneau, Alaska 

Greg Winegar, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Retired 
Commission Member 

Senior Partner, Harold Webb Associates, Ltd 
Commission Member 

Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Deputy Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Administration 

Deputy Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Administration 

Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development 

Director of the 
Alaska Division of Investments 

Mr. Ran~Simmons.  Chair ofthe Corporarion andMemher oflhe Con~rnission. Mr. Simmons was appointed 
to the Commission in 2001 by the Governor and to the Board ofthe Corporation that same year. In 2005, Mr. Simmons 
retired from his position as the Vice President of operations at JL Properties, Inc. in Anchorage, where he oversaw the 
management of commercial and residential properties and promoted the development of new projects. He previously 
served as Development and Finance Manager of the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority, coordinating 
economic development projects and the development of policy, and was promoted to Chief Executive Officer with the 
responsibility for encouraging economic development and diversification in the State. As CEO, he also served as the 
CEO ofthe Alaska EnergyAutl~ority,abillion-dollar StatecorporationresponsibleforState-ownedenergyprojects, State 
energy policy, and ruraienergy programs. He has served as comptrolle; for the Alaska Department of~rans~or ta t ion  -~ - 

and Public Facilities where he was promoted to ~ e ~ u t y   omm missioner of ~ inance  and Management, responsible for the 
administrative and financial functions ofthe department, as well as oversight ofthe Alaska Marine Highway Systemand 
International Airport System. Prior to his public sector service, Mr. Simmons was a tax manager and supervisor at 
Coopers & Lybrand, CPA's, in Anchorage. Mr. Simmons earned his juris doctorate in 1979 from the University of 
Oregon, School of Law, and his bachelor of science in business administration in 1974. He is a certified public 
accountant and a member of the Alaska State Bar. 

Dr. Spike Jorgensen, Ph.D, Member ofrlre Corporation and Member of the Commission. Dr. Jorgensen was 
appointed to the Commission by the Governor in December 2005 and to the Board of the Corporation in March 2006. 
Dr. Jorgensen is a senior partner in Harold Webb Associates, Ltd., a recruitment organization for school district 
superintendent candidates nationwide. In addition to his past service as a superintendent, principal, and teacher in South 
Dakota, Wyoming, and Alaska, lie was an adjunct professor at the Universities of Wyoming and Alaska, and most 
recently retired as the longest tenured superintendent in Alaska. Dr. Jorgensen participates in numerous community and 
other organizations prom&g public education and civic engagement, k lud ing  asahemher of the Tok Area Chamber 
of Commerce, member of the policy board for Public Education Network, and senior advisor for Columbia University 
Teachers College ~u~erintendent ~iogram. Dr. Jorgensen earned his education doctorate in public administation at the 
University of Wyoming in 1976. 
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Mr. Scott Nordstrand, Commissioner, Deportment of Admi~tistration. Mr. Nordstrand was appointed 
Commissioner of the Department of Administration in 2005. Mr. Nordstrand is an attorney and previously served as 
deputy attorney general for the civil division in the state Department of Law. Prior to his state service, Mr. Nordstrand 
scrvcd for I5 ycars as an attorney in pr ivw practice in Anclioragc primxily focusing on employment and comm?rcial 
liti~atlon. Mr. Nordstrand hils bccn acti\,c in sever31 leeislati\~c initiativcs that affect the Deoanmtnt ofAdministration - - ~ ~ ~~~~ 

such as the creation of the Office of Administrative Hearings, PERSITRS reform and workers' compensation reform. 
Mr. Nordstrand received his bachelor's degree in political science from the University of Wisconsin and a law degree 
from the University of North Dakota School of Law. 

Mr. Kevin A. Brook, Deputy Commissioner, Depart~~~e~~lofAdn~inistrarion. (Mr. Brooks serves on the Board 
as a Delegate of Scott Nordstrand.) Mr. Brooks was appointed Deputy Commissioner in June 2004. He oversees the 
divisions of Administrative Services, Finance, General Services, Enterprise Technology Services, Retirement and 
Benefils, and the Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Mr. Brooks began his career with the State of Alaska in 1983 
working as an accounting clerk and went on to serve as the finance officer of the Department of Military and Veterans 
Affairs in January of 1986. He later served as an accounting supervisor, budget analyst, and director of administrative 
services for the Departnient of Administration. In 1992-93 he worked in the private sector as a business manager for 
a publishingcompany,providing budgct, accounting, and payroll services. FromOctober 1993 to Juneof2004 heserved 
as the director of administrative services for the Department of Fish and Game in Juneau. He earned his bachelor's 
degree in international studies from the University of Michigan, and an MBA from the University of Alaska. 

Mr. Willianz A. Corbus, Comn~issioner. Departmen/ ofRevemre. Mr. Corbus was appointed Commissioner on 
December 9,2002. Mr. Corbus recently retired as president ofAlaska Electric Light and Power Company, the electrical 
utility for Juneau, where he had worked since 1970. Mr. Corbus served on the Alaska State Pension Investment Board 
from 1993 to 1999, and on several bank boards in Alaska. He holds a bachelor's degree in industrial engineering from 
Stanforduniversity andamaster'sdegree in business administration from the Amos TuckGraduate School at Dartmouth 
College. Mr. Corbus is a Navy veteran, and worked in financial planning and accounting at a New York City firm after 
leaving the Navy in the 1960s. As Revenue Commissioner, Mr. Corbus serves on the Board of Trustees of the Alaska 
Permanent Fund Corporation, in addition to overseeing the tax, investment and public service functions of the 900- 
employee Department of Revenue. 

Mr. Tom Boutin, Deputy Comrni.ssioner, Depor?merit ofReventre, Treasury and Tar Division. (Mr. Boutin 
serves on the Board as the First Delegate of William Corbus.) Mr. Boutin was appointed Deputy Connnissioner in 
February 2003. Mr. Boutin spent his first 22 years in New Hampshire, logging and working for dairies. He then moved 
to Alaska, working as a logging engineer for Ketchikan Pulp Co. and as a timber faller, rigging slinger and equipment 
operator for various logging and road building firms. He bought and sold logs, lumber, veneer and plywood for North 
Pacific Lumber Company, and was ChiefFinancial Officer and then President and Chief Financial Officer for Klukwan, 
Inc., an Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act corporation involved in forest products and money management. His 
government service experience consists of State Debt Manager for the Alaska Department of Revenue, Alaska State 
Forester, and currently, Deputy Commissioner for the Alaska Department of Revenue. Mr. Boutin has a Bachelor of 
Science from the University of New Hampshire, and an MBA in Finance from the University of Oregon. He has lived 
in Juneau for the past 21 years. 

Mr. William Noll, Connnissioner, Deportment of Contmerce, Conrrnm~ity and Economic Development. Bill 
Noll was appointed Commissioner of the Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development in July 
2005. Prior to his appointment, he served as Dcputy Commissioner from 2003 to 2005, Conlmunications Director for 
the Governor, and Deputy Commissioner for Economic Development and International Trade under former Governor 
Walter J. Hickel's administration. Mr. Noll is a former mayor and city council member of the City of Seward. As 
Commissioner, Mr. Noll oversees seven divisions and seven independent agencies with a mutual mission to encourage 
and contribute to the State's economic growth through business development and investments in Alaska, the Lower 48 
States, and in international markets, as well as to promote independent sustainable communities. 

Mr. Greg Winegar, Director of the Division of Inveslments. (Mr. Winegar serves as the First Delegate of 
William Noll.) Mr. Winegar was appointed Director of the Division of Investments in May 2000. This Division 
administers various direct lending programs for the State and services loans for other State agencies, representing 
approximately 3,500 accounts totaling $250 million. Prior to his appointment as Director, Mr. Wincgar served as the 
Division of Investment's Lending Branch Manager for 21 years. Mr. Winegar received his bachelors degree from the 



Evergreen State College in 1973. In addition to his work as Lending Branch Manager, he also served as a Loan Officer 
for the Department for five years where his responsibilities included credit analysis and recormnendations for 
commercial, multi-family, residential and consumer loan requests. 

Stafling of the Corporation 

The staffofthe Commission also serves asstaffofthecorporation in accordance with the Act. The Corporation 
does not have the authority to hire staff independently. See "Staffing of the Commission" above. 

Authority of the Corporation 

The Act grants the Corporation various corporate powers, including, among others, the authority to: (i) make 
and execute agreements, contracts, and other instruments necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers and 
functions of the Corporation, including contracts with a person or governmental entity; ( i ~ )  borrow money to carry out 
its corporate purposes and issue its obligations as evidence ofthe borrowing; (iii) collect from a borrower amounts owed 
with respect to an education loan the Corporation has purchased; (iv) service education loans held by the Corporation; 
(v) purchase, or participate in the purchase, of education loans; (vi) contract in advance for the purchase or sale of 
education loans; (vii) sell, or participate in the sale, either public or private and on terms authorized by the Board, of 
education loans to other purchasers; (viii) collect and pay reasonable fees and charges in connection with the purchase, 
sale and servicing of education loans; (ix) enter into agreements with the Commission relating to education loans, the 
administration of the education loan fund created under the Act, and the payment of and security for bonds of the 
Corporation; and (x) perform acts that may be necessary or appropriate to cany out effectively the general objectives 
and purposes of the Corporation under the Act. 

Dividend Plan of the Corporation 

In 2000, an amendment to the Act became effective which permits the Corporation, as approved by the Board, 
to pay the State a return of capital payment or a dividend for each base fiscal year that the Corporation's net income 
equals or exceeds $2,000,000. The payment amount may not be less than ten percent (10%) nor more than thirty-five 
percent (35%), as approved by the Board, of the Corporation's net income for the base fiscal year, and is subject to the 
provisions of any applicable bond indentures of the Corporation. The base fiscal year is the fiscal year ending two years 
before the fiscal year in which payment is made available. 

The Board of the Corporation has approved and paid retum ofcapital payments to the State of $5.6 million and 
$3.1 million for payment in fiscal years 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Corporation has approved a return of capital 
payment to the State of $1.9 million for payment in fiscal year 2007. 

THE ALASKADVANTAGEB LOAN PROGRAM 

General 

The information set forth under this heading, "THE ALASKADVANTAGEm LOAN PROGRAM," refers to 
the Loan Program generally and to Education Loans within the Loan Program generally and is not specific to Education 
Loans within the Loan Program that are pledged as security for the Bonds. With respect to Education Loans within the 
Loan Program that are pledged as security for the Bonds, see "PLAN OF FINANCE." 

The purpose of the Loan Program is to provide low-interest loans to Alaskans pursuing education and training 
at a postsecondary level and to other qualified individuals attending postsecondary institutions in the State. The Loan 
Program has grown from annually servingjust over 1,000 Alaskans in the 1971-72 academic year, to serving more than 
57,000 borrowers in 2004. In its 34 years of operation, over 332,000 education loans have been awarded to Alaskan 
residents, in an amount in excess of $1.7 billion. 

Education Loans are provided to eligible Alaskans and may be used only to offset allowable educational costs 
as defined by statute. The loans may be used for attendance at any accredited or approved college, university, or 
vocational-technical program. 



The following chart provides a five-year summary of the number of loans awarded by the Commission: 

School Loans InStste OutdCStatc Undergraduate Graduate 
Awarded - Laanr I.anns I.oanr I.anns 

2000-01 9,939 4.722 or 48% 5,217 0~52% 9,169 770 
2001 -02 9,369 4.474 or 48% 4,895 or 52% 8,530 767 
2002-03 10,356 5,595 or 54% 4,761 or 46% 9,451 905 
2003-04 11.563 6.982 or 60% 4.581 ~ 4 0 %  10.508 1.055 
2004-05 12,226 7.961 or 65% 4,265 or 35% 1 1,075 1,151 
2005-06"' 11,014 7.465 or 68% 3,549 or 32% 10,142 872 

(1) For the six month pcriod ending December 31. ZOO5 

Borrower Benefit Program 

The Corporation has approved various programs to provide incentives and rewards for borrowers. Under the 
Borrower Benefit Program, effective July 1, 2006 through June 30,2007, borrowers with qualified loans held by the 
Corporation areeligible forcenainreductions in interest rate or interest rate rebates on any such loan. Certain Education 
Loans will be eligible under the Corporation's Borrower Benefit Program. The Borrower Benefit Program is subject to 
the availability of funds and annual modification or ternination by the Corporation in its discretion; provided, however, 
any change in the Borrower Benefit Program which impacts any Education Loan held under the Indenture requires a 
Rating Confirmation. 

The Alternative Loan Program 

There are four types of Alternative Loans available through the Loan Program: (i) Supplemental Education 
Loans, which include Education Loans for students enrolled in half-time or greater status; (ii) Alaska Family Education 
Loans; (iii) Teacher Education Loans; and (iv) Alternative Consolidation Loans (collectively, the "Alternative Loans"). 
Substantially all loans financcd by the Corporation prior to July 2002 were Supplemental Education Loans. 

[REMAINDER O F  THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



Following is a table which briefly shows certain characteristics ofthe Alternative Loans. These characteristics 
are set by the Act. 

Supplemental 
Education Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 
Vocational 

Family Education 
Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 

Teacher Education 
Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 

Alternative 
Consolidation Loan: 

<$30,000 
$30,000 or 
more 

Academic 
Year 

Loan Limit 

Aggregate 
Loan Limit' 

Max of Loans 
to Consolidate 

Repayment 
Period 

10 years 
10 years 
10 years 

10 years 
10 years 

15 years 
15 years 

10 years 
15 years 

Grace 
Period 

6 months 
6 months 
6 months 

NIA 
NIA 

6 months 
6 months 

A barmweh overall limit under the Altemativc Loans (combining underpduatc and graduate eduwtian loans) cannot exceed S60.000 

The Federal Loan Program 

After extensive analysis, the Corporation expanded its program offerings beginning with the 2002-2003 
academic year to include loans governed by the Higher Education Act (collectively, the "Fedcral Family Education 
Loans" or "FFELP Loans" and, the program with respect thereto, the "Federal Family Education Loan Program" or 
"FFELP Loan Program"). To accommodate the FFELP Loan Progran~, the Commission secured the status of "eligible 
lender" under the Higher Education Act and entered into various agreements with NELA, which serves as the 
Commission's "eligible guarantor" under the Higher Education Act. See "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY 
EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM." 

DESCRIPTION O F  ALTERNATIVE LOANS 

Supplemental Education Loan 

A person is eligible for a supplemental education loan if certain statutory requirements are satisfied, including 
(i) admission as at least a half-time student into a career education, associate, baccalaureate, or graduate degree program, 
(ii) State residency and attendance at an approved college, university or vocational technical program, or nonresidency 
and attendance at an approved college, university or vocational technical program in the State, and (iii) determination 
by the Commission that the person is credit worthy. 

Currently, the loan limit for any one academic year is $9,500 for qualified graduate students, $8,500 for 
qualified undergraduate students, and $6,500 for qualified vocational students. Under the Loan Program, borrowing 
limits amount to $42,500 per student for undergraduate loans, $47,500 per student for graduate loans, and $60,000 
overall. To maintain a loan the student must continue to be enrolled, in academic good standing, in a career education 
program, college or university at least half-time. 

Interest accrues on the loan from the time of the initial disbursement until the loan is paid in full. Repayment 
of the principal of and interest on a loan begins no later than six months after the borrower's graduation or a change in 
enrollment status to less than half-time. Repayment of the total amount owed is made in periodic installments over ten 



to fifteen years from the commencement of repayment, except with respect to certain periods of forbearance or 
defennent. If the Commission and the borrower agree to a different repayment schedule, the borrower is required to 
repay the loan in accordance with such agreement. A borrower may make payments earlier than required. 

Pursuant to the Supplemental Education Loan terms for loans originated prior to July I ,  2006, the borrowers 
pay a variable rate of interest which is adjusted annually on or after June 1 of each loan year and effective for the next 
twelve months beginning July 1. Thevariahle interest rates are based on the bond equivalent rate of9l-day United States 
Treasury bills auctioned at the final auction held before June I ofthe loan year plus up to 2.8% and are capped at 8.25%. 
For loans originated after June 30,2006, interest rates will be a fixed rate of interest, set by the Corporation on or after 
May 1 of each year and based on the Municipal Market Data AAA Insured Alternative Minimum Tax Revenue Bond 
Yield Curve, plus 30 basis points and up to an additional three percent for costs of administering the Loan Program. 
However, such fixed rate of interest set by this formula will not be less than the federal Stafford Loan fixed rate plus 50 
basis points. 

Teacher Education Loan 

The Teacher Education Loan Program is designed to support the growth of teaching staffs in rural areas of the 
State. Historically, the annual loan volume under this program has been less than $1,500,000. These loans do not hear 
interest while a student borrower is enrolled in a qualified educational program. Interest rates for Teacher Education 
Loans are fixed rates set by the Commission and are based on the cost of funds plusup to 3% for programadministration. 
The Commission limits the number of new applicants to 90 each year. 

For substantially all of the Teacher Education Loans, repayment ofthe principal and interest begins six months 
after the borrower's graduation or change in enrollment status to less than full-time. A borrower may make payments 
earlier than required. 

Borrowers ofTeacher Education Loans can obtain up to 100% forgiveness on loans awarded if tlie borrower 
teaches in rural Alaska for periods specified by the program. As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 
$5,100,000 of outstanding loans eligible for forgiveness; the Corporation anticipates that only 40% of these loans will 
actually be forgiven. 

Family Education Loan 

The Alaska Family Education Loan Program is designed to provide financial assistance to families for the 
postsecondary education of family members. The interest rate for these loans is currently fixed by State law at 5%. 

Interest accrues on the loan from the time of tlie initial disbursement until tlie loan is paid in full. Repayment 
bcgins the month following the date of last disbursement for the loan year. A borrower may make payments earlier than 
required. 

Alternative Loan Fees 

The Commission charges a 3% origination fee on all Altemative Loans issued except the Alternative 
Consolidation Loans. The purpose of the origination fee is to offset loan losses due to death, disability, bankruptcy or 
default. These amounts are not pledged under the Indenture and there is no assurance that the amounts will be used to 
pay for any losses incurred in connection with Education Loans held under the Indenture. 

.Alternative Consolidation Loans 

Borrowers with hvo ormore supplemental loans, which total in theaggregateofat least $3,500 may consolidate 
those loans under the Alternative Consolidation Loan Program. 

Altemative Consolidation Loan applicants are subject to minimum FICO credit score standards or, alternatively, 
must have made full and timely payments on all loans held by the Commission for the hvelve-month period immediately 
prior to the application. 



Interest rates on the Alternative Consolidation Loans are fixed rates set annually by the Corporation and are 
based on the 10-year United States Treasury note auctioned at the final auction held before June 1 plus up to 2%. 

Repayment of principal and interest begins no later than 60 days from the date the Alternative Consolidation 
Loan is originated. The repayment term for the Alternative Consolidation Loans is 10 years for loans with a principal 
balance of less than S30,000 and 15 years for loans with a principal balance of $30,000 or more. 

DESCRIPTION O F  FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM 

General 

The information under this heading, "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN 
PROGRAM," refers to the FFELP Loan Program generally and to FFELP Loans within the FFELP Loan Program 
generally and is not specific to FFELP Loans that are pledged as security for the Bonds. With respect to FFELP Loans 
that are pledged as security for the Bonds, see "PLAN OF FINANCE." 

The FFELP Loan Program includes several different educational loan programs. Under these programs, state 
agencies or private nonprofit corporations administering FFELP Loan insurance programs ("Guarantee Agencies" or 
"Guarantors") are reimbursed for losses sustained in the operation of their programs, and holders of certain loans made 
under such programs are paid subsidies for owning such loans. The Commission is an "eligible lender" under the Higher 
Education Act. 

The Higher Education Act has been subject to frequent amendments, including several amendments that have 
changed the terms of and eligibility requirements for the FFELP Loans. As described above in "Changes to Federal 
Family Education Loan Program," the 2005 HEA Amendments were signed into law on February 8,2006, many of the 
changes in which are scheduled to take effect July 1,2006. TheHigher Education Act will likely be the subject offurther 
amendment during the time the 2006 Bonds are Outstanding. There can be no assurance the changes made by the 2005 
HEA Amendments or the Higher Education Act, or other relevant federal or State laws, rules and regulations will not 
bechanged in the future in amanner that, will adversely impact the programs described below and the student loans made 
thereunder. Generally, this Official Statement describes only the provisions of the Federal Family Education Loan 
Program that currently apply to loans made on or afier July 1, 1998. The following summary of the Federal Family 
Education Loan Program as established by the Higher Education Act does not purport to be comprchensive or definitive 
and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the text of the Higher Education Act and the regulations thereunder. 

Federal Family Education Loans 

Several types of loans are currently authorized as Federal Family Education Loans pursuant to the Federal 
Family Education Loan Program. These include: (i) loans to students meeting certain financial needs tests with respect 
to which the federal government makes interest payments available to reduce student interest cost during periods of 
enrollment ("Subsidized Stafford Loans"); (ii) loans to students made without regard to financial need with respect to 
which the federal government does not make such interest payments ("Unsubsidized Stafford Loans" and, collectively 
with Subsidized Stafford Loans, "Stafford Loans"); (iii) loans to parents of dependent students ("PLUS Loans")'; and 
(iv) loans available to borrowers with certain existing federal educational loans to consolidate repayment of such loans 
("Consolidation Loans"). 

Subsidized Staflord Loans 

The Higher Education Act provides for federal (i) insurance or reinsurance of eligible Subsidized Stafford 
Loans, (ii) interest subsidy paymentsto eligible lenders with respect to certain eligible ~uhsidized Stafford Loans, and 
(iii) SAP representing an additional subsidy paid by the Secretary to such holders of eligible Subsidized Stafford Loans. 

As n result of thc 2005 HEA Amcndrnents, graduate or professional students will bc eligible for PLUS Loans beginning July 1, 
2006. 



Subsidized Stafford Loans are eligible for reinsurance under the Higher Education Act if the eligible student 
to whom the loan is made has been accepted or is enrolled in good standing on at least a half-time basis at an eligible 
institution of higher education or vocational school. In connection with eligible Subsidized Stafford Loans there are 
limits as to the maximum amount which may be borrowed for an academic year and in the aggregate for both 
undergraduate and graduate/professionaI study. The Secretary has discretion to raise these limits to accommodate 
students undertaking specialized training requiring exceptionally high costs of education. 

Subject to these limits, Subsidized Stafford Loans are available to borrowers in amounts not exceeding their 
unmet need for financing as provided in the Higher Education Act. Provisions addressing the implementation of need 
analysis and the relationship between unmet need for financingand theavailability of Subsidized Stafford Loan Program 
funding have been the subject of frequent and extensive amendment in recent years. There can be no assurance that 
further amendment to such provisions will not rnatcrially affect the availability of Subsidized Stafford Loan funding to 
borrowers or the availability of Subsidized Stafford Loans for secondary market acquisition. 

QualijiedStuden~s ondI~~sti/ tr/ io~~s. Generally, a loan may be made only to a United States citizen or national 
or othenvise eligible individual under federal regulations who (i) has been accepted for enrollment or is enrolled and is 
maintaining satisfactory progress at an eligible institution, (ii) is carrying at least one-half of the normal full-time 
academic workload for the course ofstudy the student is pursuing, as determined by such institution, (iii) has agreed to 
notify promptly the holders of the loan of any address change, and (iv) meets the applicable "need" requirements. 
Eligible institutions include higher educational institutions and vocational schools that comply with certain federal 
regulations. With certain exceptions, an institution with a cohort (composite) default rate that is higher than certain 
thresholds specified in the Higher Education Act is not an eligible institution. 

Unsubsidized Stafford Loans 

Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are available for students who do not qualify for Subsidized Stafford Loans after 
the need analysis methodology due to parental andlor student income or assets in excess of permitted amounts. Such 
students are entitled to borrow the difference between the Stafford Loan maximum amount and their Subsidized Stafford 
eligibility. In other respects, the general requirements for Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are essentially the same as those 
for Subsidized Stafford Loans. The interest rate, the annual loan limits,the loan fee requirementsand the SAP provisions 
of the Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are the same as the Subsidized Stafford Loans. However, the terns of the 
Unsubsidized Stafford Loans differ materially from Subsidized Stafford Loans in that the Secretary does not make 
interest subsidy payments and the loan limitations are determined without respect to the expected family contribution. 
The borrower is required to pay interest from the time such loan is disbursed or capitalize the interest until repayment 
begins. 

PLUS Loan Program 

The Higher Education Act authorizes PLUS Loans to be made to parents of eligible dependent undergraduate 
students. Only parents who do not have an adverse credit history or, if permitted by the lender, have an endorser who 
does not have an adverse credit history, arc eligible for PLUS Loans. The basic provisions applicable to PLUS Loans 
are similar to those of Stafford Loans with respect to the involvement of Guarantee Agencies and the Secretary in 
providing federal reinsurance on the loans. However, PLUS Loans differ significantly from Subsidized Stafford Loans, 
particularly because federal interest subsidy payments are not available under the PLUS Program and SAP are more 
restricted. The 2005 HEA Amendments authorized PLUS Loans for graduate and professional students. 

The FFELP Consolidation Loan Program 

The Higher Education Act authorizes a program under which certain borrowers may consolidate their various 
FFELP Loans into a single loan insured and reinsured on a basis similar to Subsidized Stafford Loans. Consolidation 
Loans may be made in an amount sufficient to pay outstanding principal, unpaid interest and late charges on certain 
federally insured or reinsured FFELP Loans (other than PLUS Loans made to "parent borrowers") selected by the 
borrower, as well as loans made pursuant to the Perkins Loan Program (formerly "National Direct Student Loan"), loans 
made pursu;tnl lo the Ilcalth Profcjsional Student Loan Progrdm. Hr'alth Education Assistance Loans. h'ursing Student 
Loans, and loans made pursuant to the William D. Ford Fcdenl Direct Loan Program (thv "Dircct Loan Program"). The 



borrowcrsmay be eitherin repayment status or in agraceperiodprecedingrepayment. Delinquent ordefaulted borrowers 
are eligible to obtain Consolidation Loans if they have made satisfactory repayment arrangements with the holders of 
the defaulted loan or agreed to repay the Consolidation Loanunder an income-sensitive repayment schedule. Borrowers 
may add additional loans to a Consolidation Loan during the 180day period following origination ofthe Consolidation 
Loan. A Consolidation Loan will he federally insured or reinsured only if such loan is made in compliance with 
requirements of the Higher Education Act. Commencing July 1,2006, borrowers who do not also have a Direct Loan 
may apply for a Direct Consolidation Loan only if a FFELP Loan consolidation lender denies the borrower's FFELP 
Consolidation Loan application or denies anapplication fora consolidation loan requesting income-sensitive repayment 
terms, or if the borrower has defaulted and the consolidation loan will resolve the default. 

If a borrower is unable to obtain a Consolidation Loan with income sensitive repayment terms acceptable to 
the borrower from the holders ofthe borrower's outstanding loans (that are selected for consolidation), or from any other 
eligible lender, the Higher Education Act authorizes the Secretary to offer the borrower aDirect Consolidation Loan with 
income contingent tcrms under the Direct Loan Program. Such Direct Consolidation Loans shall he repaid either 
pursuant to income contingent repayment or any other repayment provision under the authorizing section of the Higher 
Education Act. 

Interest Rates 

Subsidized Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans disbursed on or after October I ,  1998 and prior 
to July 1,2006 which are in-school, grace and deferment periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill 
rate plus 1.7 percent, with a maximumrateof8.25 percent. Subsidized Stafford Loans andUnsubsidizcd Stafford Loans 
in all other periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill rate plus 2.3 percent, with a maximum rate of 
8.25 percent. The rate is adjusted annually on July 1. PLUS Loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill 
rate plus 3.1 percent, with a maximum rate of 9 percent. Consolidation Loans for which the application was received 
by an eligible lender on or after October 1, 1998 and prior to July 1,2006, bear interest at a rate equal to the weighted 
average ofthe loans consolidated, rounded to the nearest higher one-eighth ofone percent, with a maximum rate of 8.25 
percent. 

All Subsidized Stafford Loans andUnsubsidized StaffordLoans first disbursedon orafterJuly 1,2006 will hear 
interest at the fixed rate of 6.8%. Similarly, PLUS loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2006 will hear interest at the 
fixed rate of 8.5%. Finally, Consolidation Loans made as a result of applications received on or after July 1,2006 will 
bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of (i) the weighted average of the interest rates on the loans consolidated, 
rounded to the nearest higher one-eighth of 1%, or (ii) 8.25%. 

Loan Limits 

A Stafford Loan borrower may receive a subsidized loan, an unsubsidized loan, or a combination of both for 
an academic period. Generally, the maximum amount of a Stafford Loan for an academic year cannot exceed $2,625 
($3,500 commencing July 1,2007) for the first year of undergraduate study, $3,500 (54,500 commencing July 1,2007) 
for thc second year of undcrgrdduatc study 2nd 55,500 per ycar fur thc third, fourth and fifth years of undergraduate 
study. Thc aggregate limit ofstafford Loans for undergraduate study is S23,000 (excluding PLUS Loans). lndupcndcnt 
undcrfiraduate students nnv receive an additional L'nsubsidizcd Stxffurd Loan of un to S4.000 for the first and second - 
years of study, and up to $5,000 for the third, fourth and fifth years of study, with an aggregate maximum of $46,000, 
with Subsidized Stafford Loans comprising no more than $23,000 of the total limit. The maximum amount of the loans 
for an academic year for graduate students is $8,500, and independent students may borrow an additional Unsubsidized 
Stafford Loan up to $10,000 ($12,000 commencing July 1, 2007) per academic year. The aggregate unpaid principal 
amount of such loans of the borrowers may not exceed $138,500 with Subsidized Stafford Loans comprising no more 
than $65,500 of the total limit. The Secretary has discretion to raise these limits by regulation to accommodate highly 
specialized or exceptionally expensive courses of study. 

The total amount of all PLUS Loans that (i) parents may borrow on behalf of each dependent student or (ii) 
graduate or professional students may borrow for any academic year may not exceed the student's cost of attendance 
minus other estimated financial assistance for that student. 



Repayment 

Repayment of principal on a Stafford Loan does not commence while a borrower remains a qualified student, 
but generally begins not more than six months after the borrower ceases to pursue at least a half-time course ofstudy (the 
six month period is the "Grace Period"). Grace Periods may be waived by borrowers and borrowers requesting FFELP 
consolidation prior to the end of the grace period forfeit any time remaining in their grace period. Except for certain 
borrowers described below in general, each such loan must be scheduled for repaynent over a period of not less than 
fiveormore than 10 years(exc1udingany "deferment period" or "forbearance period" asdefined by the Higher Education 
Act) after the commencement of repayment. Repayment of interest on an Unsubsidized Stafford Loan begins 
immediately upon disbursement of the loan, however the lender may capitalize the interest until repayment of principal 
is scheduled to begin. An extended repayment plan, not to exceed 25 years, is also available to new borrowers of loans 
disbursed on or after July 1, 1998 with loans totaling more than $30,000. Once a repayment plan is established, the 
borrower may annually change the selection of the plan. Student borrowers are entitled to accelerate, without penalty, 
the repayment of all or any part of a guaranteed student loan. 

The Higher Education Act currently requires minimum annual payments of $600, including principal and 
interest (but in no event less than the accrued interest), unless the borrower and the lender agree to lesser payments; in 
instances in which a borrower and spouse both have such loans outstanding, the total combined payments for such a 
couple may not be less than $600 per year. Regulations of the Secretary require lenders to offer standard, graduated or 
income-sensitive repayment schedules to borrowers. Use of income-sensitive repayment plans may extend the ten-year 
maximum term for up to five years. 

PLUS Loans enter repayment on the date the last disbursement is made on the loan. Interest accrues and is due 
and payable from the date of the first disbursement of the loan. The first payment is due within 60 days after the loan 
is fully disbursed. Repayment plans are the same as in the Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program. 

Consolidation Loans enter repayment on the date the loan is disbursed. The first payment is due within 60 days 
aRer that date. Consolidation Loans must be repaid during a period agreed to by the borrower and lender, subject to 
maximum repayment periods which vary depending upon the principal amount of the borrower's outstanding FFELP 
Loans (but no longer than 30 years). 

Deferment and Forbearance Periods 

During certain periods and subject to certain conditions prescribed by the Higher Education Act, no principal 
repaynents need to be made during certain periods prescribed by the Higher Education Act ("Defennent Periods") but 
interest accrues and must be paid. Generally, Defennent Periods include periods (a) when the borrower has returned to 
an eligible educational institution on at least half-time basis or is pursuing studies pursuant to an approved graduate 
fellowship or rehabilitation training program, (b) not exceeding three years while the borrower is seeking and unable to 
find full-time employment, (c) not in excess of three years while the borrower is in certain qualifying military service, 
and (d) not in excess of three years for any reason which the lender determines, in accordance with regulations, has 
caused or will cause the borrower economic hardship. Deferment Periods extend the maximum repayment periods. 
Undercertaincircumstances, a lender may also allow periods of forbearance ("Forbearance") during which the borrower 
may defer payments because of temporary financial hardships. The Higher Education Act specifies certain periods 
during which forbearance is mandatory. Mandatory forbearance periods exist when the borrower is impacted by a 
national emergency or by military mobilization or when the geographical area in which the borrower resides or works 
is declared a disaster area by certain officials. Other mandatory periods include periods during which the borrower is 
(a) participating in a medical or dental residency and is not eligible for deferment; (b) serving in a qualified medical or 
dental internship programorcertain national serviceprograms; or (c) determined to have a debt burden ofcenain federal 
loans equal to or exceeding 20% of the borrower's gross income. In other circumstances, forbearance may be granted 
at the lender's option. Forbearance also extends the maxinnnn repayment periods. 

Interest Subsidy Payments 

The Secretary is to pay interest on Subsidized Stafford Loans while the borrower is a qualified student, during 
a Grace Period or during certain Deferment Periods. In addition, those portions of Consolidation Loans that repay 
Subsidized Stafford Loans or similar subsidized loans made under the Direct Loan Program are eligible for interest 



subsidy payments. The Secretary is required to make interest subsidy payments to the holders of Subsidized Stafford 
Loans in the amount of interest accruing on the unpaid balance thereof prior to the cotlunencement of repayment or 
during any Deferment Period. The Higher Education Act provides that the holder of an eligible Subsidized Stafford 
Loan, or the eligible portions of Consolidation Loans, shall be deemed to have a contractual right against the United 
States to receive interest subsidy payments from the Secretary (including the right to receive interest or interest subsidy 
payments not timely paid) in accordance with its provisions. 

Special Allowance Payments 

The Higher Education Act provides for Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") to be made by the Secretary to 
eligible lenders. The rates for SAP are based on formulae that differ according to the type of loan, the date the loan was 
first disbursed, the interest rate and the type of funds used to finance such loan (tax-exempt or taxable). Certain loans 
madeorpurchasedwith funds obtained by the holder from the issuance oftax-exempt obligations issued prior to October 
1,1993 have an effective minimum rate of return of 9.5%. The SAP payable with respect to FFELP Loans acquired or 
funded with the proceeds of tax-exempt obligations issued afler September 30, I993 are equal to those paid to other 
lenders. (The Higher Education Act has been subject to frequent amendments which could impact SAP.) 

Subject to the foregoing, the fonnulae for SAP rates for Subsidizcd Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford 
Loans are summarized in the following chart. The term "T-Bill" as used in this table and the following table, means the 
average 91-day Treasury bill rate calculated as a "bond equivalent rate" in the manner applied by the Secretary as 
referred to in Section 438 of the Higher Education Act. The term "3-Month Commercial Paper Rate" means the 90-day 
cotnmercial paper index calculated quarterly and based on an average of the daily 90-day commercial paper rates 
reported in the Federal Reserve's Statistical Release H-15. As a general matter, the amount of the SAP with respect to 
any loan is the difference between interest on such loan at its stated rate of interest and the SAP rate applicable to such 
loan (assuming that the former is greater than the latter). 

Date of Loans Annualized Special Allowance Pavments Rate 

On or after October 1, 1992 to 
June 30, 1995 

On or afler July 1, 1995 to 
June 30, 1998 

On or afler July 1, 1998 to 
December 31, 1999 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate+ 3.1% 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1%"' 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable lnterest Rate +2.8%"' 

On or afler January 1,2000 3-Month Commercial Paper Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 2.34%'" 

(I) Substitute 2.5% in this formula while such loans are in the in-school or gnce pcriod. 
(2) Substitute 2.2% in this formula while such loans are in the in-sehwl or grace period. 
(3) Substitute 1.74% in this formula while sucli loans are in the in-school or grace period 

The fonnulae for SAP rates for PLUS and Consolidation Loans are as follows: 

Date of Loans Annualized Special Allowance Pavments Rate 

On or after October 1, 1992 to 
December 3 1, 1999 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1% 

On or afler January 1,2000 3-Month Conunercial Paper Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 2.64% 

SAP are generally payable, with respect to variable rate FFELP Loans to which a maximum borrower interest 
rate applies, only when the maximum borrower interest rate is in effect. The Secretary offsetsInterest Subsidy Payments 
and SAP by the amount of Origination Fees and Lender Loan Fees described below in "- FFELP Loan Fees." 



Under the 2005 HEA Amendments, for certain loans first disbursed on or after April I, 2006, if the interest on 
such loan at the stated interest rate is higher than the SAP rate applicable to such loan, the holder of the loan is to credit 
the difference to the United States Government at least annually. 

The Higher Education Act provides that a holder of a qualifying loan who is entitled to receive SAP has a 
contractual right against the United States to receive those payments during the life of the loan. Receipt of SAP, 
however, is conditioned on the eligibility of the loan for federal insurance or reinsurance benefits. Such eligibility may 
be lost due to violations of federal regulations or Guarantee Agency requirements. 

For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after July 1,2006, SAP will only be made when the 3-month Commercial 
Paper Rate plus 2.64% exceeds 9%. 

FFELP Loan Fees 

InsuranceFee/FederalDefairlt Fee. For FFELP Loans guaranteed prior to July 1,2006, a Guarantee Agency 
is authorized to charge a premium, or guarantee fee, of up to 1% of the principal amount of the loan, which may be 
deducted proportionately from each installment of the loan. Effective for loans for which the date of guarantee of 
principal is on or after July 1,2006, the optional 1% fee is eliminated and a Federal default fee of 1% of the principal 
amount of the loan must be charged. 

Origina~ian Fee. The lender is required to pay to the Secretary an origination fee equal to a certain percentage, 
based on the date of the loan, of the principal amount of each Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford and PLUS Loan. 
The lender may charge these fees to the borrower by deducting them proportionately fromeach disbursement ofthe loan 
proceeds. The origination fee for PLUS Loans is 3% and the origination fees for Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford 
Loans is as follows: 

Fee - 
Loans disbursed on 
or  after and before 

Before July 1,2006 
July I, 2006 to July 1, 2007 
July 1, 2007 to July 1, 2008 
July 1,2008 to July 1,2009 
July 1, 2009 to July 1, 2010 

on or after July 1,2010 

LenderLoanFee. The lender of a FFELP Loan is required to pay to the Secretary an additional origination fee 
equal to 0.5% of the principal amount of the loan. The Secretary collects from the lender or subsequent holder the 
maximum origination fee authorized (regardless ofwhether the lender actually charges the borrower) and the lender loan 
fee, either through reductions in Interest Subsidy or SAP or directly from the lender or holder. 

RebateFee on Consolidation Loans. The holder of any Consolidation Loan is required to pay to the Secretary 
a monthly fee equal to .0875% (1.05% per annum) of the principal amount of, plus accrued interest on, the loan. 

INSURANCE AND GUARANTEES 

A Federal Family Education Loan is considered to be in default for purposes ofthe Higher Education Actwhen 
the borrower fails to make an installment payment when due, or to comply with other terms of the loan, and if the failure 
persists for 270 days in the case of a loan repayable in monthly installments or for 330 days in the case of a loan 
repayable in less frequent installments. 

If the loan in default is covered by federal loan insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Higher 
Education Act, the Secretary is to pay the holder the amount ofthe loss sustained thereby, upon notice and determination 
of such amount, within90 days of such notification. If the loan is guaranteed by a guarantor in accordance with the 
provisions of the Higher Education Act, the guarantor is to pay the holder apercentage ofsuchamount ofthe losssubject 
to reduction as described in the following paragraphs within 90 days of such notification. 



Federal Insurance 

The Higher Education Act provides that, subject to conipliance with such Act, the full faith and credit of the 
United States is pledged to the payment of insurance claims and ensures that such reimbursements are not subject to 
reduction. In addition, the Higher Education Act provides that if a guarantor is unable to meet its insurance obligations, 
holders of loans may submit insurance claims directly to the Secretary until such time as the obligations are transferred 
to a new guarantor capable of meeting such obligations or until asuccessor guarantor assumes such obligations. Federal 
reimbursement and insurance payments for defaulted loans are paid from the Student Loan Insurance Fund established 
under the Higher Education Act. The Secretary is authorized, to the extent provided in advance by appropriations acts, 
to issue obligations to the Secretary of the Treasury to provide funds to make such federal payments. 

Guarantees 

If the loan is guaranteed by a guarantor in accordance with the provisions of the Higher Education Act, the 
eligible lender is reimbursed by the guarantor for a statutorily-set percentage (98% prior to July I, 2006, and 97% for 
loans first disbursed on or after July I, 2006) of the unpaid principal balance of the loan plus accrued unpaid interest on 
any loan defaulted so long as the eligible lender has properly serviced such loan; provided, however, iftheservicer which 
services such loan has been designated as an "Exceptional Performer" by the Secretary, the eligible lender is reimbursed 
by the guarantor for 100% (reduced to 99% by the 2005 HEA Amendments) of the unpaid principal balance of the 
defaulted loans plus accrued unpaid interest. Under the Higher Education Act, the Secretary enters into a guarantee 
agreement and an annually renewable supple~nental guarantee agreement (the "Guarantee Agreements") with each 
guarantor which provide for federal reimbursement for amounts paid to eligible lenders by the guarantor with respect 
to defaulted loans. 

Gtraranree Agreenienls. Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreements, the Secretary is to reimburse a guarantor for 
a statutorily-set percentage of the amounts expended in connection with a claim resulting from the death, bankruptcy or 
total and permanent disability of a borrower, the death of a student whose parent is the borrower of a PLUS Loan, or 
claims by borrowers who are unable to co~nplete the programs in which they are enrolled due to school closure or 
horrowers whose borrowing eligibility was falsely certified by the eligible institution. Such claims are not included in 

~ ~ 

calculating a guarantor's claims rate experience for federal &nbur&ment purposes. Generally, education loans are 
non-dischargeable in bankruptcy unless the bankruptcy court determines that the debt will impose an undue hardship on 
the borrower and the borrower's dependents. Further, the Secretary is to rein~burse a guarantor for any amounts paid to 
satisfy claims not resulting from death, bankruptcy, or disability subject to reduction as described below. 

The Secretary may terminate Guarantee Agreements if the Secretary detennines that termination is necessary 
to protect the federal financial interest or to ensure the continued availability of loans to student or parent borrowers. 
Upon termination ofsueh agreements, the Secretary is authorized to provide the guarantor with additional advance funds 
with such restrictions on the use of such funds as is determined appropriate by the Secretary, in order to meet the 
immediate cash needs of the guarantor, ensure the uninterrupted payment of claims, or ensure that the guarantor will 
make loans as the lender-of-last-resort. 

If the Secretary has terminated or is seeking to terminate Guarantee Agreements, or has assumed a guarantor's 
functions, notwithstanding any other provision of law: (i) no state court may issue an order affecting the Secretary's 
actions with respect to that guarantor; (ii) any contract entered into by the guarantor with respect to the administration 
of the guarantor's reserve funds or assets acquired with reserve funds shall provide that the contract is terminable by the 
Secretary upon 30 days notice to the contracting parties if the Secretary detennines that such contract includes an 
impermissible transfer of funds or assets or is inconsistent with the tenns or purposes of the Higher Education Act; and 
(iii) no provision of state law shall apply to the actions of the Secretary in terminating the operations of the guarantor. 
Finally, nohvithstanding any other provision of law, the Secretary's liability for any outstanding liabilities ofa guarantor 
(other than outstanding student loan guarantees under the Higher Education Act), the functions of which the Secretary 
has assumed, shall not exceed the fair market value of the reserves of the guarantor, minus any necessary liquidation or 
other administrative costs. 

Rein~bursemenr. The amount of a reimbursement payment made by the Secretary to a guarantor is subject to 
reduction based upon the annual claims rate of the guarantor. The annual claims rate of a guarantor is equal to the 
amount of reimbursement payments made by the Secretary to the guarantor during the previous fiscal year expressed as 



a percentageofall FFELP Loans guaranteed by that guarantor and in repayment as ofthe last day ofsuch preceding fiscal 
year. The claims experience is not accutnulated from year to year, but is determined solcly on the basis of claims in any 
one federal fiscal year compared with the original principal amount of loans in repayment at the beginning ofthat year. 

The formula for reimbursement amounts is summarized in the table below: 

CLAIMS 
RATE 

0% up to 5% 

5% up to 9% 

9% and over 

GUARANTOR 
REIMBURSEMENT 
RATE FOR LOANS 

MADE PRIOR 
TO OCTOBER 1,1993 

100% 

100% of claims up to 
5%; and 90% of claims 

5% and over 

100% of claims up to 
5%; 90% of claims 5% 

up to 9%. 80% of claims 
9% and over 

GUARANTOR REIMBURSEMENT 
RATE FOR LOANS MADE 

BETWEEN OCTOBER 1,1993 
AND SEPTEMBER 30, 1998' 

98% of claims up to 5%; and 
88% of claims 5% and over 

98% of claims up to 5%; 88% of 
claims 5% up to 9%; 78% of 

claims 9% and over 

GUARANTOR 
REIMBURSEMENT 

RATE FOR LOANS MADE 
ON OR 

AFER OCTOBER I, 1998' 

95% of claims up to 5% and 
85% of claims 5% and over 

95% of claims up to 5%, 
85% of claims 5% up to 9%; 
75% of clainls 9% and over 

Othm than studcnt loans made pursuant to lhc lender-of-last-reson prognm arstudcnt loans transferred by an insolvent yvnnlorns to which the 
amounl of reinrumcc is equal la 100%. 

The original principal amount of loans guaranteed by a yarantor which are in repayment for purposes of 
computing reimhursetnent payments to a guarantor means the original principal amount of all loans guaranteed by a 
guarantor less: (i) guarantee payments onsuch loans, (ii) the original principal amount of such loans that have bccn fully 
repaid, and (iii) the original amount of such loans for which the first principal installment payment has not become due. 

In addition, the Secretary may withhold reimbursement payments if a guarantor makes a material 
misrepresentation or fails to comply with the terms of its agreements with the Secretary or applicable federal law. A 
supplemental guarantee agreement is subject to annual renegotiation and to termination for cause by the Secretary. 

Under the Guarantee Agreements, if a payment on a FFELP Loan guaranteed by a guarantor is received after 
reimbursement by the Secretary, the Secretary is entitled to receive an equitable share of the payment. Guarantor 
retentions after payment of the Secretary's equitable share on such collections on consolidations of defaulted loans were 
reduced to 18.5% from 27% effective July 1, 1997 and for other loans were reduced from 27% to 24% (23% effective 
October 1,2003). 

The Higher Education Act provides that on or after October 1,2006, a guarantor may not charge a borrower 
collection costs in an amount in excess of 18.5% of the outstanding principal and interest of a defaulted loan that is paid 
off through consolidation by the borrower, provided that the guarantor must remit to the Secretary a portion of the 
collection charge equal to 8.5% of the outstanding principal and interest of the defaulted loan. In addition, on or after 
October 1, 2009, a guarantor must remit to the Secretary any collection fees on defaulted loans paid off through 
consolidation by the borrower in excess of 45% of tlie guarantor's total collections on default loans in any one federal 
fiscal year. 

LenderAgreements. Pursuant to most typical agreements for guarantee behveen a guarantor and the originator 
of the loan, any eligible holder of a loan insured by such a yarantor is entitled to reimbursement from such guarantor 
of any proven loss incurred by the holder of the loin resulting from default, death, permanent and total disability or 
bankruptcy of the student borrower at the rate of 98% of such loss subject to certain limitations and exceptions(97% for 
loans in default made on or after July 1,2006). Guarantors generally deem default to mean a student borrower's failure 
to make an installment payment when due or to comply with other terms of a note or agreement under circumstances in 
which the holder of the loan may reasonably conclude that the student borrower no longer intends to honortherepayment 
obligation and for which the failure persists for 270 days in the case of a loan payable in monthly installments or for 330 



days in the case of a loan payable in less frcquent installments. When a loan becomes at least 60 days past due, the 
holder is required to request default aversion assistance from the applicable guarantor in order to attempt to cure the 
dclinqutncy. When 3 lom bccomts 240 days p x t  due, the holder is required to make a final dcmand for payment of the 
lorn b ~ t h e  botro\\w. Thc holder is rcuu~rtd ~ocont~nuccolles~ionefionsun~il the loan is 270 dnvso3s1 due. At thc rime , - .~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ -~ ~~~~ ~~~~~~ 

ofpayment ofinsurance benefits, the holdermust assign to the applicable guarantorall rights accruing to the holder under 
thenote evidencing the loan. TheHighcr Education Act prohibits a guarantor From filing aclaim forrei~nbursement with 
respect to losses prior to 270 days after the loan becomes delinquent with respect to any installment thereon. 

Any holder of a loan is required to exercise due care and diligence in the servicing of the loan and to utilize 
practices which are at least as extensive and forceful as those utilized by financial institutions in the collection of other 
consumer loans. If a guarantor has probable cause to believe that the holder has made misrepresentations or failed to 
comply with the terms of its agreement for guarantee, the guarantor may take reasonable action including withholding 
payments or requiring reimbursement of funds. The guarantor may also terminate the agreement for cause upon notice 
and hearing. 

Gtrara~~torRese~ves. Each guarantor is required to establish a Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund (the "Federal 
Fund") which, together with any earnings thereon, are deemed to be property of the Unitcd States. Each guarantor is 
required to deposit into the Federal Fund any reserve funds plus reinsurance payments received from the Secretary, the 
Secretary's shareofdefault collections, insuranceprenliums, 70%ofpaymentsreceivedasadministrative cost allowance 
and other receipts as specified in regulations. A guarantor is authorized to transfer up to I80 days of cash expenses for 
normal operating expenses (other than claim payments) from the Federal Fund to the Operating Fund (described below) 
at any time during the first three years after establishment of the fund. The Federal Fund may be used to pay lender 
claims and to pay default aversion fees into the Operating Fund. A guarantor is also required to establish an operating 
fund (the "Operating Fund") which, except for funds transferred from the Federal Fund, is the property ofthe guarantor. 
A guarantor may deposit into the Operating Fund loan processing and issuance fees equal to 0.40% of the total principal 
amount of loans insured during the fiscal year, 30% of payments received after October 7, 1998 for the administrative 
cost allowance for loans insured prior to that date and the 23% retention of collections on defaulted loans and other 
recerpts as specified in regulations. An Opcrating Fund must be used for application processing, loan disbursement, 
enrollment and repayment status management, default aversion, collection activities, compliance monitoring, and other 
student financial aid related activities. For Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans disbursed after July I ,  2006, 
guarantors must collect and deposit a federal default fee to the Federal Fund equal to 1% of principal of the loan. 

The Higher Education Act required the Secretary to recall $1 billion in federal reserve funds from guarantors 
on September 1, 2002. Each guarantor was required to transfer its equitable share of the $1 billion to a restricted 
account. Each guarantor was to transfer its required share to the restricted account in equal annual installments for each 
of the five federal fiscal years 1998 through 2002. However, a guarantor with a reserve ratio equal to or less than 1 .I% 
as of September 30, 1996 may transfer its required share to the restricted account in four equal annual installments 
beginning in federal fiscal year 1999. The guarantor's required reserve ratio has been reduced from 1.1% to .25%. 

The Higher Education Act provides for an additional recall of reserves from each Federal Fund, but also 
provides for certain minimum reserve levels which are protected from recall. The Secretary is authorized to enter into 
voluntary, flexible agreements with guarantors under which various statutory and regulatory provisions can be waived. 
In addition, under the Higher Education Act, the Secretary is prohibited from requiring the return of all of a guarantor's 
reserve funds unless the Secretary determines that the return of these funds is in the best interest of the operation of the 
FFELP Loan Program, or to ensure the proper maintenance of such guarantor's funds or assets or the orderly termination 
of the guarantor's operations and the liquidation of its assets. The Higher Education Act also authorizes the Secretary 
to direct a guarantor to: (i) return to the Secretary all or a portion of its reserve fund that the Secretary determines is not 
needed to pay for the guarantor's program expenses and contingent liabilities; and (ii) cease any activities involving the 
expenditure, use or transfer of the guarantor's reserve funds or assets which the Secretary determines is a misapplication, 
misuse or improper expenditure. Under current law, the Secretary is also authorized to direct a guarantor to return to 
the Secretary all or a portion of its reserve fund which the Secretary determines is not needed to pay for the guarantor's 
program expenses and contingent liabilities. 



FFELP LOAN GUARANTOR 

Lack of Liability of Eligible FFELP Loan Guarantors 

Neither the guarantee funds nor any other assets or revenues of the eligible guarantors, including amounts 
payable to the eligible guarantor by the Secretary, as described above, are pledged as security for the 2006 Bonds or are 
available for payment of the 2006 Bonds. However, amounts paid from such assets and revenues by the eligible 
guarantors to the Corporation in fulfillment ofthe eligible guarantor's insurance obligations with respect to FFELP Loans 
are so pledged. 

The FFELP Loan Guarantor 

Northwesf Education Loan Association. NELA was organized as a private, non-profit corporation inNovember 
1978 under the General Corporation Law of the State of Washington. In accordance with its Articles of Incorporation, 
NELA (i) maintains facilities for the provision of guarantee services with respect to approved education loans made to 
or for the benefit of eligible students who are enrolled at or plan to attend approved educational institutions, (ii) 
guarantees education loans made pursuant to the Higher Education Act loan programs, and (iii) serves pursuant to 
designation as the guaranty agency for the FFELP Loan Programs in Washington and Idaho. Effective December 13, 
2004, United Student Aid Funds, Inc. ("USA Funds") became the sole corporate member of NELA. 

NELA contracts with Sallie Mae, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of SLM Corporation. NELA also contracts 
with Student Assistance Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of SLM Corporation. SLM Corporation and its 
subsidiaries are not sponsored by nor are they agencies of the United States. 

For the purpose of providing loan guarantees under the Higher Education Act, NELA has entered into various 
agreements with the Secretary (collectively, the "Federal Reinsurance Agreements"). Pursuant to the Federal 
Reinsurance Agreements, NELA serves as a "Guaranty Agency" as defined in Section 4356) of the Higher Education 
Act. Under the terns of tlie Pedcnl Ilcinsur~ncz Agreements, r?insurance is paid to NFLA by lhc Secretary in 
accordmce wit11 a form111a based on the annual default rate of loans guaranteed by NELA under the Higher Education 
Act. Under the Higher Education Act, certain reserve funds of a guarantee agency are considered the property of the 
United States and recalls of reserves may occur. 

As of September 30, 2005, NELA had total assets slightly under $32 million, including restricted assets of 
approximately $ I8 million. At Scptember 30,2005, the amount of loans guaranteed by NELA for fiscal year 2005 was 
approximately $965 million (including consolidations). 

NELA's "claims rate" represents the percentage of default claims (based on dollar value) submitted as 
reinsurance claims to the Department of Education relative to its existing portfolio of loans in repayment at the start of 
the federal fiscal year. Past claims rates were as follows: 

Past "Claim Rates" 
1.55% 

NELA will provide a copy of its most recent annual report upon receipt of a written request directed to its 
headquarters at 190 Queen Anne Ave. N., Suite 300, Seattle, WA 98109, Attention: Executive Director. 

Reimbursement 

The original principal amount of loans guarantecd by a guaranty agency which are in repayment for purposes 
ofcomputing reimbursement payments to a guaranty agency means the original principal amount ofall loans guaranteed 
by a guaranty agency less: (1) guarantee payments on such loans, (2) the original principal amount of such loans that 



have been fully repaid, and (3) the original amount of such loans for which the first principal installtnent payment has 
not become due. 

In addition, the Secretary may withhold reimbursement payments if a guaranty agency makes a material 
misrepresentation or fails to comply with the terms of its agreements with the Secretary or applicable federal law. The 
guaranty agreements are subject to annual renegotiation and to termination for cause by the Secretary. The Corporation 
has no knowledge as to whether any of the guarantee agreements will be renegotiated or, if renegotiated, whether they 
will be renegotiated on the same terms or terms different from those that are currently in effect. 

Under the guaranty agreements, if a payment on a FFELP Loan guaranteed by a guaranty agency is received 
after reimbursetnent by the Secretary, the Secretary is entitled to receive an equitable share of the payment. 

The Corporation (or any other holder of a Loan) is required to exercise due care and diligence in the servicing 
ofthe Loan and to utilize practices which are at least as extensive and forceful as those utilized by financial institutions 
in the collection of other consulner loans. If a guaranty agency has probable cause to believe that the holder has made 
misrepresentations or failed to comply with the terms o f  its ngree&ent for guarantee, the yaranty agency may take 
reasonable action including withholding payments or requiring reimbursement of funds. Prior to the end of the initial 
term (or any renewal period), termination of the agreement by the guarantor would entail notice and the opportunity for 
a hearing. The guarantor has other interimremedies, including emergency suspension, and the Secretary has independent 
remedies. 

LOAN SERVICING AND COLLECTION 

General 

The Conunission services the Education Loans owned by the Corporation, including all AlaskAdvantagc@ 
Loans, except to the extent that certain collection activities are delegated to private contractors. The Education Loan 
Notes evidencing the Education Loans will be secured in fireproofcabinets maintained at the offices ofthe Commission, 
which are also the offices of the Corporation. As described under "THE ALASKA COMMISSION ON 
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATIONITHE ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION," the Corporation does not 
liave its own independent staff; the staff of the Commission serves as staff of the Corporation. 

The Conunission presently uses education loan servicing software from Charter Accounts Systems, 1nc:to 
service the Education Loans. The purchase of the soflware included the source code, the possession of which enables 
the Commission prograniming staffto enhance reportingcapabilities and to serviceFFELP Loans and Alternative Loans 
on a single servicing platform. 

Servicing of Education Loans 

TheCommissionservicestheportfolio ofEducation Loans owned by the Corporationexceptasothenvisenoted 
above. The Corporation may, in the future, use any other entity or person to service its loans. The Corporation expects 
that all Education Loans pledged as security for payment of the Bonds will bc serviced by the Commission or another 
servicer. The servicer will maintain custody of the Education Loans pursuant to a Custody Agreement with the 
Corporation and the State. 

The Higher Education Act requires the exercise ofdue diligence in the collection ofFFELP Loans. The Higher 
Education Act defines due diligence as requiring the use ofcollection practices at least as extensive and forceful as those 
generally practiccd by financial institutionsforthe servicingandcollectionofconsumer loans. See, "MSURANCE AND 
GUARANTEES - Federal Insurance-Lender Agreements." The Higher Education Act also requires the exercise of 
reasonable care and diligence in the making and collection of FFELP Loans, and provides that the Secretary may 
disqualify an "eligible lender" (which could include the Corporation or the Trustee as a holder of FFELP Loans) from 
further federal insurance if the Secretary is not satisfied that the foregoing standards have been, or will be, met. An 
cligiblc lender may not relieve itself of its responsibility for meeting these standards by delegation of its responsibility 
to any servicing agent and; accordingly, if the servicer fails to meet such standards, the Corporation's ability to realize 
the benefits of insurance may be adversely affected. 



The Higher Education Act requires that a guaranty agency, such as NELA, ensure that due diligence will be 
exercised by an eligible lender in making and collecting FFELP Loans guaranteed by such guaranty agency and in 
collecting loans which it holds. The Commission and other sewicers of the FFELP Loans owned by the Corporation 
have established procedures and standards for due diligence to be exercised. If the Commission or any other such 
servicer does not comply with the established due diligence standards, the Corporation's ability to realize the benefits 
of any guaranty may be adversely affected. NELA is obligated under its disbursement agreement with the Commission 
to exercise due diligence and to ensure that its subcontractors exercise due diligence within the meaning of the Higher 
Education Act. 

Collection 

The Commission has authority to facilitate collection on accounts, with respect to Alternative Loans, that are 
at least one hundred eighty days 180 past due without the need to secure a judgment issued by a court using various 
administrativecollection tools includingwagegamishmentin Alaska, withholding the renewal ofan Alaskaoccupational 
license, seizure of the State of Alaska Permanent Fund Dividend, and issuing a lien against real property. 

The Alaska State Pemianent Fund (the "Pernianent Fund") is a fund held and managed by the State, which was 
established by an amendment to the Alaska Constitution in 1976. A percentage of the State's oil and gas royalties is 
deposited each year into the Permanent Fund. Currently, a portion of the Permanent Fund's earnings is paid annually 
to qualifying State residents who apply for it (the "Permanent Fund Dividend"). TheCommissionmay seize a borrower's 
Permanent Fund Dividend, if any, to satisfy the balance of a defaulted Education Loan. There can be no assurance that 
the Permanent Fund Dividend program will continue. The Permanent Fund Dividend can be eliminated or reduced by 
an amendment to the Alaska Constitution, Alaska Statutes or by failure of the Legislature to appropriate the amount 
produced by the statutory formula. 

The Commission also uses collection agencies to provide debt collection on certain accounts that are at least 
two hundred and seventy 270 days past due.   he contracts with collection agencies are contingency fee based, covering 
thecost ofpursuingcollectionofdefaultedloans, includingadditionalskip tracing, legal fees,andjudgmentenforcement. 

LOAN ORIGINATION 

General 

Followhg is a general summary of the chronology of an Alternative Loan and a FFELP Loan. While in most 
situations borrowers do not follow exactly the same flow of events from the inception of their loan to the last payment 
of their loan, and in certain cases there are nonconfonnities with reylarprocedure, this summary does provide a general 
description of the material events in the life of the Alternative Loan and FFELP Loan. 

Alternative Loans 

Loan Applicalion andPaymenf. Afler an application for an Alternative Loan is received it is reviewed for 
completeness, and a review of the applicant's credit history, compliance with any outstanding child support enforcement 
obligation, andcompliance with applicable selective sewice registration requirements is performed. Iftheapplicant does 
not have an adverse credit history, is in compliance with any outstanding child support enforcement obligation, and is 
co~npliantwithapplicableselectivesewicerequirements the AlternativeLoan isapproved. Onceapproved, theborrower 
is sent notification of the award and disbursements are sent to the school. Following the borrower's last date of 
attendance, and afler a grace period, repayment commences. 

LoanRepo~~nlenl. Provided the borrowercontinuesto make scheduled monthly payments, the borrower receives 
a monthly bill from the Commission and remains in the repayment cycle until the Alternative Loan is paid in full. At 
that time, a "paid in full" letter and the cancelled promissory note is sent to the borrower. 

Acrivi!y Prior to DeJalorill. When a borrower fails to make a payment when due, the borrower's next billing 
statement contains text reminding the borrower that the payment is delinquent. The past due status is reflected in each 
subsequent monthly billing until the Alternative Loan is brought current. If the loan was made with a co-signer, the due 
diligence notices will also be sent to the co-signer. The co-signer's obligation to repay the Alternative Loan begins when 



the borrower's obligation begins and continues even if the borrower's obligation to repay the Alternative Loan is 
discharged or canceled before the Alternative Loan, including interest, is paid in full. In addition, during the time that 
the scheduled paynient is behveen thirty (30) and one hundred eighty (180) days past due, due diligence staff make 
attempts, by telephone and rebwlar mail, to contact the borrower and co-signer in each 30-day period. If both the 
borrower and co-signer fail to respond to the contact or fail to bring the account current, or if the borrower or the 
co-signer make arrangements to bring the account current but fail to keep the arrangement, the Alternative Loan will be 
manually reviewed by staff. If the following criteria are met, the Alternative Loan is transferred to a collection agency 
for further collection action: (i) the Alternative Loan is at least hvo hundred seventy (270)' days past due; (ii) neither 
the borrower nor the co-signer has contacted the Commission to make alternate payment arrangements (or the borrower 
or co-signer has tilade alternate payment arrangements but has not kept the arrangement); (iii) the Comniission has 
exhausted all administrative measures for collection; and (iv) the borrower and the co-signer have received all 
appropriate past due notices including a demand letter. 

In addition to staff communications directed to the borrower and the co-signer, due diligence staff also inform 
the institution which the borrower attended when such borrower's loan becomes sixty (60) days or more past due. 
Institutional staff then verify or update contact information last known for the borrower (which may include information 
regarding any known employer) and also may engage in institution-based default management activities. Due diligence 
staff provide this information to the institutions on a monthly basis through paper rosters and electronic media. 

Rehabilitation. TheCommission isauthorized toestablisharehabilitation loan program for Alternative Loans 
which are two hundred seventy-one (2711, or more, days past due. Such program could allow the borrower to regain 
eligibility under the Loan Programwith an alternative repayment schedule, loan deferment, orloan forbearance. Nosuch 
program is presently approved by the Commission. 

Forbearance. The Commission provides Alternative Loan borrowers with mandatory forbearance options to 
conforni with those offered through thc FFELP Loan program. However, any additional forbearance may be granted 
at the sole discretion of the Conlmission in cases when, because of temporary hardship, a borrower is willing but unable 
to pay in accordance with the repayment schedule. Forbearance would not be authorized when the borrower is unwilling 
to pay. The borrower must request a forbearance and, for a forbearance period of more than six months in length, 
provide other documentation supporting the request. Upon receipt ofa request for forbearance of the principal payment 
from an eligible borrower, forbearance will be granted for a period of time at the discretion of the Commission, but not 
to exceed 36 months. 

FFELP Loans 

Loan Application and Payment. The borrower submits a loan application to the Commission either directly, 
or through the school or the Guarantor. The Comniission then sends the borrower a notification of the award, once the 
guarantee is secured. Loan disbursetnents are sent to the school. Following the borrower's last date of attendance, after 
a grace period of, generally, six months in length, repayment commences. 

Loan Repoy~nertt. Borrowers are generally billed and make payment on a monthly schedule, and remain in the 
repayment cycle until the loan is paid in full. At that time, a "paid in full" letter, and the cancelled promissory note, are 
sent to the borrower. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Wohlforth, Johnson, Brecht, Cartledge &Brooking, PC., Anchorage, Alaska, Bond Counsel, 
based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, ruling and court decisions and assuming, among other things, 
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the 2006 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. However, interest on the 2006 Bonds is a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and 
corporate alternative minimum taxes. 



Bond Counsel is also of the opinion based on existing laws of the State as enacted and construed that interest 
on the 2006 Bonds is excluded from taxation by the State except for inheritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers 
by or in contemplation of death and except to the extent that inclusion of said interest in computing the alternative 
minimum tax under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") may affect the corresponding 
provisions of the State income tax. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions, and requirements relatingto the exclusion from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the 2006 Bonds. The Corporation has covenanted to 
comply with certain restrictions designed to assure that interest on the 2006 Bonds will not be included in federal gross 
income. Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the 2006 Bonds being included in federal gross 
income, possibly from the date of issuance of the 2006 Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with 
these covenants. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken 
(or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the 2006 Bonds may adversely affect 
the tax status of interest on the 2006 Bonds. 

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the2006 Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, such 2006 Bonds 
may othenviseaffect a Bondholder's federal or state tax liability. The nature and extent of these other tax consequences 
will depend upon the Bondholder's particular tax status and the Bondholder's other items of income or deduction. Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the 
accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2006 Bonds. 

A description of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in APPENDIX VI hereto and such opinion 
is to be delivered with the 2006 Bonds. 

Original Issue Premium 

The initial public offering price for the 2006.4-2 Bonds is greater than the amount payable on such 2006A-2 
Bonds at maturity. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion with respect to the treatment of this excess. Investors should 
seek advice thereon from their own tax advisors. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Corporation has appointed U.S. BankNational Association, Seattle, Washington, as successor Trustee for 
the 2006 Bonds. The Trustee is to carry out such duties as are assigned to it under the Indenture and the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate. 

The Trustee did not parlicipatc in the preparation of this Official Statement and makes no representations 
concerning the 2006 Bonds, the collateral or any other matter stated in this Official Statement. The Trustee has no duty 
or obligation to pay the 2006 Bonds from its own funds, assets or corporate capital or to make inquiry regarding, or 
investigate the use of amounts disbursed from the Trust Estate. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

In order to assist theunderwriter in complying with Rule 15~2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the "Rule"), the Corporation will agree to provide continuing disclosure for the benefit of the registered 
owners and beneficial owners ofthe 2006 Bonds, by executinganddeliveringacertificate forthe benefit ofthe registered 
owners and beneficial owners of the 2006 Bonds (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate"). The Corporation will 
undertake to provide each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository (the "Repository"), and 
if and when one is established, the Alaska State Inforn~ation Depository, on an annual basis on or before 215 days after 
the end of each fiscal year for the Corporation, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30,2006, the financial and 
operating data concerning the Corporation outlined in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The annual financial and 
operating data will include (i) the Corporation's audited financial statements and (ii) infomiation with respect to the 
Education Loans hcld pursuant to the Indenture (in a format similar to that provided in th~s  Ofiicid Sht~xicnt under the 
captions ' PLAN OF FINANCE - Characteristics ofEducation Loans" and ' PLAN 01: I-INAWE - Loan Delinquencies 
and Defaults"). In addition, thc Corpontion will undertake for the bencfit ofthe rugistcrcd ownersand beneficial o\\ncn: 



ofthe 2006 Bonds, to provide to each such Repository or to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, and to the State 
Information Depository, in a timely manner, the event notices described in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

The sole and exclusive remedy for breach or default under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate is an action 
to compel specific performance of the undertakings of the Corporation, and no person, including a registered owner or 
beneficial owner ofthe 2006 Bonds, may recover monetary damages thereunder under any circumstances. A breach or 
default under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture. In 
add~tlon, ifall or any part ofthe Rule ccascs to be in effect for any reason, then the infomntion required to be providcd 
undcr thc.Cont~nuinp Disclosure Certificate. 1nsofar3s the provision ofthc Rule no longcr in effcct required the provision 
of such infonnation, shall no longer be required to be provided 

The Corporation reserves the right to make all filings pursuant to the terms of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission Interpretive Letter dated September 7,2004, 
with wu?v.disclosureusa.org. 

The Corporation has never failed to comply in any material respect with any previous undertaking with respect 
to the Rule to provide annual financial inforniation or notices of material events. 

ABSENCE O F  LITIGATION 

There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or threatened restraining or enjoining the 
issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the 2006 Bonds or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the 2006 
Bonds or any proceedings of the Corporation taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof or the pledge or 
application of any moneys or securities provided for the payment of 2006 Bonds or the existence or powers of the 
Corporation. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

First Southwest Company, Dallas,Texas, has been retained by thecorporation to serveas financial advisorwith 
respect to the 2006 Bonds. The financial advisor has assisted the Corporation in matters relating to the planning, 
strucluring and issuance of the 2006 Bonds and various other debt-related matters. 

LEGALITY 

The 2006 Bonds are subject toapproval ofvalidity by Wohlforth, Johnson, Brecht, Cartledge & Brooking, PC., 
Anchorage, Alaska, Bond Counsel. Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for the Corporation by the State 
Attorney General. Certain legal matterswill be passed upon for the Undenvriter by Ballard Spahr Andrew & Ingersoll, 
LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS O F  THE CORPORATION 

The financial statements of the Corporation included in this Oficial Statement as APPENDIX I have been 
audited by Elgee Rehfeld Mertz, LLC, Independent Auditors, to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report 
thereon. 

LEGAL INVESTMENT IN ALASKA 

The Act provides, subject to any applicable federal requirement or limitation, that the bonds of the Corporation 
are securities in which public officers and bodies of the State, municipalities, insurance companies, insurance 
associations, other persons canying on an insurance business, banks, bankers, trust companies, savings banks, savings 
associations, building and loan associations, investment companies, other persons canying on a banking business, 
administrators, guardians, executors, trustees, other fiduciaries, and other persons who are authorized to invest in bonds 
or other obligations of the State, may properly and legally invest funds including capital in their control or belonging to 
them. The Act further states that, notwithstanding any other provisions of law, the bonds of the Corporation are also 
securities that may be deposited with and may be received by public officers and bodies of the State and municipalities 
for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the State is now or may be authorized. 



PLEDGE AND AGREEMENT O F  THE STATE 

In the Act, the State pledges to, and agrees with, registered owners of bonds issued by the Corporation that the 
State will not limit or alter the rights and powers vested in the Corporation under Alaska Statutcs, Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990, to fulfill the terns of a contract made by the Corporation with the bondholders or in any way impair 
the rights and remedies of the bondholders until the bonds, together with the interest on them with interest on unpaid 
installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in connection with an action or proceeding by or on behalf of the 
bondholders, are fully met and discharged. In accordance with the Act, the Corporation has included this pledge and 
agreement of the State in the Indenture. 

RATINGS 

The 2006 Bonds will be issued as Class I Bonds under the Indenture, and it is expected that the 2006 Bonds 
will be rated upon issuance " A M "  by Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") and "AAA" by Standard & Poor's, a division ofMcGraw- 
Hill Companies, Inc. ("Standard & Poor's"). Under the terns ofthe Indenture, the Corporation has the ability to change 
rating agencies at its discretion and no assurance can be given that the Corporation will continue to request ratings of 
the 2006 Bonds from either of the ratings agencies that originally provided a rating for the 2006 Bonds. The Indenture, 
however, requires that the 2006 Bonds be rated by at least one nationally recognized rating agency and that one of such 
rating agencies be either Standard & Poor's or Moody's. 

Any explanation of the significance of such ratings by Fitch may be obtained from Fitch at One State Street 
Plaza, New York, New York 10004, (212) 908-0500, and any explanation of such ratings by Standard & Poor's may be 
obtained from Standard & Poor's at55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, (212) 438-2124. Certain information 
and materials concerning the 2006 Bonds and the Corporation, some of which have not been included in this Official 
Statement, were furnished to such rating agencies by the Corporation and others. There is no assurance that any such 
rating will be maintained for any given period of titne or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely if, 
in the judgment of the applicable rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withd&al 
of any such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price or marketability of the applicable 2006 Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Undenvriter has agreed to purchase the 2006 Bonds at an aggregate price of $86,710,910, being the par 
amount thereof plus an original issue premium of $2,158,660 and less an undenvriter's discount of $447,750. The 
purchase contracts provide that the Undemiter is not obligated to purchase any 2006 Bonds on their date of issuance 
unlcss all such 2006 Bonds are purchased. The initial public offering prices or yields set forth on the cover page hereof 
may he changed by the Undenvriter from time to time without notice. The 2006 Bonds may be offered and sold to 
certain dealers (including the Undemiter and other dealers depositing such 2006 Bonds into investment trusts) at prices 
or  yields lower than the public offering prices or yields shown on the cover. Although there can be no assurance that 
any market will commenceorbemaintained, the Undemiterexpects to make amarket in the 2006Bonds after theinitial 
public offering. It is likely that any market that develops will be at prices different from the initial offering prices or 
yields. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

All quotations from, and summaries and explanations of, the State, the Act, the Higher Education Act, the 
Indenture (including supplements thereto) and any other documents and agreements contained herein do not purport to 
be complete, and reference should be made to said laws, documents and agreements for full and complete statements of 
their provisions. The Appendices attached hereto are a part of this Official Statement. Copies, in reasonable quantity, 
of the Indenture and the other documents and agreements described herein may be obtained upon request directed to 
Alaska Student Loan Corporation, Attn: Executive Officer, P.O. Box 110505, Juneau, Alaska 9981 1-0505, or to the 
Trustee, U S .  BankNational Association, 1420 Fifth Avenue, 7th Floor, Seattle, Washington 98101, Atm: Corporate 
Tmst Department. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters ofopinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are 
intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or 
agreement between the Corporation and the purchasers or registered owners of the 2006 Bonds. 



EXECUTION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been authorized by the Corporation. 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORFORATlON 

By: Is/ Diane Barrans 
Executive Officer 
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Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Alaska Student Loan Corporation (Corporation) fimctions as a lender and as a 
partner with the Alaska Commission on ~ostsecondary Education in servicing its 
education loans. The following is a discussion and analysis of the Corporation's financial 
performance, providing an overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2005. This discussion and analysis contains other supplementary information in addition 
to the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2005. Please read it in 
conjunction with the Corporation's financial statements and the notes to financial 
statements, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

The Corporation's total assets at June 30, 2005 are approximately $955.5 million, 
a decrease of $25.1 million or 2.6% from June 30,2004. 

The Corporation's long-term debt increased by $6.4 million during fiscal year 
2005, which represents the net difference between new issues and payments of 
outstanding debt. During the year the Corporation issued bonds in the amount of 
$88.3 million. 

The assets of the Corporation exceed its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 
$168.9 million (reported as net assets), a decrease in net assets of $82.6 million or 
33% over June 30,2004. 

The Corporation's education bans receivable is $591.1 million at year-end, an 
increase of $13.9 million during the year. 

The Corporation's operating revenue is $34 million, a decrease of $4.7 million 
during the year. 

The Corporation's interest expense was $22.8 million during the Far.  

The Corporation's expenses related to operations was $10.3 million during fiscal 
year 2005. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Corporation is an enterprise fund of the State of Alaska. As such, the Corporation's 
financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States as applied on an accrual basis. Under the accrual method of 
accounting, the same method used by private sector businesses, revenues are recognized 
in the period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period in which 
they are incurred. Thc three basic financial statements of the Corporation are as follows: 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Balance Sheets - This statement presents information regarding the Corporation's assets, 
liabilities and net assets. Net assets represent the total amount of assets less the total of 
liabilities. The Balance Sheets classify assets, liabilities, and net assets as current, norr 
current, and restricted. 

Statement of Revenues. Exoenses, and Changes in Net Assets - This statement presents 
the Corporation's interest income, costs of funds, operating expenses, and changes in net 
assets for the fiscal year. 

Statement of Cash Flows - This statement presents cash flows from operations, norr 
capital financing capital, and investing activities. The Corporation presents its cash 
flows statement using the direct method of reporting operating cash flows. 

Financial Analysis 

The following condensed financial information is derived from the Corporation's 
financial statements and reflects the Corporation's changes during the fiscal year: 

Assets: 
Current assets 
Restricted assets 

Total assets 
Liabilities:. 

Current liabilities payable 
from unrestricted assets 

Current liabilities payable 
fiom restricted assets 

Non-current liabilities payable 
from restricted assets 

Total liabilities 
Net assets: 

Restricted net assets 
Umestricted net assets 

Total net assets 

Percentage 
Change 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Corporation's education loan revenue bonds to fund loans originated in the 2005- 
2006 school year will be issued in July 2005, verses the prior year's issuance which was 
done in June 2004, resulting in a lower investment balance at June 30, 2005 than that of 
June 30,2004. 

Origination fees in the amount $6.5 million were used to cover loan losses and as a result 
the deferred credit account under the current liabilities section is reduced. 

The Corporation issued the 2005 State Project Revenue bonds in the amount of $88.3 
million to pay for $85 million of projects for the State. This payment is a return of 
capital provided by the State for the creationof the Corporation. Restricted net assets 
decreased from the prior year as a result of the return of capital payable declared based on 
the statutory formula. These payments are payable to the State in fiscal year 2006. 

The Corporation's 2005 State Project Trust created in the current year required less 
collateral than expected leaving a higher balance of unrestricted investments for program 
expenditures than that of the prior year. 

Percentage 
2005 2004 Change 

Operating revenue-loan interest income $ 33,996,765 38,657,784 (12%) 
Operating expenses (1 6,087,910) (13,821,508) (1 6%) 
Non-operating expense, net (12,416,677) (1 5,793,363) 21% 
Income before retum of capital 5,492,178 9,042,913 (39%) 
Retum of capital 
Decrease in net assets 
Net assets- beginning 
Net assets- ending 

The Corporation provides interest rate reductions or rebates to borrowers with qualified 
loans (see ~ la sk~dvan tage@ Borrower Benefit Program below). Loan interest income 
decreased as more loans became eligible for benefits offered under the program. 

Interest income from invcstments, which is repoaed as a nomoperating item, increased 
$5.9 million from the previous year as a result of higher market interest rates. 

The return of capital represents payments to the State of Alaska as allowed for by statute. 
An annual payment as determined by the Corporation's Board of Directors is based on 
the amount of the Corporation's income before return of capital payment during the fiscal 
year ending two years before the end of the fiscal year in which the payment is to be 
made. Additionally, the Corporation ssued bonds in fiscal years 2005 and 2004 to 
finance projects of the State of Alaska. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Corporation Activities and Conditions Affecting Financial Position 

The Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education (Commission) administers the 
Corporation's programs. Operating cxpenditures of the Commission are subject to 
budgetary appropriation. The Corporation reimburses the Commission for such 
expenditures that relate to the program administration and are permitted under the bond 
indentures of the Corporation. 

The purpose of the Corporation's programs is to lower costs for Alaskans pursuing 
education and training at a postsecondary level and for other qualified individuals 
attending postsecondary institutions in the State. 

Historically, the Corporation has provided various alternative education loan programs 
under the umbrella title of the Alaska Student Loan Program. The Corporation modified 
and broadened its program offerings beginning in the 2002-2003 academic year by 
implementing a successor program, the ~ l a s k ~ d v a n t a g e ~  Loan Program, which includes 
Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) loans governed by the Higher 
Education Act. The Corporation also replaced its fixed rate alternative loan, the Alaska 
Student Loan, with a variable rate alternative loan, the Alaska Supplemental Education 
Loan (ASEL). 

To accommodate FFELP Icnding, the Commission secured the status of "cligible lender" 
under the Higher Education Act and entered into various agreements with Northwest 
Education Loan Association, to serve as the Commission's "eligible guarantor" under the 
Higher Education Act. Loans authorized under the Higher Education Act which the 
Corporation is funding include Subsidized Stafford, Unsubsidized Stafford, and PLUS 
loans. The Higher Education Act provides for federal (i) insurance or reinsurance of 
cligible loans, (ii) interest subsidy payment to eligible lenders with respect to certain 
Subsidized Stafford loans, and (iii) special allowance payments representing an 
additional subsidy paid by the Secretary of the US.  Department of Education to holders 
of eligible loans. For a loan loss to be eligible for reimbursement to a lender by a 
guarantor the loan must be serviced according to standards set by federal statutes and 
regulations. 

The interest rate on FFELP loans is variable, reset annually each July 1. Subsidized 
Stafford and unsubsidized Stafford loans which are in in-school, grace, and deferment 
periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-bill rate plus 1.7%, with a 
maximum rate of 8.25%. Subsidized Stafford and unsubsidized Stafford loans in all 
other periods bear interest.at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-bill rate plus 2.3%, with a 
maximum rate of 8.25%. PLUS loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T- 
bill rate plus 3.1%, with a maximum of 9%. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

In April 2004, the Corporation began offcnng a new federal consolidation loan for any 
borrowcr already having a loan with the Corporation. Federal consolidation loans bear 
interest at a rate equal to the weighted average of the interest rates of the loans 
consolidated, rounded to the nearest higher one-eight of I%, with a maximum rate of 
8.25%. 

The interest rate for the ASEL is adjusted annually on or after June 1 and effective for 
twelve months beginning July 1. According to State statute, the variable interest rates are 
to be based on the bond equivalent rate of 91-day Tbill auctioned at the final auction 
held before June 1 of the loan year plus up to 2.8% and are to be capped at 8.25%. 

In fiscal year 2003, the Corporation offered a new supplemental consolidation loan to 
borrowers who had two or more fixed rate Alaska Student Loans. The supplemental 
consolidation loan criteria was expanded to include any supplemental loan of the 
Corporation except the Family Education Loan. The supplemental consolidation loans 
accrue interest at fixed rates between 5.8% and 6%. 

The AlaskAdvantagea Program was structured to provide eligible borrowers with low 
cost financial aid options. It encourages students to take advantage of federal aid 
resources to maximize their grant and lowest cost loan options prior to tapping into 
alternative loan sources. The federal loan program allows borrowers to create a serialized 
note with a given lender. 

Between fiscal years 2004 and 2005, the Corporation saw a 5.6% increase in loan 
originations and continues to have the highest volume of federal loan awards in the state 
as compared to other federal education loan providers in Alaska. The Corporation's 
federal loan originations, excluding federal consolidation loans, increased by 29.7% 
between fiscal years 2004 and 2005. $4.3 million of federal consolidation loans were 
originated in fiscal year 2005 as compared to $448,639 in fiscal year 2004. 

AlaskAdvantagea Financing: 

To facilitate financing the program, the Corporation will issue $58.3 million of tax- 
exempt, limited obligation, education loan revenue bonds under the 2002 Master Trust 
Indenture on July 28,2005. 

Alask~dvanta~e@ Borrower Benefits: 

Under the AlaskAdvantagea Program the Corporation's Board of Directors has approvcd 
various loan bcnefit features that provide incentives and rewards to borrowers who 
participate in the program. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Under the ~ l a s k ~ d v a n t a ~ e @  Borrower Benefit Program, effective July 1, 2005 through 
June 30,2006, borrowers with qualified loans held by the Corporation will be eligible for 
certain interest rate reductions or rebates on any such loan. 

Borrower Benefit Program offerings are subject to the availability of funds and annual 
modifications or termination by the Corporation at its discretion provided, however, that 
any changes do not adversely effect the credit rating of certain bonds issued by the 
Corporation. 

Contacting the Corporation's Financial Manaeernent 

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the Corporation's finances and to demonstrate the Corporation's 
accountability for its assets. If you have any questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Finame Officer of the Corporation at (907) 
465-6757. 



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

9309 Glacier Highway, Suite B200 . Juneau, Alaska 99801 
907.789.3178 . FAX 907.789.7128 . www,errncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Directors 
Alaska Student Loan Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(Corporation), a component unit of the State of Alaska, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2005, and 
2004, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
management of the Corporation. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on o w  audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govern~nent Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the 
financial position of the Alaska Student Loan Corporation as of June 30, 2005, and 2004, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 6,  is not a required part of the basic 
financd statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

In accordance with Governn~ent Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 9, 
2005, on our consideration of the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

September 9,2005 



Assets 
Current assets: 

Investments (note 3) 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total current assets 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Balance Sheets 

June 30,2005 and 2004 

Restricted assets: 
Cash (note 3) 
Investments (note 3) 
Loans receivable (note 4) 
Less allowance for: 

Doubtful loans (note 5) 
Forgiveness (note 6) 
Net loans receivable 

Accrued interest receivable, net of forgiveness allowance c 
$725,122 and $708,964 in 2005 and 2004, respectively 

Due from US.  Department of Education 
Bond issuance cost, net of accummulated amortization of 

$3,886,007 and $4,742,811 in 2005 and 2004, respectively 6,113,490 
Total restricted assets 91 3,400,255 
Total assets $ 955,494,500 

(Continued) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Balance Sheets 

June 30,2005 and 2004 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities: 
Current liabilities payable from unrestricted assets: 

Accounts payable 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants outstanding 
Deferred credit (note 2) 
Return of capital payment declared (note 11) 

Total current unrestricted liabilities 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Accounts payable 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants outstanding (note 4) 
Return of capital paymcnt declared (note 11) 
Bond interest payable 
Current portion of arbitrage rebate payable (note 8) 
Current portion of bonds payable (note 7) 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Arbitrage rcbate payable (note 8) 
Bonds payable, net of bond premiums/discounts (note 7) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Commitments and contingencies (note 11) 

Net assets: 
Restricted net assets 
Unrestricted net assets (note 2) 

Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Statements of Revenue, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Assets 

Years ended June 30.2005 and 2004 

Operating revenue - interest income - student loans 

Operating expenses: 
Provision for: 

Loan losses (note 5) 
Forgiveness (note 6) 

Operations 
Total operating expenses 
Operating income 

Nonoperating revenue (expense), excluding special item: 
Interest income from investments 11,196,953 5,3 18,342 
Interest expense (22,827,011) (19,651,902) 
Arbitrage rebate 54,994 (301,993) 
Amortization of bond issuance costs (841,613) (1,157,810) 

Net nonoperating cxpense (12,416,677) (15,793,363) 
Income bcforc rctum of capital ("statutory net income") 5,492,178 9,042,913 

Retum of capital (note 11) (88,100,000) (80,600,000) 
Change in net assets (82,607,822) (7 1,557,087) - 

Total net assets-bcgiming 
Total net assets-ending 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30,2005 and 2004 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Principal repayments rcceived on loans 
Interest received on loans 
Other cash receipts 
Loans originated 
Cash paid to Alaska Commission on Postsecondary 

Education for operating expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 
Bond issue costs 
Interest paid on bonds 
Principal payments on bonds 

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received on investments 
Investments matured 
Investments purchased 

Net cash provided by (used for) invcsting activities 

Cash flows from capital activities: 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 
Bond issue costs 
Interest paid on bonds 
Principal payments on bonds 
Return of capital payments 

Net cash provided by capital activities 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash at beginning of period 

Cash at end of period 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

3,717,962 4,879,268 

$ 1,486.71 1 3,717,962 

(Continued) 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended June 30,2005 and 2004 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Increase in net loans receivable 
Increase in net accrued interest receivable on loans 
Increase in other assets 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in due to State of Alaska 
Decrease in warrants outstanding 
Decrease in deferred credit 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Summary of noncash transactions that affect 
recognized assets and liabilities: 

Provision for loan loss and forgiveness 
Provision for lost interest and forgiveness 
Write-off of uncollectible loans 
Forgiveness granted - principal 
Forgiveness granted - interest 
Bond premium (discount) amortization 
Bond issuance cost amortization 
Deferred credit used for loan loss 
Deferred credit amortization 
Interest capitalization 
Unrealized loss on investments 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2005 and 2004 

(1) Authorizing Legislation and Organization 

The Alaska Student Loan Corporation (Corporation), a component unit of the State of Alaska, was created 
in 1987 by an act of the State of Alaska Legislature (Legislature). The purpose of the Corporation is to 
provide low-interest education loans to Alaskans. The Corporation is authorized, with certain limitations, to 
issue its own bonds and other obligations in such principal amounts as, in the opinion of the Corporation, will 
be necessary to provide sufficient funds for canying out its purpose. All obligations so issued shall not be 
deemed to constitute a debt of the State of Alaska (State). 

The State Govemor appoints the Corporation's Board of Directors and the staff of the Alaska Commission 
on Postsecondary Education (Commission) administers the Corporation. The Commission's budget provides 
for reimbursement from the Corporation for operating and capital expenses. The Commission's budget is 
subject to review and approval from both the executive and legislative branches of the State. 

The State has provided education loans through various programs since 1968. Prior to the creation of the 
Corporation, substantially all such loans were recorded in the Scholarship Revolving Loan Fund and Teacher 
Scholarship Loan Fund (Funds) of the State. In April 1988, by act of the Legislature, the assets, liabilities, 
and equities of the Funds were transferred to the Corporation effective December 30, 1987. 

Loans are financed through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds or with recycled principal and interest 
repayments. The bnds outstanding are payable primarily from interest and principal repayments on the 
financed loans as specified in the underlying resolutions authorizing the sale of bonds. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Fund Accounting 

The financial activities of the Corporation, which are restricted by the Corporation's bond indentures 
and the requirements of the Legislature, are recorded in various funds as specified in such 
instruments or necessitated by appropriation requirements or sound fiscal management. The funds 
are combined for financial statement purposes and there are no significant interfund transactions. 
The Corporation's funds are considered to be enterprise funds for financial reporting purposes with 
revenues recognized when earned and expenses when incurred. 

(b) Standard Application 

As allowed by the Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20 (GASB 20), 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governrnenral Entilies 
Thar Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Corporation has elected not to apply Statements and 
Lnterpretations issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board after November 30, 1989. 

(c) Fiscal Year 

The Corporation's fiscal year begins July I and ends June 30, consistent with the State's fiscal year. 
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(d) Managenrent Estinrates 

In preparing the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates. The 
more significant accounting and reporting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying 
financial statements are discussed below. 

(e) Loans 

Loans represent education loans issued through the Alask4.dvantage@ Loan Programs, which 
include Alaska Supplemental Loans, Teacher Education Loans (TEL), Family Education Loans 
(FEL), (collectively referred to as supplemental loans), and federally guaranteed Stafford, PLUS 
and Consolidated lorn. The terms of the loans vary depending on the year of inception and loan 
type. Interest accrues at fixed and variable rates ranging from 2.77% to 9% and 'is generally 
determined by loan type and issue date. The Corporation offers borrower benefits, which reduce 
the interest costs for eligible borrowers. The borrower benefit offerings are approved by the 
Corporation Board of Directors annually and may vary from year-to-year. 

A borrower of TEL can obtain up to 100% forgiveness of loan principal and interest if the borrower 
teaches in rural Alaska for periods specified by the program. 

For certain supplemental loans awarded prior to July 1, 1987, borrowers can obtain forgiveness for 
up to 50% of loan principal and interest if the borrower resides in Alaska for specified periods upon 
successful completion of the program of study for which the loan was awarded. 

( f )  Allo~vance for Dorrbtfrrl Loans 

The allowance for doubtful loans represents management's estimate, based on experience, of all 
loans that will ultimately be uncollectible. The Corporation charges off supplemental loans to the 
allowance upon death, bankruptcy as allowed by law, total disability of the borrower, or when a 
payment has not been received for five years on loans not in deferment. 

(g) Interest on Education Loans 

Interest on education loans is accrued when earned. For federally guaranteed subsidized loans, 
interest from the disbursement date of the loan until a date that is six months after the student 
withdraws from school (plus any authorized deferment periods) is billed to and paid by the U.S. 
Department of Education under the Federal Family Education Loan Program. The borrower pays 
interest subsequent to that date. For non-subsidized federally guaranteed loans and for all 
supplemental loans issued after June 30, 2002 interest from the disbursement date is paid by the 
borrower. 

Certain supplemental loans are non-interest bearing while the borrower is completing eligible studies. 
All state supplemental loans issued prior to July 1, 1996 are non-interest bearing during approved 
periods of deferment and postponement. Loans issued prior to July 1, 1987 are also non-interest 
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bearing during a one-year gace period following completion of studies and a six-month sub-grace 
period following an approved deferment. Non-interest bearing loans are approximately $22,774,663 
at June 30,2005. 

Historical rates are used to determine the allowance for doubtful interest. The allowance for 
doubtful interest is approximately $20,500,000 and $21,500,000 as of June 30, 2005 and 2001, 
respectively. The provision for doubtful interest is a reduction of interest income and was 
approximately $3,444,000 and $1,340,000 for the years ended June 30,2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Deferred Credit 

Borrowers who received supplemental loans after June 30, 1994 were charged an origination fee of 
1%, 3% or 5%, generally determined by loan issue date. Its purpose is to offset loan losses due to 
death, disability, bankruptcy or default of borrowers charged the origination fee. The origination fee 
is recognized as revenue using the straight-line method equal to the loan repayment period and 
assumes repayment begins the year following origination. The allowance for doubtful loans has 
been reduced by the unamortized deferred credit. 

Allo~vance for Forgiveness 

The allowance for forgiveness represents management's estimate, based on experience of the loan 
forgiveness that will ultimately be applied for and granted. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs include underwriters' fees and other costs incurred in connection with the 
issuance of bonds and are amortized using the straight-line method. 

Bond Discorints/Prert~irrrr,s and Deferred Antormts on Refundings 

Bond discounts, premiums and deferred amounts on refundings are amortized using the straight-line 
method. 

Inconte Taxes 

The Corporation, as a government inshumentality, is exempt from federal and state income taxes. 

I~zvestments 

The Corporation carries all investments at fair value. 

Unrestricted Net Assets 

Unrestricted net assets represent assets of the Corporation not pledged as collateral for specific 
bond indentures. GASB Statement No. 34 requires assets restricted by statute to be reported as 
unrestricted. Assets restricted by statute are approximately $3 1,200,000.and $29,200,000 at June 30, . . 
2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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(3) Cash and lnvestments 

(a) Cash 

Cash at June 30, 2005 is $1,486,711 consisting mainly of deposits held in hust. Cash is restricted by 
bond resolutions. 

The fair value as cf June 30, 2005 of the Corporation's investments, a majority of which are 
restricted by bond resolutions and statutory agreements, is shown below: 

Restricted $ 402,159,490 
Unrestricted 

Restricted investments include amounts specifically designated for financing education loans. At 
June 30,2005 the investments available for f m c i n g  education loans total $42,086,687. 

The Corporation invests in the State's General Fund and Other Non Segregated Investments Pool 
(GeFONSI). GeFONSI consists of investments in the State's Short-term and Intermediate-term 
Fixed Income Pools. 

The fair value as of June 30, 2005 of debt security investments by contractual maturity is shown 
below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have 
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalty. 

Interest earning 
investment contracts1 

U.S. Treasury securities 
US. Government 

agencies securities 
Corporate bonds 
Asset-backed securities 
Money market funds 
Total investments 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 

Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10 Total 

' Thir includer repurchase agreements and investment contracts with third-panics. 
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(c) Inveslmenl Policies 

The Corporation utilizes different investment strategies depending upon the nature and intended use 
of the assets being invested. All funds are classified as pledged or non-pledged and are managed 
either by staff or by external investment managers. All of these factors determine the applicable 
investment guidelines used when making investment decisions. The Corporation's investment 
policies provide investment guidelines for non-pledged funds. 

The following securities are eligible for investment under the Corporation's investment 
policies: 

Debt instruments issued by the U.S. Government, its Agencies and Insh'umentalities. 

Investment contracts and repurchase agreements with a corporation or other entity which has 
a long-term debt rating of at least A3 by Standard and Poor's (S&P) or A- by Moody's and 
where collateral is maintained at a minimum level of 102% when using direct obligations of the 
US.  Treasury or 103% when using allowable agency securities. 

Guaranteed investment contracts with a corporation or other entity which has a long-term debt 
rating of at least A3 by Standard and Poor's (S&P) or A- by Moody's. The conhact maturity 
is limited to five years or less. . Investments in a money fund rated AAAm or AAAm-G or better by Standard & Poor's and 
Aaa by Moody's. 

In addition to the above guidelines, the following apply to non-pledged funds managed by an external 
investment manager: 

General obligations of any state or municipality with a published rating of A or better, and debt 
insuuments that have been issued by domestic entities rated A or above by both S&P and 
Moody's or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency, and dollar 
denominated debt instruments of comparable quality issued by non-domestic entities. 

Government National Mortgage Association, the Federd National Mortgage Association or the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation mortgage backed instruments as well as met -  
backed securities. 

Certificates of deposit and term deposits of United States Domestic financial institutions which 
are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation provided that such entities have the 
highest credit rating assigned by a nationally recognized rating service, and which may be 
readily sold in the secondary market at prices reflecting fair value. 

Short-term domestic corporate promissory notes (commercial paper) payable in United States 
dollars of the highest rating assigned by a nationally recognized rating service. 
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(d) Concentration Risk 

Concentration risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Corporation's investment in a 
single issuer. Concentration limits are not established in the bond indentures and goveming 
agreements for pledged investments. The Corporation's policies set out maximum concentration 
limits for all investment contracts and for non-pledged funds managed by an external investment 
manager. 

For investment contracts, the diversification standard is twefold and applies to each bond indenture 
individually. First, investment agreement providers will be limited to providing investments to the 
lesser of $50,000,000 or 25% of total financial assets. Second, no investment agreement provider 
may hold more than 25% of the total capital reserve fund investments. These diversification 
standards are not applicable to direct purchase investments or to acquisition funds that will be 
reduced to a maximum of $50,000,000 in the first six months of the agreement. 

Concentration to any one issuer, of non-pledged funds managed by an external investment manager, 
other than securities of the US. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities, is limited to 5% of the 
portfolio's market value at the time of purchase. 

Pledged funds are invested according to the terms outlined in their respective indentures or 
governing agreements, which generally mandate the purchase of relatively short-term, high quality 
fixed income securities. In those instances, if any, where an indenture or governing agreement is 
less restrictive than the Corporation's investment policies for non-pledged funds, the investment will 
be made in accordance with the more restrictive investment policy. 

(e) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security or backer. The Corporation mitigates 
its credit risk by limiting investments to those permitted in the investment policies, diversifying the 
investment portfolio, and pre-qualifying fim with which the Corporation administers its investment 
activities. Additionally, for funds managed by external investment managers, the weighted average 
quality rating of the portfolio must be maintained at AA- or better as determined by Standard and 
Poor's or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency. 

The credit quality ratings of the Corporation's investments as of June 30, 2005 as described by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, are shown below. U.S. Treasury securities and 
securities of agencies and corporations that are explicitly guaranteed by the US. government in the 
amount of $43,864,681 are not considered to have credit risk and therefore, are not included in the 
summary. 
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Investment 
Moody's S&P Fair Value 

Securities of US.  Government agencies and comorations: 
Aaa 
Aal 
Aa2 
Aa2 
Aa2 
Aa3 
Aa3 
A1 
A2 

Money market funds: 
Aaa 

Unrated investments: 
Investment contracts 
Asset-backed securities 

A A A 
AA- 
AA+ 
A A 
A+ 
A+ 
A 
A 
A 

Money market funds 

( Custodial Credit Risk 

The Corporation assumes levels of custodial credit risk for its deposits with financial institutions, 
bank investment agreements, and investments. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in 
the event of a bank failure, the Corporation's deposits may not be returned. For an investment, 
custodial credit risk 6 the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Corporation 
will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The Corporation has not established a formal custodial credit risk 
policy for its investments. 

As of June 30, 2005 the Corporation's bank balance of $1,374,599 is fully covered by depository 
insurance. The Corporation had no investments registered in the name of a counterparty. 

(g) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of investments will decline as a result of changes 
in general interest rates. For non-pledged investments, the Corporation mitigates interest rate risk by 
stnrcturing its investment's maturities to me t  cash requirements, thereby avoiding the need to sell 
securities in the open market prior to maturity. For investments held in trust, investment maturities 
are structured to meet cash requirements as outlined in its bond indentures and contractual and 
statutory agreements. 
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Q Modifed Duration 

Modified duration estimates the sensitivity of an investment to interest rate changes. The following 
table shows the Corporation's pledged and non-pledged investments with their weighted average 
modified duration as of June 30,2005 by investment type: 

Investment 
Fair Value 

Investment contracts $ 52,433,500 
U.S. Treasury securities 43,864,681 
U.S. Government agencies securities 224,493,411 
Asset-backed securities 7,407,634 
Corporate bonds 4,058,984 
 one^ market funds 95,822,~ 13 

$ 428,080,323 
Portfolio modified duration 

Modified 
Duration 

6.03 

The Corporation's investment policies require that the duration of each externally managed fixed 
income portfolio be within plus or minus 20% of the duration of the Lehman Aggregate Bond Index. 

(i) Inwstrnent Holdings Greater tlrari Five Percent of Total Non-pooled Porrfolio 

The following investment holdings, summarized by issuer, include both investments that are governed 
by the maximum concenhation limits of the Corporation's fiscal policy and investments which have 
no established concentration limits. Investments in mutual funds and investment pools are excluded 
&om this summary. As of June 30, 2005 the Corporation has investment balances greater than five 
percent of the Corporation's total non-pooled investments with the following issuers: 

Fannie Mae 
Federal Home Loan Bank 
Freddie Mac 
U.S. Treasury 

0) Pooled Investmerrts 

The State's GeFONSI consists of investments in the State's Short-term and Intermediate-term 
Fixed Income Pools. Actual investing is performed by investment officers in the State's 
Deparbnent of Revenue, Treasury Division. A complete description of the investment policy for 
each pool is included in tl~e Department of Revenue, Treasw Division. Policies and Procedures. 
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At June 30,2005 the Corporation's share of pool investments, reported at fair vahe, is as follows: 

Investment Type 
Overnight sweep account 
Money market 
Commercial paper 
US. Treasury bills 
U.S. Treasury notes 
US.  Treasury strips 
US.  Government agency 

discount notes 
U.S. Government agency 
Mortgage-backed 
Other asset-backed 
Corporate bonds 
Yankees-corporate 

Total Invested Assets 
Pool related net assets 
(liabilities) 

Short-term 
Fixed Income 

Pool 
$7 12,018 

Intermediate- 
term Fixed 

Income Pool 
- 

Securities 
Lending 

Collateral 
- 

131,164 
- 

Total 
12,018 

131,164 
689,544 
522,946 

3,803,3 12 
70,099 

Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
invesbnent. 

Short-term Fixed Income Pool: 

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, 
Treasury's investment policy limits individual fixed rate securities to hxteen months in maturity or 
fourteen months expected average life. Floating rate securities are limited to three years in maturity 
or three years expected average life. Treasury utilizes the actual maturity date for commercial 
paper and twelve month prepay speeds for other securities. At June 30,2005 the expected average 
life of individual fixed rate securities range from one day to ten months and the expected average 
life of floating rate securities range from less than one year to three years. 
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Intermediate-term Fixed Income Pool: 

Through its investment policy, Treasury manages its exposure to fair value losses arising l?om 
increasing interest rates by limiting the effective duration of its Intermediate-term Fixed Income Pool 
to i 20% of the Merrill Lynch 1-5 year Government Bond Index. The effective duration for the 
Merrill Lynch 1-5 year Government Bond index at June 30,2005 was 2.31 years. 

At June 30,2005 the effective duration by investment type is as follows: 

US .  Treasury notes 2.26 
U.S. Treasury ships 0.86 
U S .  Government agency 3.01 
Mortgage-backed 2.01 
Other asset-backed 0.84 
Corporate bonds 2.60 
Yankees-corporate 3.09 

Pool effective duration 2.10 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not ii~lfill its 
obligations 

Treasury's investment policy has the following limitations with regard to credit risk: 

With the exception of the sweep account, Short-term Fixed Income Pool investments are limited to 
instruments with a long-term credit rating of at least A3 or equivalent and instruments with a short- 
term credit rating of at least Al or equivalent. For securities with long-term credit ratings, they may 
be purchased if the median rating of Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Etch is A3 or equivalent. 
Asset-backed and non-agency mortgage securities may only be purchased if rated by one of the 
rating agencies mentioned above if they are rated AAA. Unexpected daily cash surpluses that arise 
in this pool are invested overnight in the custodian's repurchase agreement sweep account. 
Treasury does not have a policy to limit credit risk associated with the sweep account. 

Intermediate-term Fixed Income Pool investments are limited to securities with a long-term credit 
rating of at least BBB3 or equivalent and securities with a short-term credit rating of at least Al or 
equivalent. For securities with long-term credit ratings, they may be purchased if the median rating 
of Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch is BBB3 or equivalent. Asset-backed and non-agency 
mortgage securities may only be purchased if rated by one of the rating agencies mentioned above if 
they are rated AAA. 
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At June 30, 2005 the State's Pools consisted of investments with credit quality ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations as follows (using Standard and Poor's rating 
scale): 

Intermediate- 
Short-term Fixed term Fixed 

Investment Type - 
Commercial paper 
U.S. Government agency 

discount notes 
US .  Government agency 
Mortgage-backed 
Mortgage-backed (agency) 
Other asset-backed 
Other asset-backed 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate bonds 
Corporate bonds 
Yankees - corporate 
No credit exposure 

' ~a t ing  modifiers are not disclosed. 

Not Rated 
Not Rated 

A A A 
Not Rated 

AAA 
A 

A A A 
A A 
A 

BBB 
A 

Income Pool 
8% 

Income Pool 
- 

At June 30, 2005 the securities lending collateral is invested in a registered 2(a)-7 money market 
fund that is not rated. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
Treasury's policy with regard to concentration of credit risk is to prohibit the purchase of more than 
five percent of a pool's holdings in corporate bonds of any one company or affiliated group. At June 
30, 2005 the Corporations has more than five percent of its investments in Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation and Federal National Mortgage Association as follows: 

Percentage 
of Total 

Fair Value Investments 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $ 1,012,147 6% 
Federal National Mortgage Association 1,3 17,984 8% 
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(k) Securities Lending 

Alaska Statute 37.10.071 authorizes the Commissioner of Revenue to lend assets, under an 
agreement and for a fee, against deposited collateral of equivalent fair value. The Commissioner 
entered into an aereement with State Street Comoration (the Bank) to lend securities in the Short- - 
term and Intermediate-term Fixed Income Pools. The Bank, acting as the Commissioner's agent 
under the agreement, transfers securities to broker agents or other entities for collateral in the form . 
of cash or securities and simultaneously agrees to return the collateral for the same securities in the 
future. 

At June 30, 2005 and 2004 the fair value of securities on loan allocable to the Corporation total 
$127,55 1 and $3,243,043, respectively. 

There is no limit to the amount that can be loaned and the Commissioner is able to sell securities on 
loan. Loans are collateralized at not less than 102 percent of their fair value. Loaned securities and 
collateral is marked to market daily and collateral is received or delivered the following day to 
maintain collateral levels. 

Cash collateral is invested in a registered 2(a)-7 money market fund. Maturities of investments in 
the money market fund generally do not match the maturities of the loaned securities because the 
lending agreements are terminable at will. Collateral securities may be pledged or sold upon 
borrower default. Since the Commissioner does not have the ability to pledge or sell the collateral 
securities unless the borrower defaults, they are not recorded in the financial statements. Securities 
under loan, cash collateral and cash collateral payable are recorded in the financial statements at fair 
value. The Bank, the Corporation and the borrower receive a fee from earnings on invested 
collateral. The Bank and the Corporation share a fee paid by the borrower for loans not 
collateralized with cash. 

There is limited credit risk associated with the lending transactions since the Commissioner is 
indemnified by the Bank against any loss resulting from counterparty failure or default on a loaned 
security or its related income distributions. The Bank further indemnifies the Board against loss due 
to borrower rebates in excess of earnings on cash collateral. Indemnifications are subject to 
limitation relating to war, civil unrest or revolution, or beyond the reasonable control of the Bank. 

For the )ear ended June 30, 2005 there are no losses incurred as a result of securities lending 
transactions and there were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions nor failures by 
any borrowers to retum loaned securities. 
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(4) Restricted Loans Receivable 

A summary of reshicted loans receivable, all of which are installment loans to individuals, at June 30 follows: 

2005 2004 

Alaska Supplemental Loans $ 530,602,317 534,089,988 
Teacher Education Loans 8,589,552 9,062,785 
Family Education Loans 8,286,656 9,122,020 
Federal Family Education Loans 43,637,930 24,973,470 

$ 591,116,455 577,248,263 

The loan portfolio summarized by loan status at June 30 follows: 

Enrollment 
Grace 
Repayment 
Deferment 

Loans awarded and not disbursed at June 30,2005 and 2004 total $13,624,374 and $13.51 1,526 respectively. 

Included in loans receivable are $392,800 and $450,894 of loan warrants issued but not yet redeemed by the 
borrowers at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Redemption is contingent upon the borrowers meeting 
certain eligibility requirements. 

Restricted loans receivables are pledged to the Corporation's outstanding bonds. 
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(5) Allowance for Doubtful Loans 

A summary of the activity in the allowance for doubtful loans at June 30 follows: 

Balance at beginniig of period $ 99,333,011 96,229,397 
Provision for loan losses 5,048,581 4,439,205 
Net loans charged off (1,025,534) (1,335,591) 
Balance at end of period $ 103,356,058 99,333,011 

(6) Allowance for Forgiveness 

As described in note 2, the Corporation disburses loans of which principal and interest become eligible for 
forgiveness under certain conditions. 

A summary of the activity in the allowance for forgiveness at June 30 follows: 

Balance at beginning of period $ 2,396,055 2292,03 1 
Provision for foreiveness 736.098 418.148 - 
Forgiveness granted (487,167) (314,124) 
Balance at end of period $ 2,644,986 2,396,055 
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(7) Bonds Payable 

(a) Bonds payable at June 30 consist of the following: 

Amount outstanding 
Original 

. . Amount 2005 2004 
Outstanding under the 1988 Master Indenture: 

1994 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds 

1995 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fvted rates ranging 
from 5.5% to 5:75%, due 2006 to 2009 

1996 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
from 5.75% to 6.35%, due 2006 to 2013 

1997 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fvted rates ranging 
from 5.15% to 5.75%, due 2006 to 2015 

1998 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
from 4.6% to 5.3%, due 2006 to 2016 

1999 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fvted rates ranging 
from 4.4% to 5.45%, due 2006 to 2017 

2000 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
from 5.3% to 6.05%, due 2006 to 2018 
term bonds, 6.0%, due July 1,2016 

2001 Series A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fxed rates ranging 
from 3.95% to 4.65%, due 2006 to 201 1 

Less bond discounts 
Subtotal 1988 Master Indenture 
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Amount outstanding 
Original 
Amount 2005 2001 

Outstanding under the 2002 Master Indenture: 

2002 Series A and B Education Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction vatiable rate bonds, due 201 1 to 2037 $ 62,500,000 36,100,000 62,500,000 

2003 Series A-1 and A-2 Education Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction variable rate bonds, due 201 1 to 2038 47,000,000 47,000,000 47,000,000 

2004 Series A-1, A-2, A-3 Education Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction variable rate bonds due 2044 93,100,000 93,100,000 93,100,000 
serial bonds, fixed rate ranging 
from 5.0% to 5.25%, due 201 1 to 2017 22,015,000 22,015,000 22,015,000 

$ 224,615,000 198,215,000 224,615,000 
Plus bond premium 863,098 934,957 

Sub-total 2002 Master Indenture $ 199,078,098 225,549,957 

Outstanding under the 2004 Indenture: 

2004 Series A Capital Project Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
from 2.0% to 4.0%, due 2006 to 2017 
term bonds, 4.0%, due July 1,2018 

Plus bond premium 
Subtotal 2004 Indenture 

Outstanding under the 2005 Indenture: 

2005 Series A State Projects Revenue Bonds 
serial bonds, futed rates ranging 
from 5% to 5.5%, due 2006 to 2014 

Plus bond premium 
Sub-total 2005 Indenture 

Total Bonds Payable 
Plus bond premium 
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@) The minimum payments and sinking fund installments for the five years subsequent to June 30,2005 
and thereafter are as follows: 

Period ending 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

(c) The 1988 and 2002 Master Indenture Bonds are private activity bonds. The 2004 and 2005 
Indenture Bonds are not private activity bonds. All of the bonds pay interest semiannually. The 
bonds are secured by education loans and other assets of the Corporation and are not obligations of 
the State. 

All of the bonds are subject to certain early redemption feahlres, both mandatory and at the option 
of the Corporation. In addition, the bond indentures contain covenants relative to restrictions on 
additional indebtedness. 

All of the bonds outstanding under the 1988 Master Indenture are insured by Ambac Assurance 
Corporation. The 2004 Capital Project Revenue Bonds outstanding under the 2004 Indenture are 
insured by MBlA Insurance Corporation. The 2005 State Projects Revenue Bonds outstanding 
under the 2005 Indenture are insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. 

(d) On May 19, 2004 the Corporation issued $1 15,115,000 in education loan revenue bonds, of which 
$13,055,000 was for the purpose of refunding the outstanding 1994 Series A bonds and $26,400,000 
was for the purpose of refunding a portion of the Series 2002 A bonds, both at par. 

The 1994 Series A refunding occurred on July 1,2004. The refunding portion of the Series 2004 A- 
2 bonds was issued as auction variable rate certificates in which the interest is reset every 35 days 
and the principal payment due June 1, 2044. The initial interest rate on the Series 2004 A-2 bonds 
was 1.18%. The refunded 1994 Series A bond's interest rates were fvted cites ranging from 
5.875% to 6% and were due in level debt service payments, with the final payment due July 1,2007. 
The refunding resulted in aggregate debt service payments over the next seven years in a total 
amount of approximately $700,000 less than the debt service payments which would have been due 
on the refunded bonds. Based on the Series 2004 A-2 bonds' initial interest rate of 1.18%, there will 
be an estimated economic gain of $740,000. 
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The Series 2002 A refunding occurred on August 16, 2004. The refunding portion of the Series 
2004 A-l was issued as auction variable rate certificates in which the interest is reset every 35 days 
and the principal payment due June 1, 2044. The initial interest rate on the Series 2004 A-l bonds 
was 1.20%. The refunded Series 2002 A bonds were issued as auction variable rate certificates in 
which the interest rate reset every 35 days and the principal payments were due June 1, 2009 and 
2010. The refunding was effected to extend the maturity dates of these bonds to June 1, 2044. 
There is no expected economic gain or change in debt service payments over the next six years. 

(e) On July 1,2005 the Corporation will call all outstanding Series 1995 A Bonds at par in the amount of 
$15,900,000. 

(f) On July 28, 2005 the Corporation will issue $58,250,000 of Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 
2005 Series A, to finance education loans. The bonds will be issued with fixed interest rates ranging 
from 4% to 5%. 

(8) Arbitrage Rebate Payable 

In connection with the Corporation's tax-exempt bond issues, the Corporation is subject to rebatable 
arbitrage when bond proceeds are invested in investments and education loans. Interest income from 
investments and education loans is limited by the U.S. Treasury regulations. The amount accrued for 
arbitrage rebate liability at June 30, 2005 and 2004 represents the amount of arbitrage rebate due to the 
federal government for excess earnings on the bond proceeds. 

(9) Student Loan Interest and Special Allowance on Federally Guaranteed Loans 

The US. Department of Education makes quarterly interest subsidy payments on behalf of qualified 
borrowers until the borrower is required under provisions of the Higher Education Act to begin repayment. 
Repayment on Stafford education loans normally begins within six months after borrowers complete their 
course of study, leave school, or cease to cany at least one-half the normal full-time academic load as 
determined by the educational institution. Repayment of PLUS loans normally begins within sixty days from 
the date of loan disbursement unless a deferment of payments has been granted. In these cases, full 
repayment of principal and interest would resume at the expiration of the deferment. Interest accrues 
during this deferment period. 

The US. Department of Education provides a special allowance payment to lenders participating in the 
Stafford, PLUS, and Consolidation loan progmms. Special allowance is paid based on a rate that is 
established quarterly. For loans first disbursed after June 30, 1999 and financed with obligations issued after 
October 1, 1993, the rate is based on the average rate established in the auction of the three-month Financial 
Commercial Paper, plus a predetermined factor, less the interest rate on the loan. Loans made or purchased 
with funds obtained through the issuance of tax-exempt obligations issued before October 1, 1993 are 
eligible for one-half of the special allowance rate, subject to a minimum return of 9.5%. Loans originated or 
purchased with funds obtained through the issuance of tax-exempt obligations originally issued after October 
1, 1993 are eligible for full special allowance and are not subject to a minimum return. 
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(10) Retirement Plan 

Effective July 1,1997, the Commission adopted the provisions of Government Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 27 (GASB 27), Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers. 
There was no impact on the financial statements as a result of GASB 27. 

(a) Plun Description 

The Commission and its employees participate in the State of Alaska Public Employees' Retirement 
System (PERS), as a defmed benefit, agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system 
which was established and is administered by the State to provide pension, post-employment 
healthcare, and death and disability benefits to eligible employees. All &&time employees are 
required to participate in PERS. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law 
and may be amended only by the Legislature. 

Employees hired prior to July 1, 1986, with five or more years of credited service, are entitled to 
annual pension benefits beginning at normal retirement age filly-five or early retirement age fie. 
For employees hued after June 30, 1986, the normal retirement age is sixty and the early retirement 
age is filly-five. The normal annual pension benefit for the first ten years of service is equal to 2% 
per year of the member's highest three-year average yearly compensation, 2.25% per year for the 
second ten years of service, and 2.5% per year thereafter. All service earned prior to July 1, 1986 
is calculated using the 2% multiplier. Employees with t h i i  or more years of credited service may 
retire at any age and receive a normal benefit. Major medical benefits are provided without cost to 
all retirees first hired before July 1, 1986. Members with five or more years of credited service first 
hired after June 30, 1986, but before July 1, 1996, may elect major medical benefits. Members first 
hired after June 30, 1996 must have at least ten years of credited service to be eligible to elect major 
medical benefits. 

Each fiscal year, PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained writing to the State of 
Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, 
Juneau, Alaska 9921 1-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460. 

@) Fund Policy and Annual Pension Cost 

Employees are required, by State statute, to contribute 6.75% of their gross wage to the plan. The 
hdimg policy for PERS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates 
that, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate sufficient 
assets to pay benefits when due. Covered payroll for the period ended June 30, 2005 is 
approximately $4,380,3 12 constituting substantially all of the Commission's payroll. 
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The Commission's annual pension cost for the current year and the related information is as follows: 

Contribution rates: 
Employee 
Employer 

Annual pension cost to date $ 554,355 
Contributions made $ 554,355 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 

June 30,2004 
Projected unit credit 
Level percentage of pay 
25-year Fixed 
5-year smoothed market 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Inflation rate 3.50% per year 
Investment return 8.25% per year, compounded annually, 

net of expense. 
Projected salary increase: 

Inflation 3.50% 
Productivity and merit 2.00% 

Health cost trend 14.00% 

In the cwent  year the Commission determined, in accordance with provisions of GASB 27, that no pension 
liability (asset) existed to PERS and there was no previously reported liability (asset). 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Operations 

The Commission included approximately $10,600,500 in its budget for fiscal year 2006 as 
reimbursement from the Corporation for administrative and capital expenses incurred on the 
Corporation's behalf. Amounts paid by the Corporation will be subject to revision based upon actual 
expenses incurred by the Commission. 

@) Paynrent to the State of Alaska 

During fiscal year 2000 the Legislature passed a bill that allows the Corporation to pay the State a 
return of contributed capital or dividend annually based on net income. If the Corporation's Board 
of Directors elects to make such a payment, the amount may not be less than lo%, nor greater than 
35%, of the Corporation's income before transfers when it equals or exceeds $2,000,000 for the 
Base Fiscal Year. The Base Fiscal Year is defined as the fiscal year ending two years before the 
end of the fiscal year in which the payment is made. 
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On September 13, 2004 the Corporation's Board of Directors approveda $3,100,000 Rehm of 
Capital payment to the State which will be paid during the fiscal year 2006. 

During fiscal year 2004 the Legislature passed a bill allowing the Corporation an additional means to 
pay the State a return of contributed capital. The Corporation has issued $160,000,000 of capital 
project bonds, the proceeds of which are for use in various financial State capital projects. 

(c) State Permanent Fund Dividend Seizure 

The Alaska Permanent Fund (Permanent Fund) is a fund held and managed by the State and was 
established in the Alaska State Constitution in 1976. The State deposits a percentage of oil and gas 
royalties into the Permanent Fund. By statute, the State pays a portion of the earnings of the 
Permanent Fund (PFD) annually to individuals who apply and meet certain residency requirements, 
provided that sufficient funds are available for payment The annual PFD paid to each eligible 
resident for the years 2004 and 2003 was $920 and $1,108 respectively. There can be no assurance 
that payments will continue. PFD payments could be eliminated or reduced by an amendment to the 
Alaska Statutes. The Commission may seize a borrower's Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) 
payment, if any, to satisfy the balance of a defaulted loan pursuant to Alaska Statutes 14.43.145 and 
43.23.067. To do so, the Commission issues certified claim letters to all borrowers of defaulted 
loans applying for PFDs, notifying them of the Commission's claim. The Commission has seinve 
priority over all other executors except State child support enforcement and any court ordered 
restitution. There is no assurance that any particular borrower will apply or qualify for a PFD 
payment. 

PFD seizures collected by the Commission were approximately $3,400,000 and $4,900,000 for the 
years ended June 30,2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The Legislature and the Governor have, from time to time, considered various alternative measures 
including reducing or restricting the size of the PFD. The Corporation cannot predict whether any 
such measure will be enacted or the impact any such measure would have on loan collections 
through PFD seizures. 

(d) General 

The education loan program has ~nditionally been the subject of legislative action by the State. The 
laws governing the program have been amended %om time to time and will continue to be the 
subject of legislative proposals calling for M e r  amendment. The effect, if any, on the progmm 
cannot be determined. 

The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk relating to its variable rate bonds and the loans funded 
with bond proceeds. The bonds are subject to an interest rate cap of 14% while the loans are 
subject to an interest rate cap of 8.25% to 9.5% depending on the loan type. The Corporation has 
various strategies available to manage the risk that the bond rate may rise above the loan rate cap. 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2005 and 2004 

(12) Subsequent Events 

(a) On July 1,2005 the Corporation will call all outstanding Series 1995 A Bonds at par in the amount of 
$15,900,000. . . 

@) On July 28, 2005 the Corporation will issue $58,250,000 of Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 
2005 Series A to fmance education loans. The bonds will be issued with fxed rates ranging from 
4% to 5%. 



APPENDIX I1 

THE MASTER INDENTURE 

Certairrprovisio~rs of the Master I~rdentrrre relating to the 2006 Bonds aregoverned (inclrrding in 111e event 
of confrict) by the Fifth Sr~pplenrerrtal Indenture. 
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Agreement 

THIS INDENTURE, made andentered into 
as of June 1.2002, by and between the ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION, a public 
corporation and government instrumentally created 
and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska 
(herein called the "corporation" or the "issuer"). 
and ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK, a national 
banking association organized and existing under 
the laws of the United States, as Trustee (herein 
called the "Trustee"). 

W ITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized 
by the Act (as hereln defined) to issue its bonds for 
the purpose ofproviding funds to acquire Education 
Loans (as defined herein): and 

WHEREAS. the Corporation has 
determined to enter into this lndenture with the 
Trustee to secure its Bonds (as herein defined) as 
the Corporation may elect lo issue such Bonds 
from lime to time in accordance with the terms of 
this indenture and of any Supplemental lndenture 
executed pursuant to this indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds shall be special. 
limited obligations of the Corporation, and the 
principal and redemption premium, if any, of and 
interest on the Bonds shall be payable solely from 
the Trust Estate (as defined herein), subject to the 
provisions of lhis lndenture authorizing the 
Corporation to create security interests in said Trust 
Estate in favor of Credit Enhancement Agencies 
(as defined herein) and counlerparties to interest 
Rate Exchange Agreementsand, further, subject to 
the provisions of this lndenlure authorizing the 
Corporation to create Classes (as defined herein) 
and to grant security interests in the Trust Estate 
that are prioritized based upon such Classes: and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the 
issuance of any Bonds, the Corporation may obtain 
Credit Enhancement or enter into Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreements (as such terms are defined 
herein) and may secure its obligations under such 
Credit Enhancement or Interest Rale Exchange 

Agreements by a pledge of the Trust Estate 
described below, and such pledge may be of a 
priority less than, equal lo, or greater than the 
pledge of the Trust Estate to any class or Series of 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the time of issuance of any 
Series of Bonds, the form of Bonds, and other 
relevanl terms of Bonds are lo  be specified in the 
Suppiemental lndenture pertaining to such Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of 
this lndenture have been authorized by Resolution 
2002-01 of the Corporation, a cerlified copy of 
which has been delivered to the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, all things necessary to make 
the Bonds, when authorized pursuant lo  a duly 
adopted Supplemental Indentureand authenlicated 
by the Trustee and issued as in this lndenture 
provided, the valid, binding and legal special. 
limited obligations of the Corporation according to 
the import thereof, and to constitute this indenture 
a valid pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate 
lo the payment of the principal or redemption price. 
if any, of and interest on the Bonds and all other 
amounts due in connection therewith (subjectto the 
provisions of this lndenlure authorizing the 
Corporation to create a security interest in the Trust 
Estate in favor of Credit Enhancement Agencies 
and counterparties to Interest Rale Exchange 
Agreements) have been done and performed, and 
the creation, execution and delivery of this 
indenture and the creation, execution and issuance 
of the Bonds subject to the terms hereof, have in all 
respects been duly authorized: 

NOW. THEREFORE. KNOW ALL PERSONS BY 
THESE PRESENTS 

GRANTING CLAUSES 

That the Corporation, in consideration of 
the premises and the acceptance by the Trustee of 
the trusts hereby created and of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by the Bondholders, and 
for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to 
secure the payment of the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on the Bonds and the 
obligations of the Corporation arising under any 
Credit Enhancement facility and any Interest Rale 
Exchange Agreement (but only if and to the extent 
that the Corporation expressly grants a security 
interest under lhis lndenture in favor of such Credit 
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Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement in the Supplemental indenture 
authorizing the Bonds lo which such Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement relates), ail according to their tenor and 
effect and all other amounts due In connection 
therewilh and the performance and 0bSeNance by 
the Corporation of all the covenants expressed or 
implied herein and in the Bonds, in such Credil 
Enhancement facilities, and in such lnterest Rate 
ExchangeAgreements.does hereby grant, bargain, 
sell, convey, pledge and assign unto, and grant a 
first priority security interest in and to the Trustee. 
and unto its respective successors in trust, and to 
their respective assigns, forever, forthe securing of 
the performance of the obligations of the 
corporation hereinafter set forth, the following 
(herein, the "Trust Estate"): 

The Pledged Loans. Pledged Receipts,and 
Pledged Loan Notes (all as the same are defined 
herein) including all exlensions and renewals of the 
lerm thereof, i f  any, together with all right, titie and 
interest of the Corporation therein, including, but 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
present and continuing right to claim, collect and 
receive any  of the moneys, income, revenues. 
issues, profits and other amounts payable or 
receivable thereunder, lo bring aclions and 
proceedings thereunder or for the enforcement 
thereof, and to do any and ail things which the 
Corporation is or may become entitled to do under 
the Pledged Loan Notes; provided, however, that 
the foregoing pledge is subject to the Corporation's 
right to modify the terms of, or to take other aclions 
which may affect. the Pledged Loans. Pledged 
Receipts, and Pledged Loan Notes pursuant to 
Section 707 herein. 

II. 

Ail Funds and Accounts (except any Credit 
Enhancement Fund) and moneys and investments 
therein includino. but not limited to. undisbursed ". 
proceeds of Bonds and amounts held under the 
Custodian/DepositaryISe~icing Agreement: 

Any and all service or support agreements 
by and between the Corporation and either the 
Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education 
or the Student Financial Aid Committee of said 
Commission, including without limitation the 
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agreement governing the administration of the 
Education Loan Trust Fund established in the 
corporation by the Act; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the introductoryparagraph to these 
Granting Clauses the security interest created in 
this Clause Il l is second to, and subject to the prior 
lien of, the Corporation's lndenture dated as of May 
I, 1988; 

IV. 

Ail moneys and securities from time lo time 
held by the Trustee under the terms of this 
Indenture (except moneys and securities in any 
Credil Enhancement Fund) and any and all other 
real or personal property of every name and nature 
concurrently herewith or from time to time hereafter 
by delivery or by writing of any nature conveyed. 
mortgaged, pledged, assigned or transferred as 
and for additional security under this lndenture for 
the Bonds, to the extent so conveyed, mortgaged, 
pledged, assigned ortransferred by the Corporation 
or by anyone In 11s behalf, or with its wrilten 
consent, to the Trustee, which is hereby authorized 
to receive any and all such property at any and all 
times and to hold and apply the same subject to the 
terrns hereof: and 

Any and ail proceeds of the foregoing. 
subject, in all cases, to the terrns and provisions of 
this lndenture governing the use and application of 
all such property and rights In property including the 
Corporation's rightto withdraw, free and clearof the 
lien of this indenture, Pledged Loans, cash and 
other property held hereunder or credited hereto 
subject lo the requirements hereol: 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular 
the Trust Estate, whether now owned or hereafter 
acquired, unto the Trustee and its respective 
successors and assigns in trust forever to its and 
their own proper use and behalf but; 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the 
terms and trusts herein set forlh for the equal and 
proportionale benefit, security and protection of all 
present and future owners of the Bonds from time 
to time issued and to be issued under and secured 
by this lndenture without privilege, priority or 
distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any of the 
Bonds except to the extent that any privilege. 
priority, or distinction may be created pursuanl to 
the terms of this lndenture with respect to the 
creation of Classes (as defined herein); 



PROVIDED. HOWEVER, lhat if the 
Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall well 
and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on, the 
Bonds due or to become due thereon, and all other 
amounts due thereunder, at lhe times and in the 
manner mentioned in the Bonds according to their 
tenor and in accordance herewith, and shail cause 
the payments to be made on the Bonds as required 
under Arlicle VII hereof, or shail provide, as 
permitted hereby, for the payment thereof, and 
shall well and truly keep, perform and observe ail 
the covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms 
of this lndenture to be kept, performed and 
observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to 
the Trustee all sums of money due or to become 
due lo it in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of this lndenlure, then upon !he final 
payment lhereof this lndenlure and the rights 
hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void: 
otherwise this lndenture to be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

THIS INDENTURE OFTRUST FURTHER 
WITNESSETH, and it is expressiydeclared, that all 
Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be 
issued, aulhenticated and delivered and all of the 
properly, righls and inlerests, including, wilhoul 
limitation, the loan payments and olher amounts 
hereby assigned and pledged are to be dealt with 
and disposed of under, upon and subject to the 
terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants. 
agreements. trusts, uses and purposes as 
hereinafter expressed, and the Corporation has 
agreed and covenanted. and does hereby agree 
and covenant with Ihe Trustee and with the 
respective holders of the Bonds as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFlNlTiONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Section 101 - Oefinllions. In this lndenlure, 
unless the context otherwise requires. the following 
words and terms shall have lhe meanings selforlh 
in this Section: 

'Account" shall mean one of the special 
accounts created and established pursuant to 
Section 501 or Section 510 of this indenture. 

"Accounlant" shall mean a certified public 
accountant or firm of independent certified public 
accounlants selected by the Corporation and may 
be the accountant or firm of accountants lhal 
regularly audits the books of the Corporation. 

"Act" shall mean Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990 of the Alaska Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Additional Bonds"sha1l mean Bonds olher 
than the first series of  Bonds authenticated and 
delivered under this lndenture. 

"Authorized Newspaper" shail mean a 
newspaperorfinanciaIjournaIprintedin the English 
language and customarily published (except in the 
case of legal holidays) at least once a day for at 
leas1 five days in each calendar week, which is of 
general circulation in the Borough of Manhattan. 
City and State of New York. 

"Authorized Officer" shall mean the 
Chairman or Executive Officer of the Corporation 
and, in the case of an act to be performed or a duty 
to be discharged, any member, officer or employee 
of the Corporation then authorized by the Chairman 
or Executive Officer or by action of the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation to perform such actor 
discharge such duty. 

"Bond"shall mean one ofthe bonds, notes, 
or olher evidences of indebtedness authenticated 
and delivered under this Indenture. 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean any firm of 
attorneys selected by the Corporation and 
acceptable to the Trustee that is recognized 
nationally as expert in the area of municipal finance 
and tax-exempt obligations. 

"Bondho1der"or"holder"orwords of similar 
import, when used with reference to a Bond or 
Bonds, shall mean any person who shall be the 
registered owner of any Outstanding Bond or 
Bonds issued in fully registered form or the bearer 
of any Bond or Bonds issued in bearer form or 
registered lo bearer. 

"Bond Payment Dale" shall mean any day 
on which interest, principal, redemption premium or 
any other payment on a Bond is required to be 
made, whelher at maturity, redemption or 
otherwise. 

"Bond Year'' shall mean the tweive-month 
period beginning on July 1 of any year (but not 
including any year in which there are no Bonds or 
Parily Obligations oulstanding) and ending on June 
30 of the following year. 

"Business Day" shall mean any day other 
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than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on 
which banks in New York. Alaska, or the Slale or 
states in which any Trustee appointed hereunder 
performs its duties hereunder are authorized or 
required to be closed or are closed. 

"By Class in Descending Order of Priority" 
shall mean that any action to be so taken shall be 
taken first with respect to the Bonds that are 
designaled as the highest priority Class of Bonds 
Outstanding until there is no such action required 
for such Bonds and lhen such action shall be taken 
for each lower priorily Class of Bond$ Outstanding 
in  order unlil such acllon shali no longerbe required 
for each such Class. 

"Capilal Reserve Fund" shali mean the 
capilal reserve fund created pursuant to Section 
501 and described as such under the Act. 

"Capital Reserve Requirement," with 
respect to any Series or Class of Bonds, shail have 
the meaning provided in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance of such Bonds. 

"Certificate" shall mean a signed document 
either attesting lo or acknowledging the 
circumstances, representations or other matters 
therein stated or set forth or setting forth matters to 
be determined by an Authorized Officer pursuant lo 
this lndenture. 

"Class" shall mean one or more Series of 
Bonds. Credit Enhancement facilities, and Interest 
Rate Exchange Agreements having the same 
security interest with respect to the Trust Estate. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commission" shall mean the Alaska 
Commission on Postsecondary Education. 

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement" shall 
mean, for each Series, the continuing disclosure 
certificate or agreement, if any, executed by the 
Corporation for the purpose of satisfying the 
continuing disclosure requirernentsof Rule 15~2-12  
of the Securilies and Exchange Commission with 
respect to such Series, as such conlinuing 
disclosure certificale or agreemenl is originally 
executed and as it may be amended from time to 
lime in accordance with its terms. 

"Corporation" shail mean the Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation, a public corporation and 

government instrumenlalily created and existing 
pursuant to the Act. 

"Costs of Issuance" shail mean allitems of 
expense directly or indirectly payable or 
reimbursable by or to the Corporation and related 
to the authorization, sale, or issuance of Bonds, 
including, but not limited to, printing costs; costs of 
preparalion and reproduction of documents: filing 
and recording fees; initial fees and charges of any 
Fiduciary and its counsel: legal fees and charges: 
underwriting compensation; placement agent 
compensation; fees and disbursements of 
consultants and professionals; costs of credit 
ratings; fees and charges of any Credit 
~nhancement  Agency in connection with providing 
Credit Enhancement for anv of the Bonds: fees and 
charges for preparation, execution, transportation 
and safekeeping of Bonds; costs and expenses of 
refunding: premiums for the insurance of the 
payment of Bonds; and any other cost, charge or 
fee in connection with the original issuance of 
Bonds. 

"Counsel's Opinion" shall mean an opinion 
signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys of 
nationally recognized slanding in the field of law 
relating to state and municipal financing (who may 
be counsel to the Corporation) selected by the 
Corporation and acceptable to the Trustee. 

"Credit Enhancement" shall mean a letter 
o f  credit, a line of credit, a credit facility, a surety 
bond, bond insurance, or any other instrument or 
arrangement obtained in conneclion with the 
issuance of a Series of Bonds to further secure the 
payment of the Bonds of such Series or h e  
payment of any Pledged Loans. 

"Credit Enhancement Agency" shail mean 
any bank or other institution lhat provides Credit 
Enhancement. 

"Credit Enhancement Fund" shail mean a 
Fund or Account authorized to be created by the 
Corporation under Section 510(B) for the purposes 
of holding and disbursing !he proceeds of, or 
holding only. Credit Enhancement. 

" C u s t o d i a n l D e p o s i t a r y / S e r v i c i n g  
Agreement" shall mean that certain agreemenl with 
respect lo  custody of a portion of the Trust Estate 
by and among the Corporation, the Trustee. and 
the Slale through the Commission and lhrough its 
Department of Revenue, dated June 1.2002. 
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"Debt Service" shall mean, for a Series of 
Bonds Outstanding and for any Parity Obligations 
Outstanding, the scheduled amount of interest and 
Principal Installments payableon the Bonds of such 
Series or on such Parity Obligations (or 
substanlially equivalent payments due on Parity 
Obligations) during the period of computation. 

"Defaull Payment" shall mean all amounts 
(in any form) received by the Corporation, by the 
Truslee acting on behalf of the Bondholders, or by 
any agent of eilher of them as a resuil of the 
acceleration of the due dale of any Pledged Loan 
because of an evenl of default with respect to such 
Pledged Loan. 

"Deposilary" shall mean the State or any 
bank or trust company or national banking 
associalion selected by the Trustee or the 
Corporation as a depositary of moneys or securilies 
held under the provisions of this lndenture, and 
may include the Trustee, if such party agrees to 
hold such money or securilies as an agent of the 
Trustee. 

"Education Loan" shall mean a loan. 
including but not limiled to Guaranteed Loans, lhat 
is authorized by the Act or any other qualifying 
program that may be established by or for the 
Commission or the Corporation or an entily 
controlled by either of them as any such program 
may be administered from time to lime by the 
Commission or the Corporation or such entity: 
provided, however, that if any change is made to 
the Education Loan Program as it exists on the 
dale hereof or if any new program is established by 
or under the Act, "Education Loan" shall not include 
any loan purchased or financed under the 
Education Loan Program, as so changed, or under 
any such new program unless the Corporation shall 
have filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such change or such new program. 

"Education Loan Fund" shall mean the 
Education Loan Fund established within the Master 
Educalion Loan Revenue Bond Accounl pursuant 
to Seclion 501. 

"Education Loan Program" shall have the 
meaning set forth in Section 204. 

"Education Loan Trust Fund" shall mean 
the special revolving trust fund of the Corporation 
created and established by the Act. 

"Event of DefaulP' shall mean any of the 

evenls specified in clauses (1) through (7) of 
Section 1002. 

"Excess Coverage" shall mean, as of any 
date of calculation, and except as otherwise 
provided in a Supplemental lndenture. the amount 
by which the sum of the value of (a) the Education 
Loans (valued at par plus accrued interest and 
accrued Special Allowance Payments, as such 
term is defined in the Higher Education Act, if any) 
credited to the Education Loan Fund and (b) all 
cash and lnveslment Securities held in the Funds 
and Accounls (valued as set forth herein or in the 
pertinent Supplemental lndenture, plus accrued 
interest, but excluding amounts irrevocably set 
aside to pay particular Bonds pursuant to Section 
1201) shall exceed all of the following sums taken 
individually and not as an aggregate: (x)  107% of 
the sum of the principal and accrued interest on all 
Oulstanding Class I Bonds: and (y) 101.5% of the 
sum of the principal of and accrued interest on all 
Outstanding Bonds; all as evidenced in a 
Certificate, upon which the Trustee may 
conciusively rely. 

"Fiduciary" shall mean the Trustee or any 
Paying Agent or any Co-Paying Agent or Co- 
Registrar for the Bonds or any Series of Bonds. 

"Fund" shall mean one of the special trust 
funds established pursuant to Section 501(A) or 
Section 510. 

"Guaranteed Loan" shall mean (i) any 
Education Loan lhatis guaranteed underthe Higher 
Education Acl; if the Higher Education Act is 
reaulhorized or amended and the terms or 
characteristlcs of loans guaranteed under the 
Higher Education Act following such reauthorization 
or amendment, including but not limited to terms 
and characteristics relating to loan benefits and 
servicing, are materially different lhan they were 
before such reauthorization or amendment, then 
"Guaranteed Loan" shall mean an Educalion Loan 
guaranteed under the Higher Educalion Act as so 
reauthorized or amended only if there has been 
filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmalion that 
takes into consideration such change in terms or 
characteristics; and (ii) any Education Loan that is 
guaranteed under any other federal law, but only if 
a Rating Confirmation is filed with the Trustee 
taking into consideration the guarantee undersuch 
other federal law. 

"Guarantor' shall mean any enlity which 
hasentered intoan agreemenlwith the Corporation 
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to guarantee education loans under the Higher 
Educalion Act or other federal law and has entered 
into an agreement with the Secretary for 
reinsurance of its guarantees of education loans. 

"Higher Education Act" shall mean Tilte IV 
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, 
or any successor federal act, and the regulations. 
directives, bulletins, and guidelines promulgated 
thereunder. 

"Indenture' shall mean this lndenture as 
from time lo time amended and supplemenled in 
accordance wilh the terms hereof. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean any 
date upon which interest on any Bonds is payable 
in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and the 
terms of this indenture or any Supplemental 
Indenture. 

"lnteresl Rate Exchange Agreement" shall 
mean a contract entered into by the Corporation or 
by the Trustee on behalf of the Corporation 
providing for an interest rate cap, floor, or swap 
with respect to any Bonds or Pledged Loans. 

"Investmenl Securities" shall have the 
meaning, wilh respect to any Class, set forth in any 
of the Supplemenlal lndentures authorizing a 
Series of Bonds of such Class if any of the Bonds 
of such Class and Series are Outstanding at Ihe 
time of reference, provided lhat if more lhan one 
Series of Bonds of a particular Class has Bonds 
Outstanding and the meanings in the Supplemental 
Indentures are different, InveslmentSecurities shall 
mean only lhose inveslments appearing in both or 
all Supplemental lndentures for Bonds of such 
Series and Class (in the determination of the 
Trustee, which shall be conclusive). 

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors 
Service Inc. 

"Original Purchaser' shall mean with 
respect to each Series the first purchaser or 
purchasers of the Bonds of such Series from !he 
Corporation. 

"Outstanding", when used with reference to 
Bonds, shall mean, as of any date, all Bonds 
therelofore or lhereupon being authenticated and 
delivered under this lndenture except: 

(1) Any Bonds canceled by the 
Corporation or the Trustee at or prior to 
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such date; 

(2) Bonds (or porlions of Bonds) for 
the payment or redemption of which there 
shall be held in trust hereunder and set 
aside moneys or Investment Securities 
which represent or are secured by the full 
faith and credit of the United States of 
America, which are not subject to 
redemption prior to the dates on which 
amounts will be needed to make payments 
and the principal of and interest on which 
when due will provide moneys which. 
logetherwith the moneys, if any, deposited 
at the same time, will be sufficient to pay 
the principal or Redemplion Price thereof, 
as the case may be, wilh interest to the 
date of maturity or redemption date on 
such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) and, if 
such Bonds are lo be redeemed, for which 
notice of such redemption shall have been 
given as provided in Article VI or provisions 
satisfactory to the Truslee shall have been 
made for the giving of such notice; 

(3) Bonds forthe transferorexchange 
of or in lieu of or in substitution for which 
other Bonds shall have been authenticaled 
and delivered pursuant to this Indenture; 
and 

(4) Bonds deemed to have been paid 
as provided in subseclion (8) of 
Section 1201. 

'Parity Obligations" shall mean bonds. 
notes, or other obligations so described in 
Section 209(A) hereof and issued underor secured 
by a Parity Obligalion Instrument. 

"Parity Obligation Instrument" shall mean 
the indenture, resolution, or other instrument 
securing any Parity Obligation and under which the 
Parity Obligation was issued. 

"Paying Agent" shall mean any bank or 
trust company, which may include the Trustee. 
designated by the Corporation as paying agent or 
co-paying agent for the Bonds of any Series, and ils 
or their successor or successors hereafter 
appointed in the manner herein provided. 

"Permitted Spread" shall mean the 
maximum spread between the yield on the Bonds 
of a Series and the yield on the Education Loans 
financed with proceeds of, or, under the Code or 



the Regulations, allocable to, the Series permitled 
under the Code and the Regulations without 
adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of such 
Bonds. 

"Pledged Loan" shall mean any Education 
Loan held in or credited to the Education Loan 
Fund under this lndenture. 

"Pledged Loan Note" shall mean the 
promissory note or otherdocumentation evidencing 
a Pledged Loan. 

"Pledged Receipts" shall mean (i) all 
amounts, including principaland interestpaymenls, 
paid or payable or otherwise received under or 
pursuant to or with respect to any Pledged Loan 
(monlhly or otherwise) including, wilhout limilatlon. 
bolh timely and delinquent payments wilh late 
charges, fees and charges, special allowance 
payments, insurance or guaranty payments. 
subsidy payments, and all other revenues and 
income paid lo the Truslee, the corporation, orany 
agent of either on account of or in conneclion with 
any Pledged Loan, (ii) all Recoveries of Principal. 
and (iii) all interest paid or payable or any gain 
realized upon the investmentor deposit of amounts 
in any Fund or Account, but shail not include any 
amount retained by any Servicer of any Pledged 
Loan (otherthan the Corporation, the Commission, 
or any relaled entily) as compensation for services 
rendered. 

"Prepayment" shall mean any amount 
received or recovered as a prepayment of the 
principal amounl of any Pledged Loan, including 
any prepayment penalty, fee, premium or other 
such addilionalcharge, less the amount retained by 
any S e ~ i c e r  of such Pledged Loan, other than the 
Corporation, as additional compensation resulting 
from such prepayment. 

"Principal Installment" shall mean, as of 
any date of calculation and with respect lo [he 
Oulslanding Bonds of any Series. (i) the principal 
amount of such Bonds which are due on a certain 
future date, reduced by the aggregale principal 
amount of such Bonds which would be retired by 
reason of the payment when due and application in 
accordance wilh this lndenture of Sinking Fund 
Payments payable before such future date for the 
retirement of such Bonds or (ii) the unsatisfied 
balance,  determined as provided in  
subsection 505(E), of any Sinking Fund Payment 
due on a certain future dale for such Bonds, plus 
the aggregate amount of the premiums, if any, 

which would be appiicable on such future dale upon 
the redemption of such Bonds by application of 
such Sinking Fund Payments in a principal amount 
equal to said unsatisfied balance or (iii) if such 
future dates coincide as to different Bonds of such 
Series, the sum of such principal amount of Bonds. 
unsatisfied balance and appiicable premiums, if any 
or (iv) for any particular Series of Bonds the amount 
specified in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing 
such Series of Bonds. 

"Principal Installment Date" shall mean any 
date upon which a Principal Installment is payable 
on any Bond in accordance wilh its terms and the 
terms of this indenture. 

"Program Expenses" shall mean all the 
Corporation's expenses in carrying out and 
administering its Education Loan Program, insofar 
as they are fairly allocable to all Pledged Loans, 
and in servicing the Pledged Loans: "Program 
Expenses" shail include, without limiting the 
generalily of the foregoing, expenses incurred in 
Ihe collection of Education Loans; salaries. 
supplies, utilities, mailing, labor, materials, office 
rent, maintenance, furnishings, equipment. 
machinery and apparatus; insurance premiums: 
legal, accounting, management, consulting and 
banking services and expenses: !he fees and 
expenses of the Trustee and its agents and 
counsel: the fees and expenses of Deposilaries 
and Paying Agents: Costs of Issuance not paid 
from proceeds of Bonds: and payments for 
pension, retirement, health and hospitalization and 
life and disability insurance benefits, all lo the 
extent properly allocable to the Education Loan 
Program insofar as they are fairly allocable to 
Pledged Loans. 

"Raling Agency" shall mean any securities 
rating agency but only if and during the times that 
such agency shall have assigned, at the request of 
the Corporation or in connection with any Credit 
Enhancement obtained by the Corporation, and 
have in effect a rating for any of the Outstanding 
Bonds. 

"Rating Confirmation" shall mean a letler 
from each Rating Agency then providing a rating for 
any Bonds confirming that the action proposed to 
be taken will not, in and of itself, have the effect of 
(i) reducing or withdrawing the rating then 
applicable to those Bonds i f  those Bonds are not 
secured by Credit Enhancementwhich requires the 
ratings on the Bonds to be maintained at a certain 
minimum rating, or (ii) if lhose Bonds are secured 
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by Credit Enhancement which requires lhat the 
ratings on the Bonds (without regard to Credit 
Enhancement) be mainlained ata certain minimum 
rating, reducing their rating to a rating below such 
minimum rating without regard to !he rating of the 
Credit Enhancement Agency or withdrawing the 
rating. 

"Record Dale' shall have the meaning set 
forth in the Supplemental lndenture aulhorizing the 
particular Series of Bonds. 

"Recoveries of Principal" shell mean all 
amounls received by the Corporation as a recovery 
of the principal amount of any Pledged Loan. 
including any Default Payment. Prepaymenlorsale 
Payment. 

"Redemplion Date" shall mean the date on 
which any Bonds are subject to redemplion. 

"Redemplion Account" shall mean the 
Redemption Account of the Revenue Fund 
established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Redemption Price" shall mean, wilh 
respect to any Bond, the principal amount thereof 
plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 
redemption thereof pursuant lo the provisions of 
such Bond or this lndenture. 

"Refunding Bonds" shall mean all Bonds. 
whether issued in one or more Series, 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance for 
the purpose of refunding Bonds or other obligations 
of the Corporation and all Bonds thereafter 
aulhenticated and delivered upon the lransfer or 
exchange of or in lieu of or in subslitulion for such 
Bonds pursuant to this indenture, 

"Regislrar" shall mean the person or enlity 
responsible for maintaining the registration books 
of the corporation with respecl to the Bonds. 

"Regulations" shall mean temporary and 
permanen! regulalions promulgated under the 
Code. 

"Revenue F u n d  shali mean the Revenue 
Fund established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Sale Payment" shali mean any amount 
received by the Corporation from the sale, 
assignment, endorsement or other disposition of 
any Pledged Loan, except Prepayments or Default 
Payments; provided that wilhdrawal of a Pledged 

Loan pursuant lo Section 502(G) shail not be 
considered a disposilion leading to a Sale Payment. 

"Secretary" shali mean the Secrelaryof the 
United States Deparknent of Education. 

"Series" shall mean all the Bonds 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance 
pursuant to a Suppiemenlal lndenture and 
designated as a Series therein and any Bonds 
thereafter authenticated and delivered upon lhe 
transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in 
substitution for (but not to refund) such Bonds as 
herein provided, regardless ofvariations in maturity. 
inleresl rate. Sinking Fund Payments, or other 
provisions. 

"Series Account" shail mean, for each 
Series, the Series Education Loan Account 
established for such Series pursuant to Section 
502. 

"Servicer" shali mean the Corporation, the 
Commission, or, if there has been filed wilh the 
Trustee a Rating Confirmation reflecting the 
servicing of any Pledged Loan by another instilution 
pursuanl to e Servicing Agreement, any such 
instilution. 

"Se~ ic ing  Agreement" shall mean a 
contractual agreement of the Corporation with a 
Servicer other than the Corporation for the 
servicing of Pledged Loans by the Servicer. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" shali mean, as 
of any particular date of calculation and with 
respeclto the Outstanding Bonds of any Series, the 
amount required to be paid at all events by the 
Corporalion on a single future date for the 
retirement of Bonds of such Series which mature 
afler said future date, but does not include any 
amount payable by the Corporation by reason only 
of the maturity of a Bond. 

"StiP' shall mean Standard 8. Poor's 
Corporation. 

"State" shall mean the State of Alaska 

"Subordinate Obligations" shall mean 
bonds, notes, or other obligations described in 
Section 209(B). 

"Supplemental indenture" shall mean an 
indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this 
Indenture, executed by the Corporation and 
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effeclive as provided in Article VIII. 

"Surplus Revenues" shall mean, firsl. 
amounts held at any lime in the Revenue Fund and 
described in Paragraph Eighth of Section 503(C) 
hereof and, second, amounts held in any 
Unallocated Accounl within the Education Loan 
Fund; provided, however, lhat the Corporation may 
reverse the foregoing order of priority in 
determining, or eliminate specified amounts from 
being considered as. Surplus Revenues by a 
written direcllon to the Trustee. 

'Trustee"shall mean the lruslee appointed 
pursuant to Article XI and any successor or 
successors lo it or any other person at any time 
substiluled in ils place pursuant to this Indenture. 

"Trust Estale" shall have the meaning 
provided in the Granling Clauses of lhis lndenture. 

"Unailocaled Account" shall mean an 
Unailocated Account within the Education Loan 
Fund established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Yield Reduclion Payment" shall mean the 
minimum amounts payable to the United States 
Treasury as described in Treas. Reg. S1.148-5(c). 

Section 102 - Interpretations. (A) in lhis 
Indenture, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) Articles and Sections 
referred to by number shall mean the 
corresponding Articles and Sections of this 
Indenture: 

(2) The terms "hereby", 
"hereof". "hereto", "herein". "hereunder" 
and any similar lerms, as used in this 
Indenture, refer to this lndenture, and the 
term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the 
term "herelofore" shall mean before, the 
date of ib execution: 

(3) Words of the masculine 
gender shall mean and include correlative 
words of the feminine and neuter genders 
and words importing the singular number 
shall mean and include the plural number 
and vice versa; 

(4) Words importing persons 
shall include firms, associations, 
par tnersh ips  ( inc lud ing  l im i ted  

partnerships), lrusts, corporations and 
otherlegal entities, including public bodies. 
as well as natural persons: 

(5) Words importing the 
redemptlon or redeeming of a Bond or the 
calling of a Bond for redemptlon do not 
include or connote the payment of such 
Bond at Its slated maturily orlhe purchase 
of such Bond: 

(6) Any headings preceding 
the texts of the several Articles and 
Seclions of this lndenture, and table of 
contents or marginal notes appended to 
copies hereof, shall be solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not 
constitute a part of this lndenture, nor shall 
they affecl its meaning, construction or 
effect: 

(7) I f  a S u p p l e m e n t a l  
lndenture authorizes coupon Bonds itshaii 
make provisions for publication of nolices 
required to be mailed hereafler in an 
Authorized Newspaper. The notices shall 
be published and contain the same 
informalion as notices required lo be 
mailed. If, because of the temporary or 
permanenlsuspension ofthe publication or 
general circulation of all Authorized 
Newspapers or for any other reason, it is 
impossible or impractical to publish any 
notice pursuant to this lndenture in the 
manner herein provided, then such 
publication in lieu thereof as shall be made 
with the approval of the Trustee shall 
conslilute a sufficient publication of such 
notice; 

(8) U n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  
determined by the Corporation, any 
Education Loan financed by application of 
amounts in any Series Account shall be 
deemed to have been financed by 
application of amounls relating lo the 
Series of Bonds for which such Fund was 
established (and first by proceeds of such 
Series of Bonds) or shall be deemed to 
have been financed proportionately by 
application of amounts relating to one or 
more Series to the exlent lhat such 
Education Loan has been financed by 
application of amounts in more than one 
Series Account: 
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(9) The date upon which any 
Sinking Fund Paymenl is required to be 
paid pursuant to the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance and 
delivery of a Series of Bonds shail be 
deemed to be the date upon which such 
Sinking Fund Payment is payable and the 
outstanding Bonds of such Series to be 
retired by application of such Sinking Fund 
Paymenl shall be deemed to be the Bonds 
entitled to such Sinking Fund Paymenl: 

(10) With respect to any Bond 
that bears interest at a stated rate. 
compounded periodically, first payable (i) 
at maturity or prior redemption or (ii) 
commencing as of a date more than one 
year after the initial authentication and 
delivery thereof, for all purposes of this 
indenture and of any Supplemental 
lndenture adopted pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless the contextorthe related 
Supplemental lndenlure otherwise 
requires, the "principal amount" of such 
Bond as of any date of calculation shail be 
deemed to be equal to the sum of (x) the 
stated principal amounl of such Bond upon 
original issuance plus (y) an amount equal 
to interest thereon accrued (and not 
currently payable) and compounded at the 
applicable rate to the Bond Paymenl Date 
or other dale specified in the related 
Supplemental lndenture which most 
immediately precedes or corresponds lo  
the dale of calculation: 

(11) This lndenlure shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance 
with the applicable laws of the State: 

(12) Any requirement for 
amounts to be deposiled in any Fund or 
Account shall be considered satisfied upon 
the crediting of such amounts to such Fund 
or Accounl; and 

(13) Any requirementherein or 
in any Supplemental lndenlure for the 
paymentof any money or the taking of any 
olher action on a particular date may, 
unless otherwise specifically required, be 
taken on the Business Day following such 
dale if such dale is not a Business Day and 
such requirement shail thereupon be 
satisfied with the same effect as if the 
payment was made or the aclion taken on 

the dale required. 

(B) Nothing in this lndenture 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person. 
other than the Corporation, the Fiduciaries, the 
Credit Enhancement Agencies and the 
counterparties to Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreements to which the Corporation has expressly 
granted an interest herein and then only lo  the 
extent of that interest, and the hoiders of the Bonds 
any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of 
this lndenture or any covenant, conditions or 
stipulation thereof. All the covenanls, stipulations, 
promises and agreements in this lndenture 
conlained by and on behalf of the corporation shall 
be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 
Corporation, the Fiduciaries, such Credit 
Enhancement Agencies and counterparlies to 
Interest Rate Exchange Agreemenls, and the 
hoiders of the Bonds. 

Section 103 - Severability of Invalid 
Provisions. If any one or more of the covenants or 
agreements provided in this lndenture on the part 
of the Corporation or any Fiduciary to be performed 
should be contrary to law, then such covenant or 
covenanls or agreement or agreements, shall be 
deemed separable from the remaining covenanls 
and agreements hereof, and shall in no way affect 
the validity of the other provisions of this lndenture 
or of the Bonds. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION, OBLIGATION AND 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

Section 201 - Authorization for lndenture. 
This lnaenture is authorized and execuled by virtue 
of and pursuanl to the provisions of the ~ c t .  The 
Corporation has ascertained and hereby 
determines and declares that execution of this 
lndenlure is necessary to carry out the powers and 
duties expressly provided by the Act, that each and 
every act, matter, thing or course of conduct as to 
which provision is made herein is necessary or 
convenient in order to carry out and effectuale the 
purposes of the Corporation in accordance with the 
Act and to carry out powers expressly given in the 
Act and thal each and every covenant or 
agreement herein contained and made is 
necessary, useful or convenient in order to better 
secure the Bonds and are conlracls or agreements 
necessary, useful and convenient to carry out and 
effectuate the corporate purposes of the 
Corporation under the Acl. 
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Section 202 - lndenture to Constitute 
Contract. In consideration of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by those who shail hold 
the same from time lo time, the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be a part of the contract of the 
Corporation with the holders of Bonds and shali be 
deemed to be and shail constilute a contract 
between the Corporation, the Trustee and the 
holders from time to time of the Bonds. The pledge 
hereof and the provisions, covenants and 
agreemenls herein set forth to be performed by or 
on behalf of the Corporation shall be for the benefil, 
protection and security of the holders of any and all 
of such Bonds. Each Bond, Credit Enhancement 
facilily, and Interest Rate Exchange Agreement of 
a Class, regardless of the time or limes of its issue 
or maturity, shali be of equal rank without 
preference, priority or distinction over any other 
Bond, Credit Enhancement facility, or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement of such Ciass except as 
expressly provided in this indenture. 

Section 203 - Obliqation of Bonds. This 
indenture creates an issue of bonds of the 
Corporation and creates a continuing pledge and 
lien to secure the full and final payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on 
such bonds, and any Sinking Fund inslallrnents for 
the relirement thereof. The Bonds shall be special, 
limited obligalions of the Corporation, and the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, thereof and 
the interest thereon shall be payable solely from the 
Trust Estate, subject to the provisions of Section 
510(D) hereof authorizing the Corporation to create 
a securily Interest in !he Trust Estate in favor of 
Credit Enhancement Agencies and counterparties 
to Interest Rate Exchange Agreements. The 
Bonds shall conlain on their face a stalement that 
neither the faith and credit nor the laxing power of 
the State or of any polilical subdivision of the State 
is pledged tothe payment of the principal thereof or 
the interest thereon. 

Section 204 - Authorization of Bonds. in 
order to provide sufficient funds for the 
Corporalion's program of financing or purchasing 
Education Loans pursuant to the Act (the 
"Education Loan Program"), bonds of the 
Corporalion are hereby aulhorized to be issued 
from time lo time without limitation as lo amount 
except as herein provided or as may be limited by 
law, and such bonds shall be issued subject to the 
terms, conditions and limitations eslablished in this 
lndenture and in one or more Series and in such 
Classes as hereinafter provided. 

Section 205 - Issuance and Delivery of 
Bonds: Classes of Obliqalions. (A) After their 
authorization by a Supplemenlal Indenture, Bonds 
of a Series may be executed by or on behalf of the 
Corporation and delivered to the Trustee for 
authenlication and, upon compliance by the 
Corporation with the requirements, if any, set forth 
in such Supplernenlal lndenture and with the 
requirements of Section 206 or, in the case of 
Refunding Bonds. Section 207, the Truslee shall 
thereupon aulhenticate and deliver such Bonds to 
or upon the order of the Corporation. 

(B) The Corporalion may designate 
Classes of Bonds and may also include Credit 
Enhancementfacilities and IntereslRate Exchange 
Agreements in such Classes. Unless otherwise 
designated, any Bond shall be presumed to be of 
the highest Class, and such highest Class shail be 
referred to as "Class I." Lower Classes shall be 
designated by successive roman numerals. Except 
as otherwise provided in a Supplemental lndenture 
relating to any Series or Ciass of Bonds, the 
Trustee and the Corporation are obligaled lo apply 
the Trust Estate to the payment of amounts due 
with respect to any Class before applying the Trust 
Estale to the payment of amounts due with respect 
to any lower Class. 

Section 206 - Condilions Precedent to 
Delivery of a Series of Bonds. All (but not less than 
all) the Bonds of a Series lother than Refundino - 
Bdnds) shall be executed by the Corporation for 
issuance and delivered to the Trustee and 
thereupon shall be authenticated by the Trustee 
and delivered lo the Corporation or upon ils order, 
but only upon satisfaction of Section 708 hereof 
and the receipl by the Trustee of: 

(1) A Counsel's Opinion to the 
effect that (i) lhe Corporation has the right 
and power to execute and deliver this 
lndenture under the Act as amended to the 
date of such Opinion; (ii)this lndenture has 
been duly and lawfully executed and 
delivered by the corporation, is in fuii force 
and effect and is valid and binding upon 
Ihe Corporation and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms (subject, as to 
enforcement of remedies, to applicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency. 
moratorium, or other laws affecting 
creditors' rights generally from time to time 
in effect): (iii) this lndenture creates the 
valid pledge and assignment which it 
purports lo  create of the Trusl Estate. 
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subject to the application thereof to the 
purposes and on the conditions permitted 
by this lndenlure; (iv) the Bonds of such 
Series are valid and binding special, limited 
obligations of the Corporation, enforceable 
in accordance with their lerms and the 
terrns of this lndenture; and (v) the Bonds 
of such Series have been duly and validly 
authorized and issued in accordance with 
the constitution and statutes of the Stale, 
including the Act as amended to the date 
of such Opinion, and in accordance with 
this lndenture; 

(2) A written order as to the 
delivery of such Bonds, signed by an 
Authorized Officer; 

(3) Either an original of the 
Supplemental indenture authorizing such 
Series or a copy thereof certified by an 
Authorized Officer, which Supplemental 
lndenlure shall specify: 

(a) The authorized 
principal amount and Series 
designation of such Bonds: if such 
Bonds are of a Class lower than 
Class I, the Supplemental 
lndenture must include such 
designation as well; 

(b) The purposes for 
which such Series is being issued. 
which shall be one or more of the 
following: (i) the making of 
deposits into any Fund or Account. 
(ii) the refunding of any Bonds, or 
(iii) paying Costs of Issuance; 

(c) The date, and the 
maturity date or dates, of the 
Bonds of such Series or the 
method of determining the same; 

(d) (i) The interest 
rate or rates (if any) or maximum 
interest rate of the Bonds of such 
Series, or the manner of 
determining such rate or rates 
(which may be determinable at 
one or more specified times set 
forth in the Supplemental 
Indenture, which may accrete or 
compound with such frequencies 
or in such manner as shall be 

specified in such Supplemental 
lndenture and which shaii be as 
otherwise specified in the 
Supplemental Indenture), and the 
lnterest Payment Dales and 
Record Dates therefor and (il) a 
manner of calculating accreted 
value or compounded principal 
value during all or any part of the 
term of the Series of Bonds being 
authorized, if interest is not 
payable currently and the 
corporation determines that it is 
necessary or appropriate; 

(e) The Paying Agent 
or Paying Agents and the place or 
places of payment of the principal 
and Redemption Price, If any, of. 
and inlerest on, the Bonds of such 
Series or the mannerof appointing 
and designating the same; 

(f) The Redemption 
Price or Prices, if any, and, subject 
to the provisions of Article VI, the 
redemption terrns for the Bonds of 
such Series: 

(g) The amount and 
due date of each Sinking Fund 
installment, i f  any, for Bonds of 
like maturity of such Series; 

(h) The forms of the 
Bonds of such Series and of the 
T r u s t e e ' s  c e r t i f i c a t e  of  
authentication; 

(0 If, at the time of 
issuance of the Bonds of such 
Series, an lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement will apply to such 
Bonds or such Bonds are to be 
secured by Credit Enhancement. 
the form of Credit Enhancementor 
i n t e r e s t  Ra te  Exchange  
Agreement to be obtained, the 
identity ofthe Credit Enhancement 
Agency or of the counterparty to 
the lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement, and the substantial 
form of the significant documents 
r e l a t i n g  l o  t h e  C r e d i t  
Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement: 
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(j) If Bonds of such 
Series are to contain any tender or 
put options or the like, whether 
such Bonds are to be remarketed 
and, if so, the idenlity of any 
remarketing agent and the 
substant ia l  form of any 
remarketing agreement relating to 
such Bonds; 

(k) Whetherinterest 
on the Bonds of such Series is 
intended to be excludible from 
gross income for federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Section 
103(a) of the Code or any 
successor slalule thereto; 

(I) A n y  o t h e r  
provisions deemed advisable by 
the Corporation as shall not 
conflict wilh the provisions hereof: 
and 

(m) Such additional 
matters as may be necessary or 
appropriate lo cause interest on 
the Bonds of the Series to be 
issued pursuant to such 
Suppiemental lndenture to be 
exempt from federal income 
taxation pursuant to Section 
103(a) of the Code if i t  is intended 
that interest on the Bonds be so 
exempt and to prevent the 
issuance of such Series from 
adversely affecting the federal 
income tax treatment of any 
Outstanding Bonds and the 
interest thereon intended to be so 
exempt; 

(4) The amount of the 
proceeds of such Series lo be deposited in 
any Fund or Account held by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 401: 

(5) A Certificate that no Event 
of Default or a payment default relating lo 
any Bonds exists or remains uncured or 
will result from such additional issuance, 
unless such additional issuance will cure 
such Event of Default or such payment 
default. 

and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vll l or any 
Supplemental lndenture adopted pursuant 
lo Article VIIi. 

Section 207 - Conditions Precedent to 
Delivery of a Series of Refundinq Bonds. (A) All 
Refunding Bonds of a Series shall be executed by 
the Corporation for issuance and delivered to the 
Trustee and lhereupon shall be authenticated by 
the Trustee and delivered to the Corporation or 
upon its order, but only if the applicable financial 
tests and other requirements of Sections 208 and 
708hereof are satisfied and only upon the receipt 
by the Trustee of: 

(1) The documents and 
moneys, if any, referred to in paragraphs 
(I) ,  (21, (3) and (4) of Section 206; 

(2) Either (i) moneys (which 
may include all or a portion of the proceeds 
of the Refunding Bonds to be issued) in an 
amount sufficient to effect payment at the 
applicable Redemption Price of the Bonds 
or olher obligations to be refunded, 
together with accrued interest on such 
Bonds or other obligations to the 
redemption date, or (ii) direct obligations of 
(including obligations issued or held in 
book-entry form on the books of) the 
Department of the Treasury of the United 
States of America which are not subject to 
redemption prior to the dates on which 
amounts will be needed to make payments 
on the Bonds or other obligalions to be 
refunded and the principal of and interest 
on which when due, together wilh the 
moneys (which may include all or a porlion 
of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds lo 
be issued), if any, contemporaneously 
deposited with the Trustee, will be 
sufficient to pay when due the applicable 
Redemption Price of the Bonds or other 
obligations lo be refunded, togelher with 
accrued interest on such Bonds or other 
obligations to the redemption date, which 
moneys or Investment Securilies shall be 
held by the Trustee or any one or more of 
the Paying Agents or an escrow agent or 
trustee for olher obligations in a separate 
account irrevocably in trust for and 
assigned to the respective holders of the 
Bonds or other obligations lo be refunded; 
and 

(6) Such further documents 
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(3) Such further documents 
and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vl l l  or any 
Supplemental lndenture adopted pursuant 
to Article VIII. 

(8) Neither Investment Securities nor 
moneys deposited with the Trustee or an escrow 
agent or trustee for other obligations pursuant to 
paragraph (A) (2) of this Section nor principal or 
interest payments on any such Investment 
Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any 
purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for. 
the payment of the applicable Redemption Price of 
the Bonds or other obligations to be refunded. 
together wilh accrued interest on such Bonds or 
other obligations to the redemption date, and any 
cash received from such principal or interest 
payments, if not then needed for such purpose, 
shall. to the extent practicable, be reinvested in 
such Investment Securities as are described in 
clause (ii) of said paragraph maturing at times and 
in amounts sufficient to pay when due the 
applicable Redemption Price of such Bonds or 
other obligations, together with such accrued 
interest. 

Section 208 - Requirements for the 
Issuance of Additional Bonds. Additional Bonds 
may not be issued unless, in addition to the 
requirements of Section 206 or Section 207. 
whicheveris applicable, the following requirements 
are satisfied: 

(i) i f  any Bonds are 
Outstanding prior to the issuance of the Additional 
Bonds and will remain outstanding after the 
issuance of the Additional Bonds, the Trustee 
receives a Rating Confirmation taking into 
consideration the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, 

(ii) no Event of Default under 
this Indenture, or payment default wilh respect to 
any Bonds, as to which the Trustee has knowledge 
shall exist and remain uncured (unless the 
issuance of the Additional Bonds and the 
application of the proceeds thereof will cure the 
Event of Default or payment default), 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund. 
immediately after the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, will be funded to at least the Capital 
R e s e ~ e  Requirement, and 

(iv) a n y  a d d i t i o n a l  

requirements imposed by a Supplemental 
lndenture are satisfied. 

Sectlon 209 - Parity Obliqations; 
subordinate Obiigations. (A) The corporation may 
issue Parity Obligations under instruments other 
than this lndenture for any lawful purpose of the 
Corporation. provided that the requirements of this 
lndenture for the issuance of Additional Bonds 
would be met if the term "Parity Obligation" were 
substituted for the term "Additional Bonds" 
appearing therein and in the defined terms therein 
(other than any requirement wilh respecl to funding 
the Capital Reserve Fund) and as if the Parity 
Obligations were being issued hereunder, and 
subject lo  any additional limitations thal may be set 
forth in a Supplemental lndenture authorizing a 
Series of Bonds. Parily Obligations shall equally 
and ratably rank wilh all Bonds. Credit 
Enhancement facilities, and Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreements of the same Class as the 
Parity Obligations except as to the Capital Reserve 
Fund, in whlch they shall have no rights 
whatsoever. Parily Obligations shall be subject to 
the foliowing addilional conditions: 

(1) The Truslee shall act as 
trustee underany Parity Obligation 
Instrument. 

(2) The Parity Obligations 
must be secured by a lien on any 
property financed with the 
proceeds of the Parily Obligations. 

(3) If any Parity Obligations 
are to be secured by any lien. 
morlgage or security interest on 
property that is not part of the 
Trust Estate, the Corporation shall 
grant a lien, mortgage or security 
interest on such properly (other 
than any capilal reserve fund 
comparable to the Capital Reserve 
Fund) to the Truslee as security 
for the Bonds on a parity wllh the 
lien, mortgage or security interest 
which will secure such Parity 
Obligations: the Bonds shall share 
in such security interest by Class. 

(4) Any default under or with 
respect to any Parity Obligation 
lnslrurnenlshall be a defaultunder 
this indenture only if and to the 
extent thal a similar event with 
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respect to a Bond of the 
same Class as such 
Parity Obligation would be 
an Event of Default, and 
there shall be included in 
any Parity Obligalion 
lnstrument a provision 
that any Event of Default 
under this lndenture shall 
automatically be a default 
unde r  such Par i ty  
Obligation Instrument. 

(5) According to the terms of 
any Parity Obligation or Parity 
Obligation Instrument. the Trustee 
shall have substantially the same 
duties, obligations, rights and 
remedies in connection with 
events of default and security for 
or with respect lo the Parity 
Obligations as it has in connection 
with Events of Default and the 
Trusl Estate hereunder. 

(6) Any Parity Obligation 
Instrument shall include such 
other provisions, reasonably 
satisfactory to the Truslee, as 
shall be necessary lo permit the 
Trustee to perform any duties and 
obligations and exercise its rights 
and remedies underlhis lndenture 
and any Parily Obligation 
Instrument. 

If there occurs an Event of Default under 
this lndenture, including an Eventof Defaull based 
upon an event of default with respect to a Parity 
.Obligation, and theTruslee applies theTrust Estate 
to the payment of the Bonds, all collateral held as 
security by the Truslee for the payment of the 
Bonds (other than the Capital Reserve Fund), and 
ail collateral held as security for the Parity 
Obligations (other than any capital reserve fund 
comparable lo the Capital Reserve Fund) shall be 
applied equally and ratably lo the payment of the 
Bonds and Parity Obligations of the same Class. 

(B) The corporation may issue 
Subordinate Obligations from lime to time under 
instruments otherthan this lndenture subjectto the 
conditions set forth below in this Section 209(B) 
and subjectto any additional conditions that may be 
set forth in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a 
Series of Bonds. Subordinate Obligations may be 
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secured by such assets as may be described in the 
instrument authorizing the issuance of the 
Subordinate Obligations, but Subordinate 
Obligations shall have no security in or pledge or 
lien on or rights of any kind whatsoeverwith respect 
to the Trust Estate that is greaterthan the security. 
pledge, lien, or rights of the Bonds of the lowest 
Class Outstanding. 

ARTICLE Ill 
GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF 

BONDS 

Section 301 - Title and Dale of Bonds. 
Subject lo the provisionsof Section 303, each Bond 
shall be entitled "Education Loan Revenue Bond" 
and shall bear such additional letter or number 
Series designation as shall be determined in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Bonds of 
the Series of which such Bond is one. The Bonds 
of each Series shall be dated as of and bear 
interest from lhe date specified in the Supplemental 
lndenture lhat authorized such Series, which date 
may be contemporaneous with or prior to or after 
the date of issuance of such Bonds. 

Section 302 - Principal Installment and 
Interest Pavment Dates. The date upon which 
each Principal Installment with respeclto any Bond 
is payable and the dates upon which interest on 
such Bond shall be payable shall be specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Series of 
which such Bond is a part. 

Section 303 - Leqends. The Bonds of each 
Series shall contain or have endorsed thereon a 
statement to the effect lhat the State shall not be 
liable thereon and that such Bond shall not be a 
debt of the Slate and may contain or have 
endorsed thereon such provisions, specifications 
and descriptive words not inconsistent with the 
provisions ofthislndenture as may be necessaryor 
desirable lo comply with custom or otherwise as 
may be determined by the corporation prior to 
delivery thereof. 

Section 304 - Place and Medium of 
Payment. The interest on, and the principal (and 
premium, if any) of each Bond of any Series shall 
be payable at the principal or corporate trust office 
of each Paying Agent appointed or provided for the 
Bonds of such Series or at such other location and 
subject to any terms and conditions as may be 
specified in the Supplemental Indentureauthorizing 



the Series of which such Bond is a part. Payment 
of interest on and principal (and premium, if any) of 
each Bond of any Series shall be made in any coin 
or currency of the United States of America which 
at the time of payment is legal tender for the 
payment of public and private debts. 

Section 305 - Form and Denominations; 
Pavment of Interest. The Bonds of each Series 
may be issued in the form of fully registered Bonds 
without coupons or, if the Corporation and the 
Trustee enter into a Supplemental Indenture to 
provide necessary terms under Section 801(5), in 
the form of bearer Bonds with coupons. lnterest on 
Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner 
thereof as of the applicable Record Date as shown 
on the registry books of the Corporation kept for 
such purpose by the Trustee. 

Section 306 - Neqoliability. Transfer and 
ReRislry. (A) Each Bond shall be transferable only 
upon the books of the Corporation, which shall be 
kept for the purpose by the Trustee or any co- 
registrars specified in a Supplemental Indenture, by 
the registered owner thereof in person or by his 
attorney duly authorized in writing, upon surrender 
thereoftogetherwith awritten instrumentof transfer 
satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the 
registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the 
Corporation shall issue in the name of the 
transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same 
aggregate principal amount. Series. Class. 
maturity, and interest rate as the surrendered Bond. 

(B) The Corporation and each 
Fiduciary may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Bond shall be registered upon the books 
of the Corporation as the absolute owner of such 
Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, 
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on 
account of. the principal and Redemption Price, i f  
any, of and interest on such Bond and for all other 
purposes, and all such payments so made to any 
such registered owner or upon his order shali be 
valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or 
sums so paid, and neither the Corporation nor any 
Fiduciary shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary. The Corporation agrees lo indemnify and 
saveeach Fiduciary harmless from and against any 
and all loss, cost, charge, expense judgment or 
liability incurred by it, acting in good faith and 
without negligence under this Indenlure, in so 
treating any such registered owner. 

Section 307 - Req~lations With Respect to 
Exchanaes ana Transfers. In all cases in which the 
priilege of exchanging Bonds or transferring 
Bonds is exercised. the Corooration shall execute 
and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver 
Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this 
Indenture. All Bonds surrendered in any such 
exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be cancelled 
by the Trustee. For every such exchange or 
transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive. 
the Corporation or the Truslee may, as a condition 
precedenttothe priviiegeof making such exchange 
or transfer, make a charge sufficient to reimburse 
it for any tax, fee or olher governmental charge 
required to be paid with respect to such exchange 
or transfer. Neither the Corporation northe Truslee 
shall be required (i) to transfer or exchange Bonds 
of any Series during the 15 days (or such other 
period of time as may be specified in the 
Supplemental indenture authorizing such Series) 
next preceding an lnterest Payment Date on the 
Bonds of such Series or next preceding any 
selection of Bonds of such Series to be redeemed 
or (ii) to transfer or exchange any Bonds previously 
called for redemption. 

Section 308 -Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, 
Stolen or Lost. In case any Bond shali become 
mutilated or be deslroyed, stolen or lost, the 
Corporation shall execute, and thereupon the 
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond 
of like Series. Class, maturity and principal amount 
as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost. 
in exchange and substitution for such mutilated 
Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of such 
mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for the 
Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the 
Trustee evidence satisfactory to the corporation 
and the Trustee that such Bond has been 
destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership 
thereof, and upon furnishing the Corporation and 
the Trustee with indemnity satisfactory to them and 
complying with such olher reasonable regulations 
as the Corporation and the Trustee may prescribe 
and paying such expenses as the Corporation and 
Trustee may incur. All Bonds so surrendered to the 
Trustee shall be cancelled by it. Any such new 
Bonds issued pursuant to this Section in 
substitution for Bonds alleged to be deslroyed. 
stolen or lost shall constitute original additional 
contractual obligations on the part of the 
corporation, regardless of whether the Bonds so 
alleged to be destroyed, stolen or lost be at any 
time enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally 
secured by and entitled lo equal and proportionate 
benefits with all other Bonds issued under this 
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Indenture, in any moneys or securities held by the 
Corporation or the Fiduciaries for the benefit of the 
Bondholders. 

Section 309 - Preparation of Definitive 
Bonds, Temporary Bonds. (A) Unlil the definitive 
Bonds of any Series are prepared, the Corporation 
may execute, in the same manner as is provided in 
Section 311, and, upon the request of the 
Corporation, the Trustee shall authenticate and 
deliver, in lieu of definitive Bonds, but subject to the 
same provisions, limitations and conditions as the 
definitive Bonds except as to the denominations 
thereof and as to interchangeability thereof, one or 
more temporary Bonds substantially of the tenor of 
the definitive Bonds in lieu of which such lemporary 
Bond or Bonds are issued, in such denominations 
as may be authorized by the corporation, and with 
such omissions, insertions and variations as may 
be appropriate to temporary Bonds. The 
Corporation at its own expense shall prepare and 
execute and, upon the surrender therefor of such 
temporary Bonds, the Trustee shall authenticate 
and, without charge lo the holder thereof, deliver in 
exchange therefore, delinitive Bonds of the same 
aggregate principal amount. Series. Class, and 
maturity as the lemporary Bonds surrendered. 
Until so exchanged the temporary Bonds shall in all 
respects be entitled to the same benefits and 
security as definitive Bonds authenticated and 
issued pursuant lo this lndenlure. 

(0) If the Corporation shall authorize 
the issuance of temporary Bonds in more than one 
denomination. the holder of any temporary Bond or 
Bonds may, at his option, surrender the same to 
the Trustee in exchange for anolher temporary 
Bond or Bonds of like aggregale principal amount, 
Series. Class, and maturity of any other authorized 
denomination ordenominations, and thereupon the 
Corporation shall execute and the Trustee shall 
authenticate and, in exchange for the temporary 
Bonds or Bonds so surrendered and upon payment 
of the taxes, fees and charges provided for in 
Section 307, shall deliver a temporary Bond or 
Bonds of like aggregale principal amount. Series, 
Class, and maturity in such other authorized 
denomination or denominations as shall be 
requested by such holder. 

(C) All temporary Bonds surrendered 
in exchange either for anolher temporary Bond or 
Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds shall be 
forthwith cancelled by the Trustee. 

Section 310 -Cancellation and Destruction 

of Bonds. All Bonds paid or redeemed, either at or 
before malurity, shall be delivered to the Trustee 
when such payment or redemption is made, and 
such Bonds, together with all Bonds purchased by 
the Trustee, shall thereupon be promptly cancelled. 
Bonds so cancelled may, at any time, be cremated 
or otherwise destroyed by the Trustee, who shall 
execute a Certificate of cremation or destruction in 
duplicate by the signature of one of its authorized 
officers describing the Bonds so cremated or 
otherwise destroyed, and one executed Certificate 
shali be filed with the Corporation and the other 
executed Certificate shall be retained by the 
Trustee. 

Section 311 - Execution and 
Authentication. (A) After their authorization by a 
Supplemental Indenture, Bonds ofaseries may be 
executed by or on behalf of the Corporation and 
delivered to the Trustee for authentication. The 
Bonds shall be executed in the name and on behalf 
of the Corporation by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the Chairman or Executive Officer of 
the Corporation, and the corporate seal of the 
Corporation (or a facsimile thereof) shall be 
thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved orotherwise 
reproduced thereon, and attested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of any other Authorized Officer. 
or in such other manner as may be required by law. 
In case any one or more of the officers or 
employees who shall have signed or sealed any of 
the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or 
employee before the Bonds so signed and sealed 
shall have been actually delivered, such Bonds 
may, nevertheless, bedelivered as herein provided, 
and may be issued as if the persons who signed or 
sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such 
offices or be so employed. Any Bond of a Series 
may be signed and sealed on behalf of the 
Corporation by such persons as at the actual time 
of the execution of such Bond shall be duly 
authorized or hold the proper office in or 
employment by the Corporation, although at the 
date ofthe Bonds ofsuch Series such persons may 
not have been so authorized or have held such 
office or employment. 

(0) The Bonds of each Series shali 
bear thereon a certificate of authentication, in the 
form set forth in the Supplemental lndenlure 
authorizing such Bond, executed manually by the 
Trustee or by an agent of the Trustee approved by 
Ihe Corporation. No Bond shall be entitled to any 
right or benefit under lhis lndenlure or shall be valid 
or obligatory shall for any purpose until such 
certificate of authentication shall have been duly 
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executed by the Trustee. Such certificate of the 
Trustee upon any Bond executed on behalf of the 
Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Bond so authenticated has been duly executed, 
authenticated and delivered under this lndenture 
and that the holder thereof is entitled to the benefits 
hereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS, 

PLEDGED RECEIPTS, AND OTHER AMOUNTS 

necessary to cure such deficiency or, if the 
Corporation fails to make such deposit on the date 
of issuanceof such Refunding Bonds, such amount 
must be so deposited from proceeds of such 
Refunding Bonds. 

Section 402 - Application of Pledged 
Receipts and Other Amounts. (A) Pledged 
Receipts shall, promplly upon their receipt, be 
deposited with a Depositary (who shall hold the 
same in a cuslodial account as agent for the 
Trustee subject to the provisions of Section 51 1) 
and transmitted to the Trustee at least monthly; 
such Pledged Receipts, together with all Pledged 
Receipts collected by the Trustee, shall be credited 
to the Revenue Fund. U ~ o n  receiot bv the Trustee 

Section 401 - Application of Bona or any Depositary of an; ~ l e o g e d  ~ece ip t s ,  such 
Proceeds. Accrued lnteresl and Premium. (A) The Pledged Receipts shall be deemed to be credited to 
proceeds of sale of the Bonds of each Series shall. the Revenue Fund. 
except to the extent that such Bonds shall be 
Refunding Bonds, as soon as practicable upon the 
delivery of such Bonds by the Trustee pursuant to 
Section 206, be applied as follows: 

(1) The amount, if any, 
necessary lo cause the amount on deposit 
in the Capital Reserve Fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement immediately 
after such delivery shall be deposited In the 
Capital Reserve Fund; 

(2) The amount, if any, to be 
deposited therein pursuant to the 

(B)TheCorporation may make a deposit of 
money or any other assets to any Fund or Account, 
and !he Trustee shall accept such deposit for such 
Fund or Account. When such deposit is made. 
such money or other assets shall be held for the 
purpose or purposes of such Fund or Account and 
otherwise subject to all of the terms and conditions 
of this lndenture. 

ARTICLE V 
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Supplemental Indenture authorizing the Section 501 - Establishment of Funds and 
issuance of such Series shall be deoosited Accounts. (A) The Corooralion herebv establishes 
in the Interest Account; 

(3) The balance remaining 
after all other deposits required by this 
Section have been made shall be 
deposited in the Series Account within the 
Education Loan Fund established for such 
Series. 

(8)   he procedds of sale of the Bonds 
of a Series of Refunding Bonds or the proceeds of 
the Refunding Bonds of any Series which includes 
Refunding Bonds, shall be deposited in the 
Redemption Account or shall be applied as 
otherwise provided in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the issuance of such Series of Bonds; 
provided, however, that if the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is, or will be at the time of issuance 
of such Refunding Bonds, less than the Capital 
Reserve Requirement then the Corporation must 
deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund the amount 

and create; the ~ a s t &  Education ~ d a n  Revenue 
Bond Account as a special account wilhin the 
Education Loan Trust Fund to be held by the 
Trustee in trust hereunder. Within the Master 
Education Loan Revenue Bond Account. the 
corporation also hereby eslablishes and creates 
the following special trust funds and within such 
funds the following accounts (ail to be held by the 
Trustee in trust hereunder) to the extent fixed 
hereunder: 

(1) Education Loan Fund; 
(a) Series Accounts; 
(b) Unallocaled Accounts; 

(2) Revenue Fund; 
(a) Interest Account; 
(b) Principal Account: 
(c) Redemption Account; 

(3) Capital Reserve Fund. 
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(5) Any amounts heid by a Depositary 
as agent for the Truslee and all amounts held 
under the CustodianlDepositarylServicing 
Agreement shall be deemed to be held by lhe 
Trustee in the appropriate Fund or Account 
hereunder. All moneys or securities deposited with 
the Truslee or any Depositary pursuant to this 
lndenture shali be held in trust and applied only in 
accordance with the provisions hereof and shall be 
considered trust funds for the purposes of this 
Indenture. 

Section 502 - Education Loan Fund. (A) 
The Corporation shall create or identify in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing a Series of 
Bonds a Series Education Loan Account within the 
Education Loan Fund applicable to such Series of 
Bonds. Each such Series Account shall be 
identified by inserting in the designation thereforlhe 
year, letter, or other designalion of the Bonds of 
such Series. In addition. the Corporation may 
direct the Truslee lo create additional Unallocated 
Accounts within the Educalion Loan Fund for the 
purpose of holding Pledged Loans that are not 
allocated to a Series of Bonds or for any other 
purpose designated by the Corporation. The 
Corporation may deposit Education Loans and 
other assets in an Unaliocated Account at any time. 
Amounts specified in Section 401 hereof shali be 
deposited in each Series Account. 

(B) Exceptas permitled by subseclion 
(F) of this Section, amounts in any Series Account 
shall be expended only (i) to pay the cost of 
acquiring or financing Education Loans (ii) to pay 
reasonable and necessary Costs of Issuance of 
any Bonds, subject to any limitalion on such use 
thal may be established in any Supplemental 
Indenlure. (iii) to pay the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on the Bonds when due 
by transfer to the appropriate account of the 
Revenue Fund, as applicable, (iv) to pay any costs 
associated with any of the foregoing, or (v) for such 
other purposes as the Corporation may direct in 
writing, including, but not limited lo, the payment of 
Program Expenses. Education Loans or 
Investment Securities acquired with amounts in a 
Series Account shall be credited to that Series 
Account. Amounts deposited in an Unallocaled 
Account may be used for such purposes as the 
Corporation may direct in writing, including, but not 
limited lo, the paymenl of Program Expenses. 

(C) The Trustee shall pay out and 
permit the withdrawal of amounts on deposit in any 
Series Account at any time for the purpose of 

making payments and deposils pursuant to (8) of 
this Seclion, but only upon receipt of a Certificate of 
an Authorized Officer setting forth (i) the amount to 
be paid. (ii) the person or persons to whom such 
payment is to be made (which may be or include 
the Corporat ion or, pursuant to the 
CustodianlDepositarylServicing Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, the State), and (iii) in 
reasonable detail the terms of the Education Loans, 
if any, to be financed by such wilhdrawal and the 
purposeor purposesofsuch wilhdrawal and stating 
that such withdrawal from the Series Account is a 
proper charge thereon. 

(D) At any time that Bonds of a Series 
shall be subject lo mandatory redemption or 
payment and amounts in the Redemption Accounl 
in the case of a redemption, or in the Interest 
Accounl and Principal Account in the case of a 
payment, are insufficient for such purposes, unless 
otherwise directed by the Corporalion. the Trustee 
shall transfer the amounts necessary for such 
purposes first from Surplus Revenues. then from 
the Series Account for such Bonds, lhen from any 
olherseries Accounlto lhe Redemption Account or 
to the Interest Account and Principal Account, for 
redemption or payment of such Bonds as the case 
may be, or apply such amounts directly to the 
redemption, purchase or retirement of such Bonds 
in accordance with theirtermsand the provisions of 
Article VI. If, after making any transfer required 
pursuant to the preceding sentence there remains 
an insufficiency, the Truslee shall apply amounts in 
the Capital Reserve Fund in accordance wilh and 
subject to the terms of Section 506 hereof to sallsfy 
such insufficiency. Except asotherwise provided in 
a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds, any redemption or 
paymenl under this Section shall be made in 
descending order of priority by Class, beginning 
with Class I Bonds, if any. 

(E) RESERVED 

(F) Upon the payment or redemption 
of all of the Outstanding Bonds of any Series, the 
balance, if any, remaining in the Series Account 
eslablished for such Series shall be transferred to 
the Revenue Fund, and any Loans allocated lo 
such Series Account shall be reallocated to the 
Unaliocated Accounl unless otherwise provided by 
a Supplemental Indenture. 

( G )  At any lime the Corporation may 
direct the Trustee lo withdraw Pledged Loans or 
other property from any Series Account or any 
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Unallocated Account, and the Trustee shall so 
withdraw such Pledged Loans orother property and 
deliver such Pledged Loans orother property to the 
Corporation free and clear of the lien and pledge of 
this lndenture; provided that 

(i) the Trustee receives a Rating 
Con f i rma t ion  tak ing in to  
consideration such withdrawal of 
Pledged Loan or other property; 

(ii) the Trustee receives from the 
Corporation a Certificate that no 
Event of Default and no payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
exists or remains uncured, and no 
Event of Defauit or payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
as to which the Trustee has 
knowledge shall exist and remain 
uncured (unless the withdrawal 
shall cure the Event of Default or 
payment default); 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund will 
be funded to at least the Capital 
Reserve Requirement after giving 
effect lo the withdrawal; 

(iv) any additional requirements 
imposed by a Supplemental 
lndenture are satisfied; and 

(v) the Corporation shall certify to 
the Trustee that all conditions 
precedent to the withdrawal of 
Pledged Loans and other property 
pursuant to this Section 502(G) 
and pursuant to any other 
applicable provisions of this 
lndenture or any Supplemental 
lndenture shall have been 
satisfied. 

The Corporation may expend any amounts paid to 
it or transfer or use any Pledged Loans or olher 
property transferred to it for any lawful purpose 
including, without limitation, the acquisition of 
additional Education Loans fortransfertoany Fund. 

(H) The corporation may at any time 
sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of a 
Pledged Loan at a price (i) at least equal to the 
principal amounl thereof (plus accrued interest) (a) 
when the amounts on deposit in the Funds created 
in Section 501(A) are at least equal the principal 

amounl of the Outstanding Bonds or (b) to pay 
current debt service on the Bonds; or (ii) lower than 
the principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) 
if the Corporation delivers to the Trustee a Rating 
Confirmation taking into consideration such sale. 
assignment, transfer, or other disposition of such 
Pledged Loan at such lower price. The Corporation 
shall sell Pledged Loans i f  necessary to prevent the 
occurrence of an Event of Default. The 
corporation shall also sell Pledged Loans if 
necessary to prevent a default in the payment of 
the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds 
when due, unless such sale would cause an Event 
of Default to occur. 

Section 503 - Revenue Fund. (A) Pledged 
Receipts, together with all olher funds received 
hereunder and not otherwise directed hereunder. 
shall be credited to the Revenue Fund as required 
by Section 402 hereof. 

(B) Amounts in the Revenue Fund 
shall be applied only for the purpose of making the 
payments or transfers provided in (C) of this 
Section. 

(C) The Trustee shall make payments 
from the Revenue Fund at any time in the order 
and amounts prescribed below: 

First To the Corporation, the 
amount certified in writing by the 
Corporation as necessary to make any 
rebate payments or Yield Reduction 
Payments required to comply with its 
covenant contained in Section 714. 

Second: To the Corporation, as 
directed in writing, for the payment of 
Program Expenses, or the establishment 
of reserves therefor, the amount needed 
and required lo pay a portion of the 
reasonable and necessary Program 
Expenses and, in addition, any amounl 
needed to pay fees and expenses with 
respect to any Credit Enhancement, any 
Interest Rate Exchange Agreement, orany 
Auction Agent or broker dealer; provided 
that the amount so paid lo the Corporation 
or set aside in reserve during any Fiscal 
Year for the payment of Program 
Expenses may not exceed 1.25% of the 
average principal amount of Pledged 
Loans outstanding during the preceding 
Fiscal Year or such greater or lesser 
amounl as may be set forth in a 
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Supplemental Indenture, provided that the 
Corporation must provide the Trustee with a Rating 
Confirmation thal reflects any greater amount 
before establishing any such greater amount in a 
Supplemental Indenture, 

Third: To the lnterest Account, the 
amount necessary to increase the amount 
in such Account so that it at least equals 
unpaid interest on the Outstanding Bonds 
of the highest Class coming due within the 
next Business Day (or to honor any 
reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any Credit Enhancement or Interest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such interest), unless 
olherwise specified with respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the Series of Bonds. 

Fourth: To the Principal Account, 
the amount necessary to increase the 
amounl in such Account so that it at least 
equals the amount of unpaid Principal 
Installments which will become due on the 
Outstanding Bonds of the highest Class 
within the next Business Day (or lo honor 
any reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any Credit Enhancement or lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such principal), unless 
otherwise specified wilh respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
Indenture authorizing such Series of 
Bonds. 

Fifth: To the Interest Account first 
and the Principal Accounl second the 
amounts necessary to make the payments 
described in Paragraphs Third and Fourth 
of this Section 503(C) By Class in 
Descending Order of Priority wilh respect 
lo  any Outstanding Bonds other than the 
Class I Bonds; provided, however. that in 
each case described in this paragraph Fifth 
if any such principal or interest amounl has 
been paid through a Credit Enhancement 
facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement, then to thal extent any 
Pledged Receipts which would otherwise 
have been applied to such payments shall. 
instead, be applied to honor any 
reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any such instrument corresponding 
to any such payment. 

Sixth: To the Capital Reserve 
Fund. the amount, if any, necessary lo 
cause the amount in such fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement. 

Seventh: To the Education Loan 
Fund in such amount or amounts as 
directed in writing by the Corporation for 
deposit in any Series Account or 
Unallocated Accounl as the Corporation 
may indicate for the purposes of such 
Accounts. 

Eighth: Any remaining amounts 
shall be held In the Revenue Fund and 
applied as provided in the foregoing 
paragraphs or applied to payments 
described in Section 502(D). Section 
506(A), or Section 508. 

Section 504 - Interest Account and 
Principal Account. (A) The Trustee shall pay out of 
the lnterest Account to the respective Paying 
Agents for the Bonds (i) on or before each lnterest 
Payment Date, the amounts required for the 
payment of interest due on the Outstanding Bonds 
on such date and (ii) on or before the redemption 
date or dale of purchase, the amounts required for 
the payment of accrued inlerest on the Bonds 
redeemed or purchased for retirement, unless the 
payment of such accrued interest shall be 
otherwise provided for. In each such case, such 
amounts shall be applied by such Paying Agents to 
such payments; provided, however, thal each 
payment shall be made in descending order of 
priority by Class, beginning with Class I Bonds, if 
any, unless otherwise provided in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance of a Series or 
Class of Bonds; and provided, further, that, unless 
olherwise provided in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the issuance of a Series or Class of 
Bonds, interest payments with respect lo any lower 
Class of Bonds shall be made only if and to the 
extent that principal amounts due with respect to 
any higher Class of Bonds have been set aside in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraph 
Fourth of Section 503(C). 

(6) From the amount accumulated in the 
Principal Accountforeach Principal Installmentwith 
respect to Bonds the Trustee shall pay to the 
respective Paying Agents on or before each 
Principal Installment Date the amounl, if any, 
required for the payment of principal due on such 
date, and such amounts shall be applied by the 
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Paying Agents lo such payments: provided, 
however. that, unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplemental indenture authorizing the issuance of 
a Series or Class of Bonds, each payment shall be 
made in descending order of priority by Class. 
beginning with Class I Bonds, if any. 

(C) The amount accumuiated in the 
Principal Account for each Sinking Fund Payment 
may and, if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation, shall be deposited in the Redemplion 
Account(togelherwith amounts accumulated in the 
Interest Account with respect to interest on such 
Bonds for which such Sinking Fund Payment was 
established) and applied by the Truslee priorto the 
forly-fifth day preceding the due date of such 
Sinking Fund Payment as follows: 

(1) lo the purchase pursuant-to 
Section 505(B) of Bonds of the Series and 
maturity for which such Sinking Fund 
Payment was established: or 

(2) lo the redemplion of such 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602 or Section 
603, if then redeemable by thelr terms, at 
the Redemption Price which would be 
payable for such Bonds upon redemption 
by application of such Sinking Fund 
Payment plus unpaid lnlerest accrued to 
the date of redemption. 

(D) Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 504, if interest or principal 
with respect lo any Bond is paid from Credit 
Enhancement and such payment is required to be 
reimbursed, then amounts held in lhe lnterest 
Account and in the Principal Account shail be used 
tomakesuch reimbursementin lieu ofmaking such 
interest or principal payments in accordance with 
the terms of the instrument creating the Credit 
Enhancement. 

Seclion 505 - Redemption Account. (A) 
There shall be deposiled in the Redemption 
Account any amounts which are required to be 
deposited therein pursuant to this lndenture or any 
Supplemental indenture and any olher amounls 
available therefor and determined by the 
Corporation to be deposited therein. Subject to the 
provisions of this lndenture or of any Supplemental 
Indenture requiring the application thereof to the 
purchase or redemption of any particular Bonds. 
the Trustee shall appiy any amounts deposited in 
the Redemption Account to the purchase or 
redemption of any of the Bonds (or to the 

reimbursement of any Credit Enhancement 
provider for amounts advanced by Credit 
Enhancement lo  pay for such purchase or 
redemption) at the times and in the manner 
provided in this Section and in Section 602 or 
Section 603, as applicable. 

(6) At any time prior to the forty-fifth 
day prior lo the day upon which Bonds are to be 
redeemed from such amounb, the Trustee shail. 
upon the written direction of the Corporation, appiy 
amounts in the Redemption Account lo the 
purchase of any of the Bonds which may be 
redeemed by application of amounls on deposit in 
the Redemption Account, except that the 
Corporation may, by delivery of written instructions 
lo such effect signed by an Authorized Officer. 
require or prohibit such purchases in lhe discretion 
of the Corporation. The Trustee shall purchase 
Bonds at such times, for such prices, in such 
amounts and in such manner as the Corporation 
shall from time to time direct in writing. The 
purchase price paid (exciuding accrued interest but 
including any brokerage and olher charges) for any 
Bond purchased shall not exceed the principal 
amount of such Bond unless such Bond may be 
redeemed in accordance with this lndenture on any 
date within thirteen months after such purchase in 
which event such purchase price shall not exceed 
the higheslRedemption Price payable on any guch 
date upon the redemption of such Bond. In the 
event the Trustee is able to purchase a principal 
amount of Bonds equivalent to the sum of the 
deposits in the Redemplion Account for the 
redemption of such Bonds at a purchase price less 
than the sum of such deposits, excluding the 
applicable transfers from the Interest Account. 
upon the payment by the Truslee of the purchase 
price of such Bonds. the Trustee shall transfer the 
balance of such moneys remaining in the 
Redemption Account to, and deposit the same in. 
the Revenue Fund. 

(C) The Corporation may, from time to 
lime by written instructions, direct the Trustee to 
make purchases under subsection (6) above. No 
purchase of Bonds shail be made by the Trustee 
from amounts in the Redemption Account within 
the period of forty-five days next preceding any 
date on which such Bonds are subject to 
redemption. 

(D) Upon the purchase or redemption 
of Bonds of any Series and maturity for which 
Sinking Fund Payments have been established 
from amounts in the Redemption Account, there 
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shall be credited toward ail future Sinking Fund 
Payments thereafler to become due and any 
payment upon final maturity with respect to such 
Bonds, on a pro rata basis among ail such Sinking 
Fund Payments and payment upon final malurity, 
an amount equal to the total principal amounl of 
such Bonds so purchased or redeemed. If. 
however, there shall be filed with the Trustee 
written instructions of an Authorized Officer 
specifying a different method for crediting Sinking 
Fund Payments upon any such purchase or 
redemplion of Bonds, then such Sinking Fund 
Payments shall be credited as shali be provided in 
such inslructions, but only if the corporation shall 
have filed with the Truslee a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such crediting method. 

(E) As soon as practicable afler the 
forty-fifth day preceding the due date of any such 
Sinking Fund Payment, the Truslee shali proceed 
to cail for redernption pursuant to Section 603, on 
such due date. Bonds of the Series and maturity for 
which such Sinking Fund Paymentwas established 
in such amount as shali be necessary to complete 
the retirement of Bonds of such Series and maturity 
in the principal amount equal to the amount of the 
unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Payment. 
The Trustee shall so cail such Bonds for 
redemption without regard to whether it lhen has 
moneys in the Redemption Account sufficient lo 
pay the applicable Redemplion Price thereof to the 
redemption date. The Trustee shall pay out of the 
Redemption Account lo the appropriate Paying 
Agents on the day preceding each such redemption 
date, the amount required for the redemption of the 
Bonds so called for redemplion, and such amount 
shaii be applied by such Paying Agents to such 
redemption. 

(F) The Truslee shaii pay out of the 
Redemption Accounl to the Paying Agents for such 
Bonds on or before the redemption dale thereof. 
the amounts required for the payrnent on such date 
by such Paying Agents, respectively, of the 
Redemption Price of any Bonds to be redeemed 
and the Paying Agents shail appiy such amounts to 
the redemption of such Bonds on and after such 
date. If at any date there shail be moneys in the 
Redemption Account and there shall be 
Outstanding none of the Bonds of the Series for the 
redernption of which such moneys were deposiled 
in the Redernption Account, such moneys shaii be 
withdrawn lherefrom and deposited in the Revenue 
Fund. 

(G) Except for amounts which are 

required lo be relained therein forlhe redemption of 
Bonds for which notice of redemption shall have 
been given as provided in Article VI or for which the 
Trustee has received irrevocable inslructions to 
give such a notice on a future date, amounts in the 
Redemption Account may, upon the written request 
of the Corooration. sioned bv an Authorized Officer. 
be transferred to thekeveiue Fund 

Section 506 - lnsufficienl Revenues; 
Capital Reserve Fund. (A) if, one Business Day 
before any lnterest Payment Date, the amount in 
the Principal Accounl or the lnterest Account 
(taking inlo account amounls scheduled to be 
received from Investment Securilies at any time 
before such Interest Payment Date) shali be less 
lhan the amount required for the payrnent of all 
Principal Installments and interest on Outstanding 
Bonds of a Class due on such lnterest Payment 
Date, the Truslee shall apply all Surplus Revenues 
and then amounts in the related Series Accounts 
and then from any other Series Accounts to satisfy 
such insufficiency and, if an insufficiency remains 
thereafter, shall immedialeiy notify the Corporation 
of such event and shall apply amounts from the 
Capital Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to 
make good the deficiency. Amounts so applied 
shall be applied By Class in Descending Order of 
Priority by Class. i f  on any Redernption Dale (or 
any date for the purchase of Bonds under Section 
505(B)), the amount in the Redemption Account 
and the interest Account shali be less lhan the 
amount required for the payment of the 
Redemption Price (or purchase price) and inlerest 
accrued on such Bonds lo be redeemed (or 
purchased) on such dale the Trustee shali appiy all 
Surplus Revenues and then amounts in the related 
Series Accounts and then from any other Series 
Accounts to satisfy such insufficiency and, if an 
insufficiency remains thereafter, shall immedialely 
nolify the Corporalion of such event and shall apply 
amounts from the Capital Reserve Fund to the 
extent necessary to make good the deficiency. 
Amounts so applied shall be applied By Class in 
Descending Order of Priority. If, on any date 
specified in this Section 506(A) for the application 
of amounts in the Capital Reserve Fund, there are 
insufficient amounts for such application, or if, a l  
any time, the amount in the Capital Reserve Fund 
is less than the Capital Reserve Requirement, the 
Truslee shall immediately nolify the corporation of 
such event and, upon the written direction of the 
Corporation, shail immediately transfer to the 
Capital Reserve Fund from assets of the 
Corporation made available for such purpose by 
the Corporation or from any other Fund or Account 
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(provided that the Trustee shali make any such 
transfer from a Series Account only after 
transferring any available assets of the corporation 
and any amounts in all other Funds and Accounts. 
excluding any Credit Enhancemenl Fund, and then 
on a pro rata basis among the amounts available in 
all the Series Accounts unless a different allocation 
is required for Federal tax reasons as set forth in a 
Letter of instructions, or to pay principal or interest 
on any Bonds) amounts necessary to increase the 
amount in the Capital Reserve Fund to the amount 
needed for the intended application or to the Capital 
R e s e ~ e  Requirement, as the case may be. In 
determining whether the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is a l  least equal to the Capital 
Reserve Requirement. the Trustee shail include the 
amount of cash and the principal amount of 
Investment Securities held in the Capitai Reserve 
Fund, together with the amounl of interest earned 
or accrued thereon as of the date of valuation, and 
shail also include, but only if any other requirement 
therefor specified in a Supplemental lndenture has 
been satisfied, the principal component of any 
Credit Enhancement then on deposit in the Capilal 
Reserve Fund. 

(8) Ail income earned or gains realized 
as a result of the investment of amounts on deposil 
in the Capital Reserve Fund shall be deposited 
therein and constitute a part thereof. Except as 
provided in subsection (C) of lhis Section, if. 
concurrently with any allocation from the Revenue 
Fund pursuant10 subsection (C) of Section 503, the 
amount on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund 
shali be in excess of the Capilal Reserve 
Requirement, the Trustee shali transfer the amount 
of such excess to the Revenue Fund. 

(C) Whenever the Corporation shall 
deliver instructions lo the Trustee to redeem Bonds 
of a particular Series or the redemption of Bonds of 
a particular Series Is required by a Supplemental 
Indenlure (otherthan by application of Sinking Fund 
Paymenls) and such redemption is to be made 
from amounts then on deposit In any Fund or 
Account other than the Capital Reserve Fund, the 
Truslee shall calculate the amount by which the 
amount on deposit in the Capitai Reserve Fund will 
exceed the Capital Reserve Requirement 
immediately following the redemption of the Bonds 
specified in such instructions (and to be redeemed 
from such amounk) and such excess amountshall 
on the redemption date specified in such 
instruclions, be transferred into the Revenue Fund. 
In making the aforesaid calculation, the Trustee 
shall also take into account, as nearly as 
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practicable, the additional amount by which the 
amount on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund will 
exceed the Capital Reserve Requirement as a 
result of the redemption of Bonds from the amounts 
to be so withdrawn. The Trustee shali give notice 
of the redemption of such Bonds and shail select 
the particular Bonds to be so redeemed in such 
manner as the corporation shail specify in written 
instructions (subject to the terms of lhis Indenture 
and any Supplemental indenture) or, failing such 
instructions, as the Trustee shall. in its sole 
discretion, deem advisable. 

(D) Whenever the amount in the 
Capilal Reserve Fund, together with the amount in 
the Interest Account and Principal Account, Is 
sufficient to fully pay the principal of and interest on 
all Outstanding Bonds of a Series in accordance 
with their terms (including the Sinking Fund 
Payments for the retirement thereof), and 
immediately thereaftertheamounton deposit in the 
Capital Reserve Fund shall at least equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement, such amount shall. 
at the writlen direction of the Corporation, be 
transferred from the Capilal Reserve Fund lo  the 
Revenue Fund. Prior lo any such transfer. 
investments held in the Capital Reserve Fund in an 
amount necessary to make said transfer shall be 
liquidated. 

(E) The Trustee shall sell or redeem 
Investment Securities to the extent necessary to 
provide money to make any required paymenl 
pursuant lo this Section and, at the written direction 
of the Corporation, shall sell or redeem Investment 
Securities to make any deposit, purchase, payment 
or redemption as permitted pursuant to this 
Section. 

Section 507 - . RESERVED 

Section 508 - Excess Coveraqe. At any 
lime, but no more frequently than once every 
month. the Corporation may deliver to the Trustee 
a Certificate, evidencing the fact that there is then 
Excess Coverage on deposit hereunder and 
specifying the amount lhereof and slating that no 
Event of Default or paymenl default exists 
hereunder. Promptly upon the Trustee's receipl of 
that Certificate with a Rating Confirmation reflecting 
the release of any Excess Coverage, the Trustee 
shall release such Excess Coverage to the 
Corporation from the Education Loan Fund (other 
than proceeds of Bonds) or from the Revenue 
Fund, as set forth in such Certificate, for any of ils 
corporate purposes, including, without limilation, 



the deposit of said amounts in any Fund or Account 
or the acquisition of additional Education Loans for 
transfer to any Fund. The Trustee may 
conclusively rely upon such Certificate without 
further duty to examine or investigate the accuracy 
thereof. 

Section 509 - Obtaininq Credit 
Enhancements and interest Rate Exchanqe 
Aqreements. Except as otherwise provided in a 
Supplementai lndenture authorizing the issuanceof 
a Series or Class of Bonds, the Corporation may 
obtain Credit Enhancemenl or an lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement with respect to such Bonds 
either at the time of issuance of the Bonds or any 
time thereafter, provided that, in any case, the 
Corporation shall have filed with the Trustee a 
Rating Confirmation reflecting such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. The Class ranking of such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement shall be determined as provided in 
Section 510(D). 

Section 510 -Creation of Additional Funds. 
Accounts and Subaccounls; Separate Credit 
Enhancement Funds: Pledqe of Trust Estate with 
Respect lo Creait Enhancements and Interest Rate 
Exchanqe Aqreements. (A) The Trustee shall 
establish within anv Fund such Accounts in addition 
to the ~ccount; herein established as the 
Corporation shall by Supplemental lndenlure 
determine and shall in like manner establish within 
any Account such additional subaccounts for the 
purposes of such Account as the Corporation shall 
so determine. 

(B) The Corporation may at any time 
by execution of a Supplemental lndenture establish 
a Fund or Account in which to hold any Credit 
Enhancement and the proceeds thereof or 
drawings thereunder (a "Credit Enhancement 
Fund") for the benefit of any Series of Bonds to 
which such Credil Enhancementhas been pledged, 
which pledge may be (but is not required to be) 
exclusively for the benefit of such Series of Bonds 
or cerlain designated Series of Bonds and not 
equally and ratably among all the Series of Bonds 
and Parity Obligations Outstanding. Amounts held 
in a Credit Enhancement Fund shall not be 
considered a part of the Trust Estate but, rather. 
shall be subject to such lien and pledge as may be 
created in the Supplemental lndenture creating 
such Credit Enhancemenl. 

(C) if the Corporation creates a Credit 
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Enhancement Fund. the Corporation may direct, in 
the Supplemental lndenture creating such Credit 
Enhancement Fund, that the Trustee pay, and if so 
directed in writing by the Corporation the Trustee 
shall pay, principal (including premium, if any) of 
and interest on the Bonds secured by such Credit 
Enhancement Fund directly from amounts in such 
Credit Enhancement Fund and that the Trustee 
reimburse, and if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation the Trustee shall so reimburse, such 
Credit Enhancement Fund for such payment from 
the Credit Enhancement Fund; provided, however, 
that the Corporation may, in the Supplemental 
lndenture aulhorizing the Series of Bonds to be 
secured by Credit Enhancement, treat any, or any 
part of any;obligalion owed or which may in the 
future be owed to the Credit Enhancement Agency 
pursuant to the Credit Enhancement Instrument as 
Additional Bonds of the same Class as the Bonds 
secured by such Credit Enhancement if the 
Corporation, at the time of issuance of said Series 
of Bonds and at the time of the creation of any such 
obligation satisfies the requirementsofSeclion208. 
in which case the Trustee shall pay the principal of 
and interest on any such obligations in accordance 
with the terms of this lndenture treating such 
obligations as Additional Bonds. In a Supplement 
lndenture authorizing Additional Bonds secured by 
a Credit Enhancement Fund the Corporation may 
fix provisions relating to such Fund different from 
the provisions of Section 511. In addition to the 
foregoing, the corporation may agree to permit a 
Credit Enhancemenl Agency to be subrogated to 
the rights of any Bondholders whose Bonds are 
secured by the Credit Enhancement provided that 
such Credit Enhancement Agency is not in default 
under such Credit Enhancement and provided that 
such Credit Enhancement, if it has been assigned 
a Class as provided above, is in a Ciass at least as 
high as the Ciass of the Bonds it secures. 

(D) If the Corporation enters inlo an 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement or obtains 
Credit Enhancement with respect lo  any Series or 
Class of Bonds, the Corporation may grant a 
security interest in the Trust Estate to secure 
performance of the Corporation's obligations under 
such Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement. The Corporation may 
identify the Ciass ranking of the Credit 
Enhancement or Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreement in the Supplemental lndenlure 
authorizing the Bonds secured by such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement or in the agreement creating the Credit 
Enhancement or Interest Rate Exchange 



Agreement. The Class ranking of the Credit 
Enhancement or Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreement may be equal to or greater or lesser 
than the Class ranking of any Bonds issued under 
this lndenture, including the Bonds secured by the 
Credit Enhancement or Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. 

Section 511 - Deposits and Investments. 
(A) All amounts in any Fund or Account held under 
this lndenlure (including amounts described in the 
CustodianlDeposilary/Se~icing Agreement and any 
other amounts held in any fund or account created 
by or on behalf of any such fiduciary or Deposilary 
for the receipt of amounls held under this 
Indenture) by any Fiduciary or Depositary shall be 
held in lrust for the benefit of the Truslee if not held 
by the Trustee and shall be continuously and fully 
secured for the benefit of the Corporation and the 
holders of the Bonds either (i) by lodging 
lnvestment Securities as collateral with the Trustee 
as custodian, having a market value (exclusive of 
accrued interest) not less than the amount of such 
moneys or (ii) in such other manner as may then be 
required by applicable federal or state laws and 
regulations and applicable state laws and 
regulations of the state in which such Fiduciary or 
Depositary (as the case may be) is located. 
regarding security for, or granting a preference in 
the case of. the deposit of lrust funds; except that 
it shall not be necessary for a Fiduciary or 
Depositarytogive security under lhis subsection for 
the deposil of any moneys with them held in trust 
and set aside by them for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on any 
Bonds, or for any Fiduciary or Deposilary to give 
security for any moneys which shall be represented 
by obligations or certificates of deposil purchased 
as an investment of such moneys. All amounts 
deposited with the Trustee and each Depositary 
(including amounts received by the State of Alaska 
under the Custodlan/Depositary/Servicing 
Agreement) shall immediately be credited to the 
particular Fund or Account to which such amounts 
belong. Until such time as such amounts are 
expended for the purposes authorized by lhis 
lndenlure or any Supplemental lndenture or are 
transferred lo another Fund or Account as provided 
in this lndenture or any Supplemental Indenture. 
the Trustee or Depositary shall invest such 
amounls as provided in (B) of lhis Section. Neither 
theTrustee nor any Depositaryshall be responsible 
for any losses resulting from the investmenl of 
moneys in the funds and accounts created 
hereunder, so long as such investmenls are made 
in accordance wilh this lndenture and the written 

direction of the Corporation or, in the case of the 
State acting under the Custodian Agreement, in 
accordance with the Custodian Agreement. 

(B) Upon the deposil of any amounts 
in any Fund or Account, the Corporation may 
furnish the Trustee wilh a schedule of dates on 
which it is estimated by the Corporation that such 
moneys in said Fund or Account will be required to 
be expended. The Corporation may from time to 
time amend the schedule so furnished. Upon 
receipt of such schedule oramended schedule, the 
Corporation shall direct the Trustee or Depositary. 
in writing, lo invest and reinvest In Investment 
Securities the moneys in said Fund or Account so 
that the maturity dale or date of redemption at the 
option of the holder of such obligations shall 
coincide as nearly as practicable with the limes at 
which moneys are needed by the Corporation to be 
so expended, except that (i) with respect to the 
Capital Reserve Fund such Investment Securities 
shall include only such investmenls as are 
permitted pursuant to any Supplemental lndenlure 
authorizing a Series of Bonds as to which any 
Bonds remain Outstanding at the time of such 
investment; (ii) the average maturities of 
investmenls purchased with amounts in the Capital 
Reserve Fund may be limited pursuant to the 
provisions of a Supplemental Indenture; and (iii) 
investments purchased with amounts In the 
PrincipalAccountmuslmatureorbe redeemabieat 
the option of the holder no later than the day before 
the interest Payment Date on which amounts used 
to purchase such inveslments are needed to pay 
principal of the Bonds, and investments purchased 
wilh amounls in the interest Account must mature 
or be redeemable at the option of the holder no 
later than the day before the Interest Payment Date 
on which amounts used to purchase such 
investments are needed to pay interest on the 
Bonds. The obligations purchased shali be held by 
the Truslee and shali be deemed at ail times to be 
part of such Fund or Account, and the Trustee shali 
keep the corporation advised as to the details of all 
such investments. 

(C) Except as otherwise provided in 
this lndenture, obligations purchased as an 
investment of moneys in any Fund or Account held 
by the Trustee under the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be deemed at all times lo be a part 
of such Fund or Account, butthe income or interest 
earned and gains realized in excess of losses 
suffered by a Fund or Account, other than the 
Capital Reserve Fund, due lo  the investment 
thereof shall be deposited upon receipt as Pledged 
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Receipts into the Revenue Fund 

(D) The Trustee shall advise the 
Corporation in writing, on or before the tenlh day of 
each calendar monlh, of the details of all 
investments held for the credit of each Fund and 
Account in its custody under the provisions of this 
lndenture as of the end of the preceding month. 

Seclion 512 - Use of Funds in Event of 
Default. if an Event of Default described in Section 
1002(l) or(2)occurs and is continuing, the Trustee 
may use moneys from any Fund or Account 
created hereunder to make payments required 
hereunder. 

ARTICLE VI 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 601 - Privilege of Redemption and 
Redemption Price. Bonds subject to redemplion 
prior to maturity pursuant to a Supplemental 
lndenture shall be redeemable, upon notice as 
provided in this Article, at such times, at such 
Redemption Prices and upon such terms as may 
be specified in such Bonds, in this lndenture and in 
the Supplemental lndenture authorizing such 
Series. Nothing in this lndenture or in any 
Supplemental lndenture shall require the 
redemption of Bonds in amounts less lhan 
Authorized Denominations. If amounts are 
available for the redemption of Bonds but such 
amounts are less than an Authorized Denomination 
of the Bonds lo be redeemed, the Truslee shall so 
notily the corporation and, at the writlen direction of 
the Corporation, shali deposit such Fund or 
Account as such wrltlen direction shall indicate. 

Section 602 - Redemplion at lhe Election 
or Direction of the Corporation. In the case of any 
redemplion of Bonds other than as provided in 
Seclion 603. the Corporation shall give written 
nolice at the time specified in the Supplemental 
lndenture relating lo said Bonds lo lhe Trustee of 
its election or direction so to redeem, of the 
redemplion dale, of the Series, of the principal 
amounts of lhe Bonds of each maturity of such 
Series to be redeemed (which redemption date, 
Series, maturities and principal amounts thereof to 
be redeemed shall be determined by the 
corporation in ils sole discretion, subject to any 
limilalions with respect thereto contained in this 
lndenlure and any Supplemental Indenture) and of 
any moneys to be applied to the payment of the 
Redemplion Price. Upon the giving of such notice, 
the Corporation, if it holds the amounts to be 

applied to the payment of the Redemption Price. 
shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the 
Redemption Account an amount in cash which, in 
addition lo other moneys, if any, available therefor 
held herein, will be sufficient to redeem on the 
redemption date at the Redemplion Price thereof, 
ail of the Bonds lo be redeemed. 

Section 603 -Redemption Otherwise Than 
at Corporation's Election or Direction. Whenever 
by the terms of this lndenlure the Trustee is 
required lo redeem Bonds otherwise than at the 
eleclion or direction of the Corporation, and subject 
to and in accordance with the terms of this Article. 
the Supplemental lndenture aulhorizing the Series 
of Bonds of which the Bonds to be redeemed are 
part, and. to the extent applicable. Article V, the 
Trustee shaii select the redemplion date of the 
Bonds to be redeemed and give notice of the 
redemption in the manner prescribed by Section 
605. 

Section 604 - Selection of Bonds to be 
Redeemed by Lot. In the event of redemption of 
less than all the Outstanding Bonds of like Series. 
Class, and maturity, the Trustee shall select the 
Bonds to be redeemed, from all Bonds or portions 
thereof not previously called for redemption, by lot 
in any manner which the Trustee in its sole 
discretion shall deem fair and appropriate. 

Seclion 605 -Notice of Redemption. When 
the Trustee shali receive notice from the 
Corporation of its election or direction to redeem 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602, and when 
redemption of Bonds is required by this lndenture 
pursuant to Section 603, unless otherwise required 
for a Series of Bonds by the Supplemental 
lndenlure authorizing the same, the Truslee shall 
give notice in the name of the Corporation, 
regardless of whether the Trustee has sufficient 
money available to pay the applicable Redemption 
Price wilh accrued interest on the Bonds to be 
redeemed, of the redemption of such Bonds, which 
notice shall specify the Series, Class, and 
maturities of !he Bonds to be redeemed, the 
redemption date and the place or places where 
amounts due upon such redemption will be payable 
and, if less than all of the Bonds of any like Series. 
Class, and maturity are to be redeemed, the letters 
and numbers or olher distinguishing marks of such 
Bonds so to be redeemed and, in the case of 
Bonds to be redeemed in part only, such notice 
shall also specify the respective portions of the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such 
notice shall furlher slate thal on such date there 
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shail become due and payable upon each Bond to 
be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the 
Redemption Price of the specified portions of the 
principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be 
redeemed in part only, together with interest 
accrued lo the redemption dale, and that from and 
after such redemption date interest thereon shall 
cease to accrue and be payable; provided. 
however, that if the Trustee does not have availabie 
money in an amount sufficient to pay such amounls 
on such dale, then such notice of redemption shall 
be null and of no effect. The Trustee shail mail a 
copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at the time 
specified in the Supplemental lndenture that 
authorized the issuance of such Bonds, to the 
registered owners of any Bonds or portions of 
Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last 
addresses, if any, appearing upon the registry 
books, but such mailing shall not be a condition 
precedent to such redemption and failure so to mail 
any such notice shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of Bonds. 

Section 606 - Payment of Redeemed 
Bonds. Notice having been given in the manner 
~rovided in Section 605. the Bonds or oortions 
thereof so called for redemplion shall become due 
and payable on the redemption date so designated 
at the Redemption Price, plus interest accrued and 
unpaid to the redemption dale, and, upon 
presentation and surrender thereof at the office 
specified in such notice, such Bonds, or portions 
thereof, shall be paid at the Redemption Price plus 
interestaccruedand unpaid to the redemplion date. 
If there shall be drawn for redemption less than all 
of a Bond, the Corporation shall execute and the 
Trustee shall authenticate and the Paying Agent 
deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without 
charge to the owner thereof, for the unredeemed 
balance of the principal amount of the registered 
Bond so surrendered at the option of the owner 
thereof, Bonds of like Series and maturity in any of 
the authorized denominations. If, on the 
redemption date, moneys for the redemption of all 
the Bonds or portions thereof of any like Series and 
malurity to be redeemed, together with interest lo 
the redemption date, shall be held by any Paying 
Agent so as to be available therefor on said date 
and if notice of redemption shall have been mailed 
as aforesaid, then, from and after the redemption 
date interest on the Bonds or portions thereof of 
such Series and maturities socalled for redemption 
shall cease to accrue and become payable. If said 
moneys shall notbe so available on the redemption 
date, such Bonds or portions thereof shall continue 
to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they 
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would have borne had they not been called for 
redemption. 

ARTICLE VII 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS 

The Corporation covenants and agrees 
with the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds as 
foilows: 

Section 701 - Payment of Bonds. The 
corporation shall duly and punctually pay or cause 
to be paid the principalor Redemption Price, if any. 
of every Bond and the interestthereon, at the dates 
and places and in the manner stated in the Bonds 
according lo the true intent and meaning thereof 
and shail duly and punctually pay or cause to be 
paid all Sinking Fund Payments, if any, becoming 
payable with respect lo any Series of Bonds. 

Section 702 - Extension of Payment of 
Bonds. The corporation shail not directly or 
indirectly extend or assent to the extension of the 
malurity of any of the Bonds or the time of payment 
of any claims for interest by the purchase or 
funding of such Bonds or claims for interest or by 
any other arrangement and in case the maturity of 
any of the Bonds or the time for payment of any 
such claims for interest shail be extended, such 
Bonds or claims for interest shall not be entitled, in 
case of any default hereunder, lo the benefit of this 
lndenture or to any payment out of the Funds or 
Accounts established pursuant to this lndenture, 
including the investments, if any, thereof, or out of 
any assets or revenues pledged hereunder (except 
moneys held in trust for the payment of particular 
Bonds or claims for interest pursuant lo this 
Indenture) prior to benefits accorded to or the 
payment of the principal of all Bonds Outstanding 
the maturily of which has not been extended and of 
such portion of the accrued interest on the Bonds 
as shall not be represented by such extended 
claims for interest. Nothing herein shall be deemed 
to limit the right of the corporation lo issue 
Refunding Bonds and such issuance shall not be 
deemed lo constitute an extension of maturily of 
Bonds. 

Section 703 - Office for Servicinq Bonds. 
The Corporation shail at all times maintain an office 
or agency where Bonds may be presented for 
transfer or exchange, and where notices, 
presentations and demands upon the Corporation 
In respect of the Bonds or of this lndenture may be 
served. The Corporation hereby appoints the 
Trustee as ib agent to maintain such office or 



agency for the transfer or exchange of Bonds and 
for the service of such notices, presentations and 
demands upon the Corporation and may appoint 
one or more co-registrars for such purposes. The 
Corporation hereby appoints the Trustee as Paying 
Agent and hereby appoints the Paying Agent as its 
agent to maintain such offices or agencies for the 
payment of Bonds. 

Section 704 - Further Assurance. At any 
and all times the Corporation shall, so far as it may 
be authorized by law, pass, make, do, execute. 
acknowledge and deliver, all and every such further 
resolutions, acts, deeds, conveyances. 
assignments, transfers and assurances as may be 
necessary for the better assuring, conveying, 
granting, pledging,assigning and confirming all and 
singular the rights, assels, revenues and other 
moneys, securities, funds and property hereby 
pledged or assigned, or intended so to be, orwhich 
the Corporalion may become bound to pledge or 
assign. 

Section 705 - Power to issue Bonds and 
Pledqe Revenues. Funds and Other Property. The 
Corporalion is duly authorized under all applicable 
laws to aulhorize and issue the Bonds and to 
execute and deliver this lndenture and lo pledge 
the Trust Estate purported lo be pledged hereby in 
the manner and to the extent herein provided. The 
Trust Estate so pledged is and will be free and 
clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance 
thereon or with respect therelo prior to, of equal 
rank with, or subordinate to. the pledge created 
hereby, other than any pledge or lien granted as 
security for Parity Obligalions in conformity with the 
terms and provisions of this Indenlure, and all 
corporale or other action on the part of the 
Corporation to that end has been and will be duly 
and validly laken. The Bonds and the provisions of 
this lndenture are and will be the valid and legally 
enforceable obligations of Ihe Corporation in 
accordance with lheir lerms and the terms of this 
Indenture. The Corporation shall at all limes, to the 
extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and 
protect the pledge of the Pledged Loans, Pledged 
Loan Notes, Pledged Receipts, and other assets 
and revenues constituting the Trust Estate. 
including rights therein pledged under this 
lndenture and all the rights of the Bondholders 
under this lndenture against all claims and 
demands of all persons whomsoever. 

Section 706 -Accounts and Reports. (A) 
The Corporation shall keep, or cause to be kept, 
proper books of record and account in which 

complete and accurate entries shali be made of all 
its transactions relating to the Education Loan 
Program and ail Funds and Accounts established 
by this lndenture which shail at all reasonable times 
be subject to the inspection of ihe Trustee and the 
holders of an aggregate of not less than twenty-five 
per centum (25%) in principal amounl of Bonds 
then Outstanding or lheir representatives duly 
authorized in writing. The Corporatlon shail cause 
records to be maintained designating each 
Education Loan in accordance with the designation 
of the Bonds of the Series from the proceeds of 
which it was financed or deemed to be financed in 
accordance with this lndenture. 

(B) The Corporation shall annually. 
within 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of 
the Corporalion, file with the Trustee, and with such 
officials of the Stale, if any, as may be required by 
the Act, financial statemenls of the Corporation for 
such fiscal year setting forth in reasonable detail: 
(a) a statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net assels in accordance with the 
categories or classifications established by the 
Corporation for its Education Loan Program 
purposes; (b) a balance sheet or statement of net 
assets for the Education Loan Program showing its 
assets and liabililies at the end of such fiscal year: 
and (c) a stalemenl of cash flows for the Education 
Loan Program for such fiscal year. The financial 
statements for the Education Loan Program may 
be combined with financial statements for other 
programs and purposes of the Corporation so long 
as the said financial statements for the Education 
Loan Program are separately identified. The 
financial slatements shall be accompanied by an 
Accountant's Certificate slating lo the general effect 
that the financial statements examined present 
fairly the financial position of the Corporation at the 
end of the fiscal year, the results of its operalions 
and the changes in financial position for the period 
examined, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

(C) A copy of each Accounlanl's 
Certificate shali be mailed promptly thereafter by 
the Corporation to each Bondholderwho shall have 
filed his name and address with the Corporation for 
such purpose. 

Section 707 - Educalion Loan Proqram. 
(A) The Corporation shall from time to time, wiUl all 
practical dispatch and in a sound and economical 
manner consistent in all respects with the Act and 
ils regulations and other applicable provisions of 
law from time to time in effect, the provisions of this 
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indenture and sound banking practices and 
principles. (i) use and apply the proceeds of the 
Bonds, to the extent the same are not directed to 
be used otherwise pursuant lo a Supplemental 
Indenture, to finance Education Loans pursuant lo 
the Act and this Indenture, (ii) do all such acts and 
things as shall be necessary to receive and collect 
Pledged Receipts (including diligentenforcementof 
the prompt collection of any delinquencies) 
sufficient to pay the Program Expenses and the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, of and 
interest on the Bonds and apply such amounts in a 
manner consistent with such purpose, and (iii) 
diligently enforce, and take all steps, actions and 
proceedings reasonably necessaryin the judgment 
of the Corporation to enforce, all terms, covenants 
and conditionsof Pledged Loans, including, without 
limitation, any action or proceeding necessitated by 
any State legislation purporting lo waive or relax 
any of the terms and provisions thereof. 
Nolwilhslanding the foregoing. the Corporation 
may, upon filing a Rating confirmation with the 
Trustee reflecting a proposed modification of the 
terms of Pledged Loans or Pledged Loan Notes, 
modify the lerms of any Pledged Loan or Pledged 
Loan Note or any group of Pledged Loans or 
Pledged Loan Noles or take any other action it 
chooses which may have theeffect ofmodifying the 
terms of any such Pledged Loans or Pledged Loan 
Notes. 

(B) No amount in the Education Loan 
Fund shall be expended or applied for the purpose 
of financing a Guaranteed Loan, unless (except to 
the extent that a variance from such requirements 
is required by an agency or instrumentality of the 
United States of America insuring or guaranteeing 
the payment of such Guaranteed Loan) the 
Corporalion has determined that: 

(i) the payment of the 
principal of and interest on such 
Guaranleed Loan is to the maximum 
extent then permitted by law either (1) 
insured by the Secretary as evidenced by 
a certificate of insurance issued under the 
provisions of the Higher Education Act, or 
(2) guaranteed by a Guarantor and the 
Secretary is required, at the time of 
financing, to reimburse such Guarantor in 
accordance with the Higher Education Act 
to the extent permilted by federal law for 
amounts expended by such Guarantor in 
discharge of its insurance obligation on 
such Guaranteed Loan; 

(ii) the interesl rate on such 
Guaranteed Loan at the time of acquisition 
is the maximum rate of interest then 
permilted under the Higher Education Act, 
as evidenced by its related promissory 
note (unless lhe Corporation accepts a 
lower interest rate after the corporation 
delivers a Rating Confirmation reflecting 
such lowerinterest rate to the Trustee prior 
lo instituting the authorization for such 
lesser charges under the Education Loan 
Program); and 

(iii) if not originated by the 
Corporation, or the Trustee on behalf of 
the Corporalion. (a) the Guaranteed Loan 
is subject to being repurchased by the 
seller if such Guaranteed Loan does not 
comply with the standards of the 
Corporation under its education loan 
purchase agreement and (b) the seller or 
other lransferor of such Guaranteed Loan 
represents that the loan subject lo such 
transfer is free of any encumbrances or 
liens. 

If the payment of all Bonds is secured by 
one or more Credit Enhancements, all of the Credit 
Enhancement Agencies may waive the 
requirements of (iii) above. 

The Corporation may exchange with any 
purchaser one or more Education Loans for one or 
more Guaranleed Loans (of approximately the 
same aggregate principal amount and accrued 
interest) of a borrower who is the obligor on other 
Guaranteed Loans. The Corporation may at any 
time and from time to time exchange Education 
Loans for other Guaranteed Loans having an 
aggregate principal amount and interesl rate not 
less than the aggregate principal amount and 
interest race of the Guaranteed Loans being 
exchanged. for the purpose of consolidating 
Guaranteed Loans of a single borrower within one 
indenture. 

(C) The Corporation covenantsthalthe 
Commission is an eligible lender under the Higher 
Education Act. The Corporation, or its designated 
agent, shall be responsible for each of the following 
actions with respect lo the Higher Education Act: 

(i) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall be responsible for 
dealing with the Secretary with respect to 
the rights, benefits and obligalions under 
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the certificates of insurance and 
the contract of insurance with 
respect to such Guaranteed 
Loans, and the Corporation shall 
be responsible fordealing with the 
Guarantor with respect lo the 
rights, benefils and obligations 
under any guarantee agreement 
wilh respecl to the Guaranteed 
Loans; 

(ii) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall cause to be 
diligently enforced, and shall cause to be 
taken, all reasonable steps, actions and 
proceedings necessary or appropriate for 
the enforcemenl of all terms, covenanls 
and conditions of all Guaranteed Loans 
and agreements in connection therewith. 
including the prompt payment of all 
principal and interest payments and all 
other amounts due thereunder: 

(iii) The Corporalion, or its 
designated agent, shall comply, and shall 
cause allof its officers, director, employees 
and agents to comply, wilh the provisions 
of the Higher Educalion Acl and any 
regulations or rulings thereunder, with 
respect lo lhe Guaranteed Loans. 

(iv) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall cause the benefils 
of the guarantee agreements, the interesl 
subsidy payments and !he special 
allowance payments to flow to the Truslee. 
The Trustee shall have no liability for 
aclions taken at the direction of the 
Corporation, except for negligence or willful 
misconduct in the performance of its 
express duties hereunder. The Trustee 
shall have no obligation to adminisler. 
service or collect the loans in lhe Trust 
Estate or to maintain or monitor the 
adminislration, servicing or collection of 
such loans. 

(D) The Corporation hereby covenants 
that all Guaranteed Loans to be acquired 
hereunder will meet the following: 

(1) Each Guaranteed Loan is 
evidenced by an executed promissory note 
and is, lo the best knowledge of the 
Corporation, a valid and binding obligation 
of the borrower, enforceable by or on 

behalf of the holder thereof in accordance 
with ils terms, subject to bankruptcy. 
insolvency and olher laws relating to or 
affecting creditors' rights. 

(ii) No borrower of any 
Guaranleed Loan was noled in the file 
relaling to such Guaranteed Loan as being 
currently involved in a bankruplcy 
proceeding. 

(iii) To the best knowledge of 
the Corporation. the amount of lhe unpaid 
principal balance of each Guaranteed Loan 
is true and owing, and no counterclaim, 
offsel, defense or right lo rescission exists 
with respect lo  any Guaranleed Loan 
which can be asserted and maintained or 
which, with nolice, lapse of lime, or the 
occurrence or failure to occur of any act or 
event, could be asserted and mainlained 
by the borrower against the Corporation as 
assignee thereof. The Corporalion shall 
take all reasonable aclions to assure lhal 
no maker of a Guaranleed Loan has or 
may acquire a defense to the payment 
thereof. 

(iv) The Corporation has full 
right, title and interest in each Guaranteed 
Loan free and clear of all liens, pledges or 
encumbrances whatsoever. 

(v) To the best knowledge of 
the Corporation, each Guaranteed Loan 
was made in compliance with all applicable 
local, stale and federal laws, rules and 
regulations, including without limitation all 
applicable nondiscrimination, truth-in- 
lending, consumer credit and usury laws. 

Section 708 - Issuance of Additional 
Obliqations. (A) The Corporation shall not 
hereafler create or permit the creation of or issue 
any obligations or create any indebtedness which 
will be secured bv a lien on the Trust Eslate exceol 
as provided in Sections 206. 207, 208 and 209. 

(8) The Corporation shall not issue 
any Series of Bonds under this Indenture unless: 

(1) the principal amount of the 
Bonds then lo be issued, together with the 
principal amount of the bonds, noles and 
other obligations of the Corporation 
theretofore issued (less any Bonds to be 
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refunded thereby and deemed not 
Outstanding) will not in the opinion of Bond 
Counsel exceed in aggregate principal 
amount any limitation thereon imposed by 
law; and 

(2) upon the issuance and delivery 
of such Bonds. the amount credited to the 
Capital Reserve Fund shall not be less 
than the Capital Reserve Requirement. 

Section 709 -The  Capital Reserve Fund. 
(A) The Corporation shall at all times maintain the 
Capital Reserve Fund created and established by 
Section 501 and do and perform or cause to be 
done and performed each and every act and thing 
with respecl to the Capital Reserve Fund provided 
to be done or performed by or on behalf of the 
Corporation or lhe Trustee or the Paying Agents 
under the terms and provisions of Article V hereof. 

(B) In orderto better secure the Bonds 
and to make them more marketable and to 
maintain in the Capital Reserve Fund an amount 
equal to the Capital Reserve Requirement, the 
Corporation shall, in compliance with the provisions 
of the Act, cause the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation annually, on or before 
January 15 of each year, lo certify in writing to the 
Governor of the State and the Chairmen of the 
House and Senate Finance Committees the 
amount, if any, required to restore the Capital 
Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve Requirement. 
A copy of such Certificale shall be promptly 
delivered to the Trustee. All moneys received by 
the Corporation from the State in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act pursuanl to any such 
cerllficalion shall be paid to the Trustee for deposit 
and credit to the Capital Reserve Fund. In addition. 
If 15 days prior to the end of each calendar quarter 
during which the Bonds are outstanding, the 
amount in the Capital Reserve Fund is not equal to 
the Capital Reserve Requirement or there is not 
sufficient money otherwise available in all Funds 
and Accounts established hereunder to pay 
Principal Installments and interesl coming due on 
the next Interest Payment Date, the Chairman of 
Ihe Board shall cerlify in writing to the Governor the 
amount, if any, required to restore the Capital 
Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve Requirement 
or to pay such Principal Installment and interest 
coming due, as the case may be. 

(C) Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this lndenture, the Trustee shall not 
permit amounts to be withdrawn from the Capital 
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Reserve Fund other than pursuant to Section 506. 

Section 710 - Compliance with Conditions 
Precedent. Upon the date of issuance of any of the 
Bonds, all conditions, acts and things required by 
law or by this lndenture to exist, to have happened 
or to have been performed precedent to or in the 
issuance of such Bonds shallexist, have happened 
and have been performed, orwill have happened or 
been performed, and such Bonds, togetherwith all 
other indebtedness of the Corporation shali be 
wilhin every debt and other limil prescribed by law. 

Section 711 - General. The Corporation 
shall do and perform or cause to be done and 
performed ail acts and things required to be done 
or performed by or on behalf of the Corporation 
under the provisions of the Act and this lndenture in 
accordance with the terms of such provisions. 

Section 712 - Waiver of Laws. The 
Corporation shall not at any time insist upon or 
plead in any manner whatsoever, or claim or take 
the benefit or advantage of  any stay or extension 
law now or at any time hereafter in force which may 
affect the covenants and agreements contained in 
this lndenture or in the Bonds, and all benefit or 
advantage of any such law is hereby expressly 
waived by the Corporation. 

Section 713 - Servicinq of Education 
Loans. The Corporation covenants that it will 
provide or cause to be provided servicing for the 
Pledged Loans. The Corporation hereby 
represents and warrants that it has the experience 
to administer and service the Education Loans in 
accordance with the requirements of the Act and. 
when applicable, the Higher Education Act and 
covenants that it shall at all times take all actian to 
ensure that the Education Loans made with the 
proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and the 
administering and servicing of such Education 
Loans complies with the requirements of the Act 
and. with regards to Guaranteed Loans, the Higher 
Education Act. 

Section 714 - Tax Covenants. (A) The 
Corporation shali not knowingly take or cause any 
action to be taken which would cause interest on 
any Bonds to become laxabte for federal income 
tax purposes. The Corporation shall at all times do 
and perform all acts and things necessary or 
desirable, including, but not limiled to, complying 
with the rebate provisions of Section 148 of the 
Code, as applicable, and complying' with the 
provisions of any letter of instructions from Bond 



and, with regards to Guaranteed Loans, the Higher 
Education Act. 

Section 714 - Tax Covenants. (A) The 
Corporation shall not knowingly take or cause any 
action to be taken which would cause interest on 
any Bonds to become taxable for federal income 
tax purposes. The Corporation shall at all times do 
and perform all acts and things necessary or 
desirable, including, but not limited to, complying 
with the rebate provisions of Section 148 of the 
Code, as applicable. and complying with the 
provisions of any letter of instructions from Bond 
Counsel, in order to assure that interest paid on 
Bonds shall, for purposes of federal income 
taxation, be excludable from the gross income of 
the recipients thereof and exempt from taxation. 
The Corporation shall not permit at any time or 
times any proceeds of any Bonds or any amounts 
held hereunder to be used. directlv or indirectlv. in 

time for filing the monitoring report, and no such 
agreement is subject to notice, review, or approval 
by any party, including, but not limited to, the 
Trustee and the Bondholders. The Corporation 
shall file the first monitoring report with Moody's 
within 215 days after the close of the Corporation's 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 and, thereafter, 
shall file subsequent monitoring reports within 215 
days after the end of each subsequent fiscal year. 

(C) The Corporation hereby covenantsand 
agrees that it will notify the Rating Agencies of any 
change in the Act which would permit it or require 
it to declare bankruptcy under the B a n k ~ p t ~ y  
Code. 

ARTICLE Vlll 
SUPPLEMENTALINDENTURES 

a mannerwhich would result in theexclusion ofany Section 801 - Sup~lemental Indentures 
Bond from the treatment afforoed by subsection (a) Effective Upon filinq With the Trustee. For any one 
of Section 103 of the Code. 

(B) This Section shall not apply to any 
Bonds the interest on which is intended by the 
Corporation not to be excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 
of the Code: provided, that no such Bonds shall be 
issued unless a Bond Counsel's opinion is filed with 
theTrustee stating that the issuance of such Bonds 
will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of the 
interest on any previously issued Bond. 

Section 715 - Continuina Disclosure. 
Monitorina Report: Bankruptcy. (A) The 
Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that it 
will comply with and cany out all the provisions of 
each Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Indenture, failure of the Corporation to comply with 
any Conlinuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be 
considered an Event of Default. and any 
Bondholder may take such actions only as may be 
provided in such Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

(5) The Corporation hereby covenants and 
agrees that it will file with Moody's, for as long as 
any Bonds are Outstanding as to which Moody's is 
a Rating Agency. an annual monitoring report 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
A; provided, however. that the Corporation and 
Moody's may at any time agree to waive the 
requirements of this subsection or to modify the 
form and content of the monitoring report or the 

or more of the following purposes and at any time 
or from time to time followino written notice to the 
Rating Agencies. a ~upplem&tal lndenture may be 
entered into by and between the Corporation and 
the Trustee 

(1) To close this lndenture 
against, or provide limitations and 
restrictions in addition tothe limitations and 
restrictions contained in this lndenture on, 
the authentication and deliveN0f Bonds or 
the issuance of other ecidences of 
indebtedness; 

(2) To add to the covenants 
and agreements of the Corporation in this 
lndenture othercovenants and agreements 
to be observed by the Corporation which 
are not contrary to or inconsistent with this 
lndenture as theretofore in effect; 

(3) To add to the limitations 
and restrictions in this lndenture other 
limitations and restrictions to be obsewed 
by the Corporation which are not contrary 
to or inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; 

(4) To surrender any right. 
power or privilege r e s e ~ e d  to or conferred 
upon the corporation by the t e n s  of this 
Indenture, but only if the surrender of such 
right, power or privilege is not contrary to 
or inconsistent with the covenants and 
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agreements of the Corporation contained 
in this lndenture; 

(5) To authorize Bonds of a 
Series and, in connection therewith, (A) to 
specify and determine the matters and 
things referred to in, or otherwise take the 
actions described in. Sections 206. 302. 
306(A), 307,4Ol(A)(2), 40l(B), 510,511, 
601,602,603,605, and 11 02 and also any 
other matters and things relative to such 
Bonds which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect. (6) to amend, modify 
or rescind any such authorization. 
specification or determination at any time 
prior to the first authentication and delivery 
of such Bonds or (C) to add such 
provisions to this lndenture and, if 
necessary, amend the provisions of this 
lndenture as may be necessary to permit 
and provide for the issuance of such 
Bonds as bearer Bonds; 

(6) To confirm, as further 
assurance, any pledge under, and the 
subjection to any lien or pledge created or 
to be created by, this indenture, of the 
Trust Estate; 

(7) To modify any of the 
provisions of this lndenture in any respect 
whatsoever, provided that (i) such 
modification shall be, and be expressed to 
be, effective only after all Bonds of any 
Series Outstanding at the date of the 
adoption of such Supplemental lndenture 
shall cease to be Outstanding, and (ii) 
such Supplemental lndenture shall be 
specifically referred to in the text of all 
Bonds of any Series authenticated and 
delivered after the date of the adoption of 
such Supplemental lndenture and of 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in 
place thereof; and 

(8) To make such additions, 
deletions, or modifications as may be 
necessary to assure compliance with 
Section 148(d)(3) of the Code or Section 
148(f) of the Code or the Higher Education 
Act or to obtain a satisfactory rating on a 
Series or Class of Bonds from a Rating 
Agency, provided, that no such additions, 
deletions or modifications intended to 
obtain a satisfactory rating shall cause 
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reduction in any ratings assigned by a 
Rating Agency to Bonds then Outstanding. 

Section 802 - Suoolemental lndentures 
Effective Upon Consent of Trustee. (A) For any 
one or more of the following purposes and at any 
time or from time to time foliowing written notice t i  
the Rating Agencies, a Supplemental lndenture 
may be adopted, which, upon (i)  the filing with the 
Trustee of a copy thereof certified by an Authorized 
Officer, and (ii) the filing with the Trustee and the 
Corporation of an instrument in writing made by the 
Trustee consenting thereto, shall be fully effective 
in accordance with its terms: 

(1) To cure any ambiguity. 
supply any omission, or cure or correct any 
defect or inconsistent provision in this 
Indenture; or 

(2) To insert such provisions 
clarifying matters or questions arising 
under this lndenture as are necessary or 
desirable and are not. contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; or 

(3) To provide for additional 
duties of the Trustee in connection with the 
Pledged Loans; or 

(4) To make any change that 
is accompanied by a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such change or any change 
approved by a Credit Enhancement 
Agency if the change will only affect Bonds 
secured by Credit Enhancement issued by 
such Credit Enhancement Agency. 

(8) Any such Supplemental lndenture 
may also contain one or more of the purposes 
specified in Section 801, and in that event, the 
consent of the Trustee required by this Section 
shall be applicable only to those provisions of such 
Supplemental lndenture as shall contain one or 
more of the purposes set forth in subsection (A) of 
this Section. 

Section 803 - Supplemental Indentures 
Effective With Consentof Bondholders. At anytime 
or from time to time, a Supplemental lndenture may 
be adopted subject to consent by Bondholders in 
accordance with and subject to the provisions of 
Article IX, which Supplemental Indenture, upon the 
filing with the Trustee of a copy thereof certified by 
an Authorized Officerand upon compliance with the 



provisions of Article IX, shall become fully effective 
in accordance with its lerms as provided in said 
Article. 

Section 804 -General Provisions. (A) This 
lndenture shall not be modified or amended in any 
respect except as provided in and in accordance 
with and subject to the provisions of this Article and 
Article IX. Nothing in this Article or Article IX 
contained shall affect or limit the right or obligation 
of the Corporation to adopt, make, do, execute, 
acknowledge or deliver any resolulion, act or other 
instrument pursuant to the provisions of Section 
704 or the right or obligation of the Corporation to 
execute and deliverto any Fiduciary any instrument 
which elsewhere in this lndenture it is provided 
shall be delivered to said Fiduciary. 

(B) Any Supplemental lndenture 
referred to and permitted or authorized by Sections 
801 and 802 may be adopted by the Corporation 
without the consent of any of the Bondholders, but 
shall become effective only on the conditions, to the 
extent and at the time provided in said Sections, 
respectively. The copy of every Supplemental 
lndenture filed with the Trustee shall be 
accompanied by a Counsel's Opinion stating that 
such Supplemental lndenture has been duly and 
lawfully adopted in accordance with the provisions 
of this lndenture, is authorized or permitted by this 
Indenture, and is valid and binding upon the 
Corporation and enforceable in accordance with its 
terms (subject, as to enforcement of remedies, to 
applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency. 
moratorium, or other laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally from time to time in effect). 

(C) The Trustee is hereby authorized 
to accept the delivery of a certified copy of any 
Supplemental lndenture referred to permitted or 
authorized by Sections 801, 802 or 803 and to 
make all further agreements and stipulations which 
may be therein contained, and the Trustee, in 
taking such action, shall be fully protected in relying 
on an opinion of counsel (which may be a 
Counsel's Opinion) that such Supplemental 
lndenture is authorized or permitied by the 
provisions of this lndenture. 

(D) No Supplemental lndenture shall 
change or modify any of the rights or obligations of 
any Fiduciary without its written assent thereto. 
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ARTICLE IX 
AMENDMENTS 

Section 901 - Mailing of Notice of 
Amendment. Any provision in this Article for the 
mailing of a notice or other paper to Bondholders 
shall be fully complied with if it is mailed postage 
prepaid only (i) to each registered owner of Bonds 
then Outstanding at his address, if any, appearing 
upon the registry books of the Corporation, (ii) to 
each holder of any coupon Bond who shall have 
filed with the Trustee within two years preceding 
such mailing an address for notices, and (iii) to the 
Trustee. 

Section 902 -Powers of Amendment. Any 
modification or amendment of this lndenture or of 
the rights and obligations of the Corporation and of 
the holders of the Bonds and coupons (if any) 
hereunder, in any particular. may be made by a 
Supplemental Indenture, with the writien consent 
given as provided in Section 903, (i) of the holders 
of at least two-thirds in principal amount of the 
Bonds of the highest Class Outstanding at the time 
such consent is given, (ii) in case less than all of 
the several Series or Classes of Bonds then 
Outstanding are affected by the modification or 
amendment, of the holders of at least two-thirds in 
principal amount of the Bonds of each Series or 
Class so affected and Outstanding atthe time such 
consent is given, and (iii) in case the modification or 
amendment changes the terms of any Sinking 
Fund Payment, of the holders of at least two-thirds 
in principal amount of the Bonds of the particular 
Series. Class, and maturity entitled to such Sinking 
Fund Payment and Outstanding at the time such 
consent is given: except that if such modification or 
amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so 
long as any Bonds of any specified like Series. 
Class, and maturity remain Outstanding, the 
consent of the holders of such Bonds shall not be 
required and such Bonds shallnot be deemed to be 
Outstanding for the purpose of any calculation of 
Outstanding Bonds under this Section. No such 
modification or amendment shall permit a change 
in the terms of redemption or maturity of the 
principal of any Outstanding Bond or of any 
installment of interest thereon or a reduction in the 
principal amount or the Redemption Price thereof 
or in the rate of interest thereon withoul the consent 
of the holder of such Bond, or shall reduce the 
percentages or otherwise affect the classes of 
Bonds the consent of the holders of which is 
required to effect any such modification or 
amendment, or shall change or modify any of the 
rights or obligations of any Fiduciary without its 



written assent thereto. For the purposes of this 
Section, a Series or Class shall be deemed to be 
affected by a modification or amendment of this 
lndenture if the same adversely affects or 
diminishes the rights of the holders of Bonds of 
such Series or Class. In determining whether in 
accordance with the foregoing powers of 
amendment Bonds of any particular Series. Class. 
or maturity would be affected by any modification or 
amendment hereof h e  Trustee shall request a 
Counsel's Opinion, on which it shall rely, and any 
such Counsel's Opinion shall be binding and 
conclusive on the Corporation and all holders of 
Bonds. 

Section 903-Consent of Bondholders. (A) 
The Corporation may at any time adopt a 
Supplemental lndenture making a modification or 
amendment permitted by the provisions of Section 
902, to take effect when and as provided in this 
Section. A copy of such Supplemental lndenture 
(or brief summary thereof or reference thereto). 
together with a request to Bondholders for their 
consent thereto, shall be mailed by the Corporation 
to Bondholders . Such Supplemental lndenture 
shall not be effective unless and until there shall 
have been filed with the Trustee (a) the written 
consents of holders of the percenlages of 
Outstanding Bonds specified in Section 902 and (b) 
a Counsel's Opinion stating that such Supplemental 
lndenture has been duly and lawfully adopted and 
filed by the Corporation in accordance wilh the 
provisions of this lndenture, is authorized or 
permitted hereby and is valid and binding upon the 
Corporation and enforceable in accordance with its 
terms, and (ii) a notice shall have been mailed as 
hereinafter provided in this Section. 

(B) The consent of a Bondholder to 
any modification or amendment shall be effective 
only if accompanied by proof of the holding, at the 
date of such consent, of the Bonds with respect to 
which such consent is given, which proof shall be 
such as is permitted by Section 1114. A certificate 
or certificates by the Trustee filed with the Trustee 
that it has examined such proof and that such proof 
is sufficient in accordance with Section 1114 shall 
be conclusive that the consents have been given by 
the holders of the Bonds described in such 
certificate or certificates of the Trustee. Any such 
consent shall be binding upon the holder of the 
Bonds giving such consent and upon any 
subsequent holderofsuch Bonds and ofany Bonds 
issued in exchange therefor (regardless of whether 
such subseouent holder thereof has notice thereof) 
unless such consent is revoked in writing by the 
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holder of such Bonds giving such consent or a 
subsequentholderthereof by filing with IheT~stee,  
prior to the time when the written statement of the 
Trustee hereinafter provided for in this Section is 
filed, such revocation and, if such Bonds are 
transferable by delive~y, proof that such Bonds are 
held by the signer of such revocation in the manner 
permitted by Section 1114. The fact thata consent 
has not been revoked may likewise be proved by a 
certificate of the Trustee filed with the Trustee to 
the effect that no revocation thereof is on file with 
the Trustee. 

(C) At any time after the holders of the 
required percentages of Bonds shall have filed their 
consents to the Supplemental Indenture, the 
Trustee shall make and file with the Corporation 
and theTrustee a written statementthatthe holders 
of such required percentages of Bonds have filed 
such consents. Such written statement shall be 
conclusive that such consents have been so filed. 
At any time thereafter notice, stating in substance 
that the Supplemental lndenture adopted by the 
Corporation on a stated date, a copy of which is on 
file with the Trustee. has been consented to by the 
holders of the required percentages of Bonds and 
will be effective as provided in this Section, may be 
given to Bondholders by the Corporation by mailing 
such notice to Bondholders at least once not more 
than ninety days after the holders of the required 
percentages of Bonds shall have filed their 
consents to the Supplemental lndenture and the 
written statement of the Trustee hereinabove 
provided for is filed. The Corporation shall file with 
the Trustee proof of the publication of such notice 
and, i f  the same shall have been mailed to 
Bondholders, of the mailing thereof. A record, 
consisting of the papers required or permitted by 
this Section to be filed with the Trustee, shall be 
proof of the matters therein stated. Such 
Supplemental lndenture making such amendment 
or modification shall be deemed conclusively 
binding upon the Corporation, the Fiduciaries and 
the holders of all Bonds at the expiration of forty 
days after the filing with the Trustee of the proof of 
the first publication of such last mentioned notice. 
except in the event of a final decree of a court of 
competent jurisdiction setting aside such 
Supplemental lndenture in a legal action or 
equitable proceeding for purpose commenced 
within such forty day period; except that any 
Fiduciary and the Corporation during such forty day 
period and any such further period during which 
any such action or proceeding may be pending 
shall be entitled in their absolute discretion to take 
such aclion, or to refrain from taking such action. 



with respect to such Supplemental lndenture as 
they may deem expedient. 

Seclion 904 - Modificalions bv Unanimous 
Consent. The terms and provisions of this 
lndenture and the rights and.obligations of the 
corporation and of the holders of the Bonds may be 
modified or amended in any respect upon the 
adoplion and filing by the Corporation of a 
Supplemental lndenture and the consent of the 
holders of all the Bonds then Outstanding, such 
consent to be given as provided in Section 903 
except that no notice to Bondholders either by 
mailing or publication shall be required; but no such 
modification or amendment shall change or modify 
any of the rights or obligations of any Fiduciary 
unless there shall have been filed with the Trustee 
such Fiduciary's written assenttheretoin addition to 
the consent of the Bondholders. 

Section 905 - Exclusion of Bonds. Bonds 
owned or held by or for the account of the 
Corporation shall not be deemed Outstanding for 
the purpose of consent or other action or any 
calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in 
this Article, and the Corporation shall not be entitled 
with respect to such Bonds to give any consent or 
take any other action provided for in this Article. At 
the time of any consent or other action taken under 
this Article, the Corporation shall furnish the 
Trustee a Certificate of an Authorized Officer of the 
Corporation, upon which the Trustee may rely, 
describing all Bonds so to be excluded. 

Seclion 906 - Notation on Bonds. Bonds 
authenticated and delivered after the effective date 
of any action taken as in Article Vlll or this Article 
provided may, and, if the Corporation so 
determines, shall bear a notation by endorsement 
or otherwise in form approved by the Corporation 
and the Trustee as to such action, and in that case 
upon demand of the holder of any Bond 
Outstanding at such effective date and presentation 
of his Bond for the purpose at the principal office of 
the Trustee or upon any transfer or exchange of 
any Bond Outstanding at such effective date, 
suitable notation shall be made on such Bond or 
upon any Bond issued upon any such transfer or 
exchange by the Trustee as to any such action. IF 
the Corporation or the Trustee shall so determine. 
new Bonds so modified as in the opinion of the 
Trustee and the Corporation to conform to such 
action shall be prepared, authenticated and 
delivered, and upon demand of the holder of any 
Bond then Outstanding shall be exchanged. without 
cost to such Bondholder, for Bonds of the same 

Series and maturity then Outstanding, upon 
surrender of such Bonds with all unpaid coupons. 
if any, appertaining thereto. 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Seclion 1001 -Trustee to Exercise Powers 
of Statutow Trustee. The Trustee shall be and 
hereby is vested with all of the rights, powers and 
duties of a trustee permitted to be appointed by the 
Corporation pursuant to Section 14.42.230 of the 
Act. 

Section 1002 - Events of Default. Each of 
the following events is hereby declared an "Event of 
Default", that is to say if: 

. 

(1) the Corporation shall 
default in the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of any Bond of 
the highest Class Outstanding when and 
as the same shall become due, whether at 
maturity or upon call for redemption or 
otherwise; 

(2) paymenlofanyinstallment 
of interest on any of the Bonds of the 
highest Class Outstanding shall not be 
made when the same shall become due; 

(3) the Corporation shallfail 
or refuse to comply with the provisions of 
this lndenture, or shall default in the 
performance or observance of any of the 
covenants. agreements orconditionson its 
part contained herein or in any 
Supplemental lndenture or the Bonds, and 
such failure, refusal or default shall 
continue for a period of forty-five days after 
written notice thereof by the Trustee or the 
holders of not less than twenty-five per 
centum (25%) in principal amount of the 
Bonds of the highest Class Outstanding: 

(4) the Corporation shall 
commence a voluntary case or other 
proceeding seeking l iquidation, 
reorganization or other relief wilh respect 
to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy. 
insolvency or other similar law now or 
hereafter in effect or seeking the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
liquidator, custodian or other similar official 
of it or any substantial part of ils property. 
or shall consent to any such relief or to the 
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appointment of or taking possession by 
any such official in an involuntary case or 
other proceeding commenced against it, or 
shall make a general assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, or shall fail generally to 
pay its debts as they become due, or shall 
take any corporate action to authorize any 
of the foregoing; 

(5) an involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall be commenced 
againstthe Corporation seeking liquidation, 
reorganization or other relief with respect 
to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency or other similar law now or 
hereafter in effect or seeking the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver. 
liquidator, custodian or other similar official 
of it or any substantial part of its property, 
and such involuntary case or other 
proceeding shall remain undismissed or 
unstayed for a period of 60 days; or an 
order for relief shall be entered against the 
Corporation under the Federal bankruptcy 
laws as now or hereafter in effect; 

(6) any event of default shall 
have occurred and remain uncured under 
any Parity Obligation Instrument if there 
shall then be issued and outstanding 
thereunder Parity Obligations and if such 
Parity Obligations shall be of a Class at 
least equal to the highest Class of any 
Outstanding Bonds; and 

(7) any event designated an 
Event of Default by a Supplemental 
Indenture shall have occurred and remain 

. uncured. 

The Trustee shall be deemed to have 
actual knowledge of an Event of Default described 
in (4) through (7) above only upon receipt by a 
Corporate Trust Officer of the Trustee of a written 
notice thereof. 

Section 1003 - Remedies. (A) Upon the 
happening and continuance of any Event of Default 
specified in paragraph (1). (2) or (3) of Section 
1002 as to which the Trustee has knowledge, the 
Trustee shall proceed, or upon the happening and 
continuance of any Event of Default specified in 
paragraph (4). (5). (6) or (7) of Section 1002 as to 
which the Trustee has knowledge, the Trustee may 
proceed, and upon the written request of the 
holders of not less than twenty-five per centum 

(25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds 
of the highest Class, shall proceed, in its own 
name, subject to the provisions of Section 1103, to 
protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the 
Bondholders by such of the following remedies as 
the T ~ s t e e ,  being advised by counsel, shali deem 
most effectual to protect and enforce such rights: 

(1) by mandamus or other 
suit, action or proceeding at law or in 
equity, to enforce all of the Bondholders' 
rights, including the right of the Trustee on 
behalf of the Bondholders to receive and 
collect all Pledged Receipts and to require 
the Corporation to carry out any other 
covenant or agreement with Bondholders 
and to perform its duties under the Act; 

(2) by bringing suit upon the 
Bonds; 

(3) by action or suit in equity, 
to require the Corporation to account as if 
it were the trustee of an express trust for 
the owners of the Bonds and then take 
such action with respect to the Pledged 
Loans and related documents as the 
Trustee shall deem necessary or 
appropriate and in the best interest of the 
Bondholders, subject to the terms of the 
Pledged Loans and related documents, 
including the sale of part or all of the 
Pledged Loans. 

(4) by action or suit in equity. 
enjoin any acts or things which may be 
unlawful or in violation of the rights of the 
holders of the Bonds; 

(5) by declaring all Bonds due 
and payable, and if all defaults shall be 
made good, then. with the written consent 
of the holders of not less than twenty-five 
per centum (25%) in principal amount of 
the Outstanding Bonds of the highest 
Class Outstanding. by annulling such 
declaration and its consequences: or 

(6) by pursuing any rights or 
privileges it may have with respect to 
security for the Bonds under any Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

(6) In the enforcement of any rights 
and remedies under this lndenture, the T ~ s l e e  
shall be entitled to sue for, enforce payment on and 
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receive any and all amounts then or during any 
default becoming, and at any time remaining, due 
from the Corporation for principal, Redemption 
Price. Program Expenses, interest or othenuise, 
under any provision of this lndenture or a 
Supplemental lndenture or of the Bonds, and 
unpaid, with interest on overdue payments at the 
rate or rates of interest specified in such Bonds. 
together with any and all costs and expenses of 
collection and of all proceedings hereunder and 
under such Bonds, without prejudice to any other 
right or remedy of the Trustee or of the 
Bondholders, and to recover and enforce a 
judgment or decree against the Corporation for any 
portion of such amounts remaining unpaid, with 
interest, costs and expenses, and to collect from 
any moneys available for such purpose, in any 
manner provided by law, the moneys adjudged or 
decreed to be payable. 

Section 1004 - Prioritv of Paments Afler 
Default. (A) In the event that upon the happening 
and continuance of any Event of Default, the funds 
held by the Trustee and Paying Agents shall be 
insufficient for the payment of principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest then due 
on the Bonds. such funds and any other moneys 
received or collected by the Trustee acting 
pursuant to the Act and this Article or with respect 
to Parity Obligations or Parity Obligation 
Instruments, afler making provision for the payment 
of any expenses necessary in the opinion of the 
Trustee to protect the interests of the holders of the 
Bonds and for the payment of the charges and 
expenses and liabilities incurred and advances 
made by the Trustee or any Paying Agents in the 
performance of their respective duties under this 
Indenture, shall be applied as follows: 

(1) Unless the principal of all 
of the Bonds shall have come or have 
been declared due and payable, the 
Trustee shall make the following payments 
within the highest Class of Bonds 
Outstanding and, only after making all 
such payments within such Class, shall 
then make such payments within the next 
lower Class and, thereafter, shall make 
such payments within each succeeding 
lower Class: 

FIRST: To the payment to person 
entitled thereto of all installments of 
interest then due in the order of the 
maturity of such installments, and. if the 
amount available shall not be sufficient to 

pay in full any installment, then to the 
payment thereof ratably, according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the 
persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference except with 
respect to Classes as described above; 
and 

SECOND: To the payment to the 
persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 
principal or Redemption Price of any 
Bonds which shall have become due, 
whether at maturity or by call for 
redemption, in the order of their due dates 
and, if the amounts available shall not be 
sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds due on 
any date, then to the payment thereof 
ratably, according to the amounts of 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, due 
on such date, to the persons entitled 
thereto, without any discrimination or 
preference except with respect to Classes 
as described above. 

(2) If the principal of all of the 
Bonds shall have become or have been 
declared due and payable. the Trustee 
shall make the following payments within 
the highest Class of Bonds Outstanding 
and, only afler making all such payments, 
shall then make such payments within the 
next lower Class and, thereafter, shall 
make such payments within each 
succeeding lower Class: to the payment of 
the principal and interest then due and 
unpaid upon the Bonds of a Class without 
preference or priority of principal over 
interest or of interest over principal, or of 
any installment of interest over any other 
installment of interest, or of any Bond of 
such Class over any other Bond of such 
Class, ratably, according to the amounts 
due respectively for principal and interest, 
to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or preference except as to 
any difference in the respective rates of 
interest specified in the Bonds and 
coupons (if any). 

(0 )  Whenever moneys are to be 
applied by the Trustee pursuant tothe provisions of 
this Section, such moneys shall be applied by the 
Trustee at such times. and from time to time, as the 
Trustee in its sole discretion shall determine, 
having due regard to the amount of such moneys 
available for application and the likelihood of 
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additional money becoming available for such 
application in the future; the deposit of such 
moneys with the Paying Agents, or otherwise 
setting aside such moneys in trust for the proper 
purpose, shall constitute proper application by the 
Trustee; and the T ~ s t e e  shall incur no liability 
whatsoever to the Corporation, to any Bondholder 
or to any other person for any delay in applying any 
such moneys, so long as the Trustee acts with 
reasonable diligence, having due regard for the 
circumstances, and ultimately applies the same in 
accordance with such provisions of this lndenture 
as may be applicable at the time of application by 
the Trustee. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise 
such discretion in applying such moneys, it shall fix 
the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date 
unless the Trustee shall deem another date more 
suitabie)upon which such application isto be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of 
principal to be paid on such dale shall cease to 
accrue. The Trustee shali give such notice as it 
may deem appropriate for the fixing of any such 
date. The Trustee shall not be required to make 
payment to the holder of any unpaid coupon or any 
Bond unless such coupon or Bond shall be 
presented to the Trustee for appropriate 
endorsement or cancellation. 

Section 1005-Terminationof Proceedinqs. 
In case of any proceedings taken by the Trustee on 
account of any Event of Default shall have been 
discontinued or abandoned for any reason, then in 
every such case the Corporation, the Trustee and 
the Bondholders shall be restored to their former 
posilions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all 
rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Trustee 
shall continue as though no such proceeding had 
been taken. 

Section 1006 - Bondholders' Direclion of 
Proceedinqs. Anything in this lndenture to the 
contrarynotwithstanding, the holdersof the majority 
in principal amount of the Bonds of the highest 
Class then Outstanding shall have the right by an 
instrument or concurrent instruments in writing 
executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the 
method of conducting all remedial proceedings to 
be taken by the TNstee hereunder, provided that 
such direction shall not be otherwise than in 
accordance with law or the provisions of this 
Indenture, and that the Trustee shall have the right 
to decline to follow any such direction which in the 
opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly prejudicial 
to Bondholders not parties to such direclion or 
would adversely affect the Trustee. The Trustee 
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may rely on an Opinion of Counsel that such 
direction would adversely affect Bondholders. 

Section 1007 - Limitation on Riohts of 
Bondholders. (A) No holderofany Bond shall have 
any right to institute any suit, action, mandamus or 
other proceeding in equity or at law hereunder, or 
for the protection or enforcement of any right under 
this lndenture or any right under law unless such 
holder shall have given 6 the Trustee written notice 
of the Event of Default or breach of duty on account 
of which such suit. action or proceeding is to be 
taken. and unless the holders of not less than 
twenty-five percentum (25%) in principal amount of 
the Bonds of the highest Class then Outstanding 
shall have made written request ofthe Trustee afler 
the right to exercise such powers or right of action, 
as the case may be, shall have occurred, and shall 
have afforded theTrustee a reasonable opportunity 
either to proceed to exercise the powers herein 
granted or granted under the law or to institute such 
action, suit or proceeding in ils name and unless, 
also, there shall have been offered to the Trustee 
reasonable security and indemnity against the 
costs, expenses and liabilities to be insured therein 
or thereby, and the Trustee shall have refused or 
neglected to comply with such request within a 
reasonable time; and such notification, request and 
offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every 
such case, at the option of the Trustee, to be 
conditions precedent to the execution of the powers 
under this lndenture or for any other remedy 
hereunder or under law. It is understood and 
intended that no one or more holders of the Bonds 
hereby secured shall have any right in any manner 
whatever by their action to affect, disturb or 
prejudice the security of this lndenture, or to 
enforce any right hereunder or under law with 
respect to the Bonds of this lndenture, except in the 
manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at 
law or in equity shall be instituted, had and 
maintained in the manner herein provided and for 
the benefit of all holders of the Oulstanding Bonds. 
Nothing in this Article contained shall affect or 
impair the right of any Bondholder to enforce the 
payment of the principal or Redemption Price. if 
any, of and intereslon such Bondholder's Bonds, or 
the oblioation of the Cor~oration to Davthe ~ r i n c i ~ a l  
or ~ e d k p t i o n  Price, if any, ofand'inkresion each 
Bond issued hereunder to the holder thereof at the 
time and place in said Bond expressed. 

(B) Notwilhstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Section, or any other 
provision of this indenture, each holder of any Bond 
by such holder's acceptance thereof shall be 



deemed to have agreed that any court in its 
discretion may require, in any suit for the 
enforcement of any right or remedy under this 
lndenture or any Supplemental indenture, or in any 
suit against the Trustee for any action taken or 
omitted by it as Trustee, the filing by any party 
litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the 
reasonable costs of such suit. and that such court 
may in its discretion assess reasonable costs, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, against any 
party liligant in any such suit, having due regard to 
the merits and good faith of the claims or defenses 
made by such party litigant; but the provisions of 
this paragraph shall not apply to any suit instituted 
by the Trustee, to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder, or group of Bondholders, holding at 
least twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal 
amount of the Bonds of the highest Class 
Outstanding, or to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder for the enforcement of the payment of 
the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on 
any Bond on or afler the respective due date 
thereof expressed in such Bond. 

Section 1008 - Possession of Bonds by 
Trustee Not Required. All rights of action under 
this lndenture or under any of the Bonds, 
enforceable by the Trustee. may be enforced by it 
without the possession of any of the Bonds or the 
production thereof on the trial or other proceeding 
relative thereto, and any such suit, action or 
proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be 
brought in its name for the benefit of all the holders 
of such Bonds, subject to the provisions of this 
Indenture. 

Section 1009 - Remedies Not Exclusive. 
No remedy herein conferred upon or resewed to 
the TNS~& or to the holders of the Bonds is 

Section 101 1 -Notice to Bondholders. The 
Trustee shall give to the Bondholders notice of 
each Event of Default hereunder known to the 
Trustee within ninety days after knowledge of the 
occurrence thereof, unless such Event of Default 
shaii have been remedied or cured before the 
giving of such notice. Each such notice shall be 
given by the Trustee by mailing written notice 
thereof to all registered holders of Bonds, as the 
names and addresses of such holders appearupon 
the books for registration and transfer of Bonds as 
kept by the Trustee purpose and to such other 
persons as is required by law. 

ARTICLE XI 
CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES 

Section 1101 - Trustee. Zions First 
National Bank, a trust company or bank having the 
powers of a trust company doing business and 
having its principal office in the City of Denver, in 
the State of Colorado, is hereby appointed as 
T ~ s t e e .  The Trustee shall signify its acceptance of 
the duties and obligations imposed upon it by this 
lndenture by executing the certificate of 
authentication endorsed upon the Bonds, and, by 
executing such cerlificate upon any Bond, the 
Trustee shall be deemed to have accepted such 
duties and obligations not only with respect to the 
Bond so authenticated, but with respect to all the 
Bonds thereafter to be issued: but only, however, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Indenture. 

Section 1102 - Amointment and 
Acceotance of Duties of Payinq Aqents. (A) The 
Corporation shall appoint one or mare Paying 
Agents for the Bonds of any Series in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such Bonds or 

intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or shall appoint such Paying Agent or Paying Agents 
remedies. and each and everv such remedv shall bvresolution of the Corooration adooted ~ r i o r t o  the 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to an; other 
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 1010 - No Waiver of Default. No 
delay or omission of the Trustee or of any holder of 
the Bonds to exercise any right or power accruing 
upon any default shall impair any such right or 
power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any 
such defauitor an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this lndenture to the 
Trustee and the holders of the Bonds, respectively, 
may be exercised from time to time and as often as 
may be deemed expedient. 

&thentication and deliieryof such ~onds ,  and may 
at any time or from time to time appoint one or 
more other Paying Agents in the manner and 
subject to the conditions set forth in Section 1113 
for the appointment of a successor Paying Agent. 

(B) Each Paying Agent shall signify its 
acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed 
upon it by this lndenture by written instrument of 
acceptance executed and delivered to the 
Corporation and the Trustee. 

(C) The orinci~al or coroorate trust 
offices of the Paying Agents are hereby designated 
as the respective agencies of the Corporation for 
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the payment of the interest on and principal or 
Redemption Price of the Bonds. 

Section 1103 - Responsibilitv of 
Fiduciaries. (A) The recitals of fact herein and in 
the Bonds contained shall be taken as the 
statements of the Corporation and no Fiduciary 
assumes any responsibility for the correctness of 
thesame. No Fiduciary makes any representations 
as to the validity or sufficiency of this lndenture or 
of any Bonds or coupons issued thereunder or in 
respect of the security afforded by this lndenture or 
the Trust Estate. and no Fiduciary shall incur any 
responsibility in respect thereof. The Trustee shall. 
however, be responsible for its representation 
contained in its certificate on the Bonds. No 
Fiduciary shall be under any responsibility or duty 
with respect to any other Fiduciary. No Fiduciary 
shall be under any obligation or duty to perform any 
act which would involve it in expense or liability or 
to institute or defend any suit in respect hereof, or 
to advance any of its own moneys, unless 
indemnified to its satisfaction. No Fiduciary shall 
be liable in connection with the performance of its 
duties hereunder except for its own negligence or 
willful misconduct. Neither the Trustee nor any 
Paying Agent shall be under any responsibility or 
duty with respect to the application of any moneys 
paid to any one of the others or the use or 
application by the Corporation of the Bonds or the 
proceeds thereof. 

(6) Except during the continuance of 
an Event of Default, the Trustee undertakes to 
perform such duties and only such duties as are 
specifically set forth in this lndenture, and no 
implied covenants or obligations shall be read into 
this lndenture against the Trustee, and, in the 
absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may 
conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements 
and the correctness of the opinion expressed 
therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to 
the Trustee and conforming to the requirements of 
this lndenture. 

(C) In case an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall 
exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it 
by this lndenture and use the same degree of care 
and skill in their exercise as a prudent person 
would exercise or use under the circumstances in 
the conduct of his own affairs. 

(D) No provision ofthis lndenture shall 
be construed to relieve the Trustee from liability for 
its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to 

act, or its own willful misconduct, except that (I) the 
Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment 
made in good faith by a responsible officer, unless 
it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in 
ascertaining the pertinent facts, (2) the Trustee 
shall not be liable with respect to any action taken 
or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in 
accordance with the direction of the holders of a 
majority in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Bonds relating to the time, method and place of 
conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or 
power conferred upon the Trustee, under this 
Indenture. and (3) no provision of this lndenture 
shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own 
funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in 
the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall 
have reasonable grounds for believing that 
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity 
against such risk or liability is not reasonably 
assured to it. Except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein, the Trustee shall determine 
whether any conditions or requirements set forth 
herein for any purpose have been met, and such 
determination by the T ~ s t e e  shall be conclusive. 

(E) Regardless of whether it is therein 
expressly so provided, every provision of this 
Indenture, any Supplemental Indenture. Parity 
Obligation Instrument, Credit Enhancement or any 
related document relating to the conduct or 
affecting the liability of or affording protection to the 
Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this 
Article. 

(F) The Trustee shall be under no 
obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by this lndenture at the request or 
direction of any of the Bondholders pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless such Bondholders shall have 
offered to the Trustee security or indemnity to its 
satisfaction against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities which might be incurred by it in 
compliance with such request or direction. 

(G) The Trustee shall not be bound to 
make any investigation into the facts or matters 
stated in any resolution, certificate, statement. 
instrument, opinion. report, notice, request. 
direction, consent, order, bond, debenture, coupon 
or other paper or document. 

(H) The Trustee may execute any of 
the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any 
duties hereunder either directly or by or through 
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agents or atlorneys, and the Trustee shall not be 
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on 
the part ofany agent or attorney appointed with due 
care by it hereunder. 

(I) The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility for or liability in connection with 
assuring that all of the procedures or conditions to 
closing set forth in the Purchase Agreement have 
been met on the Closing Date to the parties are 
actually delivered, except its own responsibility to 
receive the proceeds of the sale, deliver the Bonds. 
and deliver and receive other certificates and 
documents expressly required to be delivered by it 
and its counsel. The Trustee may assume that 
parties to the Purchase Agreement have waived 
their rights to receive documents or to require the 
performance of procedures if the parties to whom 
such documents are to be delivered or for whom 
such procedures are to be performed do not 
require delivery or performance on or prior to the 
Closing Date. 

(J) The permissive right o f theT~s tee  
to do things enumerated in this lndenture shall not 
be construed as a duty. 

(K) In accepting the trusts hereby 
created, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for the 
Bondholders and not in its individual capacity and 
all persons, including, without limitation, the 
Bondholders and the Corporation having any claim 
against the Trustee arising from this lndenture shall 
look only to the funds and accounts held by the 
Trustee or its agent hereunder for payment except 
as otherwise provided herein. Under no 
circumstances shall the Trustee be liable in its 
individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by 
the Bonds. 

(L) The Trustee shall not be 
responsible for the validity or effectiveness of any 
collateral given to or held by it. The Trustee shall 
not be responsible for the recording or filing of any 
document relating to this lndenture or of financing 
statements (or continuation statements in 
connection therewith) or of any supplemental 
instruments or documents or further assurance as 
may be required by law in order to perfect the 
security interests in any collateral given to or held 
by it. 

(M) If, as a result of the occurrence of 
an Event of Default, the Corporation or the Trustee 
employs attorneys or incurs other fees and 
expenses for the collection of payments due 

hereunder or for the enforcement of performance 
or 0bSe~ance of any obligation or agreement on 
the part of the Corporation, the Corporation will, on 
demand, reimburse the Trustee for the reasonable 
fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable 
fees and expenses so incurred; provided, however. 
that amounts in the Trust Estate shall first be 
applied as provided in Section 1004. 

(N) In no event shall the Trustee be 
responsible for and it makes no representations or 
warranty, express or implied, with respect to, 
compliance with the Act, the making of Education 
Loans, the servicing of the Education Loans, or the 
sufficiency of the promissory notes or other 
instruments or documentation related thereto. 

(0)  The Trustee's rights to 
indemnification and payment of its fees, expenses. 
losses and liabilities shall survive its resignation or 
removal and final payment of the Bonds. 

(P) The Trustee makes no 
representation as to the correctness or 
completeness of any information contained in the 
Official Statement or any other offering material 
pertaining to any Series of Bonds. 

Section 1104 - Evidence on Which 
Fiduciaries Mav Act. Each Fiduciary may rely and 
shall be protected in acting upon any notice, 
resolution. request, consent, order, certificate. 
report, opinion, bond or other paper or document 
believed by it to be genuine, and to have been 
signed or presented by the proper party or parties. 
Each Fiduciarymay consult with counsel, who may 
or may not be of counsel to the Corporation, and 
the opinion of such shall be full and complete 
authorization and protection in respectof any aclion 
taken or suffered or omitted by it hereunder in good 
faith and in reliance thereon. Whenever any 
Fiduciary shall deem it necessary or desirable that 
a matter be proved or established prior to taking or 
suffering or omitting any action hereunder, 
including payment of moneys oul of any Fund or 
Account, such matter (unless other evidence in 
respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) 
may be deemed to be conclusively proved and 
established by a Certificate signed by an Authorized 
Officer, and such Certificate shall be full warrant for 
any action taken or suffered in good faith under the 
provisions of this lndenture upon the faith thereof, 
but in its discretion the Fiduciary may in lieu thereof 
accept other evidence of such fact or matter or may 
require such further or additional evidence as to it 
may seem reasonable. Except as otherwise 
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expressly provided herein, any request, order, 
noticeor other direction required or permitted to be 
furnished pursuant to any provision hereof by the 
Corporation to any Fiduciary shall be sufficient 
executed if executed in the name of the 
Corporation by an Authorized Officer. 

Section 1105 - Compensation. The 
Corporation shall pay to the Trustee and to each 
Paying Agent from time to time reasonable 
compensation for all services rendered under this 
Indenture, and also all reasonable fees, expenses, 
charges, counsel fees and other disbursements, 
including those of their attorneys, agents and' 
employees, incurred in and about the performance 
of their powers and duties under this lndenture, and 
the Trustee and each Paying Agent shall have a 
lien therefor on any and all funds at any time held 
by it under this lndenture. The Corporation further 
agrees to indemnify and save the Trustee and each 
Paying Agent harmless against any liabilities, 
losses, expenses, and advances which it may incur 
in the exercise and performance of its powers and 
duties hereunder, which are not due to its 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

Section 1106 - Permitted Acts and 
Functions. TheTrustee and any Paying Agent may 
become the owner of any Bonds and coupons, with 
the same rights it should have if it were not such 
Trustee or Paying Agent. The Trustee and any 
Paying Agent may act as Depositary for. and permit 
any of its officers or directors to act as a member 
of, or in any other capacity with respect to. any 
committee formed to protect the rights of 
Bondholders or to effector aid in any reorganization 
growing out ofthe enforcement of the Bonds orthis 
Indenture, regardless of whether any such 
committee shall represent the holders of a majority 
in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

Section 1107 - Resionation of Trustee. 
The Trustee may at any time resign and be 
discharged of the duties and obligations created by 
this lndenture by giving not less than ninety days 
written notice to the Corporation and to the 
registered owners of the Bonds, specifying the date 
when such resignation shall take effect. If any 
Bonds are Outstanding in bearerform, the Trustee 
shall also publish such noticeoncein an Authorized 
Newspaper. Such resignation shall take effect upon 
the day specified in such notice unless previously a 
successor shall have been appointed. as provided 
in Section 1109, in which event such resignation 
shall take effect immediately on the appointment of 
such successor. Notwithstanding any of the 

foregoing, no registration of the Trustee shall be 
effective until a successor has been appointed. 

Section I108 - Removal of Trustee. The 
Trustee shall be removed by the Corporation if at 
any time so requested by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the 
Trustee and the Corporation, and signed by the 
holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding or their attorneys-in-fact 
duly authorized, excluding any Bonds held by or for 
the account of the Corporation. The Corporation 
may remove the Trustee at any time, except during 
the existence of an Event of Default, for such cause 
as shall be determined in the sole discretion of the 
Corporation by filing with the Trustee an instrument 
signed by an Authorized Officer of the Corporation. 

Section 1109 - Aopointment of Successor m. (A) In case at any time the Trustee shall 
resign or shall be removed or shall become 
incapable ofacting, or shall beadjudged a bankrupt 
or insolvent. or if a receiver, liquidator or 
conservator of the T ~ s t e e ,  or of its properly, shall 
be appointed, or if any public officer shall take 
charge or control of the Trustee, or of its property or 
affairs, the Corporation covenants and agrees that 
it will thereupon appoint a successor Trustee. The 
Corporation shall provide written notice of such 
appointment to the registered owners of the Bonds 
and, if any Bonds are Outstanding in bearer form, 
shall also publish notice of such appointment in an 
Authorized Newspaper, such notice to be given and 
publication to be made within twenty days after 
such appointment. 

(8) If in a propercase no appointment 
of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to 
the foreooino orovisions of this Section within fortv- 
five days a&; the Trustee shall have given to t i e  
Corporation written notice, as provided in Section 
1107, or after a vacancy in the office of the Trustee 
shall have occurred by reason of its inability to act, 
the Trustee or the holder of any Bond may apply to 
any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a 
successor Trustee. Said court may thereupon, 
after such notice, if any, as such court may deem 
proper and prescribe, appointa successorTrustee. 

(C) Any Trustee appointed under the 
provisions of this Section in succession to the 
Trustee shall be a trust company or bank in good 
standing having the powers of a trust company 
within or outside the State and subject to 
examination by federal or state authority, having a 
capital and surplus aggregating at least Sevenly- 
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Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000) and acceptable 
toeach Credit Enhancement ifthere besuch atrust 
company or bank willing and able to accept the 
office on reasonabie and customary terms and 
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed 
upon i t  by this lndenture. 

Section 11 10 - Transfer of Riqhts and 
Propertv to Successor Trustee. Any successor 
Trustee appointed under this Indenture, shall 
execute, acknowledge and deliver to its 
predecessor Trustee, and also to the Corporation, 
an instrument accepting such appointment, and 
thereupon such successor Trustee. without any 
further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully 
vested with all moneys, estates, properties. rights, 
powers, dutiesand obligations of such predecessor 
Trustee, with like effect as if originally named as 
Trustee; but the Trustee ceasing to act shall 
nevertheless. on the request of the Corporation, or 
of the successor Trustee, execute, acknowledge 
and deliver such instruments of conveyance and 
further assurance and do such other things as may 
reasonabie be required for more fully and certainly 
vesting and confirming in such successor Trustee 
all the right, title and interest of the predecessor 
Trustee in and to any property held by it under this 
Indenture, and shall pay over, assign and deliver to 
the successor Trustee any money or other property 
subject to the trusts and conditions herein set forth. 
Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in 
writing from the Corporation be required by such 
successor Trustee for more fully and certainly 
vesting in and confirming to such successor 
Trustee any such estates, rights, powers and 
duties, any and ail such deeds, conveyances and 
instruments in writing shall, on request, and so far 
as may be authorized by law, be executed. 
acknowledged and delivered by the Corporation. 
Any such successor Trustee shall promptly notify 
the Paying Agents of its appointment as Trustee. 
The Corporation shall pay the expenses of effecting 
a transfer under this Section. 

Section 11 11 - Merqer or Consolidation. 
Any company into which any Fiduciary may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be 
consolidated or any company resulting from any 
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall 
be a party or any company to which any Fiduciary 
may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its 
corporate trust business, provided such company 
shall be a trust company or bank which is qualified 
l o  be a successor to such Fiduciary under Section 
11 10 or Section 11 13 and shall be authorized by 
law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 

Indenture, shall be the successor to such Fiduciary 
without the execution or filing of any paper or the 
performance of any further act. anyihing herein to 
the contrary notwithstanding. 

Section 11 12 -Adoption of Authentication. 
In case any of the Bonds contemplated to be 
issued under this lndenture shall have been 
authenticated but not delivered, any successor 
Trustee may adopt the certificate of authentication 
of any predecessor Trustee so authenticating such 
Bonds and deliver such Bonds so authenticated, 
and in case any of the said Bonds shall not have 
been authenticated, any successor Trustee may 
authenticate such Bonds in the name of the 
successor Trustee, and in all such cases such 
certificate shall have the full force which it is 
anywhere in said Bonds or in this lndenture 
provided that the certificate of the Trustee shall 
have. 

Section 11 13 - Resiqnation or Removal of 
the Pavina Aaentsand Aaoointmentof Successors. 
(A) Any Paying Agent may at any time resign and 
be discharged of the dulies and obligations created 
by this lndenture by giving at least sixty days' 
written notice to the Corporation and Trustee. Any 
Paying Agent may be removed at any time by an 
instrument filed with such Paying Agent and the 
Trustee and signed by an Authorized Officer of the 
Corporation. Any successor Paying Agent shall be 
appointed by the Corporation and shall be a trust 
company or bank having the powers of a trust 
company, having a capital and surplus aggregating 
at lease Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000). and 
willing and able to accept the office of Paying Agent 
on reasonableand customaryterms and authorized 
by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by 
this lndenture. 

(A) In the event of the resignation or 
removal of any Paying Agent, such Paying Agency 
shall pay over, assign and deliver any moneys held 
by it to its successor, or if there be no successor 
then appointed, to the Trustee until such successor 
be appointed. 

Section 11 14 - Evidence of Siqnatures of 
Bondholders and Ownershio of Bonds. (A) Any 
request, consent or other instrument which this 
lndenture may require or permit to be signed and 
executed by the Bondholders may be in one or 
more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be 
signed or executed by such Bondholders in person 
orbytheir attorneys appointed inwriting. Proofof(i) 
the execution of any such instrument, or of an 

Alaska Sludenf Loan Corporation 
MASTER INDENTURE 



instrument appointing any such attorney, or (ii) the 
holding by any person of the Bonds or coupons 
appertaining thereto shall be sufficient for any 
purpose of this lndenture (except as otherwise 
herein expressly provided) if made in the following 
manner, but the Trustee may nevertheless in its 
discretion require further or other proof in cases 
where it deems the same desirable: 

(1) The fact and date of the 
execution by any Bondholder or his 
attorney of such instrument may be proved 
by the certificate, which need not be 
acknowledged or verified, of an officer of a 
bank or trust company satisfaclory to the 
Trustee or of any notary public or other 
o f f i c e r  a u t h o r i z e d  t o  t a k e  
acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded 
in the state in which she purports to act, 
that the person signing such request or 
other instrument acknowledged to him the 
execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a 
witness of such execution, duly sworn to 
before such notary public or other officer. 
The authority of the person or persons 
executing any such instrument on behalfof 
a corporate Bondholder may be 
established without further proof if such 
instrument is signed by a person purporting 
to be the president or a vice president of 
such corporation with a corporate seal 
affixed and attested by a person purporting 
to be its secretary or an assistant 
secretary: 

(2) The amount of Bonds 
transferable by delivery held by any person 
executing such request or other instrument 
as a Bondholder, and the numbers and 
other identification thereof, and the date of 
his holding such Bonds, may be proved by 
a certificate, which need not be 
acknowledged or verified, satisfactory to 
the Trustee, executed by an officer of a 
trust company, bank, financial institution or 
other depository or memberof the National 
Association of Securities Dealers. Inc. 
whereversituated, showing that at the date 
therein mentioned such person exhibited to 
such officer or had on deposit with such 
depository the Bonds described in such 
certificate. Continued ownership after the 
date stated in such certificate may be 
proved by the presentation of such 
certificate if the certificate contains a 
statement by such officer that the 

depository held that Bonds therein referred 
to on the date of the certificate and that 
they will not be surrendered without the 
surrender of the certilicate to the 
depository, except with the consent of the 
Trustee, and a certificate of the Trustee, 
which need not be acknowledged or 
verified, that such consent has not been 
given. 

(B) Except in the case of Bonds 
transferable by delivery only, the ownership of 
Bonds and the amount, numbers and other 
identification, and date of holding the same shall be 
proved by the registry books. Any request, consent 
or vote of lhe owner of any Bond shall bind all 
future owners of such Bond in respect of anything 
done or suffered to be done by the Corporation or 
any Fiduciary in accordance therewith. 

Section 1 115- Preservation and Inspection 
of Documents. All documents received by any 
Fiduciary under the provisions of this lndenture or 
any Supplemental lndenture shall be retained in its 
possession until six (6) years after lhe final 
payment of principal of the Bonds becomes due 
and payable and shall be subject at all reasonable 
times to the inspection of the Corporation, any 
other Fiduciary and any Bondholder and their 
agents and their representatives, any of whom may 
make copies thereof. 

Section 11 16 -Administration of Education 
Loan Program. -The Corporation agrees that the 
Trustee shall have no responsibility whatsoever for 
monitoring, or any other activity, with respect to the 
Corporation's administration of the Education Loan 
Program or the servicing of the Education Loans. 

Section 1117 - Power to Appoint Co- 
Trustee. (A) At any time after an Event of Default. 
if necessary to meet the legal requirements of any 
applicablejurisdiction, theTrusteeshall have power 
to appoint one or more co-trustees under this 
Indenture, with such powers as may be provided in 
the instrument of appointment, and to vest in such 
person or persons any property, title, right or power 
deemed necessary or desirable, subject to the 
remaining provisions of this Section. 

(6 )  Each co-trustee shall, to theextent 
permitted by applicable law, be appointed subjectto 
the following terms: 

(i) The Bonds shall be 
authenticated and delivered solely by the 
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Trustee, and all rights, powers, duties and 
obligations hereunder in respect of the 
custody of Investment Securities, cash and 
otherpersonal property held by,orrequired 
to be deposited or pledged with, the 
Trustee hereunder shall be exercised 
solely by the Trustee. 

(ii) The rights, powers duties and 
obligations hereby conferred or imposed 
upon theTrusteein respect of any properly 
covered by such appointment shall be 
conferred or imposed upon and exercised 
or performed by the Trustee or by the 
Trustee and co-trustee jointly, as shall be 
provided in the instrument appointing such 
co-trustee, except to the extent that, under 
any law of any jurisdiction in which any 
particular act or acts are to be performed. 
the Trustee shall be incompetent or 
unqualified to perform such act or acts, in 
which event such rights, powers, duties 
and obligations shall be exercised by such 
co-trustee. 

(iii) The Trustee may at any time, 
by an instrument in writing executed by it, 
accept the resignation of or remove any 
co-trustee appointed under this Section. 

(iv) No power given to any co- 
trustee shall be separately exercised 
hereunder by such co-trustee except with 
the consent in writing of the Trustee. 
anylhing contained in this Section to the 
contrary notwithstanding. 

(C) Should any written instrument from 
the Corporation be required by any co-trustee so 
appointed for more fully confirming to such co- 
trustee such rights. powers, duties and obligations, 
any and all such instruments shall, on request, be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the 
Corporation forthwith. 

(D) The rights, powers and duties of 
the Corporation with respect to any co-trustee shall 
be the same as its rights, powers and duties with 
respect to the Trustee. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1201 - Defeasance. (A) If the 
Corporation shall pay or cause to be paid to the 
holders of the Bonds, the principal and interest and 
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Redemption Price, if any, to become due thereon. 
at the times and in the manner stipulated therein 
and in this lndenture. and alsoshall pay or cause to 
be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the 
Corporation, including any amounts payable to the 
United States, then the pledgeof any revenuesand 
assets hereby pledged and all other rights granted 
hereby shall, at the election of the Corporation 
(evidenced by a certificate of an Authorized Officer 
filed with the Trustee, signifying the intention of the 
Corporation todischarge all such indebtedness and 
this lndenture and any Supplemental Indenture), 
and notwithstanding that any Bonds shall not have 
been surrendered for payment, be discharged and 
satisfied. In such event, theTrustee shall, upon the 
written request of the Corporation, execute and 
deliver to the Corporation all such instruments as 
may be desirable to evidence such discharge and 
satisfaction and the Fiduciaries shall pay over or 
deliver to the Corporation all moneys or securities 
held by them pursuant to this Indenture which are 
not required for the payment or redemption of 
Bonds not theretofore surrendered for such 
payment or redemption. 

(8) If funds shall have been set aside 
and shall be held in trust by Fiduciaries for the 
payment of principal, interest and Redemption 
Price (through deposit by the Corporation of funds 
for such payment or redemption or otherwise) at 
the maturity or upon the date upon which such 
Bonds have bean duly called for redemption 
thereof, such Bonds shall be deemed to have been 
paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in subsection (A) of this Section. All 
Outstanding Bonds shall, prior to the maturity or 
redemption date thereof, be deemed to have been 
paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (i) in 
case any of said Bonds are to be redeemed on any 
date prior to their maturity, the Corporation shall 
have given to the Trustee in form satisfactory to it 
irrevocable instructions to publish as provided in 
Article Vi notice of redemption on said date of such 
Bonds. (ii) there shall have been deposited with the 
Trustee either funds in an amount which shall be 
sufficient, or Investment Securities which are not 
subject to redemption prior to the dates on which 
amounts will be needed to make payments on the 
Bonds defeased and the principal of and the 
interest on which when due will provide moneys 
which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited 
with the Trustee at the same time, shall be 
sufficient in the opinion of an Accountant delivered 
to the Trustee, to pay when due the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, and interest due and to 



become due on said Bonds on any date prior to the 
redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the 
case may be. (iii) in the event said Bonds arenot by 
their terms subject to redemption within the next 
succeeding sixty days, the Corporation shall have 
given the Trustee in form satisfactory to it 
irrevocable instructions to mail a notice to the 
holders of such Bonds that the deposit required by 
(ii) above has been made with the Trustee and that 
said Bonds are deemed to have been paid in 
accordance with this Section and stating such 
maturity or redemption dale upon which moneys 
are to be available for the payment of the principal 
or Redemption Price, if any, of said Bonds and (iv) 
a Counsel's Opinion stating that all conditions 
precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of this 
lndenture have been complied with, thedefeasance 
complies with the terms of this lndenture. and the 
defeasance will not adversely affect the tax status 
of the Bonds. Neither Investment Securities or 
moneys deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this 
Section nor principal or interest payments on any 
such Investment Securities shall be withdrawn or 
used for any purpose other than, and shall be held 
in trust for, the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on said 
Bonds; provided that any cash received from such 
principal or interest payments on such lnvestment 
Securities deposited with the Trustee, i f  not then 
needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent 
practicable, be reinvested in investment Securilies 
maturing at times and in amounts sufficient to pay 
when due the principal or Redemption Price, if any, 
and interest to become due on said Bonds on and 
prior to such redemption date or maturity date 
thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned 
from such reinvestments shall be paid over to the 
Corporation, as received by the Trustee, free and 
clear of any trust, lien or pledge. 

(C) If, through the deposit of moneys 
by the Corporation or otherwise, the Fiduciaries 
shall hold, pursuant to this lndenture, moneys 
sufficient lo pay the principal and interest to 
maturity on all Outstanding Bonds or to pay, in the 
case of Bonds in respect of which the Corporation 
shall have taken all action necessary to redeem 
prior to maturity, the Redemplion Price and interest 
to such redemption date, then at the written request 
of the Corporation all moneys held by any Paying 
Agent shall be paid over to the Trustee and. 
together wilh other moneys held by it hereunder. 
shall be held by the Trustee for the payment or 
redemption of Outstanding Bonds. 

Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
MASTER INDENTURE 

(D) Anything in this lndenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, any moneys held by a 
Fiduciary in trust for the payment and discharge of 
any of the Bonds which remain unclaimed for six 
years afler the date when all of the Bonds have 
become due and payable, either at their stated 
maturity dates or by call for earlier redemption, if 
such moneys were held by the Fiduciary at such 
date, or for six years afler the date of deposit of 
such moneys if deposited with the Fiduciary after 
the said date when all of the Bonds became due 
and payable, shall be revaid by the Fiduciarvto the 
~orpotation, as its absolute p~operty and free from 
trust, and the Fiduciary shall thereupon be released 
and discharged. 

Section 1202 - Monevs Held for Particular 
Bonds. The amounts held by any Fiduciaryfor the . . 
payment of the interest, principal or ~ e d e m ~ t i o n  
Price due on any date with respect to particular 
Bonds shall, on and afler such date and pending 
such payment. be set aside on its books and held 
in trust by it for the holders of the Bonds entitled 
thereto. If any such amount remains unclaimed for 
a period of six years afler such date, the Trustee 
shall pay over such amount, together with all 
investment earnings thereon and all investment 
earnings on any investment earnings, to the 
Corporation. 

Section 1203 - No Recourse Under 
lndenture or on Bonds. All covenants, stipulations, 
promises, agreements and obligations of the 
Corporation contained in this lndenture shall be 
deemed to be the covenants, stipulation, promises, 
agreements and obligations of the CorDoration and 
not of any member, officer or empioyee of the 
Corporation in his individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the 
Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this 
lndenture against any member, offceror employee 
of the Corporation or any natural person executing 
the Bonds. 

Section 1204 -Notices to Ratinq Aqencies 
and lo Credit Enhancers. The Trustee shall give 
prompt notice to the Rating Agencies and any 
Credit Enhancers of the resignation of the Trustee 
or the appointment of any successor Trustee, of 
any amendment to or modification of this lndenture 
or the execution of any Supplemental lndenture or 
when there are no longer any Bonds remaining 
Outstanding. All notices to a Rating Agency or a 
Credit Enhancer hereunder shall be sent by first 



class mail to the address provided to the Trustee by 
such Rating Agency or Credit Enhancer. 

Section 1205 - Conflict. All resolutions or 
~ a r l s  of resolutions or other proceedings of this 
corporation in conflict herewiih be and ihe same 
are repealed insofar as such conflict exists. 

Section 1206 - Governinq Law. This 
Indenture and the Bonds shall be construed in 
accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the 
State of Alaska. 

Section 1207 - Effective Date. This 
lndenture shall take effect immediately upon its. 
execution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION hascaused this 
lndenture to be executed by its Executive Officer 
and Zions First National Bank has caused this 
lndenture to be executed by its Assistant Vice 
President and T ~ s t  Officer, all as of the day and 
year first above written. 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN 
CORPORATION 

BY 
DIANE BARRANS 
Executive Officer 

ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK 

BY 
DAVID W. BATA 
Vice President 
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APPENDIX IV 

Reset Auction Mode Securities and Auction Procedures 

The following description has been provided by theundenuriter, andtheCorporationassumesnoresponsibility 
for the accuracy of the information contained herein. No assurance can be given that the procedures described herein 
will not change subsequent to the date hereof. The Auction Procedures for RAMS are as set forth below. All of the 
tern= used in this Appendix IV are defined herein or in other parts of this Official Statement. 

Definitions 

"'AA 'Composite ComtnercialPaperRate. "on any dateofdetermination, means(i) theBond Equivalent Yield 
ofthe 30-day rate on commercial paper placed on behalf ofissuers whose corporate bonds are rated "AA" by Standard & 
Poor's Ratings Group, or the equivalent of such rating by Standard & Poor's Ratings Group, as made available on a 
discount basis or otherwise by the Federal Reserve BankofNew York for the Business Day immediately preceding such 
date of determination; or (ii) if the Federal Reserve Bank of New York does not make available any such rate, then the 
arithmetic averageofthe Bond EquivalentYield ofthe30-day rateon commercial paperplaced on behalfofsuch issuers, 
as quoted to the Auction Agent on a discount basis or othenvise, by at least three dealers ofcommercial paper, or such 
fewer entities as may then be dealers of commercial paper, as of the close of business on the Business Day immediately 
preceding such date of determination. 

"Adjusrable Rare" means an Auction Rate or any other rate of interest which may change from time to time. 

"Ajier-Tax Equivalent Rare, " on any date of determination, means the interest rate per annum equal to the 
product of: 

(a) the " A X  Composite Commercial Paper Rate on such date; and 

(b) 1.00 minus the lowcr ofthe Statutory CorporateTax Rateand the Statutory Personal Tax Rate on such 
date. 

Forpurposesofthisdefinition, the term "Stanrroty Corporate TaxRate"means, asofany dateofdetennination, 
the highest tax rate bracket (expressed in decimals) now or hereafter applicable in each taxable ycar on the taxable 
income of every corporation as set forth in Section 1 I of the Code or any successor section without regard to any 
minimum additional tax provision or provisions regarding changes in rates during a taxable year, which on the date 
hereof is 35%, and "Starurory Personal Tax Rate" means, as of any date of determination, the highest tax rate bracket 
(expressed in decimals) now or hereafter applicable in each taxable year on the taxable income of a natural person as 
set forth in Section 1 of the Code or any successor section without regard to any minimum additional tax provision or 
provisions regarding changes in rates during a taxable year, which on the date hereof is 39.6%. 

"All-Hold Rate, " on any date of determination, means the interest rate per annum equal to 90% (as such 
percentage may be adjusted pursuant to the Indenture) of the lesser of: 

(a) the After-Tax Equivalent Rate; and 

(b) the Kenny Index on such date; 

rounded to the nearest one thousandth of 1% (.001); provided that in no event shall the All-Hold Rate be more 
than the Interest Rate Limitation or less than zero. 

"Applicable Number ofBusiness Days" means thc greater of two Business Days or one Business Day plus the 
number of Business Days by which the Auction Date precedes the first day of the next succeeding Auction Period. 
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"Applicable Percentage. "on the date of determination, means the percentage determined (as such percentage 
may be adjusted pursuant to the Indenture) based on the lower of the prevailing credit ratings on the RAMS in effect at 
the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding such date, as set forth below: 

Credit Rating 
Moody's Investors Applicable 

Service Fitch Ratings Percentage 
"Aaa" "AAA" 150% 

"Aa" to "Aal" ',AA-" to "AA+" 
to '.A+" 

150% 
"A" to "Al" 150% 

"Baa" to "Baal" "BBB-" to "BBB+" 175% 
Below "Baa" Below "BBB-" 200% 

provided, that, in the event that the RAMS arenot rated by any Rating Agency, the ApplicablePercentageshall be200%, 
and provided further, that if a Payment Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Applicable Percentage shall 
be 200%. For purposes of this definition, Fitch Ratings' rating categories of "AAA,'"'AA," "A" and "BBB," and 
Moody's Investors Service's rating categories of "Aaa," "Aa," "A" and "Baa," refer to and include the respective rating 
categories correlative thereto if either or both of such rating agencies have changed or modified their generic rating 
categories or if Moody's Investors Service of Fitch Ratings no longer rates the RAMS and have been replaced. 

"Applicable Spread" means, on any date of determination, the following percentages to be used in the 
computation oftheT-Bill Cap and the CP Cap, as applicable, based on the lowest rating assigned to 2006 Bonds bearing 
interest at an Auction Rate as of such date: 

Credit Rating 
Moody's 
Investors 
Service Fitch Ratings 

Aaa AAA 
Aa A A 
A A 

Baa BBB 
Below Baa Below BBB 

Applicable Applicable 
T-Bill Spread C P  Spread 

1.25% 0.75% 
1.25% 0.75% 
1.25% 0.75% 
1.50% 1 .OO% 
2.00% 1.50% 

'iiucrion Agency Agreemenl" means the Auction Agency Agreement between the Trustee and the Auction 
Agent and any similar agreement with a successor Auction Agent, in each casc as from time to time amended or 
supplemented. 

';4ucrion Bond Inreresr Rare" means each rate of interest per annum borne by any Bonds for each Auction 
Period and determined in accordance with the provisions of Article 111, Exhibit A of the Multi-Mode Annex; provided, 
however, that in the event of a Payment Default, the Auction Bond Interest Rate shall equal the Overdue Rate; and 
provided further that such Auction Bond Interest Rate shall in no event exceed the Maximum Auction Rate. 

"AzrcrionDare "means initially thedatespecifiedintheIndenture,and thereafter, theBusinessDay immediately 
preceding the first day of each Auction Period, other than; 

(a) an Auction Period which commences on a Conversion Date; 

(b) each Auction Period commencing after the ownership of Series RAMS is no longer maintained in 
book-entry fonn by the Depository; 

(c) each Auction Period commencing after the occurrence and during the continuance of a Payment 
Default; or 



(d) any Auction Period commencing less than the Applicable Number of Business Days after the cure of 
waiver of a Payment Default. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Auction Date for one or more Auction Periods may be changed pursuant 
to the Indenture. 

"Arrction Period" means for RAMS each period for which an Auction Bond Interest Rate is determined 
pursuant to the Auction Procedures, whicb Period initially shall consist generally of 35 days as the same may be adjusted 
pursuant to the procedures described in this Appendix IV underThanges in Auction Periods or Auction Date-. Changes 
in Auction Period or Periods." 

"Auction Procedures" means the procedures for determining the rate of interest that a series of Series RAMS 
will bear for an Auction Period as set forth in Sections 3.01 and 3.02 of Exhibit A of the Multi Mode Annex and 
described herein under the captions "Reset Auction Mode Securities -- Interest -- Auction generally!' 

"Auction Rate Period' means, for any 2006 Bonds, any period during which such 2006 Bonds bear interest at 
an Auction Rate, which period shall commence on the date of issuance of such 2006 Bonds or on the effective date of 
Conversion to an Auction Rate, as the case may be, and shall extend through the day immediately preceding thc earlier 
of (a) the effcctivc date of a Convcrsion to another Rate Period or (b) the Slntcd Maturity Datc of such Bonds. 

"BondEqtrivalent Yie1d8'means, with respect to any security with a maturity of six months or less the rate for 
which is quoted in The Wall Street Journal on a bank discount basis, the yield calculated in accordance with the 
following formula and rounded up to the nearest one one-hundredth of one percent: 

R x N  x 100 
360 - (R x D) 

where "R" refers to the interest rate per annum for the security quoted on a bank discount basis expressed as a decimal, 
" N  refers to 365 or 366 days, as applicable, and " D  refers to the number of days to maturity. 

"Broker-Dealer" means, initially, RBC Capital Markets, and any other broker or dealer (as defined in the 
Securities Exchange Act), commercial bank or other entity permitted by law to perform the functions required of a 
Broker-Dealer set fonb in the Auction Procedures that is a Participant (or an afiliate ofa Participant), has been selected 
by the Corporation pursuant to the Indenture and has entered into a Broker-Dealer Agreement that remains effective. 

"Broker-Dealer Agreement " means each agreement between the Auction Agcnt and a Broker-Dealer pursuant 
to which the Broker-Dealer agrees to participate in Auctions as set forth in the Auction Procedures, as from time to time 
amended or supplemented. Each Broker-Dealer Agreement shall be substantially in the form of the Broker-Dealer 
Agreement between Deutscbe Bank Trust Company Americas, as Auction Agent, and RBC Capital Markets, as the sole 
initial Broker-Dealer. 

"Busirtess Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on whicb the New York Stock 
Exchange or banks are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close inNew York, New York, or in the city 
in which is located the principal office of the Auction Agent as provided in the Auction Agency Agreement, or, as 
notified to the Auction Agent in writing, in any city in which is located the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, 
the Credit Provider or the liquidity provider, ifany, at which demands for a draw on, or borrowing or payment underthe 
Credit Enhancement or liquidity facilitywill be made. 

"Calculation Period" means for the 2006 Bonds any daily, weekly, monthly, flexible, term or other period for 
which an Adjustable Rate (other than an Auction Rate) or a Fixed Rate is determined while such 2006 Bonds bears 
interest at such Adjustable Rate or Fixed Rate. 

"Change ofPrefermce Law" means, with respect to any Series RAMS Holder, any amendment to the Code 
or other statute enacted by the Congress ofthe United States or any temporary, proposedor final regulation promulgated 
by the United States Treasury after the date of Series RAMS issuance which(i) changes or would change any deduction, 
credit or other allowance allowable in computing liability for any federal tax with respect to, or (ii) imposes or would 



impose or reduces or would reduce or increases or would increase any federal tax (including, but not limited to, 
preference or excise taxes) upon, any interest earned by any holder of Series RAMS. 

"Cliaiiges in h e  Interest Rare Mode8'means any change in the Calculation Period forthe Adjustable Rate borne 
by the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Coilversion "means any conversion of any 2006 Bonds (from time to time in accordance with the t e r n  ofthe 
Multi-Mode Annex) from one Rate Period to another Rate Period. 

"Conversion Date" means the effective date of any Change in the lnterest Rate Mode or the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date. 

"Coiiversron Szipplenzent " means any Supplemental Indenture providing for the conversion ofthe interest rate 
on the 2006 Bonds to a different Adjustable Rate or a Fixed Rate. 

"CP Cap" means, for any Auction Date, the rate (for the then current Auction) at which the Quarterly Average 
Auction Rate equals the Quarterly Average CP Rate plus the Applicable CP Spread, such rate to be determined by the 
formula: 

whereN is the number ofAuction Dates which precede the current Auction Date by 91 daysor less, including the current 
Auction Date; C is the Quarterly Average CP Rate, S is the Applicable Spread; and R is the sum of the Auction Rates 
for Auction Dates preceding the current Auction Date by 91 days or less, excluding the current Auction. 

"De/er~iiinatioizDate "means, (a) so long as SeriesRAMS hear interest at an Auction Rate, each Auction Date, 
(b) for any Calculation Period, the first Business Day before such Calculation Period, and (c) for the Fixed Rate Period, 
any date within fifteen days before the Fixed Rate Conversion Date; or, in the case of (b) or (c), any other date specified 
in a Conversion Supplement. 

"E.risri11g Ho1der"means a person who has signed a Master Purchaser's Letter and is listed as the owner of 
Series RAMS in the records of the Auction Agent. 

"Fixed Rate" means for the 2006 Bonds a Term Rate for a period ending on the Stated Maturity Date of the 
2006 Bonds bearing interest at such Rate. 

"Fixed Rare Co~iversio~i Dote" means the date on which the Fixed Rate takes effect as provided in the 
Indenture. 

"FixedRate Period" means the period, if any, during which all or a portion of a series of Bonds bear interest 
at a Fixed Rate, which period shall commence on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date and extend through the final maturity 
date of aseries of Bonds. 

"Holder" means the beneficial owner of any 2006 Bonds. 

"Inliiol Aircrioiz Period" means any period commencing on the date of issuance of ZOO6 Bonds designated as 
Series RAMS or the date of Conversion of 2006 Bonds to an Auction Rate and ending on the day after the first Auction 
Date following such issuance or Conversion. 

"InlerrslPaynient Period" means for a series of2006 Bonds, the periodof time during which interest accrues, 
but is not due to be paid, on such 2006 Bonds at one or more Adjustable Rates or at a Fixed Rate commencing either 
on the date of issuance of such 2006 Bonds or on the date of conversion of such 2006 Bonds from one Interest Period 
to a different lnterest Period through and including the day immediately preceding the next succeeding Interest Payment 
Date. 

"Interest Period" means (i) an Auction Period or (ii) a Calculation Period, 



"InterestRare Limitation", on any date of determination, means the interest rate per annum equal to the lesser 
of: 

0 )  14% per annum, or 

(ii) the maximum rate of interest permitted under State law. 

"Kenny Index" means the index most recently made available by Kenny S&P Evaluation Services ("Kenny '') 
or any successor thereto (the "Indering Agenr") based upon 30-day yield evaluations at par of securities, the interest on 
which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the code, ofnot less than five "Intermediate 
Grade" component issuers selected by the Indexing Agent which shall include, without limitation, issuers of general 
obligation bonds. The specific issuers included among the component issuers may be changed from time to time by the 
Indexing Agent in its discretion. The securities on which the Kenny Index is based shall not include any securities the 
interest on which is subject to a "minimum tax" or similar tax under the Code, unless all such securities are subject to 
such tax. In the event that Kenny no longer publishes an index satisfying the above definition of the Kenny Index or the 
Market Agent reasonably concludes that the Kenny lndex will not be announced in a timely manner, then the Market 
Agent shall announce a rate based upon the same criteria used by Kenny to determine the Kenny Index and the rate 
announced by the market Agent for each Auction Date thereafter shall be used in lieu of the Kenny lndex for each 
Auction Date. 

"Market Agenl Agreement" means the Market Agent Agreement between the T ~ s t e e  and the Market Agent, 
and any similar agreement with a successor Market Agent, in each case as from time to time amended or supplemented. 

"Maximum Aucrion Rate"on any date means the lesser of: 

(i) the Applicable Percentage of the greater of (I)  the After-Tax Equivalent Rate on such date 
or (2) the Kenny Index on such date (in either case rounded to the nearest 111,000 of 1%); or 

(ii) for Auctions after the Initial Auction Date, the T-Bill Cap; or 

(iii) for Auctions after the Initial Auction Date, the CP Cap; or 

(iv) the Interest Rate Limitation, rounded to the nearest 111,000 of 1% 

"Mulri-Mode Annex" means Exhibit A and Exhibit E attached to the Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as 
of May 1,2006, between the Corporation and the Trustee. 

"90-Day Fit~aiicial Conin~ercial Paper" means the 90-Day AA Financial Commercial Paper rate posted on the 
Federal Reserve Release entitled "Commercial Paper Rates and Outstandings," which rate may be available on the 
Internet at www.federalreserve.govlreleases/cp." 

"One-Monrh LIBOR " means the meaning ascribed to such term in the definition of "Applicable LIBOR Rate." 

"Overdue Rate" on any date of determination, means the interest rate per annum equal to the lesser of: (i) 
200% ofthegreater ofthe Applicable Percentage of the greater of(A) the Kenny Indexand (B) the After-Tax Equivalent 
Rate, or (ii) the Interest Rate Limitation. 

"Participant" means a member of, or participant in, the Securities Depository. 

.. 
This Internet address is contained herein as amatter ofconvenience for purchasers of the 2006 Bonds in order to assist 

such purchasers in ascertaining the 90-Day Financial Commercial Paper rate. The Corporation does not adopt any 
information that may be provided at such address and disclaims any responsibility for any such information. The 
information at such address is not to be construed as part of this Official Statement. 



"Payment Default" means failure by the Corporation to make payment of interest on, premium, if any, and 
principal of Series RAMS when due, by the Corporation. 

"Potential Owter" means any person, including any Existing Holder, (i) who shall have executed a master 
purchaser's letter in the form required by the Broker-Dealer and (ii) who may be interested in acquiring 2006 Bonds 
bearing interest at an Auction Rate (or, in the case of an Existing Holder thereof, an additional principal amount of 2006 
Bonds bearing interest at an Auction Rate). 

"Quarterly Average Auction Rale" means the simple average of the Auction Rates for the 2006 Bonds for 
Auction Dates preceding the current Auction Date by 91 days or less, including the current Auction Date. 

"Quarterly Average CP Rate" means the simple average of the Bond Equivalent Yield of 90-Day Financial 
Commercial Paper rates for the 91 days preceding (but not including) the current Auction Date. 

"Quarterly Average T-Bill Rare"means the simple average of the Bond Equivalent Yield of 91-day Treasury 
bills auctioned in the 91 days preceding (but not including) the current Auction Date. 

"RAMS" means Reset Auction Mode Securities or RAMSTM 

"Rate Period"means any Auction Rate Period, Daily Rate Period, Flexible Rate Period, Monthly Rate Period, 
Term Rate Period or Weekly Rate Period. 

"Record Dare" means, with respect to Bonds outstanding as Series RAMS, the Business Day prior to each 
Interest Payment Date. 

"Remarketing Agent" means RBC Capital Markets, or such other remarketing agent appointed by the 
Corporation pursuant to the Indenture. 

"SectrritiesDepository "meansThe Depository Trust Company and its successors and assigns, or if (i) the then 
Securities Depository resigns from its functions as depository of Series RAMS or (ii) the Corporation discontinues use 
of the Securities Depository, any other securities depository which agrees to follow the procedures required to be 
followed by a securities depository in connection with Series RAMS and which is selected by such Corporation with the 
consent of the Trustee, the Auction Agent and the Market Agent. 

"Stated Maturity Date" means the stated maturity date of any Bonds. 

"Submission Dead1ine"shall mean 1 :00 p.m., New York City time, on any Auction Date or such other time on 
any Auction Date by which Broker-Dealers are required to submit Orders to the Auction Agent, as specified by the 
Auction Agent from time to time. 

"Strbmission Processing Deadline" shall mean the earlier of (i) 40 minutes after the Submission Deadline or 
(ii) the time when the Auction Agent begins to disseminate the results of the Auctions to the Broker-Dealers. 

"Sz~6missiot~Processir~gRepreser~rotiort"shall have the meaning set forth in this Appendix N under the heading 
"Submission by Broker-Dealers to the Auction Agent." 

"T-BiN Cap" means, for any Auction Date, the rate at which the Quarterly Average Auction Rate equals the 
Quarterly Average T-Bill Rate plus the Applicable Spread, such rate to be determined by the formula: 

whereN is the number ofAuction Dates which precede the current Auction date by 91 days or less, including the current 
Auction Date; T is the Quarterly Avenge T-Bill Rate; S is the Applicable Spread; and R is the sum of the Auction Rates 
for Auction Dates preceding the current Auction Date by 91 days or less, excluding the current Auction. 



"United Stales Treasrrry Security Rare" means that rate of interest per annum equal to the Bond Equivalent 
Yield on the applicable United States Treasury securities sold at the last auction thereof that immediately precedes the 
Determination Date to which the T-Bill Cap applies. 

"Winning Bid Role" shall have the meaning set forth below in subparagraph (c)(l)(C). 

Interest 

Interest Paytnenls. Interest on Series RAMS shall accrue during each Interest Payment Period at the Auction 
Bond Interest Rate for each Auction Period that falls wholly or in part within such Interest Payment Period and shall be 
payable in arrears on each succeeding Interest Payment Date. 

An "Interest Payment Period' means (i) so long as interest is payable on June 1 and December 1 with respect 
thereto and unless otherwise changed as described below under "Changes in Auction Periods or Auction Date - 
Cliaiiges i t 1  Auction Period or Periods," the period commencing either on the date of issue of the Series RAMS or on 
the date of conversion ofthe Rate Period on the 2006 Bonds to an Auction Rate Period through and including the first 
June 1 orDecember 1 andeachsuccessivesix-month period thereafter throughand including the day precedingeachJune 
1 or December 1, as applicable, and (ii) if, and for so long as, Interest Payment Dates are specified to occur at the end 
ofeach Auction Period, as described below under "Changes in Auction Periods or Auction Date- Changes in Auction 
Periodor Pwiods." thr: period commr'ncmg eithcr on the date of issue of the Series RAhlS or on the date ofconvmion 
of the Rate Period to an Auction Rate Period through and including the initial Auction Date sct fonh in the applicable 
Term Supplement and each successive 35-day period thereafter. 

An "Interest Payment Dale" means each June I and December I until maturity or earlier redemption, 
commencing on December 1, 2006 and, in all cases, at maturity or earlier redemption. Interest Payment Dates may 
change in the event of a change in the length of one or more Auction Periods or in certain other events. See "Changes 
in Auction Periods or Auction Date - Clianges in Auction Period or Periods" below. 

An "Auction Period' means the period commencing either on the date of issue of the RAMS or on the date of 
conversion of the Rate Period on the 2006 Bonds to an Auction Rate Period through and including the initial Auction 
Date and each successive 35-day period thereafter. 

The amount of interest distributable to Holders of RAMS in respect of each S100,OOO in principal amount 
thereof for any Interest Payment Period or part thereof shall be calculated by the Trustee by (i) applying the Auction 
Bond Interest Rate for each Auction Period or part thereof in the Interest Payment Period to the principal amount of 
S100,000, multiplying such product by the actual number of days in each such Auction Period or part thereof, divided 
by 360, and, if necessary, truncating the resultant figure to the nearest cent and (ii) adding together, if necessary, the 
amounts of interest so calculated for each Auction Period or part thereof in the applicable Interest Payment Period. 
Interest on RAMS shall be computed by the Trustee on the basis of a 360-day year for the number of days actually 
elapsed. In the event an Interest Payment Date occurs on a day other than the first day of an Auction Period, theTrustee, 
after confirming the calculation required above, shall calculate the portion of the interest amount payable for such 
Auction Period on such Interest Paynient Date and the portion payable on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date. 
The Trustee shall make the calculation described in item (i) above not later than the close ofbusiness on each Auction 
Date. 

Interest payments on RAMS are to be made by the Trustee to each Depository that is the registered owner of 
the RAMS, as of the Record Date preceding each Interest Payment Date. The RAMS are to be registered in the name 
of the Depository, including, but not limited to DTC, designated as such for the RAMS. See "Appendix VII -THE 
DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY" for a description of how DTC and other Depositories, as registered owners, are 
expected to disburse such payments to the beneficial owners. 

Azrction BondInteresst Rate. The rate per annum at which interest is payable on RAMS for any Auction Period 
is herein referred to as the "Auction Bondlnterest Rate. " Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Auction 
Bond Interest Rate cannot exceed the Maximum Auction Rate. 



The respective rates of interest for Initial RAMS Auction Periods shall be the rates determined upon the initial 
sale thereof. Thereafter, the rate of interest on the RAMS for each subsequent Auction Period to, but not including, any 
Conversion Date shall be equal to the annual rate of interest that results from implementation of the Auction Procedures 
described in this Appendm IV (the "Ascrio~l Rare''), unless the Auction Rate exceeds the Maximum Auction Rate, in 
which case the rate of interest on K A l l S  for such ,\uction Period shall be the Maximum Auction Rate: urovidedth31 if. ., 
on any Auction Date, an Auction is not held for any reason, then the rate of interest for the next succeeding Auction 
Period shall be equal to the Maximum Auction Rate established on such Auction Date. 

Nohvithstanding the foregoing, (a) if the ownership of RAMS is no longer maintained in book-entry form, the 
rate of interest on RAMS for any Auction Period commencing after the delivery of certificates representing RAMS as 
describedahove shall equal the Maximum Auction Rate on the Business Day immediately preceding the first day ofsuch 
Auction Period; or (b) if a Payment Default occurs, Auctions will be suspended and the Auction Bond Interest Rate for 
the Auction Period commencingon oraftersuchPaylnent Defaultand for each Auction Period thereafterto and including 
the Auction Period, if any, during which, or commencing less than the Applicable Number of Business Days after, such 
Payment Default is cured will equal the Overdue Rate; or (c) if a proposed Conversion shall have failed, as described 
below under "Inadequate Funds for Tenders; Failed Conversion," and the next succeeding Auction Date shall be less 
than the Applicable Number of Business Days after (or on) any such failed Conversion Date, then an Auction shall not 
be held on such Auction Date and the rate of interest on RAMS subject to the failed conversion for the next succeeding 
Auction Period shall be equal to the Maximuln Auction Rate calculated as of the first Business Day of such Auction 
Period. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if any RAMS or portion thereof has been selected for 
redemption during the next succeeding Auction Period, such RAMS or portion thereof, will not be included in the 
Auction preceding such redemption date, and will continue to bear interest until the redemption date at the rate 
established for the Auction Period prior to said Auction. 

Auction Participants 

ElristingI~olders a~tdPotenfialHolders. Participants in each Auction will include (i)"'ExisfingHolders," which 
shall mean anv Person who is listed as the owner of record of RAMS orior to a Conversion Date in the records of the ~. ~~~~~~ ~-~~~~ 

Auction Agent (described below) at thecloseofbusinesson theBusinessDay precedingeach Auction; and(ii) "Potoitial 
Holders," which shall mean any Person, including any Existing Holder, who shall have executed (and not withdrawn or 
terminated) a Master Purchaser's Letter (in the form found in Appendix V) and who may be interested in acquiring 
RAMS (or, in the case of an Existing Holder, an additional principal amount of RAMS). 

By purchasing RAMS, whether in an Auction or othenvise, each prospective purchaser of RAMS or its Broker- 
Dealer must agree and will be deemed to have agreed: (a) to participate in Auctions on the terms set forth in Appendix 
IV hereto, (b) so long as the beneficial ownership of RAMS is maintained in book-entry form by a Depository, to sell, 
transfer or othenvise dispose of RAMS only pursuant to a Bid or a Sell Order (each as defined in Appendix IV in an 
Auction, or to or through a Broker-Dealer or to a Person who has delivered a signed Master Purchaser's Letter to the 
Auction Agent;providedthat in the case of all transfers other than those pursuant to an Auction, the Existing Holder of 
RAMS so transferred, its agent member or its Broker-Dealer advises the Auction Agent ofsuch transfer, and (c) to have 
its beneficial ownership of RAMS maintained at all times in book-entry form by the designated Depository for the 
account of its Participant in such Depository, which in turn will maintain records of such beneficial ownership, and to 
authorize such Participant to disclose to the Auction Agent such information with respect to such beneficial ownership 
as the Auction Agent may request. 

Azrction Agent. The Wilmington Trust Company has been appointedas the initial Auction Agent for theRAMS. 
The Trustee is directed to enter into the initial Auction Agency Agreement with The Wilmington Trust Company. Any 
substitute Auction Agent shall be (a) a bank or trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of 
America or any state or territory thereof having its principal place of business in the Borough of Manhattan, The City 
ofNew York, and havingacombined capital stock, surplus and undividedprofits ofat least $15,000,000 or (b) amember 
oftheNational Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., having a capitalization ofat least Sl5,000,000 and, in either case, 
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it under the Indenture and under the Auction Agency 
Agreement. The Auction Agent may resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations created by the Indenture by 
giving at least 90 days' written notice to the Corporation, the T ~ s t e e  and the Market Agent (25 days' witten notice if 



the Auction Agent has not been paid its fee after notice of such fact to the Corporation and the Trustee). The Auction 
Agent may be removed at any time by the Trustee if the Auction Agent is an entity other than the Trustee, acting at the 
direction of either (i) the Corporation or (ii) the Owners of 66-213% of the aggregate principal amount of the RAMS by 
an instrument signed by the Trustee and filed with the Auction Agent, the Corporation andtheMarket Agent uponat least 
30 days' notice; provided that, if required by the Market Agent, an agreement in substantially thc form of the Auction 
Agency Agreement shall be entered into with a successor Auction Agent. If the Auction Agent and the Trustee are the 
same entity, the Auction Agent may be removed as described above, with the Corporation acting in lieu of the Trustee. 

If the Auction Agent shall resign or be removed or dissolved, or if the property or affairs of the Auction Agent 
shall be taken under thecontrol ofany state or federal court or administrative body because ofbankmptcy or insolvency, 
or for any other reason, the Corporation shall use its best efforts to appoint a successoras Auction Agent, and the Trustee 
shall thereupon enter into an Auction Agency Agreement with such successor. 

The Auction Agent is acting as agent for the Trustee and the Corporation in connection with Auctions. In the 
absence of had faith or negligence on its part, the Auction Agent shall not be liable for any action taken, suffered or 
omitted or for any error ofjudgment made by it in the performance of its duties under the ~ u c t i o n  Agency Agreement 
and shall not be liable for any error ofjudgment made in good faith unless the Auction Agent shall have been negligent 
in ascertaining (or failing to ascertain) the pertinent facts. 

Broker-Dealer. Existing Holders and Potential Holders may participate in Auctions only by submitting orders 
(in the manner described below) throueh a "Broker-Dealer." includine RBC Caoitat Markets as the sole initial Broker- - - 
Dealer, or any other broker or dialer (each as defined in the'securities ~ x c h a n g e ~ c t  of 1934, as amended), commercial 
bank or other entity permitted by law to perform the functions required of a Broker-Dealer set forth below which (a) is 
a "Participant" (i.e.. a member of, or participant in, the Securities Depository) or an affiliate of a Participant, (b) has a 
capital surplus of at least $15,000,000, (c) has been selected by the Corporation with the approval of the Market Agent, 
and (d) has entered into a Broker-Dealer Agreement with the Auction Agent that remains effective, in which the Broker- 
Dealer agrees to participate in Auctions as described in the Auction Procedures, as from time to time amended or 
supplemented. 

A Broker-Dealer may submit orders in auctions for its o m  account. Any Broker-Dealer submitting an order 
for its own account in any auction will have an advantage over other bidders in that it would have knowledge of other 
orders placed through it in that auction (but it wouldnot have knowledgeoforders placed through other Broker-Dealers, 
if any). As a result of the Broker-Dealer bidding, the auction clearing rate may he higher or lower than the rate that 
would have cleared if the Broker-Dealer had not bid. A Broker-Dealer may also bid in order to prevent what would 
otherwise be (i) a failed auction; or (ii) an auction clearing at a rate that the Broker-Dealer deems in its discretion, to be 
too high given prevailing market conditions. A Broker-dealer may also encourage additional or revised investor bidding 
in order to prevent an "all-hold" auction or an auction clearing at arate which tlieBroker-Dealer deems, in its discretion, 
to be too low given prevailing market conditions. 

MarkelAgenr. TheSaMarket Agent," initially RBC Capital Markets, is responsibleunderthe terms ofthe Market 
Agent Agreement forthe followingdutiesunder the Indenture: (i) assist the Trustee in thedeterminationoftheMaxitnum 
Auction Rate on the Business Day before each Interest Payment Date after the delivery of physical certificates 
representing the 2006 Bonds, (ii) assist the Trustee in calculating the Overdue Rate on the Determination Date for (A) 
each Auction Period commencing after the occurrence and during the continuance of a Payment Default and (B) any 
Auction Period commencing less than the Applicable Number of Business Days after the cure of any Payment Default, 
(iii) determine the Quarterly Average CP Rate and the Quarterly Average T-Bill Rate for purposes of determining the 
CP Cap and the T-Bill Cap, respectively, as a component of the Maximum Auction Rate, (iv) determine changes to be 
made in the percentages used in determining the Maximum Auction Rate, the All-Hold Rate and the Overdue Rate as 
described under "Adjustment in Percentages forRAMSM below, and (v) makechanges to the Auction Periods or Auction 
Dates as described below under the caption "Changes in Auction Periods or Auction Date." Under the Market Agent 
Agreement, and in connection with RAMS, theMarket Agent shall act solely as agent oftheTmstee andshallnot assume 
any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any of the beneficial owners. 



Auctions 

Auctions to establish the Auction Bond lnterest Rate are to be held on each Auction Date, except as described 
above under "lnterest - Aucrion Bondlnreresr Rare," by application of the Auction Procedures described in Appendix 
IV. '2ucrion Dore8'shall mean initially for RAMS, the date set forth in the applicable Term Supplement and thereafter, 
the Business Day immediately preceding the first day of each Auction Period, other than: (a) each Auction Period 
commencing after the ownership of RAMS is no longer maintained in book-entry form; (b) each Auction Period 
commencing after the occurrence and during the continuance of a Payment Default; or (c) any Auction Period 
commencing less than the Applicable Number of Business Days after the cure or waiver of a Payment Default. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Auction Date for one or more Auction Periods may be changed as described below 
under "Changes in Auction Periods or Auction Date-Changes in Auclion Period o r  Periods." 

The Auction Agent shall determine the Maximum Auction Rate and the All-Hold Rate on each Auction Date. 
Upon receipt of notice from the Trustee of a failed Conversion Date as described below under "Inadequate Funds for 
Tenders; Failed Conversion," and if the next succeeding Auction Date shall be two or fewer Business Days after (or on) 
the failed Conversion Date, the Auction Agent shall not hold an Auction on such Auction Date but shall calculate the 
Maximum Auction Rate as of the first Business Day of the next succeeding Auction Period and give notice thereof as 
provided and to the parties specified in the Auction Agency Agreement. If the ownership of RAMS is no longer 
maintained in book-entry form, the Trustee shall, with the assistance of the Market Agent, calculate the Maximum 
Auction Rate on the Business Day immediately preceding the first day ofeach Auction Period commencing after delivery 
of certificates representing RAMS. If a Paynent Default shall have occurred, the T ~ S t e e  shall, with the assistance of 
the Market Agent, calculate the Overdue Rate on the first day of (a) each Auction Period commencing after the 
occurrence and during the continuance of such Payment Default and (b) any Auction Period commencing less than the 
Applicable Number of Business Days after the cure of any Payment Default. The determination by the Tmstee or the 
Auction Agent, as the case may be, of the Maximum Auction Rate shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and 
binding upon the owners andall otherparties. Ifcalculatedor determined by the Auction Agent, the Auction Agent shall 
promptly advise the Trustee of the Maximum Auction Rate. 

So long as o\nicrship of RAMS is n13intained in book-entry form, an Existing lloldcr may sell, transfer or 
orlicn\~isc disnosc of RAMS unlv nursuanl to a Bid or Sell Order las defincd belo\\, under "Auctions Gcnerallv"I nlaccd , . , ,. 
in an Auction or through a Broker-Dealer,providedthat, in the case of all transfers other than pursuant to Auctions, such 
Existing Holder, its Broker-Dealer or its Participant advises the Auction Agent of such transfer. Prior to a Conversion 
Date, Auctions shall be conducted on each Auction Date, if there is an Auction Agent on such Auction Date, in the 
manner described in this Appendix IV. A description of the Settlement Procedures to he used with respect to Auctions 
for RAMS is contained in Appendix V. 

Adjustment in Percentages for RAMS 

The Market Agent shalladjust the percentageused indetermining the All-HoldRate, the ApplicablePercentage 
used in determining the Maximum Auction Rate and the Applicable Percentage of the Kenny Index used in determining 
the Overdue Rate, if any such adjustment is necessary, in the judgment of the Market Agent, to reflect any Change of 
Preference Law such that RAMS paying the Maximum Auction Rate, RAMS paying the All-Hold Rate and RAMS 
paying the Overdue Rate shall have equal market values before and after such Change of Preference Law. Prior to any 
such adjustment, the Corporation shall give notice thereof to the Rating Agency, and no such adjustment shall be made 
unless such adjustment will not adversely affect the Rating on any of the 2006 Bonds. In making any such adjustment, 
the Market Agent shall take the following factors, as in existence both before and after such Change of Preference Law, 
into account: (i) short-term taxable and tax-exempt market rates and indices of such short-term rates; (ii) the market 
supply and demand for short-term tax-exempt securities; (iii) yield curves for short-term and long-term tax-exempt 
securities or obligations having a credit rating that is comparable to the RAMS; (iv) general economic conditions; and 
(v) economic and financial factors present in the securities industry that may affect or that may be relevant to the RAMS. 

The Market Agent shall effectuate an adjustment in the percentage used in determining the All-Hold Rate, the 
Applicable Percentage used in determining the Maximum Auction Rate and the Applicable Percentage of the Kenny 
Index used to determine the Overdue Rate by delivering written notice to the Corporation, the Trustee and the Auction 
Agent at least 10 days prior to the Auction Date on which the Market Agent desires to effect such change. 



Changes in Auction Periods or  Auction Date 

Changes in Auclio~i Period or Periods. While any of the 2006 Bonds are outstanding as RAMS, the 
Corporation may change, upon meeting certain conditions, the length of one or more Auction Periods. In connection 
with any such change or othenvise, but for the same stated purpose, the Market Agent may change Interest Payment 
Dates; any such change shall be considered a "change in the length of one or more Auction Periods" for purposes of the 
Indenture. Any change in the length of the Auction Period requires the consent of the Corporation and must be made 
for the purpose of conforming to current market practice with respect to certain securities. Any such changed Auction 
Period shall not be less than 7 days nor more than 366 days. 

The change in the length of one or more Auction Periods shall not be allowed unless Sufficient Clearing Bids 
(as defined in this Appendix 1V) existed at both the Auction before the date on which the notice of the proposed change 
was given and the Auction inmediately preceding the proposed change. Such change shall take effect only if certain 
requirements are met as described in the Indenture. 

Changes in the Auction Dale. While any of the 2006 Bonds are outstanding as RAMS, the Market Agent: 

(a) in order to conform with then-current market practice with respect to similar securities, shall; and 

(b) in order to accommodate economic and financial factors that may affect or he relevant to the day of 
the week constituting an Auction Date and the interest rate bome on the RAMS and with the written consent of an 
Authorized Officer of the Corporation, may specify an earlier Auction Date (but in no event more than five Business 
Days earlier) than the Auction Date that would othenvise be determined in accordance with the definition of "Aucrion 
Date" with respect to one or more specified future Auction Periods. The Market Agent shall provide notice of any 
detemlination to specify an earlier Auction Date for one or more Auction Periods by means of awritten notice delivered 
at least 10days prior to the proposed changed Auction Date to theTrustee, the Auction Agent, the Corporation and DTC. 

In connection with any change in the Auction terms described above, the Auction Agent shall provide such 
further notice to such parties as is specified in the Auction Agency Agreement. 

Conversion of Bonds 

The Corporation may. upon 30 days' witten notice, on the first day of any Auction Period convert all or a 
portion of the 2006 Bonds outstanding as RAMS to bear interest at an Adjustable Rate other than the Auction Rate or 
at a Fixed Rate. From and after the effective Conversion Date, Bonds subject to Conversion (the "ConvertedBonds") 
will no longer be outstanding as RAMS and will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase at a price equal to the 
principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, thereon to the Conversion Date. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, the Corporation must deliver to the Trustee a Supplemental 
Indenture to provide for such prospective terms for the Converted Bonds, or the manner of determining the same, as the 
Corporation may deem advisable, provided that, among other things, (I)  the then existing holders of Converted Bonds 
shall be given written notice that the effective date of any such provisions shall be a mandatory tender date; and (2) any 
failure to tender is nevertheless decmed lo be a tender for mandatory purchase and the Converted Bonds which are not 
tendered shall be deemed "Undelivered Bonds." 

Mandatory Tender Upon Conversion 

Converted Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the effective date of any Conversion at 
a price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, thereon to the date of purchase. The Trustee 
is required to give notice of such mandatory tender to the Holders of such Converted Bonds subject to purchase at their 
addresses shown on the books of registry. Such notice shall be sent by first class mail to the Holders. 

Converted Bonds to be purchased on any Conversion Date shall be required to be delivered to the designated 
office of the Trustee, or its desibmated agent for such purposes, at or before l2:OO noon on such date. If the Holder of 
any ConvertedBondwhich is subject to purchase as described herein fails todeliversuchConvertedBond to theTrustee, 
or its designated agent for such purposes, for purchase on the purchase date, and if the Trustee, or its designated agent 
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for such purposes, is in receipt of the purchase price therefor, such Converted Bond shall nevertheless be deemed 
tendered and purchased on the Conversion Date and shall be anundelivered Bond as described below under the caption 
"Undelivered Bonds," and registration of the ownership of such Converted Bond shall be transferred to the purchaser 
thereof as described under the caption "Undelivered Bonds." 

Undelivered Bonds 

Any Converted Bonds which are required to be tendered on a Conversion Date and which are not delivered on 
the Conversion Date, and for the payment of which there has been irrevocably held in trust in a segregated snbaccount 
for the benefit of such owner an amount of money sufficient to pay the purchase price and any accrued interest owing 
on the purchase date with respect to such Converted Bonds, shall be deemed to have been purchased, and shall be 
Undelivered Bonds. In the event of a failure by an owner of Converted Bonds to tender such Converted Bonds on or 
prior to the required date, such owner of such Undelivered Bonds shall not be entitled to any payment other than the 
purchase price and any unpaid interest due on the purchase date, and Undelivered Bonds in the hands of such non- 
delivering 2006 Bond owner shall no longer accrue interest or be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, except for the 
payment of the purchase price and any unpaid interest dueon thepurchasedate;provided, however,that theindebtedness 
reoresented bv such Converted Bonds shall not be extinmished. and the Trustee shall transfer. authenticate and deliver - 
such Converted Bonds as provided in the Indenture. 

The Trustee shall, as to any Undelivered Bonds, (i) promptly notify the Remarketing Agent ofsuch non-delivery 
and (ii) place a stop transfer against an appropriate amount of Converted Bonds registered in the name of the owner(s) 
on the Bond register. TheTrustee shall place suchstop transfer(s)commencing with the lowest serial number2006 Bond 
registeredin thename ofsuch owner(s)(until stop transfers have beenplacedagainst anappropriateamountofConverted 
Bonds) until the appropriate tendered Converted Bonds are delivered to the Trustee, or its designated agent. Upon such 
delivery, the Trustee shall make any necessary adjustments to the 2006 Bond register. pending de l ive j  of such 
Undelivered Bonds, the Trustee, or its designated agent, shall hold the purchase price therefor uninvested in a segregated 
subaccount for the benefit of such owners. 

Inadequate Funds for Tenders; Failed Conversion 

If the funds available for purchase of Convened Bonds are inadequate for the purchase of all 2006 Bonds 
tendered on any Conversion Date, or if a proposed conversion of 2006 Bonds othenvise fails as a result of a failure to 
meet the conditions specified in the Indenture, the Trustee shall: (a) return all tendered 2006 Bonds to the Holders 
thereof, (b) return all moneys received for the purchase of such 2006 Bonds to the persons providing such money; and 
(c) notify the corporation, the Auction Agent, the Remarketing Agent and the Paying Agent of the return of such 2006 
Bonds and money and the failure to make payment for tendered 2006 Bonds. After any such failed conversion the 2006 
Bonds subject to the failed conversion shall either (i) remain outstanding as RAMS or (ii) automatically adjust to aDaily 
Rate Period on thedate originally scheduled for such adjustment or continuation. Ifa Daily Rate for the first day ofsuch 
daily Rate Period is not determined as determined by the Remarketing Agent, the Daily Rate for the first day of such 
Daily Rate Period shall be equal to the TBMA Municipal Index for Tax-Exempt Bonds. In die case of a failed 
conversion of RAMS, Auctionsshall beconducted beginning on the first AuctionDateoccurringmorethantwoBusiness 
days after the failed Conversion Date and interest thereon shall be determined and paid according to the Indenture. 

Auction Generally 

Auctions shall be conducted on each Auction Date (other than the Auction Date immediately preceding (i) each 
Auction Periodcommencing after the ownership ofRAMS isno longer maintained in book-entry form; (ii) each Auction 
Period commencing after the occurrence and during the continuance of a Payment Default; or (iii) any Auction Period 
commencing less than two business days after the cure of a Payment Default). If there is an Auction Agent on such 
Auction Date, Auctions shall be conducted in the following manner. 

(a) Orders By Exisling Holders and Porential Holders. 

(i) Prior to the Submission Deadline on each Auction Date: 



(A) each Existing Holder of RAMS may submit to a Broker-Deder informition 3s to: 
(I 1 the principal amount ofOutstanding RA.MS, ifany,lleld by such Existing Holder which such Exislmg Holder desires 
to continue to hold without regard to the Auction Rate for the next succeeding Auction Period; (2) the principal amount 
of Outstanding RAMS, if any, which such Existing Holder offers to sell if the Auction Rate for the next succeeding 
Auction Period shall be less than the rate per annum specified by such Existing Holder; andlor (3) the principal amount 
of Outstanding RAMS, if any, held by such Existing Holder which such Existing Holder offers to sell without regard to 
the Auction Rate for the next succeeding Auction Period; and 

(B) oneormoreBroker-Dealersmay contactPotential Holders todetermine the principal 
amount of RAMS which each such Potential Holder offers to purchase if the Auction Rate for the next succeeding 
Auction Period shall not be less than the rate per annum specified by the such Potential Holder. 

The communication of an Existing Holder or a Potential Holder to a Broker-Dealer of information referred to 
in clause (A)(I), (A)(2), (A)(3) or (B) of this subsection (a)(i) is hereinafter referred to as an "Order" and collectively 
as "Orders. " Each Existing Holder and each Potential Holder placing an Order is hereinafter referred to as a "Bidder" 
and collectively as "Bidders. " An Order containing the information referred to in clause @)(I) of this subsection (a)(i) 
is hereinafter referred to as a "Hold Order" and collectively as "Hold Orders. " An Order containing the information 
referred to in clause (A)(2) or (B) ofthis subsection (a)(i) is hereinafter referred to as a "Bid"andcollectively as"Bids. " 
An order containing the information referred to in clause (A)(3) of this subsection (a)(i) is hereinafter referred to as a 
"Sell Order" and collectively as "Sell Orders. " 

(ii) (A) Subject to the provisions of subsection @) below, a Bid by an Existing Holder shall 
constitute an irrevocable offer to sell: (1) the principal amount of Outstanding RAMS specified in such Bid if the 
Auction Rate determined shall be less than the rate specified in such Bid; or (2) such principal amount or a lesser 
principal amount of Outstanding RAMS to be determined as set forth in clause (D) of paragraph (i) of subsection (d) . . .  ~~ ~ ~ 

below, if the Auction Rate determined shall be equal to the rate specified in s u c h ~ i d ;  or (3) such principal amount or 
a lesser principal amount ofoutstanding RAMS to be detennined as set forth in clause (C) ofparagraph (ii) ofsubsection 
(d) below if the rate specified shall be higher than the Auction Rate and Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made. 

(B) Subject to the provisionsofsubsection (b) below, a Sellorderby an Existing Holder 
shall constitute an irrevocable offer to sell: (I)  the principal amount ofoutstanding RAMS specified in such Sell Order; 
or (2) such principal amount or a lesser principal amount ofoutstanding RAMS as set forth in clause (C) of paragraph 
(ii) of subsection (d) below if Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made. 

(C) Subject to the provisions of the subsection (b) below, a Bid by a Potential Holder 
shall constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase: (1) the principal amount of Outstanding RAMS specified in such Bid 
if the Auction Rate detennined shall be higher than the rate specified in such Bid; or(2) such principal amount o ra  lesser 
principal amount of Outstanding RAMS as set forth in clause (E) of paragraph (i) of subsection (d) below if the Auction 
Rate determined shall be equal to the rate specified in such Bid. 

(b) Submission by Broker-Deolers to the Auction Agent. 

(i) Each Broker-Dealer shall submit in d t i n g  to the Auction Agent prior to the Submission 
Deadline on each Auction Date all Orders obtained by such Broker-Dealer and shall specify with respect to each such 
Order: 

(A) the name of the Bidder placing such Order, 

(B) the aggregate principal amount of RAMS that are the subject of such Order, 

(C) to the extent that such Bidder is an Existing Holder: (1) the principal amount of 
RAMS, if any, subject to any Hold Order placed by such Existing Holder; (2) the principal amount of RAMS, if any, 
subject to any Bid placed by such Existing Holder and the rate specified in such Bid; and (3) the principal amount of 
RAMS, if any, subject to any Sell Order placed by such Existing Holder; and 

IV- 13 



(D) to theextent suchBidder isaPotential Holder, the rate andamount specified in such 
Potential Holder's Bid. 

(ii) If any rate specified in any Bid contains more &an three figures to the right of the decimal 
point, the Auction Agent shall round such rate up to the next higher one-thousandth of 1% (.001). 

(iii) If an Order or Orders covering all Outstanding RAMS held by an Existing Holder is not 
submitted to the Auction Agent prior to the Submission Processing Deadline, the Auction Agent shall deem a 
Hold Order to have been submitted on behalf of such Existing Holder covering the principal amount of 
Outstanding RAMS held by such Existing Holder and not subject to an Order submitted to the Auction Agent. 

(iv) A Broker-Dealer may submit Orders in Auctions for its own account. Any Broker-Dealer 
submitting an Order for its o w  account in any Auction will have an advantage over other Bidders in that it will 
have knowledge of other Orders placed through it in that Auction (but it will not have knowledge of Orders 
submitted through other Broker-Dealers, if any). As a result ofthe Broker-Dealer bidding, the auction clearing 
rate may be lower than the rate that would have prevailed if the Broker-Dealer had not Bid. A Broker-Dealer 
may also Bid or encourage additional or revised bidding in order to prevent what would otherwise be a failed 
auction, an "all hold' Auction or an auction clearing at a rate that the Broker-Dealer believes does not reflect 
the market rate for such Auction Rate Bonds at the time of the Auction. 

(v) The Corporation, the Trustee or the Auction Agent shall not be responsible for any failure 
of a Broker-Dealer to submit an Order to the Auction Agent on behalf of any Existing Holder or Potential 
Holder. 

(vi) If any Existing Holder submits through a Broker-Dealer to the Auction Agent one or more 
Orders covering in the aggregate more than the principal amount of Outstanding RAMS held by such Existing 
Holder, such Order shall be considered valid as follows and in the following order ofpriority: 

(A) all Hold Orders shall beconsidered valid, butonly up toand including theaggregate 
principal amount of RAMS held by such Existing Holder, and if the aggregate principal amount of 
RAMS subject to such Holder Order exceeds the aggregate principal amount of RAMS held by such 
Existing Holder, the aggregate principal amount ofRAMS subject to each such Holder Order shall be 
reduced pro rata to cover the aggregate principal amount ofoutstanding RAMS held by such Existing 
Holder. 

(B) (I)  any Bid shall be considered valid up to and including the excess of the principal 
amount of Outstanding RAMS held by such Existing Holder over the aggregate principal amount of 
RAMS subject to any Holder Orders referred to in clause (A) of this paragraph (v); (2) subject to 
subclause (1) ofthis clause (B), ifmore than one Bid with the same rate is submitted on behalfof such 
Existing Holder, and the aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS subject to such Bids is 
greater than such excess, such Bids shall be considered valid up to and including the amount of such 
excess, and the stated amount of RAMS subject to each Bid with the same rate shall be reduced pro 
rata to cover the stated amount of RAMS equal to such excess; (3) subject to subclauses (1) and (2) 
of this clause (B), if more than one Bid with different rates is submitted on behalf of such Existing 
Holder, such Bids shall be considered valid first in the ascending order of their respective rates until 
the highest rate is reached at which such excess exists and then at such rate up to and including the 
amount of such excess; and (4) in any such event, the aggregate principal amount of Outstanding 
RAMS, if any, subject to Bids not valid under this clause (B) shall be treated as the subject of a Bid 
by a Potential Holder at the rate therein specified; and 

(C)  all Sell Orders shall be considered valid up to and including the excess of the 
principal amount of Outstanding RAMS held by such Existing Holder over the aggregate principal 
amount ofRAMS subject to valid Hold Orders referred to in clause (A) ofthis paragraph (v) andvalid 
Bids referred to in clause (B) of this paragraph (v). 



(vii) If more than one Bid for RAMS is submitted on behalf of any Potential Holder, each Bid 
submitted shall be a separate Bid with the rate and principal amount therein specificd. 

(viii) An Existing Holder that offers to purchase additional RAMS is, for purposes of such offer, 
treated as a Potential Holder. 

(ix) Any Bid or Sell Order submitted by an Existing Holder covering an aggregate principal 
amount of RAMS not equal to $100,000 or any multiple thereof shall be rejected and shall be deemed a Hold 
Ordcr. Any Bid subm~tted by 3 I'otsnti31 ~ o l d c r  covinng an aggregate princ~p31 mount  of RAMS not equal 
to S100,OOO or any multiple thereof shall be rejected. 

( x )  Any Bidspccifyinga rate h~yherthan the Mnx~mum Auct~onRate will (A) b ~ t r c ~ t c d a s ~ . S c l l  
Ordcr if subniitted by 3n Ewling Iioldcr and (0) not br: accepted if submitted by a Polenti31 Holder. 

(xi) Any Bid submitted by an Existing Holder or a Potential Holder specifying a rate lower than 
the All-Hold Rate shall be treated as a bid specifying the All-Hold Rate and any such bid shall be considered 
as valid and shall be selected in the ascending order of their respective rates in the submitted Bids. 

(xii) Any Order submitted in an Auction by a Broker-Dealer to the Auction Agent before the 
Submission Deadline on any Auction Date shall be irrevocable. 

(xiii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Broker-Dealers may submit an Order after the Submission 
Deadline and prior to the Submission Processing Deadline if the Order was (a) received by the Broker-Dealer 
from Existing Owners or Potential Owners prior to the Submission Deadline or (b) initiated internally by the 
Broker-Dealer for its own account prior to the Submission Deadline. Each Order submitted to the Auction 
Agent after the Submission Deadline and prior to the Submission Processing Deadline shall constitute a 
representation by the Broker-Dealer that such Order was (i) received form an Existing Owner or Potential 
Owner prior to the Submission Deadline or (ii) initiated internally by the Broker-Dealer for its own account 
prior to the Submission Deadline (the "Submission Processing Representation"). 

(c) Detonrination ofS@cient Clearing Bids, Auction Rate and Winning BidRate. 
. . 

(i) Not earlier than the Submission Deadline on each Auction Date, the Auction Agent shall 
assemble all valid Orders subniitted or deemed submitted to it by the Broker-Dealers, subject to a Submission 
Processing Representation (each such Order as submitted or deemed submitted by a Broker-Dealer being 
hereinafter referred to individually as a "Subntitted Hold Order, " a "Srbntiaed Bid" or "Sirbntitted Sell 
Order, " as the case may be, or as a "Srrbmitled Order" and a collectively as "Submided Hold Orderx, " 
"Submitted Bids" or "Szibntitted Sell Orders." as the case may be, or as "Submitted Orders') and shall 
determine: 

(A) the excess of the total principal amount of Outstanding RAMS over the sum of the 
aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS subject to Submitted Hold Orders (such excess 
being liereinafter referred to as the "Available RAMS"); and 

(B) from such Submitted Orders whether (1) the aggregate principal amount of 
Outstanding RAMS subject to Submitted Bids by Potential Holders specifying one ormore rates equal 
to or lower than the Maximum Rate; exceeds or is equal to the sum of: (2) the aggregate principal 
amount of Outstanding RAMS subject to the Submitted Bids by Existing Holders specifying one or 
more rates higher than the Maximum Auction Rate; and (3) the aggregate principal amount of 
Outstanding RAMS subject to Submitted Sell Orders; (in the event suchexcess or such equality exists, 
other than because all of the Outstanding RAMS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, such 
Submitted Bids in subclause (I)  above being hereinafter referred to collectively as "Stijicient 
Clearing Bids '7; and 

(C)  if Sufficient Clearing Bids have been made, the lowest rate specified in such 
Submitted Bids (which shall be the "Winning BidRale") such that if: (I)(aa) each such Submitted 



Bid from Existing Holders specifying such lowest rate and (bb) all other Submitted Bids from Existing 
Holders specifying lower rates, were rejected, thusentitling such Existing Holders to continue to hold 
the principal amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; and (2)(aa) each such Submitted Bid 
from Potential Holders specifying such lowest rate and (bb) all other Submitted Bids from Potential 
Holders specifying lower rates were accepted, the result would be that such Existing Holders described 
in subclause (1) above would continue to hold an aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS 
which, when added to the aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS to be purchased by such 
Potential Holders described in subclause (2) above, would equal not less than the Available RAMS. 

(ii) Promptly after the Auction Agent had made the determinations pursuant to paragraph (i) of 
this subsection (c), the Auction Agent shall advise the Trustee of the Maximum Auction Rate, the Interest Rate 
Limitation and the All-Hold Rate and the components thereof on the Auction Date and, based on such 
determinations, the Auction Rate for the next succeeding Auction Period (the "Auction Rale') as follows: 

(A) if Sufficient Clearing Bids have been made, that the Auction Rate for the next 
succeeding Auction Period shall be equal to the Winning Bid Rate so determined; 

(B) if Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made (other than because of all the 
Outstanding RAMS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders), that the Auction Rate for the next 
succeeding Auction Period shall be equal to the Maximum Auction Rate; or 

(C) if all Outstanding RAMS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, that the Auction 
Rate for the next succeeding Auction Period shall be equal to the All-Hold Rate. 

(iii) Proniptly after the Auction Agent has determined the Auction Rate, the Auction Agent shall 
determine and advise the Trustee of the Bond lnterest Rate, which rate shall be the Auction Rate; provided, 
however, that in no event shall theBond InterestRateexceed the Maximum Auction Rate, subject to the Interest 
Rate Limitation. 

(d) Acceptance and Rejeclion ofSubmitted Bids and Stibntitted Sell Orders and Allocation of RAMS. 
Existing Holders shall continue to hold the principal amount ofRAMS that are subject to Submitted Holder Orders. If 
the Maximum Auction Rate is equal to or greater then the Winning Bid Rate and if Sufficient Clearing Bids have been 
received by the Auction Agent, thc Auction Bond lnterest Rate will be the Winning Bid Rate, and Submitted Bids and 
Submitted Sell Orders will be accepted or rejected and the Auction Agent will take such other action as described below 
in paragraph (i). If the Maximuni Auction Rate is less than the Auction Rate, the Auction Bond lnterest Rate will be the 
Maximum Auction Rate. If the Auction Rate and the Maximum Auction Rate are both greater than the Interest Rate 
Limitation, the Auction Bond lnterest Rate shall be equal to the Interest Rate Limitation. If the Auction Agent has not 
received Sufficient Clearing Bids (other than because all of the Outstanding Bonds are subject to Submitted Hold 
Orders), the Auction Bond Interest Rate will be the Maximum Auction Rate. In any of the cases described above, 
Submitted Bids and Submitted Sell Orders shall be accepted or rejected and the Auction Agent shall take such other 
action as set forth below in paragraph (ii): 

(i) If Sufficient Clearing Bids have been made, all Submitted Sell Orders shall be accepted and, 
subject to the provisions of paragraphs (iv) and (v) of this subsection (d), Submitted Bids shall be accepted or 
rejected as follows in the following order of priority and all other Submitted Bids shall be rejected: 

(A) Existing Holders' SubmittedBidsspecifyingany rate that is higherthan the Winning 
Bid Rate shall be accepted, thus requiring each such Existing Holder to sell the aggregate principal 
amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(B) Existing Holders' SubmittedBids specifymgany rate that is lower than the Winning 
Bid Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling each such Existing Holder to continue to bold the aggregate 
principal amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; 



(C) PotentialHolders' SubmittedBidsspecifyingany rate that is lowerthan the Winning 
Bid Rate shall be accepted, thus requiring such Potential Holder to purchase the aggregate principal 
amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(D) each Existing Holders' Suhmitted Bid specifying a rate that is equal to the Winning 
Bid Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling such Existing Holder to continue to hold the aggregate 
principal amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bid, unless the aggregate principal amount of 
Outstanding RAMS subject to all such Submitted Bids shall be greater than the principal amount of 
RAMS (the "rernainirigprincipal amouril") equal to the excess of the Available RAMS over the 
aggregate principal amount of RAMS subject to Submitted Bids described in clauses (B) and (C) of 
this paragraph (i), in which event such Submitted Bid ofsuch Existing Holder shall be rejected in part, 
and such Existing Holder shall be entitled to continue to holder the principal amount ofRAMS subject 
to such Subnlitted Bid, but only in an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of RAMS 
obtained by multiplying the remaining principal amount by a fraction the numerator ofwhich shall be 
the principal amount ofoutstanding RAMS held by such Existing Holder subject to such Submitted 
Bid and the denominator of which shall be the sum of the principal amount of Outstanding RAMS 
subject to such Submitted Bids made by all such Existing Holders that specified a rate equal to the 
Winning Bid Rate; and 

(E) each Potential Holder's Submitted Bid specifyingarate that is equal to the Winning 
Bid Rate shall be accepted but only in an amount equal to the principal amount of RAMS obtained by 
multiplying the excess of the aggregate principal amount of Available RAMS over the aggregate 
principal amount of RAMS subject to Submitted Bids described in clauses (B), (C) and (D) of this 
paragraph (i) by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the aggregate principal amount of 
Outstanding RAMS subject to such Submitted Bid and the denominator ofwhich shall be the sum of 
the principal amounts of Outstanding RAMS subject to Submitted Bids made by all such Potential 
Holders that specified a rate equal to the Winning Bid Rate. 

(ii) If Sufficient Clearing Bids have not been made (other than because all of the Outstanding 
RAMS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders), or if the Maximum Auction Rate is less than the Winning Bid 
Rate (in which case the Auction Bond Interest Rate shall be Maximum Auction Rate), or if the Interest Rate 
Limitation applies, subject to the provisions of paragraphs (iv) and (v) of this subsection (d), Suhmitted Orders 
shall be accepted or rejected as follows in the following order of priorily and all other Submitted Bids shall be 
rejected: 

(A) Existing Holders' Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is equal to or lower than 
the Maximum Auction Rate shall be rejected, thus entitling such Existing Holders to continue to hold 
the aggregate principal amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; 

(B) Potential Holders' Submitted Bids specifying any rate that is equal to or lower than 
the Maximum Auction Rate shall be accepted, thus requiring each Potential Holder to purchase the 
aggregate principal amount of RAMS subject to such Submitted Bids; and 

(C)  Each Existing Holder's Submitted Bid specifying any rate that is higher than the 
Maximum Auction Rate and the Submitted Sell Order of each Existing Holder shall he accepted, thus 
entitling each Existing Holder that submitted any such Submitted Bid or Submitted Sell Order to sell 
the RAMS subject to such Submitted Bid or Submitted Sell Order, but in both casesonly in an amount 
equal to the aggregate principal amount of RAMS obtained by multiplying the aggregate principal 
amount ofRAMS subject to Submitted Bids described in clause(B) ofthis paragraph (ii) by a fraction 
the numerator ofwhich shall be the aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS held by such 
Existing Holder subject to such Submitted Bid or Suhmitted Sell Order and the denominator ofwhich 
shall be the aggregate principal amount of Outstanding RAMS subject to all such Submitted Bids and 
Submitted Sell Orders. 

(iii) If all Outstanding RAMS are subject to Submitted Hold Orders, all Submitted Bids shall be 
rejected. 
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(iv) If, as a result of the procedures described in paragraph (i) or (ii) of this subsection (d), any 
Existing Holder would be entitled or required to sell, or any Potential Holder would be entitled or required to 
purchase, a principal amount of RAMS that is not equal to S100,OOO or any multiple thereof, the Auction Agent 
shall, in such manner as it shall, in its sole discretion, determine, round up or down the principal amount of 
RAMS to be purchased or sold by any Existing Holder or Potential Holder so that the principal amount of 
RAMS purchased or sold by each Existing Holder or Potential Holder shall be equal to $100,000 or any 
multiple thereof. 

(v) If, as a result of the procedures described in paragraph (i) or (ii) of this subsection (d), any 
Potential Holder would be entitled or required to purchase, a principal amount of RAMS that is less than 
$100,000 or any multiple thereof, the Auction Agent shall, in such manner as it shall, in its sole discretion, 
determine, allocate the principal amount of RAMS for purchase among Potential Holders so that the principal 
amount ofRAMS purchased by each Potential Holder shall be equal to S100,OOO or any multiple thereof, even 
if such allocation results in one or more of such Potential Holders not purchasing any RAMS. 

(e) Basedon theresultsofeach Auction, the Auction Agentshall determine theaggregate principalamount 
of RAMS to be purchased and the aggregate principal amount of RAMS to be sold by Potential Holders and Existing 
Holders on whose behalf each Broker-Dealer submitted Bids or Sell Orders and, with respect to each Broker-Dealer, to 
the extent that such aggregate principal amount of RAMS to he sold differs from sucli aggregate principal amount of 
RAMS to be purchased, detennine to which other Broker-Dealer or Broker-Dealers acting for one or more purchasers 
such Broker-Dealer shall deliver, or from which other Broker-Dealer or Broker-Dealers acting for one or more sellers 
such Broker-Dealer shall receive, as the case may be, RAMS. 

(0 Any calculation by the Auction Agent or t h e T ~ s t e e ,  as applicable, ofthe Auction Bond Interest Rate, 
Maximum Auction Rate, All-Hold Rate and Overdue Rate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be binding on all otlier 
parties. 

(g) Notwithstanding anything herein tothecontrary, no Auction will be heldon any AuctionDatcon which 
there are insufficient moneys in the Revenue Account to pay, or otherwise held by the Tmstee under the Indenture and 
available to pay, the principal ofand interest due on theRAMS on the Interest Payment Date immediately following such 
Auction Dare. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, if any RAMS or portion thereof have been selected for 
redemption during the next succeeding AuctionPeriod, such RAMS orportion thereofwill not beincludedinthe Auction 
preceding such redemption date, and will continue to bear interest until the redemption date at the rate established for 
the Auction Period prior to said Auction. 

Disruption in Auction Procedures 

Notwithstanding any provision in the Indenture to the contrary, (i) if as of the commencement of an Auction 
Period, an Auction is scheduled to occur for such Auction Period on a Business Day (a "Scheduled Auction Date"), but 
such Auction does not occur because it was not foreseeable lhat the Scheduled Auction Date would not be a Business 
Day, or (ii) if the Scheduled Auction Date was a Business Day but, as a result of an event generally affecting the 
securities markets in the United States, auctions for securities such as the Bonds were generally not conducted during 
such Business Day and in fact an Auction for the Bonds was not conducted on such Business Date, the following shall 
apply: 

(a) An Auction shall be deemed to have occurred on the Scheduled Auction Date as if such day were a Business 
Day; 

(b) The Auction Rate for such deemed Auction to be in effect for the succeeding Auction Period (i) shall be equal 
to the Auction Rate for the preceding Auction Period if such preceding Auction Period was 35 days or less; and (ii) 
otherwise shall be the rate of interest determined by the Market Agent on equivalently rated auction securities with a 
comparable length of auction period; and 

(c) The succeeding Auction Period shall begin on the calendar day following the Scheduled Auction Date. 
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APPENDIX V 

SETTLEMENT PROCEDURES 

Unless defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have the respective meanings specified in Appendix 
IV of this Official Statement. 

(a) Not later than 3:00 p.m. on each Auction Date, the Auction Agent is required to notify by telephone 
the Broker-Dealers that participated in the Auction held on such Auction Date and submitted an Order on behalf of any 
Existing Holder or Potential Holder of: 

(i) the Auction Rate or other Rate fixed as the Auction Bond Interest Rate for the next Auction 
Period; 

(ii) whether there were Sufficient Clearing Bids in such Auction; 

(iii) ifsuch Broker-Dealer(a "Seller >Broker-Dealer'? submitted aBid or a Sell Order on behalf 
of an Existing Holder, whether such Bid or Sell Order was accepted or rejected, in whole or in part, and the 
principal amount of RAMS, if any, to be sold by such Existing Holder; 

(iv) if such Broker-Dealer (a "Buyer > Broker-Dealer') submitted a Bid on bchalfof a Potential 
Holder, whether such Bid was accepted or rejected, in whole or in part, and the principal amount of RAMS, 
if any, to be purchased by such Potential Holder; 

(v) if the aggregate principal amount of RAMS to be sold by all Existing Holders on whose 
behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted Bids or Sell Orders if different from the aggregate principal amount of 
RAMS to be purchased by all Potential Holders on whose behalfsuchBroker-Dealer submitted aBid, the name 
or names of one or more other Buyer's Broker-Dealers (and the Participant, if any, of each such other Buyer's 
Broker-Dealer) acting for one or more purchasers of such excess principal amount of RAMS and the principal 
amount of RAMS to bc purchased from one or more Existing Holders on whose behalf such Broker-Dealers 
acted by one or more Potential Holders on whose behalf each of such other Buyer's Broker-Dealers acted; 

(vi) if the principal amount ofRAMS to be purchased by all Potential Holders on whose behalf 
such Broker-Dealer submitted a Bid exceeds the amount of FWviS to be sold by all Existing Holders on whose 
behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted a Bid or a Sell Order, the name or names of one or more Seller's Broker- 
Dealers (and the name of the Participant, if any, of each such Seller's Broker-Dealer) acting for one or more 
sellers of sucli excess principal amount ofRAMS and the principal amount of RAMS to be sold to one or more 
Potential Holders on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer acted by one or more Existing Holders on whose behalf 
of each of such Seller's Broker-Dealers acted; 

(vii) unless previously provided, a list of all Auction Bond Interest Rates and related Auction 
Periods (or portions thereof) since the last Interest Payment Date; and 

(viii) the Auction Date for the next succeeding Auction. 

(h) On each Auction Date, each Broker-Dealer that submitted an Order on behalf of any Existing Holder 
or Potential Holder shall: 

(i) advise each Existing Holder and Potential Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer 
submitted a Bid or Sell Order in the Auction on such AuctionDale whether such Bid or Sell Orderwas accepted 
or rejected, in whole or in part; 

(ii) instruct each Potential Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted a Bid that was 
accepted, in whole or in pan, to instruct such Bidder's Participant to pay to such Broker-Dealer (or its 
Participant) through the Securities Depository the amount necessary, including accrued interest, if any, to 
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purchase the principal amount of RAMS to be purchased pursuant to such Bid against receipt of such principal 
amount of RAMS; 

(iii) in the case of a Broker-Dealer that is a Seller's Broker-Dealer, instruct each Existing Holder 
on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted a Sell Order that was accepted, in whole or in part, or a Bid that 
was accepted, in whole or in part, to instruct such Existing Holder's Participant to deliver to such Broker-Dealer 
(or its Participant) through the Securities Depositorythe principal amountofRAMS to he sold pursuant to such 
Bid or Sell Order against payment therefor; 

(iv) advise each Existing Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted an Order and 
each Potential Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted aBid of the Auction Bond Interest Rate 
for the next Auction Period; 

(v) advise each Existing Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted an Order of the 
next Auction Date; and 

(vi) advise each Potential Holder on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted a Bid that was 
accepted, in whole or in part, of the next Auction Date. 

(c) On the basis of the information provided to it pursuant to paragraph (a) above, each Broker-Dealer 
that submitted a Bid or Sell Order in an Auction is required to allocate any funds received by it pursuant to 
paragraph (b)(ii) above, and any RAMS received by it pursuant paragraph (b)(iii) above, among the Potential Holders, 
if any, on whose behalf such Broker-Dealer submitted Bids, the Existing Holders, if any, on whose behalf such Broker- 
Dealer submitted Bids or Sell Orders in such Auction, and any Broker-Dealers identified to it by the Auction Agent 
following such Auction pursuant to paragraph (a)(v) or (a)(vi) above. 

(d) On each Auction Date: 

(i) eachPotential Holder andExisting Hotder~nthanOrder in the Auction on such Auction Date 
shall instruct its Participant as provided in (b)(ii) or (b)(iii) above, as the case may be; 

(ii) eachSeller'sBroker-Dealertllat isnot apartkipant in the Securities Depository shall instruct 
its Participant to (A) pay through the Securities Depository to the Participant of the Existing Holder delivering 
RAMS to such Broker-Dealer following such Auction pursuant to(b)(iii) above the amountnecessary, including 
accrued interest, if any, to purchase such RAMS against receipt of such RAMS, and (B) deliver such RAMS 
through the Securities Depository to a Buyer's Broker-Dealer (or its Participant) identified to such Seller's 
Broker-Dealer pursuant to (a)(v) above against payment therefor; and 

(iii) eachBuyer'sBroker-Dealerthat is notaParticipant in the SecuritiesDepository shallinsbuct 
its Participant to (A) pay through the Securities Depository to a Seller's Broker-Dealer (or its Participant) 
identified following such Auction pursuant to (a)(vi) above the amount necessary, including accrued interest, 
if any, to purchase the RAMS to be purchased pursuant to (b)(ii) above against receipt of such RAMS, and (B) 
deliver such RAMS through the Securities Depository to the Participant of the purchaser thereof against 
payment therefor. 

(e) On the first Business Day of the Auction Period next succeeding each Auction Date: 

(i) each Participant for a Bidder in the Auction on such Auction Date referred to in (d)(i) above 
shall instruct the Securities Depository to execute the transactions described under (b)(ii) or (h)(iii) above for 
such Auction, and the Securities Depository shall execute such transactions; 

(ii) each Seller's Broker-Dealer or its Participant shall instruct the Securities Depository to 
execute the transactions described in (d)(ii) above for such Auction, and the SccuritiesDepository shall execute 
such transactions; and 



(iii) each Buyer's Broker-Dealer or its Participant shall instruct the Securities Depository to 
execute the transactionsdescrihedin(d)(iii)abovefor such Auction, and the SecuritiesDepositoryshallexecute 
such transactions. 

( f )  If an Existing Holder selling RAMS in an Auction fails to deliver such RAMS (by authorized book- 
entry), a Broker-Dealer may deliver to the Potential Holder on behalf ofwhich it submitted a Bid that was accepted a 
principal amount of RAMS that is less than the principal amount of RAMS that otherwise was to he purchased by such 
Potential Holder. In such event, the principal amount of RAMS to be so delivered shall be determined solely by such 
Broker-Dealer. Delivery of such lesser principal amount of RAMS shall constitute good delivery. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing terms of this paragraph ( f ) ,  any delivery or non-delivery of RAMS which shall represent any departure from 
the results of an Auction, as determined by the Auction Agent, shall be of no effect unless and until the Auction Agent 
shall have been notified ofsuch delivery or non-delivery in accordance with the provisions of the Auction Agent and the 
Broker-Dealer Agreement. 
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A  PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
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Telephone 
907.276.6401 

May -, 2006 

Members of the Board of Directors of 
the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

Juneau, Alaska 9981 1 

Dear Members: 

We have examined the Constitution and laws of the State of Alaska and a record 
of proceedings relating to the issuance of $30,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 
Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 2006A-1 (the "2006A-1 Bonds") and 
$55,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior Series 
2006A-2 (the "2006A-2 Bonds" and, together with the 2006A-1 Bonds, the "Bonds") of the 
Alaska Student Loan Corporation (the "Corporation"), a public corporation and government 
instrumentality of the State of Alaska created by and existing under Alaska Statutes 
14.42.100-14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). 

The Bonds are dated the date hereof. The 2006A-1 Bonds will mature on June 1, 
2040. The 2006A-2 Bonds will mature as set forth in the table below: 

Due Principal Interest Due Principal Interest 
Amount Rate June 1 Amount Rate 

2009 $3,000,000 5.00% 2014 $6,000,000 5.00% 
2010 3,500,000 5.00 2015 6,500,000 5.00 
201 1 5,500,000 5.00 2016 6,500,000 5.00 
2012 5,500,000 5.00 2017 6,500,000 5.00 
201 3 5,500,000 5.00 201 8 6,500,000 5.00 

The Bonds are being issued in fully registered form only. lnterest on the Bonds is 
payable on December 1,2006, and semiannually thereafter on June 1 and December 1 
in each year. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturity as 
provided in the Indenture (as hereinafter defined). 
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In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, we have reviewed the lndenture; the 
tax certificate of the Corporation dated the date hereof (the "Tax Certificate"); certificates 
of the Corporation, the Trustee and others; and such other documents, opinions and 
matters as we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth herein. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, 
regulations, rulings and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed 
by such authorities. Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events 
occurring after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any 
person, whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur. We disclaim any 
obligation to update this letter. We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and 
sigiatures presented to us (whether as originals or as copies) by any parties other than the 
Corporation and the due and legal execution and delivew thereof by any parties other than 
the corporation. We have not undertaken to verify independentiy, and have assumed, 
accuracy of the factual matters represented, warranted or certified in the documents 
referred to in the preceding paragraph. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with 
the covenants and agreements contained in the lndenture and the Tax Certificate, 
including (without limitation) covenants and agreements compliance with which is 
necessary to assure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the 
Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. We call attention 
to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the lndenture (as hereinafter 
defined) and the Tax Certificate may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting 
creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles and to the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases. We express no opinion with respect to any . .  . 
indemnification, contribution, choice of law, choice of forum brwaiver provisidns contained 
in the foreaoina documents. Finallv. we exmess no o~inion as to the Official Statement 
or other ofieri6 material relating tdthe ~onds .  

The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the Act and a resolution of the 
Corporation adopted on April 18, 2006, (the "Resolution") and are issued pursuant to an 
indenture between the Corporation and US. Bank National Association, as successor 
trustee, (the "Trustee") dated as of June 1, 2002 (the "Master lndenture") and a 
supplemental indenture by and between the Corporation and theTrustee, dated as of May 
1, 2006 (the "Supplemental lndenture" and, together with the Master Indenture, the 
"lndenture"). 

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. Under the Constitution and laws of the State, the Corporation has 
been duly created and organized and validly exists as a public corporation and 
government instrumentality in good standing under the laws of the state of Alaska, 
performing an essential public function with full cor~orate Dower and authority, 
among other things, to caky out the student loan program to be financed in part by 
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the issuance of the Bonds, to provide funds therefor by the execution of the 
lndenture and the issuance and sale of the Bonds, and to perform its obligations 
under the terms and conditions of the lndenture. 

2. The lndenture has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered and 
constitutes a legal, valid, and binding instrument enforceable against the 
Corporation in accordance with its terms. 

3. The Bonds are legal, valid, and binding special, limited obligations of 
the Corporation for the payment of which, in accordance with their terms, the Trust 
Estate (as defined in the lndenture) has been legally and validly pledged, and the 
Bonds are entitled to the equal benefit, protection, and security of the provisions, 
covenants, and agreements of the lndenture on a parity with other bonds of the 
same Class (as such term is defined in the lndenture) issued and to be issued 
under the lndenture, to the extent provided therein. 

4. lnterest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income of the owners 
thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code under 
existing statutes and court decisions. It should be noted, however, that such interest 
is a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum taxes 
imposed on individuals and corporations by the Code. The opinion set forth in the 
first sentence of this paragraph is subject to the condition that the Corporation 
comply with certain arbitrage and rebate requirements set forth in Section 148 of the 
Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that 
interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes. The Corporation has covenanted to comply with each such 
requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the 
inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes 
to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We express no opinion 
regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

5. lnterest on the Bonds is exempt from taxation by or underthe authority 
of the State, except for inheritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers by or in 
contemplation of death. 

Sincerely, 

WOHLFORTH, JOHNSON, BRECHT, 
CARTLEDGE & BROOKING 

Cynthia L. Cartledge 
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APPENDIX VII 

THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY 

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE 
DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE 

(Prepared by DTC -bracketed material may be applicable only to certain issues) 

1. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities 
depository for the securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully- 
registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) 
or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One 
fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] 
in the aggregate principal amount of [any] issue and will be deposited with DTC. [If, 
however, the aggregate principal amount of [any] issue exceeds $500 million, one 
certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal amount, and an 
additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such 
issue.] 

2. DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning 
of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing 
corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
"clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 
market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") 
deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants 
of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic 
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. 
This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct 
Participants include both U.S. and non-US. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is 
owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities 
Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing 
Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, and 
EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the 
American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. 
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: A M .  The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 
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3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by orthrough 
Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC's records. The 
ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn 
to be recorded on the Direct and lndirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, 
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as 
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or lndirect Participant through which 
the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and lndirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use 
of the book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued. 

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct 
Participants with DTC are reaistered in the name of DTC's ~artnershio nominee. Cede & 
Co., o; such other name as &ay be requested by an authorized rep;esentative'of DTC. 
The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or 
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the 
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are credited, which 
may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct or lndirect Participants will remain 
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct 
Participants, by Direct Participants to lndirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and 
lndirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will he governed by arrangements among them, 
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
[Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the 
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such 
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Security documents. 

For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee 
holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to 
Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names 
and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to 
them.] 

[6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities 
within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of 
the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.] 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or 
vote with respect to Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with 
DTC's Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxv to Issuer 
as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns cede & Co.'s 
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

VII - 2 



8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities 
will be made to Cede & Co. or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants'accounts upon DTC's 
receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from lssuer or Agent, on payable date 
in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form 
or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of 
DTC [nor its nominee], Agent, or lssuer, subject to any statutoryor regulatory requirements 
as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and 
dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of lssuer or Agent, disbursement of 
such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement 
of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants. 

[9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased 
or tendered, through its Participant, to [TenderIRemarketing] Agent, and shall effect 
delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's 
interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [TenderIRemarketingJ Agent. The 
requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a 
mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities 
are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit 
of tendered Securities to [TenderIRemarketing] Agent's DTC account.] 

10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depositorywith respect to the 
Securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to lssuer or Agent. Under such 
circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

11. The lssuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry 
transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Security 
certificates will be printed and delivered. 

12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system 
has been obtained from sources that lssuer believes to be reliable, but lssuer takes no 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

VII - 3 




